
Page 1 of 5 
 

    
  
 
 

 

 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

A REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE CUDAHY CITY COUNCIL 

And JOINT MEETING Of The 
CITY OF CUDAHY AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

TO THE CUDAHY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
Tuesday, March 17, 2015 – 6:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
Council/Agency Member Guerrero 
Council/Agency Member Oliva 
Council/Agency Member Sanchez 
Vice Mayor/Vice Chair Markovich 
Mayor/Chair Garcia 
 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

4. PRESENTATIONS 
 

Proclamation Declaring the Week of March 2 – 8, 2015, as Multiple Sclerosis Awareness Week 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 Audit Results 

 
 
 
 
 

 

“Members of the Public are Advised that all PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES and any OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES are to be turned off upon entering the City Council Chambers.” If you need to 
have a discussion with someone in the audience, kindly step out into the lobby. 
 
Written materials distributed to the City Council within 72 hours of the City Council meeting are available for 
public inspection immediately upon distribution in the City Clerk’s Office at City Hall located at 5220 Santa Ana 
Street, Cudahy, CA 90201.    
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) if you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, you should contact the City Clerk’s Office at (323) 773-5143 at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting.  
 

CUDAHY CITY  
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

5240 Santa Ana Street 
Cudahy, CA, 90201 

Phone: (323) 773-5143 
Fax: (323) 771-2072 

Chris Garcia, Mayor 
Cristian Markovich, Vice Mayor   
Jack Guerrero, Council Member  
Diane Oliva, Council Member 
Baru Sanchez, Council Member  
 



City of Cudahy 
City Council  and Successor Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

 Tuesday, March 17, 2015 at 6:30 PM 
City Council Chambers 

5240 Santa Ana Street, Cudahy, California 90201 

 

 Page 2 of 5  
 

5. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS  
 

(Mayor:  This is the time set aside for citizens to address the City Council/Agency on matters relating 
to City Business. Anyone wishing to speak, please fill out the form located at the Council Chambers 
entrance and submit it to the City Clerk when approaching the podium.  Each person will be allowed 
to speak only once and will be limited to three (3) minutes.  When addressing the Council/Agency 
please speak into the microphone and voluntarily state your name and address.)   

 
6. CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS  

 
(This is the time for the City Council/Agency to comment on any topics related to “City Business,” 
including announcements, reflections on city/regional events, response to public comments, 
suggested discussion topics for future council meetings, general concerns about particular city 
matters, questions to the staff, and directives to the staff (subject to approval/consent of the City 
Council majority members present, regarding staff directives).  Each Council/Agency Member will be 
allowed to speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
City Council Members shall not use this comment period for serial discussions or debate between 
members on City business matters not properly agendized.  The City Attorney shall be responsible 
for regulating this aspect of the proceeding.) 
 

7. CITY MANAGER REPORT (information only) 
 
8. WAIVER OF FULL READING OF RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 

 
Consideration to waive full text reading of all Resolutions and Ordinances by single motion made at 
the start of each meeting, subject to the ability of the City Council/Agency to read the full text of 
selected resolutions and ordinances when the item is addressed by subsequent motion. 
(COUNCIL/AGENCY) 
 
Recommendation:  It is recommended that the City Council/Agency approve the waiver of full 
reading of Resolutions and Ordinances.  
 

9. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
A. A Request to Approve the City Demands and Payroll Including Cash and Investment Report for 

the Month of January 2015 
 

Presented by Finance Director 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the City Demands and Payroll Including Cash and Investment 
Report for the Month of January 2015 
 

B. A Request to Approve the Local Agency Investment Report (LAIF) for the Month of January 2015 
 

Presented by Finance Director 
 

Recommendation:  Approve the Local Agency Investment Report (LAIF) for the Month of 
January 2015 
 
 



City of Cudahy 
City Council  and Successor Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

 Tuesday, March 17, 2015 at 6:30 PM 
City Council Chambers 

5240 Santa Ana Street, Cudahy, California 90201 

 

 Page 3 of 5  
 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM 9 Continued 
 

C. A Request to Approve and Renew a General Services Agreement with the County of Los Angeles 
 
Presented by City Manager 

 
Recommendation:  Approve and Renew the General Services Agreement with the County of Los 
Angeles 
 

D. A Request to Approve a Professional Services Agreement for Project Management and Project 
Design for Community Development Block Grant  (CDBG) Funded Construction Projects and 
Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) 
 
Presented by Acting Community Development Director 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the Professional Services Agreement for Project Management and 
Project Design for CDBG Funded Projects and CIPs 
 

E. Notice of Excess Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds 
 

Presented by City Manager 
 
Recommendation:  Receive and File the Notice of Excess CDBG Funds 
 

F. Discussion on General Plan Annual Progress Report 
 

Presented by Acting Community Development Director 
 

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution No. 15-08 
 
 

10. CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS SESSION 
 

A. Appointment to Fill an Unscheduled Vacancy With an Unexpired Term on the Parks and 
Recreation Commission 
 
Presented by Deputy City Clerk 
 
Recommendation:  Appointment to fill an unscheduled/unexpired term to the Parks and 
Recreation Commission 

 
B. Discussion Item on Resolution(s) Regarding Immigration Reform 

 
Presented by Deputy City Clerk 
 
Recommendation:  Give Staff Direction Regarding Resolutions on Immigration Reform 
 
 
 
 



City of Cudahy 
City Council  and Successor Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

 Tuesday, March 17, 2015 at 6:30 PM 
City Council Chambers 

5240 Santa Ana Street, Cudahy, California 90201 

 

 Page 4 of 5  
 

CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS SESSION ITEM 10 Continued 
 

C. Discussion Item on a Conditional Use Permit No. 38.352 to Allow a Charter School in the 
Community Commercial Zone 

 
Presented by Acting Community Development Director 

 
Recommendation:  Approve Conditional Use Permit No. 38.352 

 
D. Consideration and Approval for First Reading of Ordinance No. 644 of the City Council of the 

City of Cudahy Amending Title 2 (Administration and Personnel) of the Cudahy Municipal Code 
by the Addition of Chapter 2.56 to Establish an Economic Development Commission 
 
Presented by Assistant City Attorney 
 
Recommendation:  Introduce Ordinance No. 644, Amending Title 2 (Administration and 
Personnel) of the Cudahy Municipal Code by the Addition of Chapter 2.56 to Establish an 
Economic Development Commission 

 
11. COUNCIL DISCUSSION  

 
A. Discussion on Translation Services (Oliva) 

 
B. Discussion on Changes and Improvements to the Neighborhood Watch Meetings (Sanchez) 

 
C. Discussion on Expenses and Cost of the Cudahy Book Fair (Guerrero) 

 
12. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS (Closed Session) 

 
(Each person will be allowed to speak only once on closed session items and will be limited to three 
(3) minutes.  When addressing the Council please speak into the microphone and voluntarily state 
your name and address.)   
 

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
 
13. CLOSED SESSION  

 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d) (2) and 54956.9(e) (1) –  Conference with Legal Counsel to 
Discuss Matter Involving Potential Litigation and/or Significant Exposure to Litigation – [One (1) Matter] - 
This Matter will be heard jointly by the Cudahy City Council and the Cudahy City Council in its capacity as 
Successor Agency to the Cudahy Redevelopment Agency.  
 
Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) – Conference with Legal Counsel to 
Discuss Existing Litigation Case Name: Barranco v. City of Cudahy Case Number:  CV-1409132JAK 
 
Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 – Public Employee Dismissal/Release 

 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 

 
14. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENT  





“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
02/17/2015  Page 1 of 2 
    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  March 17, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Steven Dobrenen, Finance Director 

Subject: Demands and Payroll for the Month of January 2015 Including Cash and 
Investment Report by Fund for the Month of January 2015 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve the Demands and Payroll for the month of 
January 2015 including Cash and Investment Report by Fund for the month of January 2015. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. On July 13, 1993, Ordinance 476 was adopted and codified as Cudahy Municipal Code 

Section 3.04.080 indicates, "Except as otherwise provided, no warrant shall be drawn or 
evidence of indebtedness issued unless there shall be at the time sufficient money in the 
treasury legally applicable to the payment of the same."  

 
2. On January 2015, the following  demands and payroll have been audited by the Finance 

Department: 
 
Demands $865,272.99  (Attachment A) 
Payroll Warrants $185,208.41  (Attachment B) 

 
ANALYSIS  
 
The attached Check Register Report (Attachment A), Payroll Warrants including payroll taxes 
and insurance premiums (Attachment B), and Cash and Investment Report by Fund January 
2015 (Attachment C) indicate that the Cash and Investment balance was sufficient to apply to 
the disbursements for the month of January 2015.  
 
Cudahy Municipal Code Section 3.04.070 indicates, "...Budgeted demands paid by warrant 
prior to audit by the council shall be presented to the council for ratification and approval..." 
 
 

 

Item Number 

9A 



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
02/17/2015  Page 2 of 2 
    

 
 
 
 
 
CONCULSION 
 
The Finance Director certifies to the accuracy and availability of funds for payment.  A 
Demand/Warrant Register has been submitted to the City Council for approval in accordance 
with Cudahy Municipal Code Section 3.04.070.   
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The Cash and Investment Report by Fund (Attachment C) indicates how the total 
disbursements of $1,051,651.89 were distributed to the funds of the City. 
 
 
 ATTACHMENTS 
A. Check Register Report 
B. Payroll Warrants including payroll taxes and insurance premiums  
C. Cash and Investment Report by Fund January 2015 
 

 
 



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 1Page:

 5:19 pmTime:

03/02/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

01/06/2015 9603 ALLY 38027

2010 GMC SIERRA TRUCKPrinted

 482.90

 0.00

 482.90

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26225 257-4780-6393.000  482.90 482.90  0.00

Check Amount  482.90

01/06/2015 10172 AMEZCUA JULIA 38028

FACILITY RESERVATION - REFUNDPrinted

 200.00

 0.00

 200.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26247 001-0000-4903.000  200.00 200.00  0.00

Check Amount  200.00

01/06/2015 10171 ARTEAGA JOSE 38029

BASKETBALL SIGN-UP REFUNDPrinted

 55.00

 0.00

 55.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26246 001-0000-4990.000  55.00 55.00  0.00

Check Amount  55.00

01/06/2015 9966 AT & T LONG DISTANCE SERVICE 38030

LONG DISTANCE PHONE SERVICEPrinted

 81.14

 0.00

 81.14

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26227 001-4020-6390.000  81.14 81.14  0.00

Check Amount  81.14

01/06/2015 10133 AVANT-GARDE, INC. 38031

CONSULTANT DECEMBER 2014Printed

 5,005.00

 0.00

 5,005.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26235 001-4216-6720.000  5,005.00 5,005.00  0.00

Check Amount  5,005.00

01/06/2015 5189 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMM 38032

CDBG PROGRAM INCOME- BARRAGONPrinted

 1,000.00

 0.00

 1,000.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26223 510-0000-4550.000  1,000.00 1,000.00  0.00

Check Amount  1,000.00

01/06/2015 8017 DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION 38033

QUARTERLY STRONG MOTIONPrinted

 430.17

 0.00

 430.17

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26234 001-4212-6779.000  430.17 430.17  0.00

Check Amount  430.17

01/06/2015 10167 EUDICE PINON , FIDEL MENDIOLA 38034

CLARA EXPANSION PARKPrinted

 647.50

 0.00

 647.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26242 280-7008-6720.000  647.50 647.50  0.00

Check Amount  647.50

01/06/2015 10168 FERNANDO MENDIOLA, LYNDA 38035

CLARA EXPANSION PARKPrinted

 647.50

 0.00

 647.50

clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 2Page:

 5:19 pmTime:

03/02/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26243 280-7008-6720.000  647.50 647.50  0.00

Check Amount  647.50

01/06/2015 0126-1 GOLDEN STATE WATER COMPANY 38036

WATER SERVICE NOV 21 - DEC 18Printed

 800.46

 0.00

 800.46

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26228 001-4020-6395.000  769.81 769.81  0.00

 26229 001-4020-6395.000  30.65 30.65  0.00

Check Amount  800.46

01/06/2015 10106 HR DYNAMICS & PERFORMANCE MGNT 38037

CONSULTING SERV DEC 21 - JAN 3Printed

 6,205.00

 0.00

 6,205.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26222 610-4930-6720.000  6,205.00 6,205.00  0.00

Check Amount  6,205.00

01/06/2015 10165 JOSE ISLAS, MARTHA MARMOLEJO 38038

CLARA EXPANSION PARKPrinted

 647.50

 0.00

 647.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26240 280-7008-6720.000  647.50 647.50  0.00

Check Amount  647.50

01/06/2015 10173 LAUNER, CHAFFEE & SCHULMAN 38039

LEGAL SERVICEPrinted

 3,534.64

 0.00

 3,534.64

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26248 280-7008-6720.000  3,534.64 3,534.64  0.00

Check Amount  3,534.64

01/06/2015 10166 LILIANA RAMOS ALVARADO 38040

CLARA EXPANSION PARKPrinted

 647.50

 0.00

 647.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26241 280-7008-6720.000  647.50 647.50  0.00

Check Amount  647.50

01/06/2015 10080 MAIL FINANCE 38041

POSTAGE MACHINE OCT 23-JAN 22Printed

 285.61

 0.00

 285.61

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26224 001-4020-6385.000  285.61 285.61  0.00

Check Amount  285.61

01/06/2015 10170 MARIO BAILON, ALICIA ZAPATA 38042

CLARA EXPANSION PARKPrinted

 647.50

 0.00

 647.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26245 280-7008-6720.000  647.50 647.50  0.00

Check Amount  647.50

01/06/2015 9962 MUNI TEMPS STAFFING 38043

CITY CLERK SERV DEC 1 - DEC 12Printed

 3,226.52

 0.00

 3,226.52

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 3Page:

 5:19 pmTime:

03/02/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

 26231 001-4008-6720.000  3,226.52 3,226.52  0.00

Check Amount  3,226.52

01/06/2015 10081 NEOFUNDS BY NEOPOST 38044

POSTAGEPrinted

 438.93

 0.00

 438.93

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26232 001-4020-6385.000  438.93 438.93  0.00

Check Amount  438.93

01/06/2015 1978 OFFICE DEPOT BUSINESS 38045

LEAVE SLIPS  PRINTSPrinted

 153.57

 0.00

 153.57

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26238 001-4020-6080.000  71.82 71.82  0.00

 26239 001-4020-6080.000  81.75 81.75  0.00

Check Amount  153.57

01/06/2015 5571 PARAGON PARTNERS 38046

RELOCATION SERVICES CLARAPrinted

 5,143.55

 0.00

 5,143.55

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26233 280-7008-6720.000  5,143.55 5,143.55  0.00

Check Amount  5,143.55

01/06/2015 8364 PLATINUM COLLISION 38047

REPAIR BODY DAMAGES ON VEHPrinted

 1,600.00

 0.00

 1,600.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26236 201-4425-6394.000  1,600.00 1,600.00  0.00

Check Amount  1,600.00

01/06/2015 10169 RACHEL ROGERS, ANGEL ROGERS, 38048

CLARA EXPANSION PARKPrinted

 1,045.00

 0.00

 1,045.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26244 280-7008-6720.000  1,045.00 1,045.00  0.00

Check Amount  1,045.00

01/06/2015 0070 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON 38049

ELECTRICITY BILLSPrinted

 6,813.92

 0.00

 6,813.92

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26230 350-4430-6318.000  93.00 93.00  0.00

 26230 001-4020-6318.000  5,359.60 5,359.60  0.00

 26230 201-4420-6318.000  1,361.32 1,361.32  0.00

Check Amount  6,813.92

01/06/2015 9626 THE BANCORP BANK 38050

2012 FORD FUSION HYBRID  2 VEHPrinted

 1,154.24

 0.00

 1,154.24

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26226 257-4780-6393.000  1,154.24 1,154.24  0.00

Check Amount  1,154.24

01/06/2015 7015 THE UPS STORE #5461 38051

LIVE SCAN VARIOUS DEPARTMENTSPrinted

 225.00

 0.00

 225.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 4Page:

 5:19 pmTime:

03/02/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

 26237 001-4015-6320.000  225.00 225.00  0.00

Check Amount  225.00

01/07/2015 4550 235- PRAXAIR DISTRIBUTION INC. 38052

CYLINDER RENTALPrinted

 40.50

 0.00

 40.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26259 201-4425-6150.000  40.50 40.50  0.00

Check Amount  40.50

01/07/2015 9604 ACCURATE APPRAISERS 38053

APPRAISAL 4840 CLARA STREETPrinted

 500.00

 0.00

 500.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26254 280-7008-6720.000  500.00 500.00  0.00

Check Amount  500.00

01/07/2015 10128 ALCALA MIKE ALONSO 38054

MUSIC:  SENIORS CHRISTMAS EVENPrinted

 150.00

 0.00

 150.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26252 001-4350-6585.000  150.00 150.00  0.00

Check Amount  150.00

01/07/2015 5552 CUDAHY AUTO CENTER 38055

SERVICED CITY VEHICLEPrinted

 1,030.11

 0.00

 1,030.11

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26260 201-4425-6394.000  391.18 391.18  0.00

 26261 201-4425-6394.000  578.93 578.93  0.00

 26262 001-4410-6394.000  60.00 60.00  0.00

Check Amount  1,030.11

01/07/2015 10168 FERNANDO MENDIOLA, LYNDA 38056

CLARA EXPANSION PARKPrinted

 3,800.00

 0.00

 3,800.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26251 280-7018-6725.000  3,800.00 3,800.00  0.00

Check Amount  3,800.00

01/07/2015 4482-1 GALLS, LLC 38057

UNIFORM OFFICER VEGAPrinted

 501.39

 0.00

 501.39

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26265 001-4530-6250.000  501.39 501.39  0.00

Check Amount  501.39

01/07/2015 2378 ITL, INC. 38058

FUELPrinted

 818.64

 0.00

 818.64

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26256 001-4530-6040.000  117.81 117.81  0.00

 26256 201-4425-6040.000  95.14 95.14  0.00

 26256 001-4410-6040.000  130.18 130.18  0.00

 26257 001-4530-6040.000  121.76 121.76  0.00

 26257 201-4425-6040.000  146.97 146.97  0.00

 26257 001-4410-6040.000  206.78 206.78  0.00

Check Amount  818.64



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 5Page:

 5:19 pmTime:

03/02/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

01/07/2015 4553 J. V. PRINTING 38059

BUSINESS CARD MASTERSPrinted

 1,226.25

 0.00

 1,226.25

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26253 001-4020-6970.000  272.50 272.50  0.00

 26255 001-4020-6970.000  953.75 953.75  0.00

Check Amount  1,226.25

01/07/2015 10170 MARIO BAILON, ALICIA ZAPATA 38060

CLARA EXPANSION PARKPrinted

 2,200.00

 0.00

 2,200.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26249 280-7018-6725.000  2,200.00 2,200.00  0.00

Check Amount  2,200.00

01/07/2015 8219 NORTHGATE SUPER MARKET 38061

FOOD DISTRIBUTION DECEMBERPrinted

 7,250.00

 0.00

 7,250.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26264 510-4642-6145.000  7,250.00 7,250.00  0.00

Check Amount  7,250.00

01/07/2015 5686 ORIENTAL TRADING CO 38062

SUPPLIES FOR CHRISTMAS EVENTPrinted

 262.82

 0.00

 262.82

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26258 001-4350-6585.000  262.82 262.82  0.00

Check Amount  262.82

01/07/2015 10169 RACHEL ROGERS, ANGEL ROGERS, 38063

CLARA EXPANSION PARKPrinted

 3,800.00

 0.00

 3,800.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26250 280-7018-6725.000  3,800.00 3,800.00  0.00

Check Amount  3,800.00

01/07/2015 9737 REGIONAL TAP SERVICE CENTER 38064

REGULAR BUSS PASS NOVEMBERPrinted

 85.00

 0.00

 85.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26263 251-4760-6550.000  85.00 85.00  0.00

Check Amount  85.00

01/13/2015 1778 ALL CITY MANAGEMENT 38065

CROSSING GUARD DEC 7 - DEC 20Printed

 2,074.52

 0.00

 2,074.52

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26276 001-4520-6730.000  2,074.52 2,074.52  0.00

Check Amount  2,074.52

01/13/2015 7995 AMERICAN CITY PEST CONTROL 38066

PEST CONTROL DECEMBER 2014Printed

 484.00

 0.00

 484.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26270 001-4020-6720.000  101.00 101.00  0.00

 26271 001-4020-6720.000  101.00 101.00  0.00

 26272 001-4020-6720.000  117.00 117.00  0.00

 26273 001-4020-6720.000  101.00 101.00  0.00



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 6Page:

 5:19 pmTime:

03/02/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

 26274 001-4020-6720.000  64.00 64.00  0.00

Check Amount  484.00

01/13/2015 9952 BALANDRAN JESSICA 38067

AFLAC PREMIUM REIMBURSEMENTPrinted

 177.36

 0.00

 177.36

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26303 960-0000-2115.000  177.36 177.36  0.00

Check Amount  177.36

01/13/2015 0136 CITY OF SOUTH GATE 38068

SIGNAL MAINTENANCE -JANUARYPrinted

 75.00

 0.00

 75.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26268 201-4420-6771.000  75.00 75.00  0.00

Check Amount  75.00

01/13/2015 2289 CONSOLIDATED DISPOSAL 38069

REFUSE ASSESSMENT DECEMBERPrinted

 164,921.88

 0.00

 164,921.88

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26297 730-0000-2007.000  164,921.88 164,921.88  0.00

Check Amount  164,921.88

01/13/2015 2304 DAVE'S TROPHIES 38070

BASEBALL TROPHIESPrinted

 1,255.42

 0.00

 1,255.42

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26275 001-4350-6230.000  1,255.42 1,255.42  0.00

Check Amount  1,255.42

01/13/2015 9998 DOWNEY SIGN & LIGHTING 38071

INSTALLATION OF CHRISTMASPrinted

 315.00

 0.00

 315.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26277 001-4020-6720.000  315.00 315.00  0.00

Check Amount  315.00

01/13/2015 10167 EUDICE PINON , FIDEL MENDIOLA 38072

CLARA EXPANSION PARK RELOCATIOPrinted

 3,800.00

 0.00

 3,800.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26285 280-7018-6725.000  3,800.00 3,800.00  0.00

Check Amount  3,800.00

01/13/2015 10057 FASTENAL COMPANY 38073

SAFETY TAPE FOR MAINT VEHICLESPrinted

 714.30

 0.00

 714.30

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26278 001-4020-6010.000  591.72 591.72  0.00

 26279 201-4425-6150.000  61.29 61.29  0.00

 26279 001-4410-6140.000  61.29 61.29  0.00

Check Amount  714.30

01/13/2015 0569 FEDERAL EXPRESS SERVICES 38074

FEDEX EXPRESSPrinted

 29.51

 0.00

 29.51

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26281 001-4020-6385.000  29.51 29.51  0.00



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 7Page:

 5:19 pmTime:

03/02/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

Check Amount  29.51

01/13/2015 6087 FIRST AMERICAN DATA TREE 38075

SERVICE RENDERED DECEMBER 2014Printed

 201.20

 0.00

 201.20

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26280 001-4215-6080.000  201.20 201.20  0.00

Check Amount  201.20

01/13/2015 4482-1 GALLS, LLC 38076

UNIFORM OFFICER MARTINEZPrinted

 568.98

 0.00

 568.98

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26283 001-4530-6250.000  568.98 568.98  0.00

Check Amount  568.98

01/13/2015 10150 HIRSCH & ASSOCIATES, INC. 38077

CLARA PARK EXPANSION - DESIGNPrinted

 10,625.00

 0.00

 10,625.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26284 280-7008-6720.000  10,625.00 10,625.00  0.00

Check Amount  10,625.00

01/13/2015 2724 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 38078

HARDWARE AND SUPPLIESPrinted

 532.83

 0.00

 532.83

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26302 001-4350-6585.000  24.84 24.84  0.00

 26302 201-4425-6770.000  63.38 63.38  0.00

 26302 001-4410-6389.000  61.60 61.60  0.00

 26302 001-4410-6140.000  236.08 236.08  0.00

 26302 201-4425-6150.000  40.08 40.08  0.00

 26302 001-4020-6010.000  106.85 106.85  0.00

Check Amount  532.83

01/13/2015 9723 IT SYSTEMHOUSE, INC. 38079

IT OUTSOURCING SERV DECEMBERPrinted

 3,200.00

 0.00

 3,200.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26294 001-4020-6720.000  3,200.00 3,200.00  0.00

Check Amount  3,200.00

01/13/2015 2378 ITL, INC. 38080

FUELPrinted

 708.03

 0.00

 708.03

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26267 001-4530-6040.000  252.06 252.06  0.00

 26267 201-4425-6040.000  125.87 125.87  0.00

 26267 001-4410-6040.000  56.97 56.97  0.00

 26305 001-4530-6040.000  112.27 112.27  0.00

 26305 201-4425-6040.000  75.60 75.60  0.00

 26305 001-4410-6040.000  85.26 85.26  0.00

Check Amount  708.03

01/13/2015 0092-7 LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES 38081

MEMBERSHIP DUES 2015Printed

 7,940.00

 0.00

 7,940.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26266 001-4020-6312.000  7,940.00 7,940.00  0.00



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 8Page:

 5:19 pmTime:

03/02/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

Check Amount  7,940.00

01/13/2015 5702 LOS ANGELES COUNTY 38082

FILE:  NOTICE OF DETERMINATIONPrinted

 2,285.00

 0.00

 2,285.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26304 001-4216-6720.000  2,285.00 2,285.00  0.00

Check Amount  2,285.00

01/13/2015 10300 MARIA IBARRA 38083

ONE DAY SEMINAR -PR LAW  2015Printed

 41.20

 0.00

 41.20

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26296 001-4155-6391.000  41.20 41.20  0.00

Check Amount  41.20

01/13/2015 9962 MUNI TEMPS STAFFING 38084

CITY CLERK SERV DEC 15-DEC  26Printed

 1,852.25

 0.00

 1,852.25

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26269 001-4008-6720.000  1,852.25 1,852.25  0.00

Check Amount  1,852.25

01/13/2015 5129 OSUNA SINALOA AUTO GLASS 38085

REPAIR DOOR HANDLEPrinted

 174.95

 0.00

 174.95

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26282 001-4530-6394.000  85.00 85.00  0.00

 26286 001-4530-6394.000  89.95 89.95  0.00

Check Amount  174.95

01/13/2015 0069-2 SIEMENS INDUSTRY, INC. 38086

SIGNAL RESPONSE CALLS - NOVPrinted

 2,739.16

 0.00

 2,739.16

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26298 350-4430-6775.000  783.25 783.25  0.00

 26299 350-4430-6775.000  216.38 216.38  0.00

 26300 201-4420-6771.000  674.61 674.61  0.00

 26301 201-4420-6771.000  1,064.92 1,064.92  0.00

Check Amount  2,739.16

01/13/2015 10088 STATE CONTROLLER'S OFFICE 38087

REQUEST FORPrinted

 100.00

 0.00

 100.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26293 001-4151-6710.000  100.00 100.00  0.00

Check Amount  100.00

01/13/2015 9991 TRANSTECH 38088

BUILDING PLAN CHECK NOVEMBERPrinted

 1,224.75

 0.00

 1,224.75

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26295 001-4212-6752.000  1,224.75 1,224.75  0.00

Check Amount  1,224.75

01/13/2015 9951 WILLDAN 38089

PROFESIONAL SERVICESPrinted

 10,008.42

 0.00

 10,008.42

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 9Page:

 5:19 pmTime:

03/02/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

 26287 001-4212-6720.000  2,380.00 2,380.00  0.00

 26288 001-4212-6720.000  280.00 280.00  0.00

 26289 001-4212-6720.000  1,068.42 1,068.42  0.00

 26290 001-4212-6720.000  4,530.00 4,530.00  0.00

 26291 001-4212-6720.000  840.00 840.00  0.00

 26292 001-4212-6720.000  910.00 910.00  0.00

Check Amount  10,008.42

01/21/2015 9966 AT & T LONG DISTANCE SERVICE 38090

LONG DISTANCE PHONE SERVICEPrinted

 46.79

 0.00

 46.79

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26321 001-4020-6390.000  46.79 46.79  0.00

Check Amount  46.79

01/21/2015 10005 DAPEER, ROSENBLIT & LITVAK 38091

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES DECEMBERPrinted

 2,233.77

 0.00

 2,233.77

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26316 510-4230-6755.000  2,233.77 2,233.77  0.00

Check Amount  2,233.77

01/21/2015 9508 DELPHIN COMPUTER SUPPLY 38092

TONERPrinted

 346.62

 0.00

 346.62

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26315 510-4230-6080.000  346.62 346.62  0.00

Check Amount  346.62

01/21/2015 10167 EUDICE PINON , FIDEL MENDIOLA 38093

CLARA EXPANSION PARKPrinted

 647.50

 0.00

 647.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26312 280-7018-6725.000  647.50 647.50  0.00

Check Amount  647.50

01/21/2015 10168 FERNANDO MENDIOLA, LYNDA 38094

CLARA EXPANSION PARKPrinted

 647.50

 0.00

 647.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26310 280-7018-6725.000  647.50 647.50  0.00

Check Amount  647.50

01/21/2015 10150 HIRSCH & ASSOCIATES, INC. 38095

CLARA PARK EXPANSIONPrinted

 990.20

 0.00

 990.20

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26317 280-7008-6720.000  990.20 990.20  0.00

Check Amount  990.20

01/21/2015 10106 HR DYNAMICS & PERFORMANCE MGNT 38096

CONSULTING SERV JAN 4 - JAN 17Printed

 6,950.00

 0.00

 6,950.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26324 610-4930-6720.000  6,355.00 6,355.00  0.00

 26324 610-4930-6391.000  595.00 595.00  0.00

Check Amount  6,950.00



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 10Page:

 5:19 pmTime:

03/02/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

01/21/2015 10165 JOSE ISLAS, MARTHA MARMOLEJO 38097

CLARA EXPANSION PARKPrinted

 647.50

 0.00

 647.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26307 280-7018-6725.000  647.50 647.50  0.00

Check Amount  647.50

01/21/2015 8057 KONICA MINOLTA BUSINESS 38098

MONTHLY SERV DIGITALPrinted

 218.49

 0.00

 218.49

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26314 001-4020-6370.000  218.49 218.49  0.00

Check Amount  218.49

01/21/2015 10176 LILIANA ALVARADO 38099

CLARA EXPANSION PARKPrinted

 3,300.00

 0.00

 3,300.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26329 280-7018-6725.000  3,300.00 3,300.00  0.00

Check Amount  3,300.00

01/21/2015 10166 LILIANA RAMOS ALVARADO 38100

CLARA EXPANSION PARKPrinted

 647.50

 0.00

 647.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26308 280-7018-6725.000  647.50 647.50  0.00

Check Amount  647.50

01/21/2015 5072 MARIA SATIAGO VICTOR 38101

PER DIEM - PARKS & RECREATIONPrinted

 68.25

 0.00

 68.25

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26326 001-4350-6392.000  68.25 68.25  0.00

Check Amount  68.25

01/21/2015 10170 MARIO BAILON, ALICIA ZAPATA 38102

CLARA EXPANSION PARKPrinted

 647.50

 0.00

 647.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26309 280-7018-6725.000  647.50 647.50  0.00

Check Amount  647.50

01/21/2015 9970 OLIVAREZ MADRUGA, P.C. 38103

LEGAL SERVICES NOVEMBER 2014Printed

 35,538.65

 0.00

 35,538.65

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26306 610-4930-6391.000  975.00 975.00  0.00

 26306 001-4005-6755.000  8,135.20 8,135.20  0.00

 26306 610-4930-6755.000  6,428.45 6,428.45  0.00

 26306 001-4005-6720.000  20,000.00 20,000.00  0.00

Check Amount  35,538.65

01/21/2015 5571 PARAGON PARTNERS 38104

RELOCATION SERVICE CLARAPrinted

 6,996.05

 0.00

 6,996.05

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26319 280-7008-6720.000  6,996.05 6,996.05  0.00

Check Amount  6,996.05



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 11Page:

 5:19 pmTime:

03/02/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

01/21/2015 10169 RACHEL ROGERS, ANGEL ROGERS, 38105

CLARA EXPANSION PARKPrinted

 1,045.00

 0.00

 1,045.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26311 280-7018-6725.000  1,045.00 1,045.00  0.00

Check Amount  1,045.00

01/21/2015 10174 RIVERA RAMON 38106

YOUTH SPORTS REFUNDPrinted

 110.00

 0.00

 110.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26328 001-0000-4990.000  110.00 110.00  0.00

Check Amount  110.00

01/21/2015 0070 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON 38107

ELECTRICITY BILLSPrinted

 7,146.40

 0.00

 7,146.40

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26320 350-4430-6318.000  6,839.53 6,839.53  0.00

 26320 001-4020-6318.000  211.60 211.60  0.00

 26320 201-4420-6318.000  95.27 95.27  0.00

Check Amount  7,146.40

01/21/2015 0491 STATE CONTROLLER'S OFFICE 38108

AUDIT S14-SPA-001 FINALPrinted

 133,089.67

 0.00

 133,089.67

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26323 001-4151-6720.000  133,089.67 133,089.67  0.00

Check Amount  133,089.67

01/21/2015 0079 TRACT 180 WATER COMPANY 38109

WATER SERVICE NOV 1 - DEC 31Printed

 1,256.68

 0.00

 1,256.68

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26318 001-4410-6395.000  1,137.37 1,137.37  0.00

 26318 001-4020-6395.000  44.43 44.43  0.00

 26318 201-4425-6395.000  74.88 74.88  0.00

Check Amount  1,256.68

01/21/2015 0078 TRACT 349 MUTUAL WATER CO 38110

WATER SERVICE OCT 15 - DEC 15Printed

 407.23

 0.00

 407.23

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26322 001-4020-6395.000  91.42 91.42  0.00

 26322 201-4425-6395.000  315.81 315.81  0.00

Check Amount  407.23

01/21/2015 6005 VASQUEZ RUBEN 38111

PER DIEM - PARKS & RECREATIONPrinted

 68.25

 0.00

 68.25

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26325 001-4350-6392.000  68.25 68.25  0.00

Check Amount  68.25

01/21/2015 10175 ZARAGOZA SILVIA 38112

YOUTH SPORTS REFUNDPrinted

 55.00

 0.00

 55.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 12Page:

 5:19 pmTime:

03/02/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

 26327 001-0000-4990.000  55.00 55.00  0.00

Check Amount  55.00

01/27/2015 0057-1 AT & T INTERNET SERVICES 38113

U-VERSE - LUGO PARK MAINTPrinted

 80.00

 0.00

 80.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26378 001-4020-6396.000  35.00 35.00  0.00

 26379 001-4020-6396.000  45.00 45.00  0.00

Check Amount  80.00

01/27/2015 9966 AT & T LONG DISTANCE SERVICE 38114

LONG DISTANCE PHONE SERVICEPrinted

 85.30

 0.00

 85.30

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26382 001-4020-6390.000  85.30 85.30  0.00

Check Amount  85.30

01/27/2015 8021 AT & T MOBILITY 38115

CELLULAR SERVICE DEC 7 - JAN 6Printed

 570.40

 0.00

 570.40

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26374 201-4425-6390.000  71.91 71.91  0.00

 26374 510-4230-6390.000  46.94 46.94  0.00

 26374 001-4011-6390.000  72.78 72.78  0.00

 26374 001-4020-6390.000  378.77 378.77  0.00

Check Amount  570.40

01/27/2015 0057-2 AT & T PHONE SERVICE 38116

LANDLINE PHONE DEC 8 - JAN 7Printed

 2,225.17

 0.00

 2,225.17

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26377 001-4020-6390.000  1,803.39 1,803.39  0.00

 26380 001-4020-6390.000  421.78 421.78  0.00

Check Amount  2,225.17

01/27/2015 8243 ATLANTIC AUTO DYNAMICS 38117

SERVICE VEH FOR LIGHTS & RADIOPrinted

 400.00

 0.00

 400.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26370 001-4530-6394.000  350.00 350.00  0.00

 26371 001-4530-6394.000  50.00 50.00  0.00

Check Amount  400.00

01/27/2015 10123 B & V GROUP CORPORATION 38118

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 2007FORDPrinted

 300.00

 0.00

 300.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26344 001-4530-6394.000  10.00 10.00  0.00

 26345 001-4530-6394.000  290.00 290.00  0.00

Check Amount  300.00

01/27/2015 7019 BUSINESS CARD 38119

CREDIT CARD DECEMBER RIPrinted

 4,184.15

 0.00

 4,184.15

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26340 001-4011-6391.000  164.20 164.20  0.00

 26340 001-4151-6391.000  289.20 289.20  0.00

 26340 001-4502-6145.000  90.21 90.21  0.00



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 13Page:

 5:19 pmTime:

03/02/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

 26340 510-4642-6145.000  3,057.60 3,057.60  0.00

 26340 001-4020-6375.000  108.50 108.50  0.00

 26340 001-4020-6080.000  137.17 137.17  0.00

 26340 720-4365-6145.000  274.20 274.20  0.00

 26340 001-4350-6585.000  56.99 56.99  0.00

 26340 001-4350-6585.000  6.08 6.08  0.00

Check Amount  4,184.15

01/27/2015 8061 CELEDON'S EXER. EQUIP. SERV. 38120

REPAIRS TO FITNESS EQUIPMENTPrinted

 2,161.00

 0.00

 2,161.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26369 001-4350-6230.000  2,161.00 2,161.00  0.00

Check Amount  2,161.00

01/27/2015 4546 CENTRAL BASIN MUNICIPAL WATER 38121

RECYCLE WATER SERVICE NOVEMBERPrinted

 112.29

 0.00

 112.29

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26367 001-4020-6395.000  112.29 112.29  0.00

Check Amount  112.29

01/27/2015 4839 CHAMPION CHEMICAL 38122

GRAFFITI-X REMOVE GRAFFITIPrinted

 492.14

 0.00

 492.14

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26347 201-4425-6770.000  164.05 164.05  0.00

 26347 001-4020-6010.000  164.04 164.04  0.00

 26347 001-4410-6140.000  164.05 164.05  0.00

Check Amount  492.14

01/27/2015 5189 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMM 38123

CDBG PROGRAM INCOME- BARRAGONPrinted

 500.00

 0.00

 500.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26333 510-0000-4550.000  500.00 500.00  0.00

Check Amount  500.00

01/27/2015 5552 CUDAHY AUTO CENTER 38124

VEHICLE SMOG TEST 2007FORDPrinted

 60.00

 0.00

 60.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26354 001-4530-6394.000  60.00 60.00  0.00

Check Amount  60.00

01/27/2015 2167 DAILY BREEZE PRESS TELEGRAM 38125

CLASSIFIED ADVERTISING DEC/JANPrinted

 5,074.69

 0.00

 5,074.69

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26356 001-4008-6310.000  911.60 911.60  0.00

 26357 280-7008-6760.000  2,240.75 2,240.75  0.00

 26357 001-4008-6310.000  1,922.34 1,922.34  0.00

Check Amount  5,074.69

01/27/2015 10018 ESTRADA HILDA 38126

INTERPRETER JANUARY 20, 2015Printed

 1,600.00

 0.00

 1,600.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26364 001-4020-6720.000  800.00 800.00  0.00



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 14Page:

 5:19 pmTime:

03/02/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

 26365 001-4020-6720.000  800.00 800.00  0.00

Check Amount  1,600.00

01/27/2015 10167 EUDICE PINON , FIDEL MENDIOLA 38127

JANUARY RENT REIMBURSEMENTPrinted

 1,395.00

 0.00

 1,395.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26339 280-0000-2193.000  1,395.00 1,395.00  0.00

Check Amount  1,395.00

01/27/2015 10168 FERNANDO MENDIOLA, LYNDA 38128

JANUARY RENT REIMBURSEMENTPrinted

 7,313.60

 0.00

 7,313.60

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26334 280-7018-6725.000  5,893.60 5,893.60  0.00

 26336 280-0000-2193.000  1,420.00 1,420.00  0.00

Check Amount  7,313.60

01/27/2015 9980 FERRER VICTOR 38129

REIMBURSEMENT EXAM FEEPrinted

 40.00

 0.00

 40.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26343 001-4011-6392.000  40.00 40.00  0.00

Check Amount  40.00

01/27/2015 4482-1 GALLS, LLC 38130

UNIFORM OFFICER MARTINEZPrinted

 487.16

 0.00

 487.16

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26368 001-4530-6250.000  487.16 487.16  0.00

Check Amount  487.16

01/27/2015 10053 HAULAWAY STORAGE CONTAINERS 38131

21FT STORAGE CONTAINER DECEMBEPrinted

 82.15

 0.00

 82.15

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26360 001-4020-6323.000  82.15 82.15  0.00

Check Amount  82.15

01/27/2015 4553 J. V. PRINTING 38132

BUS CARDS -  J PULIDOPrinted

 126.44

 0.00

 126.44

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26348 001-4020-6970.000  63.22 63.22  0.00

 26349 001-4020-6970.000  31.61 31.61  0.00

 26350 001-4020-6970.000  31.61 31.61  0.00

Check Amount  126.44

01/27/2015 5710 JADE FAMILY SERVICES 38133

PARENTING: JUL AUG SEP DECPrinted

 8,776.78

 0.00

 8,776.78

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26332 001-4643-6720.000  6,055.16 6,055.16  0.00

 26332 510-4643-6720.000  2,721.62 2,721.62  0.00

Check Amount  8,776.78

01/27/2015 9425 JK CONSTRUCTION 38134

SINGLE FAM: 7735 ATLANTIC SP20Printed

 11,308.50

 0.00

 11,308.50



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 15Page:

 5:19 pmTime:

03/02/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26330 510-4620-6767.000  5,953.50 5,953.50  0.00

 26331 510-4620-6767.000  5,355.00 5,355.00  0.00

Check Amount  11,308.50

01/27/2015 10165 JOSE ISLAS, MARTHA MARMOLEJO 38135

CLARA EXPANSION PARKPrinted

 3,300.00

 0.00

 3,300.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26375 280-7018-6725.000  3,300.00 3,300.00  0.00

Check Amount  3,300.00

01/27/2015 9668 KONICA MINOLTA BUSINESS 38136

MONTHLY SERV DIGITALPrinted

 236.38

 0.00

 236.38

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26351 001-4020-6014.000  236.38 236.38  0.00

Check Amount  236.38

01/27/2015 0197 LA COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT 38137

LAW ENFORCEMENT NOVEMBER 2014Printed

 297,802.53

 0.00

 297,802.53

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26353 001-4501-6763.000  297,802.53 297,802.53  0.00

Check Amount  297,802.53

01/27/2015 0092-7 LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES 38138

2015 PLANNING COM ACADEMYPrinted

 1,075.00

 0.00

 1,075.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26376 001-4215-6392.000  1,075.00 1,075.00  0.00

Check Amount  1,075.00

01/27/2015 10176 LILIANA ALVARADO 38139

JANUARY RENT REIMBURSEMENTPrinted

 1,477.00

 0.00

 1,477.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26338 280-0000-2193.000  1,477.00 1,477.00  0.00

Check Amount  1,477.00

01/27/2015 10166 LILIANA RAMOS ALVARADO 38140

RENTAL ASSISTANCE PAYMENTPrinted

 14,256.00

 0.00

 14,256.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26335 280-7018-6725.000  14,256.00 14,256.00  0.00

Check Amount  14,256.00

01/27/2015 10170 MARIO BAILON, ALICIA ZAPATA 38141

JANUARY RENT REIMBURSEMENTPrinted

 1,420.00

 0.00

 1,420.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26337 280-0000-2193.000  1,420.00 1,420.00  0.00

Check Amount  1,420.00

01/27/2015 9677 MECHANICAL DRIVERS & BELTING 38142

REPLACE FUSES STR LIGHT POLESPrinted

 251.40

 0.00

 251.40

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 16Page:

 5:19 pmTime:

03/02/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

 26346 350-4430-6775.000  251.40 251.40  0.00

Check Amount  251.40

01/27/2015 1338-1 METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION 38143

TAP NOVEMBER 2014Printed

 4,323.00

 0.00

 4,323.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26358 251-4760-6550.000  4,323.00 4,323.00  0.00

Check Amount  4,323.00

01/27/2015 9962 MUNI TEMPS STAFFING 38144

CITY CLERK SERV DEC 24 - JAN 6Printed

 1,971.76

 0.00

 1,971.76

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26362 001-4008-6720.000  1,971.76 1,971.76  0.00

Check Amount  1,971.76

01/27/2015 10081 NEOFUNDS BY NEOPOST 38145

POSTAGEPrinted

 445.42

 0.00

 445.42

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26366 001-4020-6385.000  445.42 445.42  0.00

Check Amount  445.42

01/27/2015 8247 NETWORK INNOVATION ASSOCIATES 38146

SATELLITE NETWORK FEBRUARY2015Printed

 278.00

 0.00

 278.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26361 268-4220-6993.000  278.00 278.00  0.00

Check Amount  278.00

01/27/2015 1978-1 OFFICE DEPOT CREDIT PLAN 38147

OFFICE SUPPLIESPrinted

 259.51

 0.00

 259.51

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26341 001-4020-6080.000  243.44 243.44  0.00

 26341 001-4018-6080.000  4.51 4.51  0.00

 26341 001-4151-6080.000  11.56 11.56  0.00

Check Amount  259.51

01/27/2015 5129 OSUNA SINALOA AUTO GLASS 38148

REPAIR WINDOW ON CHEV 1500Printed

 116.30

 0.00

 116.30

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26363 201-4425-6394.000  116.30 116.30  0.00

Check Amount  116.30

01/27/2015 9737 REGIONAL TAP SERVICE CENTER 38149

REGULAR BUSS PASS DECEMBERPrinted

 73.68

 0.00

 73.68

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26359 251-4760-6550.000  73.68 73.68  0.00

Check Amount  73.68

01/27/2015 2802 SAM'S CLUB 38150

SNACKS  FOR CITY EVENTSPrinted

 456.01

 0.00

 456.01

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26342 001-4020-6080.000  27.22 27.22  0.00



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 17Page:

 5:19 pmTime:

03/02/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

 26342 001-4350-6585.000  368.67 368.67  0.00

 26342 001-4020-6080.000  60.12 60.12  0.00

Check Amount  456.01

01/27/2015 0069-2 SIEMENS INDUSTRY, INC. 38151

SIGNAL RESPONSE CALLS - DECPrinted

 1,906.83

 0.00

 1,906.83

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26372 201-4420-6771.000  674.61 674.61  0.00

 26373 201-4420-6771.000  1,232.22 1,232.22  0.00

Check Amount  1,906.83

01/27/2015 0172 SMART & FINAL FOOD SERVICE 38152

FOOD DISTRIBUTION DECEMBERPrinted

 2,895.57

 0.00

 2,895.57

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26355 001-4350-6585.000  28.19 28.19  0.00

 26355 001-4020-6080.000  20.76 20.76  0.00

 26355 001-4642-6145.000  2,846.62 2,846.62  0.00

Check Amount  2,895.57

01/27/2015 0070 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON 38153

ELECTRICITY BILLSPrinted

 3,207.24

 0.00

 3,207.24

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26381 201-4420-6318.000  226.53 226.53  0.00

 26381 001-4020-6318.000  2,980.71 2,980.71  0.00

Check Amount  3,207.24

01/27/2015 0071 THE GAS COMPANY 38154

NATURAL GAS - 7810 OTIS AVEPrinted

 183.42

 0.00

 183.42

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26383 001-4020-6380.000  183.42 183.42  0.00

Check Amount  183.42

01/27/2015 2859 UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT-SC 38155

DIG ALERT TICKETSPrinted

 27.00

 0.00

 27.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
 26352 201-4425-6735.000  27.00 27.00  0.00

Check Amount  27.00

Total Checks: Bank Total(excluding void checks): 129  865,272.99

Grand Total(excluding void checks):Total Checks:  129  865,272.99



Attachment B 

Staff Report 
03/17/2015   
    

CITY OF CUDAHY 
Payroll Warrants including payroll taxes and insurance premiums: 

 
January 8, 2015 January 22, 2015

Issued Warrants Number 19076 - 19142 19143 - 19197
Voided Warrants

Issued Warrants Amounts 10,754.55$                4,886.86$                  
Direct Deposits (a) 50,110.14                  52,413.41                  
CalPERS Direct Deposit (b) 29,720.98                  
CalPERS Direct Deposit (c) 17,293.46                  
Payroll taxes (d) 9,440.66                    10,588.35                  

Total Amount 117,319.79$              67,888.62$                

Note (a) - Employees / Council Members / Commissioners
Note (b) - Payments for CalPERS medical insurance
Note (c) - Payments for CalPERS retirement contributions
Note (d) - Federal and State payroll taxes

 
 

 
 



Cash and Investment Report by Fund January 2015

December 2014 Receipts Disbursements January 2015

001 General Fund 2,896,553.76      1,807,086.34       686,616.47           4,017,023.63         
040 Drug Assets Seizure Fund 35,584.34           19.61                   35,603.95              
201 State Gas Tax 1,190,902.12      47,525.93            25,296.14             1,213,131.91         
240 Prop 1 B - Local Street Improv. 464,761.42         249.02                 465,010.44            
251 Prop C 182,722.53         28,175.68            5,567.14               205,331.07            
252 Prop A 656,619.19         30,825.05            1,075.49               686,368.75            
253 Measure R 522,656.59         19,191.16            6,400.15               535,447.60            
257 AQMD 32,921.60           15.41                   1,637.14               31,299.87              
260 Used Oil 13,568.01           7.27                     13,575.28              
261 California Beverage Container 6,716.24             3.60                     6,719.84                
265 Recycling Grant 14,208.49           7.61                     14,216.10              
270 C.O.P.S 155,951.89         16,134.98            172,086.87            
280 County Park Bond (96,871.36)          9,840.40              84,656.79             (171,687.75)           
300 CAL Home 74,798.99           42.54                   74,841.53              
350 Street Lighting fund 50,482.96           7,928.23              8,183.56               50,227.63              
510 CDBG (12,325.96)          500.00                 42,093.84             (53,919.80)             
610 Successor Agency 185,249.77         1,482,211.89       24,929.09             1,642,532.57         
710 Youth Foundation 48,884.10           26.18                   48,910.28              
720 Senior's Account 407.00                274.20                  132.80                   
730 Refuse Assessment 164,921.88         41,299.01            164,921.88           41,299.01              

6,588,713.56      3,491,089.91       1,051,651.89        9,028,151.58         

LAIF- CITY 5,313,546.35      853,565.55 6,167,111.90
Wells Fargo 1,275,167.27      2,637,524.36 1,051,651.89 2,861,039.74
TOTAL 6,588,713.62      3,491,089.91       1,051,651.89        9,028,151.64

Total cash disbursements per January Demand and Payroll Reports
AP disbursements 865,272.99           
Payroll - January 8, 2015 117,319.79           
Payroll - January 22, 2015 67,888.62             
Add:  Total Bank charges in January 2015 1,170.49               
Total Cash Disbursements per January Cash & Investment Report 1,051,651.89        

CITY OF CUDAHY

clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment C



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/17/2015  Page 1 of 2 
    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  March 17, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Steven Dobrenen, Finance Director 

Subject: Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) for the Month of January 2015 

RECOMMENDATION   
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
Report for the month of January 2015. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. In 1955, the Pooled Money Investment Account (PMIA) started. LAIF became part of the 

PMIA. The oversight is provided by the Pooled Money Investment Board (PMIB) and an in-
house Investment Committee. The PMIB members consist of the State Treasurer, Director 
of Finance, and State Controller.  
 

2. In 1977, LAIF was created as a voluntary program by Section 16429.1 et seq. of the 
California Government Code.  The program was intended to be used as an investment 
alternative for California's local governments and special districts.  The LAIF continues 
today under Treasurer John Chiang's administration.  

 
3. On January 1, 2015, the balance in LAIF was $5,313,546.35 (Attachment A) 

 
4. On January 31, 2015, balance in LAIF was $6,167,111.90 (Attachment A) 

 
ANALYSIS 
 
The voluntary program offers local agencies the opportunity to participate in a major 
portfolio, which invests hundreds of millions of dollars, using the investment expertise of the 
State Treasurer’s Office investment staff at no additional cost to the taxpayer. 
 
All securities are purchased under the authority of Government Code Section 16430 and 
16480.4. The State Treasurer's Office takes delivery of all securities purchased on a delivery 

 

Item Number 

9B 



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/17/2015  Page 2 of 2 
    

versus payment basis using a third party custodian.   
 
Cudahy Municipal Code Section 3.04.080 indicates, "Except as otherwise provided, no 
warrant shall be drawn or evidence of indebtedness issued unless there shall be at the time 
sufficient money in the treasure legally applicable to the payment of the same." 
 
The report in Attachment A in conjunction with the Demands and Payroll for the Month of 
January 2015 including Investment Report by Fund for the Month of January 2015 
demonstrate the sufficiency of fund available to pay demands and payroll as required by 
Cudahy Municipal Code Section 3.04.080.  
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Once Council approves the January 2015 LAIF then the LAIF ending balance may be relied 
upon when determining whether or not there is sufficient fund available to pay demand and 
payroll as required by Cudahy Municipal Code Section 3.04.080.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
None 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Local Agency Investment Fund 
 
 



Attachment A 

 
LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND 

  
General Account - City #98-19-225 

 
Beginning Balance as of: January 01, 2015 $5,313,546.35 
 
  
Ending Balance as of  January 31, 2015   $6,167,111.90 

============ 
 



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
3/17/2015  Page 1 of 2 
    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  March 17, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Jessica Balandran, Senior Administrative Analyst 

Subject: Approval of the Renewal of the City’s General Services Agreement with the 
County of Los Angeles  

 
RECOMMENDATION 

The City Council is requested to approve and renew the City’s General Services Agreement 
(GSA) with the County of Los Angeles and authorize the City Manager to sign a five-year 
agreement to be effective from July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2020.  
 
BACKGROUND 

1. On June 18, 2010, the most recent City’s GSA with the County of Los Angeles was 
executed and renewed.  

2. On June 30, 2015, the current City’s GSA will expire.  

 
ANALYSIS 

The GSA authorizes the County to perform services on behalf of the City and must be 
approved and executed by both the City and the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors for 
a five-year period. Services provided under the GSA consist of “as-needed” time-limited 
services such as predatory animal control, prosecution of city ordinances, direct assessment 
collection, and a variety of public works services. County services, such as law enforcement 
and public health code enforcement, are provided by the responsible County departments 
through Specific Service Agreements (SSAs) which are not affected by the renewal of the 
City’s GSA.   
 
As a contract city, Cudahy has traditionally entered into a GSA with the County of Los Angeles 
to provide various services and perform a variety of functions. The agreement does not 
request any specific service, but simply provides an agreement between the City and the 
County of Los Angeles to continue to provide on-going services or perform specific functions 
upon request.  

 

Item Number 

9C 



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
3/17/2015  Page 2 of 2 
    

The City currently utilizes many of the County’s public works services through the City’s 
current GSA on a regular basis due to limited staff, expertise, skill force and equipment. The 
City requests services through the County’s online portal, City Service Request Tracking 
System (CSRTS). The services below are some of the services the City has most recently 
utilized from the County that are available to the City through the GSA: 

• Catch Basin Cleaning including a Trash Excluder Agreement  
• On-Call Plan Checking Services for City Projects (e.g., Clara Bridge Project) 
• Emergency Services (e.g., street repairs, traffic signal response, natural disaster clean-

up) 
• Industrial Waste Sewer Inspection 
• Overflow/Spills (e.g., illegal discharge and illegal connections) 

 
The Chief Executive Office of the County of Los Angeles has requested that the City return 
signed copies to their office no later than April 27, 2015 to allow sufficient time to approve 
the renewal of our City’s current GSA prior to its expiration. The City Attorney has reviewed 
the agreement.  
 
 
CONCLUSION 

The current GSA will expire on June 30, 2015, therefore it is recommended that the City 
Council approve the renewal of the GSA and authorize the City Manager to sign the five-year 
agreement. If GSA is not approved and/or signed before the expiration date, the City will not 
be able to utilize and continue using the services the County provides, such as the public 
works services the City utilizes on a recurring basis.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

Renewing the new GSA does not fiscally commit the City to a specific spending amount. As 
part of the City Budget process, the City Council approves funding for various services the 
County provides through approving specific projects and services projected by staff.  
 
ATTACHMENTS  

A. County of Los Angeles Chief Executive Office Correspondence dated January 22, 2015 
B. General Services Agreement – Renewal for July 2, 2105 to June 30, 2020 
 



clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment A





clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment B













“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/17/2015  Page 1 of 3 
    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  March 17, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By: Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director 

Subject: Approval of Professional Services Agreement for Project Management & 
Project Design Services for the Community Development Block Grant Funded 
Construction Projects and City’s Capital Improvement Projects 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City Council is requested to award a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) for Project 
Management and Project Design Services for the Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) funded construction Projects and City’s Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) to 
Transtech Engineers, Inc.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. On May 6, 2014, City Council approved the following CDBG CIP projects: 

a. Lugo Park Soccer Field Renovation Project; and 
b. Lugo Park Restroom Renovation Project. 

 
2. On October 21, 2014, City Council approved the City’s Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-2015 

Budget. City CIP projects programmed to start construction in FY 14-15 include: 
a. Citywide Prop 1B Street Improvement Project; and 
b. Citywide Safe Routes to School ATP Cycle 1; and  
c. Traffic Signal Modification Project on Atlantic Avenue HSIP Cycle 6; and 
d. Citywide Street Improvement Project. 
 

3. On January 20, 2015, City Council approved the following CDBG CIP projects: 
a. ADA Compliance in Public Facilities/Parking Lots 

 

Item Number 

9D 



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/17/2015  Page 2 of 3 
    

 
4. On February 2, 2015, City staff noticed a Request for Proposals (RFP) for On-Call Project 

Management and Project Design Services for CDBG construction projects and the City’s 
CIP projects. 

 
5. On February 20, 2015, the Community Development Department received six bid 

proposals for On-Call Project Management and Project Design Services. 
 
6. On March 5, 2015, City staff completed the review/analysis of all bid proposals 

submitted (Attachment A) and determined that APA Engineering, Inc. was the lowest 
responsive bidder and should be recommended an award of PSA.  

 
ANALYSIS 
 
Due to project demands and limited staffing, staff has determined it necessary to contract a 
consultant for On-Call Project Management and Project Design Services to expedite and 
oversee CDBG construction projects and CIP projects funded by Measure R, Prop C, Prop 1B, 
Caltrans, and Metro. 

In response to the City’s Notice to On-Call Project Management and Project Design Services, 
six bid proposals were received (Proposal Summaries attached for reference – Attachment A). 
Following staffs analysis it was determined that Transtech Engineers, Inc. submitted the 
lowest responsive bid. Our determination was based not only on qualifications, but also based 
on the proposed fees for services. As illustrated in “Attachment A”, Transtech Engineers 
received the highest overall average points. Additionally, when comparing the rate for 
primary project staffing who have obtained their PE (Professional Engineer License), 
Transtech Engineers also rakes the highest. In accordance to the policies of CDBG programs, 
City staff therefore recommends that City Council award the contract to Transtech Engineers, 
Inc.  

Staff also determined that Transtech Engineers, Inc. shall be required to submit individual 
project proposals for each assignment to ensure that project administration budgets are not 
exceeded. 

CONCLUSION 
 
If City Council does not approve the professional services agreement between the City of 
Cudahy and Transtech Engineers, Inc., the City runs the risk of delayed construction project 
implementation and completion. Approval will ensure the City continues to stay on task and 
on schedule for the CIP projects referenced in items 1 and 2 of the Background. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/17/2015  Page 3 of 3 
    

Project Management and Project Design Services for CDBG CIP projects and City initiated CIP 
projects is expected to total approximately $322,242.00. However, the final dollar amount 
will depend on final construction costs, which will be determined in the early stages of project 
implementation. All costs incurred will be charged to the associated funding source. In this 
case the following project costs will be reimbursed by CDBG, Prop 1B, Measure R, Caltrans 
and Metro grants (HSIP,ATP), and  Prop C grants. Project budgets will not impact the General 
Fund.  
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. Bid Proposal Analysis 
B. Bid Proposal Transtech Engineers, Inc. 
C. DRAFT Professional Services Agreement between the City of Cudahy and Transtech 

Engineers, Inc. 



Reviewers:

Aaron Hernandez - AH

Jennifer Hernandez- JH

Maria Torres- MT

Didier Murrillo- DM

Item 

No. ITEM

Total 

Posssible 

Points AH JH MT DM AH JH MT DM AH JH MT DM AH JH MT DM AH JH MT DM AH JH MT DM

1                                                                                                        10 10 10 9 10 9 7 8 10 10 10 10 10 9 9 9 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 9 10

2 Approach to the Scope of Work 15 15 8 10 15 15 10 13 15 15 15 14 15 15 15 15 15 15 13 13 15 15 12 14 15

3 Description of Individual  Consultant or Firm 5 5 5 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 4 5 4 5 5 5 4 5 5 5

4 Firm's Relative Experience 10 9 8 8 9 9 8 8 9 10 10 9 9.5 9 10 10 9.5 9 9 9 8 8 9 9 8

5 Qualification of Firm 10 9 8 8 9 8 10 6 10 9 9 9 9 9 10 10 8 9 8 8 9.5 8 10 10 9

6 Work Plan/Methodology 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5

7 Proposed Staffing and Project Team 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5

8 References and Project Descriptions 10 8 8 9 10 9 8 8 10 10 10 10 10 8 10 10 9 8 8 8 8 8 10 9 5

9 Other Information to Include 5 5 5 3 5 2 4 0 4 4 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 2 5 5 0 4 5 5 10

10 Hourly Rate / Fee Schedule 15 12 14 14 15 14 14 15 14 13 14 14 13 14 15 15 12 11 15 15 11 10 14 12 0

11 Insurance 10 10 7 6 10 0 0 0 0 10 10 10 10 7 6 5 7 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10

93 83 81 98 81 76 73 87 96 95 93 96.5 91 95 93 90.5 88 93 93 86.5 87 95 93 82

TOTAL POINTS Evaluation: 100

Points Pricing Point Scale Project Manager Hourly Rate         

1 Transtech 95.13 Lowest Hourly Rate 6 Points Pacifica Services, Inc.  130.00/hr.

2 APA Engineering, Inc. 92.38                               4 Points APA Engineering, Inc. 165.00/hr.

3 La Cañada Design Group 90.13                                   5 Points AICMS                               150.00/hr.

4 ONYX Architects 89.25                                     3 Points La Cañada Design Group 167.00/hr.

5 Pacifica Services, Inc. 88.75                                  2 Points Transtech                         170.00/hr.

6 AICMS 79.25 Highest Hourly Rate 1 Points ONYX Architects        210.00/hr.

Rank

Transtech 95.13 + 2 Final Score      97.13 1

APA Engineering, Inc. 92.38 + 4 Final Score      96.38 2

La Cañada Design Group 90.13 + 3 Final Score      93.13 4

ONYX Architects 89.25 + 1 Final Score      90.25 5

Pacifica Services, Inc. 88.75 + 6 Final Score      94.75 3

AICMS 79.25 + 5 Final Score      84.25 6

ONYX ArchitectsTranstech APA Engineering, Inc. La Cañada Design Group

Project Management RFP Bid Review

Pacifica Services, Inc. AICMS

















































































































































































Attachment C 
 

 
Page 1 

 

 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
     
THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered 
into this 17 day of March 2015  (hereinafter, the “Effective Date”), by and between the 
CITY OF CUDAHY, a municipal corporation (“CITY”) and Transtech Engineers, Inc. 
(“CONSULTANT”), a Project Management and Project Design Firm (hereinafter, 
“CONSULTANT”).  For the purposes of this Agreement CITY and  CONSULTANT may 
be referred to collectively by the capitalized term “Parties.”  The capitalized term “Party” 
may refer to CITY or CONSULTANT interchangeably.  
 
WHEREAS, CITY wishes to engage CONSULTANT to provide the following specialized 
services: Project Management and Project Design; and 
 
WHEREAS, CITY’s in-house personnel is presently unable to perform the specialized 
services and tasks contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, CONSULTANT possesses the specialized training, skill, expertise and 
experience required to perform the services contemplated under this Agreement; and 
  
WHEREAS, CONSULTANT agrees to perform the various services and tasks set forth 
under this Agreement subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 
herein contained, CITY and CONSULTANT agree as follows:  
 

I. 
ENGAGEMENT TERMS 

 
1.1 SCOPE OF SERVICES:  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this 

Agreement and all exhibits attached and incorporated hereto, CONSULTANT 
agrees to perform the services and tasks set forth in Exhibit “A” (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Scope of Services”).  CONSULTANT further agrees to furnish 
to CITY all labor, materials, tools, supplies, equipment, services, tasks and 
incidental and customary work necessary to competently perform and timely 
complete the services and tasks set forth in the Scope of Services.  For the 
purposes of this Agreement the aforementioned services and tasks set forth in 
the Scope of Services shall hereinafter be referred to generally by the capitalized 
term “Work.”    
 



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 2 

 

1.2 TERM:  This Agreement shall have a term of one (1) year with the commencing from 
March 17, 2015 (“EFFECTIVE DATE”). Upon the conclusion of the Term, this 
Agreement shall renew automatically for a maximum of two (2) years. Nothing in 
this Section shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict the CITY’s ability to 
terminate this Agreement at any time for convenience or for cause. 
 

1.3 COMPENSATION:    
 

A. CONSULTANT shall perform the various services and tasks set forth in the 
Scope of Services in accordance with the compensation schedule which is 
(hereinafter, the “Approved Rate Schedule”) found in Appendix A.     
 

B. Section 1.3(A) notwithstanding, CONSULTANT’s total compensation shall be 
based on the Approved Rate Schedule, on an on-call basis. As needed, the 
CONSULTANT shall be requested to submit a proposed budget for each 
project to be approved by the City Manager for project management and 
design services.   In the event CONSULTANT’s charges are projected to 
exceed the proposed budget prior to the expiration of the Term or any single 
extension term, CITY may suspend CONSULTANT’s performance pending 
CITY approval of any anticipated expenditures in excess of the budget 
amount or any other CITY-approved amendment to the compensation terms 
of this Agreement.  

 
1.4 PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION: Reserved; No text.  
 
1.5 ACCOUNTING RECORDS: CONSULTANT shall maintain complete and accurate 

records with respect to all matters covered under this Agreement for a period of 
five (5) years after the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  CITY shall 
have the right to access and examine such records, without charge, during 
normal business hours.  CITY shall further have the right to audit such records, to 
make transcripts therefrom and to inspect all program data, documents, 
proceedings, and activities.  

 
1.6 ABANDONMENT BY CONSULTANT:  In the event CONSULTANT ceases to 

perform the Work agreed to under this Agreement or otherwise abandons the 
undertaking contemplated herein prior to the expiration of this Agreement or prior 
to completion of any or all tasks set forth in the Scope of Services, 
CONSULTANT shall deliver to CITY immediately and without delay, all materials, 
records and other work product prepared or obtained by CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement.  Furthermore, CONSULTANT shall only be 
compensated for the reasonable value of the services, tasks and other work 
performed up to the time of cessation or abandonment, less a deduction for any 
damages, costs or additional expenses which CITY may incur as a result of 
CONSULTANT’s cessation or abandonment. 

 



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 3 

 

II. 
PERFORMANCE OF AGREEMENT 

 
2.1 CITY’S REPRESENTATIVES:  The CITY hereby designates the Superintendent 

and Project Manager (hereinafter, the “CITY Representatives”) to act as its 
representatives for the performance of this Agreement.  The Superintendent shall 
be the chief CITY Representative.  The CITY Representatives or their designee 
shall act on behalf of the CITY for all purposes under this Agreement.  
CONSULTANT shall not accept directions or orders from any person other than 
the CITY Representatives or their designee. 
 

2.2 CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE: CONSULTANT hereby designates Ali 
Pakzad, Principal-in-Charge/Contract Manager (“Contractor”) to act as its 
representative for the performance of this Agreement (hereinafter, 
“CONSULTANT Representative”).  CONSULTANT Representative shall have full 
authority to represent and act on behalf of the CONSULTANT for all purposes 
under this Agreement.  CONSULTANT Representative or his designee shall 
supervise and direct the performance of the Work, using his best skill and 
attention, and shall be responsible for all means, methods, techniques, 
sequences and procedures and for the satisfactory coordination of all portions of 
the Work under this Agreement.  Notice to the CONSULTANT Representative 
shall constitute notice to CONSULTANT.  
 

2.3 COORDINATION OF SERVICE; CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS:  
CONSULTANT agrees to work closely with CITY staff in the performance of the 
Work and this Agreement and shall be available to CITY staff and the CITY 
Representatives at all reasonable times. All work prepared by CONSULTANT 
shall be subject to inspection and approval by CITY Representatives or their 
designees. 
 

2.4 STANDARD OF CARE; PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES:  CONSULTANT 
represents, acknowledges and agrees to the following: 

 
A. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work skillfully, competently and to the 

highest standards of CONSULTANT’s profession; 
 

B. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work in a manner reasonably satisfactory 
to the CITY; 
 

C. CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local 
laws and regulations, including the conflict of interest provisions of 
Government Code Section 1090 and the Political Reform Act 
(Government Code Section 81000 et seq.); 

 



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 4 

 

D. CONSULTANT understands the nature and scope of the Work to be 
performed under this Agreement as well as any and all schedules of 
performance;  
 

E. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents possess sufficient skill, 
knowledge, training and experience to perform those services and tasks 
assigned to them by CONSULTANT; and 

 
F. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents (including but not limited 

subcontractors and subconsultants) possess all licenses, permits, 
certificates, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are 
legally required to perform the tasks and services contemplated under this 
Agreement and all such licenses, permits, certificates, qualifications and 
approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of this Agreement and 
made available to CITY for copying and inspection. 
 
The Parties acknowledge and agree that CONSULTANT shall perform, at 
CONSULTANT’s own cost and expense and without any reimbursement 
from CITY, any services necessary to correct any errors or omissions 
caused by CONSULTANT’s failure to comply with the standard of care set 
forth under this Section or by any like failure on the part of 
CONSULTANT’s employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors and 
subconsultants.   Such effort by CONSULTANT to correct any errors or 
omissions shall be commenced immediately upon their discovery by either 
Party and shall be completed within seven (7) calendars days from the 
date of discovery or such other extended period of time authorized by the 
CITY Representatives in writing and in their sole and absolute discretion. 
The Parties acknowledge and agree that CITY’s acceptance of any work 
performed by CONSULTANT or on CONSULTANT’s behalf shall not 
constitute a release of any deficiency or delay in performance. The Parties 
further acknowledge, understand and agree that CITY has relied upon the 
foregoing representations of CONSULTANT, including but not limited to 
the representation that CONSULTANT possesses the skills, training, 
knowledge and experience necessary to perform the Work skillfully, 
competently and to the highest standards of CONSULTANT’s profession. 

 
2.5 ASSIGNMENT: The skills, training, knowledge and experience of CONSULTANT 

are material to CITY’s willingness to enter into this Agreement.  Accordingly, 
CITY has an interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the person(s) who 
will perform the services and tasks to be undertaken by CONSULTANT or on 
behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.  In recognition of 
this interest, CONSULTANT agrees that it shall not assign or transfer, either 
directly or indirectly or by operation of law, this Agreement or the performance of 
any of CONSULTANT’s duties or obligations under this Agreement without the 
prior written consent of the CITY.  In the absence of CITY’s prior written consent, 



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 5 

 

any attempted assignment or transfer shall be ineffective, null and void and shall 
constitute a material breach of this Agreement.  
 

2.6 CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT 
CONTRACTOR: The Work shall be performed by CONSULTANT or under 
CONSULTANT’s strict supervision.  CONSULTANT will determine the means, 
methods and details of performing the Work subject to the requirements of this 
Agreement.  CITY retains CONSULTANT on an independent contractor basis 
and not as an employee.  CONSULTANT reserves the right to perform similar or 
different services for other principals during the term of this Agreement, provided 
such work does not unduly interfere with CONSULTANT’s competent and timely 
performance of the Work contemplated under this Agreement and provided the 
performance of such services does not result in the unauthorized disclosure of 
CITY’s confidential or proprietary information.  Any additional personnel 
performing the Work under this Agreement on behalf of CONSULTANT are not 
employees of CITY and shall at all times be under CONSULTANT’s exclusive 
direction and control.  CONSULTANT shall pay all wages, salaries and other 
amounts due such personnel and shall assume responsibility for all benefits, 
payroll taxes, Social Security and Medicare payments and the like.  
CONSULTANT shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting 
such additional personnel, including, but not limited to: Social Security taxes, 
income tax withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, workers’ 
compensation insurance and the like. 
 

2.7 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS:  If any of CONSULTANT’s officers, 
employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants is determined 
by the CITY Representatives to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the 
adequate or timely performance of the tasks assigned to CONSULTANT, a threat 
to persons or property, or if any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, 
contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants fail or refuse to perform the Work 
in a manner acceptable to the CITY, such officer, employee, agent, contractor, 
subcontractor or subconsultant shall be promptly removed by CONSULTANT 
and shall not be re-assigned to perform any of the Work. 
   

2.8 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and in 
compliance with all applicable federal, State or local laws to the extent such laws 
control or otherwise govern the performance of the Work. CONSULTANT’s 
compliance with applicable laws shall include without limitation compliance with 
all applicable Cal/OSHA requirements.   

 
2.9 NON-DISCRIMINATION:  In the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT 

shall not discriminate against any employee, subcontractor, subconsultant, or 
applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital 
status, sexual orientation, national origin, ancestry, age, physical or mental 
disability or medical condition. 



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 6 

 

 
2.10 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:  The Parties acknowledge, 

understand and agree that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed 
by CONSULTANT are, and shall at all times remain, wholly independent 
contractors and are not officials, officers, employees, departments or 
subdivisions of CITY.  CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for the 
negligent acts and/or omissions of its employees, agents, contractors, 
subcontractors and subconsultants. CONSULTANT and all persons retained or 
employed by CONSULTANT shall have no authority, express or implied, to bind 
CITY in any manner, nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on 
behalf of, or against, CITY, whether by contract or otherwise, unless such 
authority is expressly conferred to CONSULTANT under this Agreement or is 
otherwise expressly conferred by CITY in writing. 

 
 

III. 
INSURANCE 

 
3.1 DUTY TO PROCURE AND MAINTAIN INSURANCE: Prior to the beginning of 

and throughout the duration of the Work, CONSULTANT will procure and 
maintain polices of insurance that meet the requirements and specifications set 
forth under this Article. CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain the following 
insurance coverage, at its own expense: 
 
A. Commercial General Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and 

maintain Commercial General Liability Insurance (“CGL Coverage”) as broad 
as Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage 
(occurrence Form CG 0001) or its equivalent.  Such CGL Coverage shall 
have minimum limits of no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per 
occurrence and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) in the general aggregate 
for bodily injury, personal injury, property damage, operations, products and 
completed operations, and contractual liability. 
 

B. Automobile Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain 
Automobile Liability Insurance as broad as Insurance Services Office Form 
Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 (any auto).  Such 
Automobile Liability Insurance shall have minimum limits of no less than One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident for bodily injury and property 
damage.  
 

C. Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability Insurance:   A policy 
of workers’ compensation insurance in such amount as will fully comply with 
the laws of the State of California and which shall indemnify, insure and 
provide legal defense for both CONSULTANT and CITY against any loss, 
claim or damage arising from any injuries or occupational diseases occurring 



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 7 

 

to any worker employed by or any persons retained by CONSULTANT in the 
course of carrying out the Work contemplated in this Agreement. 
 

D. Errors & Omissions Insurance:  For the full term of this Agreement and for a 
period of three (3) years thereafter, CONSULTANT shall procure and 
maintain Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance appropriate to 
CONSULTANT’s profession.  Such coverage shall have minimum limits of no 
less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and shall be 
endorsed to include contractual liability.   

   
3.2 ADDITIONAL INSURED REQUIREMENTS: The CGL Coverage and the 

Automobile Liability Insurance shall contain an endorsement naming the CITY 
and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and 
volunteers as additional insureds.  
 

3.3 REQUIRED CARRIER RATING:  All varieties of insurance required under this 
Agreement shall be procured from insurers admitted in the State of California and 
authorized to issue policies directly to California insureds.  Except as otherwise 
provided elsewhere under this Article, all required insurance shall be procured 
from insurers who, according to the latest edition of the Best’s Insurance Guide, 
have an A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII.   CITY may also accept policies 
procured by insurance carriers with a Standard & Poor’s rating of no less than 
BBB according to the latest published edition the Standard & Poor’s rating guide.  
As to Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability Insurance, the 
CITY Representatives are authorized to authorize lower ratings than those set 
forth in this Section.   
 

3.4 PRIMACY OF CONSULTANT’S INSURANCE: All polices of insurance provided 
by CONSULTANT shall be primary to any coverage available to CITY or CITY’s 
elected or appointed officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers.  Any 
insurance or self-insurance maintained by CITY or CITY’s elected or appointed 
officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers shall be in excess of 
CONSULTANT’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.  
 

3.5 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION:  All insurance coverage provided pursuant to this 
Agreement shall not prohibit CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’s officers, 
employees, agents, subcontractors or subconsultants from waiving the right of 
subrogation prior to a loss.  CONSULTANT hereby waives all rights of 
subrogation against CITY.  

 
3.6 VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  CONSULTANT acknowledges, understands 

and agrees, that CITY’s ability to verify the procurement and maintenance of the 
insurance required under this Article is critical to safeguarding CITY’s financial 
well-being and, indirectly, the collective well-being of the residents of the CITY.  
Accordingly, CONSULTANT warrants, represents and agrees that its shall 



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 8 

 

furnish CITY with original certificates of insurance and endorsements evidencing 
the coverage required under this Article on forms satisfactory to CITY in its sole 
and absolute discretion.  The certificates of insurance and endorsements for 
each insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that 
insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, and shall be on forms provided by 
the CITY if requested.  All certificates of insurance and endorsements shall be 
received and approved by CITY as a condition precedent to CONSULTANT’s 
commencement of any work or any of the Work.  Upon CITY’s written request, 
CONSULTANT shall also provide CITY with certified copies of all required 
insurance policies and endorsements.   

 
IV. 

INDEMNIFICATION 
 
 

4.1 The Parties agree that CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers (hereinafter, the “CITY Indemnitees”) should, 
to the fullest extent permitted by law, be protected from any and all loss, injury, 
damage, claim, lawsuit, cost, expense, attorneys’ fees, litigation costs, or any 
other cost arising out of or in any way related to the performance of this 
Agreement. Accordingly, the provisions of this indemnity provision are intended 
by the Parties to be interpreted and construed to provide the CITY Indemnitees 
with the fullest protection possible under the law. CONSULTANT acknowledges 
that CITY would not enter into this Agreement in the absence of CONSULTANT’s 
commitment to indemnify, defend and protect CITY as set forth herein. 

 
4.2 To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the CITY Indemnitees from and against all liability, loss, 
damage, expense, cost (including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees, 
expert fees and all other costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of 
or in connection with CONSULTANT’s performance of work hereunder or its 
failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in this Agreement, except 
such loss or damage which is caused by the sole negligence or willful 
misconduct of the CITY.  

 
4.3 CITY shall have the right to offset against the amount of any compensation due 

CONSULTANT under this Agreement any amount due CITY from CONSULTANT 
as a result of CONSULTANT’s failure to pay CITY promptly any indemnification 
arising under this Article and related to CONSULTANT’s failure to either (i) pay 
taxes on amounts received pursuant to this Agreement or (ii) comply with 
applicable workers’ compensation laws.  

 
4.4 The obligations of CONSULTANT under this Article will not be limited by the 

provisions of any workers’ compensation act or similar act. CONSULTANT 
expressly waives its statutory immunity under such statutes or laws as to CITY 



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 9 

 

and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and 
volunteers.  

  
4.5 CONSULTANT agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions 

identical to those set forth here in this Article from each and every subcontractor 
or any other person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT 
in the performance of this Agreement.  In the event CONSULTANT fails to obtain 
such indemnity obligations from others as required herein, CONSULTANT 
agrees to be fully responsible and indemnify, hold harmless and defend CITY 
and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and 
volunteers from and against any and all claims and losses, costs or expenses for 
any damage due to death or injury to any person and injury to any property 
resulting from any alleged intentional, reckless, negligent, or otherwise wrongful 
acts, errors or omissions of CONSULTANT’s subcontractors or any other person 
or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance 
of this Agreement. Such costs and expenses shall include reasonable attorneys’ 
fees incurred by counsel of CITY’s choice.  
 

4.6 CITY does not, and shall not, waive any rights that it may possess against 
CONSULTANT because of the acceptance by CITY, or the deposit with CITY, of 
any insurance policy or certificate required pursuant to this Agreement. This hold 
harmless and indemnification provision shall apply regardless of whether or not 
any insurance policies are determined to be applicable to the claim, demand, 
damage, liability, loss, cost or expense. 

 
4.7 This Article and all provisions contained herein (including but not limited to the 

duty to indemnify, defend and hold free and harmless) shall survive the 
termination or normal expiration of this Agreement and is in addition to any other 
rights or remedies which the CITY may have at law or in equity.   

 
V. 

TERMINATION 
 
5.1 TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE: CITY may terminate this Agreement at any 

time for convenience and without cause by giving CONSULTANT a minimum of 
five (5) calendar days prior written notice of CITY’s intent to terminate this 
Agreement.   Upon such termination for convenience, CONSULTANT shall be 
compensated only for those services  and tasks which have been performed by 
CONSULTANT up to the effective date of the termination.   CONSULTANT may 
not terminate this Agreement except for cause as provided under Section 5.2, 
below.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided herein, CITY may require 
CONSULTANT to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and Data, as 
defined in Section 7.1 below, and other information of any kind prepared by 
CONSULTANT in connection with the performance of the Work.  CONSULTANT 
shall be required to provide such Documents and Data within fifteen (15) 



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 10 

 

calendar days of CITY’s written request.  No actual or asserted breach of this 
Agreement on the part of CITY pursuant to Section 5.2, below, shall operate to 
prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to terminate this Agreement for 
convenience as provided under this Section. 

 
5.2 EVENTS OF DEFAULT; BREACH OF AGREEMENT:  
 

A. In the event either Party fails to perform any duty, obligation, service or 
task set forth under this Agreement (or fails to timely perform or properly 
perform any such duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this 
Agreement), an event of default (hereinafter, “Event of Default”) shall 
occur.  For all Events of Default, the Party alleging an Event of Default 
shall give written notice to the defaulting Party (hereinafter referred to as a 
“Default Notice”) which shall specify: (i)  the nature of the Event of Default; 
(ii) the action required to cure the Event of Default; (iii) a date by which the 
Event of Default shall be cured, which shall not be less than the applicable 
cure period set forth under Sections 5.2.B and 5.2C below or if a cure is 
not reasonably possible within the applicable cure period, to begin such 
cure and diligently prosecute such cure to completion.   The Event of 
Default shall constitute a breach of this Agreement if the defaulting Party 
fails to cure the Event of Default within the applicable cure period or any 
extended cure period allowed under this Agreement.   

 
B. CONSULTANT shall cure the following Events of Defaults within the 

following time periods: 
 

i. Within three (3) business days of CITY’s issuance of a Default 
Notice for any failure of CONSULTANT to timely provide CITY or 
CITY’s employees or agents with any information and/or written 
reports, documentation or work product which CONSULTANT is 
obligated to provide to CITY  or CITY’s employees or agents under 
this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of the 3-day cure period, 
CONSULTANT may submit a written request for additional time to 
cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT has 
commenced efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event 
of Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 3-day cure period.  
The foregoing notwithstanding, CITY shall be under no obligation to 
grant additional time for the cure of an Event of Default under this 
Section 5.2 B.i. that exceeds seven (7) calendar days from the end 
of the initial 3-day cure period; or 

 
ii. Within fourteen (14) calendar days of CITY’s issuance of a Default 

Notice for any other Event of Default under this Agreement.  Prior 
to the expiration of the 14-day cure period, CONSULTANT may 
submit a written request for additional time to cure the Event of 



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 11 

 

Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT has commenced 
efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default 
cannot be reasonably cured within the 14-day cure period.  The 
foregoing notwithstanding, CITY shall be under no obligation to 
grant additional time for the cure of an Event of Default under this 
Section 5.2B.ii that exceeds thirty (30) calendar days from the end 
of the initial 14-day cure period. 

 
In addition to any other failure on the part of CONSULTANT to perform 
any duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement (or the 
failure to timely perform or properly perform any such duty, obligation, 
service or task), an Event of Default on the part of CONSULTANT shall 
include, but shall not be limited to the following:  (i) CONSULTANT’s 
refusal or failure to perform any of the services or tasks called for under 
the Scope of Services;  (ii) CONSULTANT’s failure to fulfill or perform its 
obligations under this Agreement within the specified time or if no time is 
specified, within a reasonable time;  (iii) CONSULTANT’s and/or its 
employees’ disregard  or violation of any federal, state, local law, rule, 
procedure or regulation;  (iv) the initiation of proceedings under any 
bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, reorganization, or similar legislation 
as relates to CONSULTANT, whether voluntary of involuntary; (v) 
CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to perform or observe any covenant, 
condition, obligation or provision of this Agreement;  and/or (vii) CITY’s 
discovery that a statement representation or warranty by CONSULTANT 
relating to this Agreement  is false, misleading or erroneous in any 
material respect. 

 
C. CITY shall cure any Event of Default asserted by CONSULTANT within 

forty-five (45) calendar days of CONSULTANT’s issuance of a Default 
Notice, unless the Event of Default cannot reasonably be cured within the 
45-day cure period.   Prior to the expiration of the 45-day cure period, 
CITY may submit a written request for additional time to cure the Event of 
Default upon a showing that CITY has commenced its efforts to cure the 
Event of Default and that the Event of Default cannot be reasonably cured 
within the 45-day cure period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, an Event of 
Default dealing with CITY’s failure to timely pay any undisputed sums to 
CONSULTANT as provided under Section 1.4, above, shall be cured by 
CITY within five (5) calendar days from the date of CONSULTANT’s 
Default Notice to CITY. 

 
D. CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also immediately suspend 

CONSULTANT’s performance under this Agreement pending 
CONSULTANT’s cure of any Event of Default by giving CONSULTANT 
written notice of CITY’s intent to suspend CONSULTANT’s performance 
(hereinafter, a “Suspension Notice”).  CITY may issue the Suspension 



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 12 

 

Notice at any time upon the occurrence of an Event of Default. Upon such 
suspension, CONSULTANT shall be compensated only for those services 
and tasks which have been rendered by CONSULTANT to the reasonable 
satisfaction of CITY up to the effective date of the suspension.   No actual 
or asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of CITY shall operate to 
prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to suspend this Agreement as 
provided herein. 

 
E. No waiver of any Event of Default or breach under this Agreement shall 

constitute a waiver of any other or subsequent Event of Default or breach.  
No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a 
Party shall give the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, 
or otherwise.  

 
F. The duties and obligations imposed under this Agreement and the rights 

and remedies available hereunder shall be in addition to and not a 
limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise 
imposed or available by law. In addition to any other remedies available to 
CITY at law or under this Agreement in the event of any breach of this 
Agreement, CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also pursue any 
one or more of the following remedies: 

 
i. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may immediately 

terminate this Agreement in whole or in part; 
 

ii. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may extend the 
time of performance; 

 
iii. The CITY may proceed by appropriate court action to enforce the 

terms of the Agreement  to recover damages for CONSULTANT’s 
breach of the Agreement  or to terminate the Agreement; or 

 
iv. The CITY may exercise any other available and lawful right or 

remedy.  
 

CONSULTANT shall be liable for all legal fees plus other costs and 
expenses that CITY incurs upon a breach of this Agreement or in the 
CITY’s exercise of its remedies under this Agreement.  

 
G. In the event CITY is in breach of this Agreement, CONSULTANT’s sole 

remedy shall be the suspension or termination of this Agreement and/or 
the recovery of any unpaid sums lawfully owed to CONSULTANT under 
this Agreement for completed services and tasks.   

 



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 13 

 

5.3 SCOPE OF WAIVER:  No waiver of any default or breach under this Agreement 
shall constitute a waiver of any other default or breach, whether of the same or 
other covenant, warranty, agreement, term, condition, duty or requirement 
contained in this Agreement.  No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily 
given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any contractual rights by 
custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  
 

5.4 SURVIVING ARTICLES, SECTIONS AND PROVISIONS:  The termination of this 
Agreement pursuant to any provision of this Article or by normal expiration of its 
term or any extension thereto shall not operate to terminate any Article, Section 
or provision contained herein which provides that it shall survive the termination 
or normal expiration of this Agreement. 

 
VI. 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
6.1 AUDIT OR EXAMINATION: All records and files related to the Programs shall be 

kept and maintained at the City Hall premises at all times.  City shall keep and 
maintain all program files for the City and make them accessible for audit or 
examination for a period of five (5) years after final payments are issued and 
other pending matters are closed. (24 CFR Part 85, Sec. 42) 

 
 
6.2 CONFLICT OF INTEREST: Contractor agrees that any conflict or potential 

conflict of interest shall be fully disclosed prior to execution of the Agreement or 
upon actual knowledge of a conflict of interest or potential conflict of interest 
during the term of this Agreement and Contractor shall comply with all applicable 
federal, state and county laws and regulations governing conflict of interest, in 
accordance with 24 CFR Part 85, Sec. 84.36. 

 
6.3 COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL REGULATIONS 

 

This Agreement is subject to an incorporates the terms of Subpart K of the 
CDBG Regulations and all other applicable Federal Standards Provisions, 
inclusive of the following: 

Executive Order 11246 requires that during the performance of this agreement, 
CONSULTANT agrees not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of race, religion, sex color, or national origin. 
CONSULTANT will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are 
employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to 
their race, religion, sex color or national origin.  Such action shall include, but not 
be limited to, the following: employment upgrading, demotion or transfer; 
recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other 



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 14 

 

forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The 
consultant agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the CONSULTANT setting 
forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 
 
Section 3 of Housing and Community Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 
U.S.C. 1701 et seq., requires that, to the greatest extent feasible, opportunities 
for training and employment be given to lower income residents of the project 
area and contracts for work in connection with the project be awarded to 
business concerns which are located in or owner in substantial part by persons 
residing in the area of the project. 
 

Title VI of the civil Rights Act of 1964 provides that no person shall, on the 
ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be 
denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or 
activity receiving Federal financial assistance. 
 
Section 109, Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 
provides that no person shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, or 
sex be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected 
to discrimination under any program of activity funded in whole or in part with 
funds made available under this title. 
  
Any prohibition against discrimination on the basis of age under the Age 
Discrimination Act of 1975, or with respect to an otherwise qualified individual, as 
provided in Section 504 or Rehabilitation Act of 1973, shall also apply to any 
such program or activity. 

 
 
6.4 DOCUMENTS & DATA; LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY:  All 

Documents and Data shall be and remain the property of CITY without restriction 
or limitation upon their use or dissemination by CITY.  For purposes of this 
Agreement, the term “Documents and Data” means and includes all reports, 
analyses, correspondence, plans, drawings, designs, renderings, specifications, 
notes, summaries, strategies, charts, schedules, spreadsheets, calculations, 
lists, data compilations, documents or other materials developed and/or 
assembled by or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this 
Agreement and fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not 
limited to Documents and Data stored digitally, magnetically and/or electronically.  
This Agreement creates, at no cost to CITY, a perpetual license for CITY to copy, 
use, reuse, disseminate and/or retain  any and all copyrights, designs, and other 
intellectual property embodied in all Documents and Data.  CONSULTANT shall 
require all subcontractors and subconsultants working on behalf of 
CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement to agree in writing that 



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 15 

 

CITY shall be granted the same right to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and retain 
Documents and Data prepared or assembled by any subcontractor or 
subconsultant as applies to Documents and Data prepared by CONSULTANT in 
the performance of this Agreement.  

 
6.5 CONFIDENTIALITY:  All data, documents, discussion, or other information 

developed or received by CONSULTANT or provided for performance of this 
Agreement are deemed confidential and shall not be disclosed by 
CONSULTANT without prior written consent by CITY. CITY shall grant such 
consent if disclosure is legally required. Upon request, all CITY data shall be 
returned to CITY upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 
CONSULTANT shall not use CITY’s name or insignia, photographs, or any 
publicity pertaining to the Work in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, 
television or radio production or other similar medium without the prior written 
consent of CITY. 

 
6.6 FALSE CLAIMS ACT:  CONSULTANT warrants and represents that neither 

CONSULTANT nor any person who is an officer of, in a managing position with, 
or has an ownership interest in CONSULTANT has been determined by a court 
or tribunal of competent jurisdiction to have violated the False Claims Act, 31 
U.S.C., Section 3789 et seq. and the California False Claims Act, Government 
Code Section 12650 et seq.  

 
6.7 NOTICES: All notices permitted or required under this Agreement shall be given 

to the respective Parties at the following addresses, or at such other address as 
the respective Parties may provide in writing for this purpose:   

 
CONSULTANT:  CITY:  
Transtech Engineers, Inc. 
Attn: Ali Cayir, Principal 
13367 Benson Avenue 
Chino, CA 91710 
Phone: (909)595-8599 
Fax:  (909)590-8599 

 City of Cudahy 
Community Development Department 
5220 Santa Ana Street 
Cudahy, CA 90201 
Attn:  Michael Allen, Acting 
Community Development Director 
Phone:  (323) 773-5143 
Fax: (323) 771-2072 

 
Such notices shall be deemed effective when personally delivered or 
successfully transmitted by facsimile as evidenced by a fax confirmation slip or 
when mailed, forty-eight (48) hours after deposit with the United States Postal 
Service, first class postage prepaid and addressed to the Party at its applicable 
address.   

 
6.8 LOBBYING CERTIFICATION 

 



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 16 

 

A. Federal Requirements: 
 

The CONSULTANT CERTIFIES THAT: 
 

i. No Federal appropriate funds have been paid or will be paid, by or 
on behalf of the CONSULTANT, to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, in the 
making of any cooperative agreement, or in the extension, 
continuation renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal 
contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement. 

 
ii. If any funds other than Federal appropriate funds have been paid or 

will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence 
an officer or employee or any agency, Member of Congress in 
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative 
agreement, the CONSULTANT shall complete and submit Standard 
Form-LLL, “Disclosures form to Report Lobbying”, in accordance 
with its instructions.  

 

iii. The CONSULTANT shall require that the language of this 
certificate be included in all subcontracts and that all subcontractors 
shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

 
B. County of Los Angeles Requirement 

 
The CONSULTANT certifies that: 

 
i. It is understood that each person/entity/firm who applies for a 

Community Development Commission contract, and as part of that 
process, shall certify that they are familiar with the requirements of 
Los Angeles County Chapter 2.160, (Los Angeles County 
Ordinance 93-0031) and; 

 
ii. That all persons/entities/firms acting on behalf of the above named 

firm have and will comply with the County Code, and; 
 

iii.  That any person/entity/firm who seeks a contract with Community 
Development Commission shall be disqualified therefrom and 
denied the contract and,  shall be liable in civil action, if any 
lobbyist, lobbying firm, lobbyist employer or any other person or 
entity acting on behalf of the above named firm fails to comply with 
the provisions of the county code.  

 



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 17 

 

6.9 COOPERATION; FURTHER ACTS:  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 
another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as is 
reasonably necessary, appropriate or convenient to achieve the purposes of this 
Agreement. 

 
6.10 SUBCONTRACTING: CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the 

Work required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without the 
prior written approval of CITY.  Subcontracts (including without limitation 
subcontracts with subconsultants), if any, shall contain a provision making them 
subject to all provisions stipulated in this Agreement, including provisions relating 
to insurance requirements and indemnification. 
 

6.11 CITY’S RIGHT TO EMPLOY OTHER CONSULTANTS:  CITY reserves the right 
to employ other contractors in connection with the various projects worked upon 
by CONSULTANT. 
 

6.12 PROHIBITED INTERESTS:  CONSULTANT warrants, represents and maintains 
that it has not employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona 
fide employee working solely for CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this 
Agreement.  Further, CONSULTANT warrants and represents that it has not paid 
nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide 
employee working solely for CONSULTANT, any fee, commission, percentage, 
brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the 
award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or violation of this warranty, 
CITY shall have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  For the term 
of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of CITY, during the term of 
his or her service with CITY, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or 
obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 
 

6.13 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE:  Time is of the essence for each and every 
provision of this Agreement. 
 

6.14 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE:  This Agreement shall be interpreted and 
governed according to the laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation 
between the Parties, venue, without exception, shall be in the Los Angeles 
County Superior Court of the State of California.  If, and only if, applicable law 
requires that all or part of any such litigation be tried exclusively in federal court, 
venue, without exception, shall be in the Central District of California located in 
the City of Los Angeles, California. 
 

6.15 ATTORNEYS’ FEES:  If either Party commences an action against the other 
Party, either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with 
this Agreement, the prevailing Party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and 
recover from the losing Party reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other costs of 
such action. 



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 18 

 

 
6.16 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:  This Agreement shall be binding on the 

successors and assigns of the Parties. 
 

6.17 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFIT: There are no intended third party beneficiaries of 
any right or obligation assumed by the Parties.  All rights and benefits under this 
Agreement inure exclusively to the Parties. 
 

6.18 CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT: This Agreement shall not be construed in 
favor of, or against, either Party but shall be construed as if the Parties prepared 
this Agreement together through a process of negotiation and with the advice of 
their respective attorneys. 

 
6.19 SEVERABILITY: If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or 

otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 
provisions shall continue in full force and effect.  
 

6.20 AMENDMENT; MODIFICATION:  No amendment, modification or supplement of 
this Agreement shall be valid or binding unless executed in writing and signed by 
both Parties, subject to CITY approval.  The requirement for written 
amendments, modifications or supplements cannot be waived and any attempted 
waiver shall be void and invalid. 
 

6.21 CAPTIONS:  The captions of the various articles, sections and paragraphs are 
for convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limits, augment, 
or describe the scope, content, or intent of this Agreement. 
 

6.22 INCONSISTENCIES OR CONFLICTS:  In the event of any conflict or 
inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and any of the exhibits 
attached hereto, the provisions of this Agreement shall control.   
 

6.23 ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement including all attached exhibits is the 
entire, complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the 
matters addressed herein and supersedes all other agreements or 
understandings, whether oral or written, or entered into between CITY and 
CONSULTANT prior to the execution of this Agreement.  No statements, 
representations or other agreements, whether oral or written, made by any Party 
which are not embodied herein shall be valid or binding.  No amendment, 
modification or supplement to this Agreement shall be valid and binding unless in 
writing and duly executed by the Parties pursuant to Section 6.15, above. 
 

6.24 COUNTERPARTS:  .This Agreement shall be executed in three (3) original 
counterparts each of which shall be of equal force and effect.  No handwritten or 
typewritten amendment, modification or supplement to any one counterparts 
shall be valid or binding unless made to all three counterparts in conformity with 



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 19 

 

Section 6.16, above.  One fully executed original counterpart shall be delivered to 
CONSULTANT and the remaining two original counterparts shall be retained by 
CITY.  

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 
executed the day and year first appearing in this Agreement, above. 
 
CITY OF CUDAHY: 
 
By:______________________________ 
       Jose E. Pullido, City Manager 
 
Date:_____________________________ 
 
      
 
 

 CONTRACTOR:  
 
By:______________________________ 
 
Name:____________________________ 
 
Title:_____________________________ 
 
Date:_____________________________ 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
By:______________________________  
        
Date:_____________________________ 
 
 

  
 

 
 

APPENDIX A  
 

SCOPE OF WORK FEE SCALE 
  



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 20 

 

Scope of Work 
 
Project management is the discipline of planning, organizing, securing and managing 
resources to achieve specific goals as defined by the project specifications.  The 
primary responsibility of the project manager is to achieve all of the project goals and 
objectives while honoring constraints.   The primary constraints are scope, time and 
budget. 
 
The Scope of Work includes the On Call Project Management Services for the City’s 
CIP and CDBG infrastructure related projects. The Project Manager will be required at a 
minimum to perform the following duties: 
 

• Construction coordination, including time schedules, change orders and problem 
solving; 

• Interagency and contractor coordination with the City, the Architect, Health, 
Safety, Fire and others as required; 

• Prepare revised cost estimates as components of the design and other 
requirement of the Project are developed during planning and design  phases of 
the Project; 

• Provide detailed engineering review at appropriate intervals during the design 
phase of the Project; 

• Provide detailed constructability reviews at appropriate intervals during the 
design phase of the Project; 

• Provide detailed constructability reviews at appropriate intervals during the 
design phase of an Assigned Project; 

• Validate the existing budgets of each Project against the scope of work of the 
Project; 

• Assist with securing the permits necessary for the Project; 
• Assist in the preparation of bid documents; 
• Maintain  daily  and  weekly  records  of  construction  activities,  job  costs,  

schedule developments, project related meetings and project communications; 
• Report in person and in writing, at regular intervals and at special need times, to 

the City; 
• Conduct weekly  jobsite  meetings  for  contractors and  City  personnel and 

distribute meeting minutes; 
• Coordinate all work schedules with the City; 
• Facilitate review by the architect, engineers and City of contractor submitted 

questions or product information 
• Conduct pre-construction and regular jobsite progress meetings; 
• Provide continuous onsite Construction Management 
•  Oversee  Quality  Assurance  of  the  construction  activities  to  conform   to  

plans  and specifications; 
• Review   contractor's  schedule,  submittals  for  conformance   to  master   

schedule  and contractor documents;  



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 21 

 

• Maintain all project documents, drawings, contract change orders, contractor  
submittals, shop drawing and correspondence (electronically and hard copy); 

• Establish   and   implement   procedures    for   review   and   processing    of   all   
Project documentation; 

• Maintain RFI, submittal and change order logs; 
• Coordinate lead and/or asbestos abatement, hazardous materials; 
• Coordinate the activities of the DSA Project Inspector along with filing  of 

appropriate reports; 
• Evaluate construction progress and maintain reports; 
• Receive  contractor  payment  application,  review  for  accuracy  (amount  due,  

certified payroll,  appropriate  rate,  etc.)  and  circulate  to  DSA  Project  
Inspector,  architect  and District for their review, signature and approval (five 
working days) Change orders; 

• Process change orders and payment applications for acceptance by City; 
• Coordinate change order process 
• Oversee the construction safety and performance of all contractors; 
• Establish,  implement,  and  maintain  a  "Safety  Program"  to  comply  with  

regulatory requirements and City policies; 
• Secure a copy of the contractor's safety plan; 
• Oversee   the  use  of  temporary   fencing  and  "personnel   control   systems"   

to  keep construction workers apart from City foot traffic; 
• Compile detailed "punch lists" with the architect; 
• Coordinate closeout procedures; 
• Oversee  the complete  performance  of  all  punch  list  items  and  final  clean-

up  before contractor moves off site; 
• Administer post-construction  training of custodial, maintenance, operations  and 

grounds staff for all new equipment, systems and finish materials; 
• Obtain from contractor all record (as-built) drawings; contract required 

documents, lien releases, and written warrantees.    Review and circulate to City 
for final acceptance; 

• Coordinate final testing, documentation and regulatory inspections; 
• Advise on substantial and final completion; 
•   Compile final review of the Project; 
•  Advise on final payment; 
• Provide City with complete project documentation for permanent records/storage; 
•  Evaluate any contractor claim. 

 
Additionally, the Scope of Work includes design development, preparation of 
construction documents, project bidding, and construction support for CIP or CDBG 
infrastructure related projects.  



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 22 

 

 
 
 

(INSERT PDF OF FEE SCHEDULE) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 23 

 

 
APPENDIX B 

 
PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES RFP 

 
SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Firm Name:____________________________________________________________  
 
Firm Parent or Ownership: ________________________________________________  
 
Firm Address: __________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Firm Telephone Number: _____________________ Fax Number: _________________ 
 
Firm Email Address: _____________________________________________________  
 
Firm Website: __________________________________________________________ 
 
Number of years in existence: _____________________ 
 
Management Contact (person authorized to sign an agreement for the firm; and 
ultimately responsible for services required for this Request for Proposal: 
 
Name: _____________________________________ Title: ______________________  
 
Telephone Number: __________________________ Fax: ______________________  
 
Email: ________________________________________________________________  
 
Types of series provided by your firm: _______________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________  
 
______________________________________________________________________  
 
______________________________________________________________________  
 
______________________________________________________________________  
 
______________________________________________________________________  



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 24 

 

          
 

APPENDIX C 
 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES RFP 
 

CERTIFICATION OF FIRM’S ACCEPTANCE OF CITY OF 
CUDAHY’S PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENTAND 

PROPOSAL FOR MODIFICATION OF TERMS (if any) 
 
 
By signing this form below, the firm certifies that the attached Agreement in Appendix B 
is acceptable to the firm and will be signed upon selection of the firm to perform 
consulting services for the City of Cudahy, except for request for modification of the 
agreement (if any), as specifically described below (or listing modifications by number 
that refer to attached sheets if necessary). 
 
Name and Signature of Firm’s Management Representative authorized to sign an 
agreement: 
 
 
              
Name        Title 
 
 
              
Signature       Date 
 
 
Firm Name:              
 



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 25 

 

APPENDIX D 
 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES RFP 
 

FALSE CLAIMS FORM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 26 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 
CITY HALL 

5220 SANTA ANA STREET 
CUDAHY, CALIFORNIA 90201 

FALSE CLAIMS/ 
FALSE CLAIMS ACT CERTIFICATION 

(PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES RFP) 
 
Proposer shall provide either the certification requested below or the information 
requested on the next page.  Failure to certify or provide the requested information 
may result in a determination that the Proposer is non-responsive and City may 
reject the proposal on this basis. Failure to fully and accurately provide the 
requested certification or information may result in a determination that the 
Proposer is not responsible and City may reject the proposal on this basis as 
well. “False Claims Act”, as used herein, is defined as either or both the Federal False 
Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. Sections 3729 et seq., and the California False Claims Act, 
Government Code Sections 12650 et seq. 

 
FALSE CLAIMS ACT CERTIFICATION 

 
If the Proposer has no False Claims Act violations as described above, complete the 
following: 
 
I,        , am the ______________________________ 
  (Print name of person responsible for submitting proposal) (Title with proposing entity) 
 
of________________________________________________(hereinafter, “Proposer”). 
 (Print Name of Proposing Entity) 
 
In submitting a proposal to the City of Cudahy, I, hereby certify that neither Proposer nor 
any person who is an officer of, in a managing position with, or has an ownership 
interest in Proposer has been determined by a court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction 
to have violated the False Claims Act as defined above.  
 
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 
 
Executed this    day of    at ______________________________ 
   (month and year) (city and state) 
 
 
By   
  (Signature of Person Responsible for Submitting Proposal on behalf of Proposer) 



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 27 

 

FALSE CLAIMS ACT VIOLATIONS INFORMATION 
 
 

(1) Date of Determination of Violation: _      _____ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
(2) Identity of tribunal or court and case name or number, if any: _________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
(3) Government Contract or project involved: ________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
(4) Government agency involved: _________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
(5) Amount of fine imposed: ______________________________________________ 
 
(6)  Exculpatory Information: _______________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

DECLARATION 
 

I,         , the      _____ 
 (Print name of person responsible for submitting proposal)  (Title with proposing entity) 
 
of ________________________________________________(hereinafter, “Proposer”) 
 (Print Name of Proposing Entity) 
 
I declare under penalty of perjury that the above information is true and correct. 
 
Executed this    day of    at ______________________________ 
   (month and year) (city and state) 
 
by ___________________________________________________________________ 
 (Signature of Person Responsible for Submitting Proposal on behalf of Proposer) 

 
 

END OF DOCUMENT 
 

 



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 28 

 

 
APPENDIX E 

 
PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES RFP 

 
CIVIL LITIGATION HISTORY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 29 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY 
CITY HALL 

5220 SANTA ANA STREET 
CUDAHY, CALIFORNIA 90201 

CIVIL LITIGATION HISTORY/ 
CIVIL LITIGATION CERTIFICATION 

(PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES RFP) 
 
Proposer shall provide either the certification requested below or information requested 
on the next page.  Failure to provide such certification or information may result in 
a determination that the Proposer is nonresponsive.  Failure to fully and 
accurately provide the requested certification or information may result in a 
determination that the Proposer is not responsible. For the five (5) years preceding 
the date of submittal of this Proposal, identify any civil litigation arising out of the 
performance of a procurement contract within the State of California in which any of the 
following was a named plaintiff or defendant in a lawsuit brought by or against the entity 
soliciting Proposals: the Proposer submitting the instant Proposal, including any person 
who is an officer of, or in a managing position with, or has an ownership interest in the 
entity submitting the Proposal.  Do not include litigation which is limited solely to 
enforcement of mechanics' liens or stop notices.  Provide on the following page labeled 
“Civil Litigation History Information:” (i) the name and court case identification number of 
each case, (ii) the jurisdiction in which it was filed, and (iii) the outcome of the litigation, 
e.g., whether the case is pending, a judgment was entered, a settlement was reached, 
or the case was dismissed. 
 

CIVIL LITIGATION CERTIFICATION 
 
If the Proposer has no civil litigation history to report as described above, 
complete the following:  
 
I,        , am the ______________________________ 
 (Print name of person responsible for submitting Proposal)  (Title with Proposing Entity) 
 
of _______________________________________________(hereinafter, “Proposer”). 
 (Print Name of Proposing Entity) 
 
In submitting a Proposal to the City of Cudahy for Project Management Services, I, 
hereby certify that neither Proposer nor any person who is an officer of, in a managing 
position with, or has an ownership interest in Proposer has been involved in civil 
litigation as described, above.  
 
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 
 
Executed this    day of    at    
  (month and year) (city and state) 
 
by  



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 30 

 

 (Signature of Person Responsible for Submitting Proposal on behalf of Proposer) 



Attachment C 
 

 
Page 31 

 

CIVIL LITIGATION HISTORY INFORMATION 
 
 
(1) Name of Case: _____________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
(2) Court case identification number: _______________________________________ 
 
(3) Jurisdiction in which case was filed: _____________________________________ 
 
(4) Outcome of the case: ________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
(5) Name of Case: _____________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
(6)  Court case identification number: _______________________________________ 
 
(7) Jurisdiction in which case was filed: _____________________________________ 
 
(8) Outcome of the case: ________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
DECLARATION 

 
I,        ____, the        
 (Print name of person responsible for submitting Proposal)   (Title with Proposing Entity) 
 
of               (hereinafter, “Proposer”)  
 (Print Name of Proposing Entity) 

 
I declare under penalty of perjury that the above information is true and correct. 
 
Executed this    day of    at ______________________________ 
                                                 (month and year) (city and state) 
 
by ___________________________________________________________________ 
  (Signature of Person Responsible for Submitting Proposal on behalf of Proposer)  
 
 

END OF DOCUMENT 



 

 www.transtech.org; 855.595.2495 (toll-free); ISO 9001:2008 Certified 

 
 
 

Subject: Single Rate Fee Schedule 

Date:   March 12, 2015 

Submitted to: City of Cudahy 

Submitted by: Transtech Engineers, Inc. 

 
This letter confirms Transtech’s agreement to use a single rate Fee Schedule (lowest classification rate 
for each classification) for services to the City as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Should you have any question or should you need additional information, please contact the undersigned. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Ali Cayir, PE, Principal 
ali.cayir@transtech.org 
C: 714-883-8677 

Classification Hourly Rate

Senior Engineer $155

Project Manager $140

Project Engineer $140

Staff Engineer/Associate Engineer $120

CADD Designer $100

Sr. Planner $120

Associate Planner $100

Funds and Grants Manager $130

Funds Analyst $100

Transportation Analyst $130

Plan Checker $100

Construction Manager $150

Inspector, PW $115

Building Official $125

Inspector, Building $80

Engineering Technician $65

Building Technician $65

Administrative/Clerical $60

2-Man Survey Crew $275

TRANSTECH ENGINEERS, INC. STANDARD HOURLY RATES

Effective thru 12/31/2015

Reimbursable direct expenses are billed at cost plus 5%.

Fees are adjusted annually based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the local County area in which the 

City is located for Cost of Living Adjustment.  

http://www.transtech.org/
mailto:ali.cayir@transtech.org


“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
3/17/2015  Page 1 of 3 

    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  March 17, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
   
Subject: Notice of Excess Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

The City Council is requested to receive and file this staff report regarding notification of 
Excess Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. On February 24, 2014, the City Council received program/project recommendations for 

the Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 CDBG Program Year. City Council was urged to take timely 
action on this item due to the upcoming Planning Summary deadline, but opted to 
explore changes to the budget amount for the Single Unit Housing Rehabilitation 
Program in an effort to investigate the eligibility of assisting mobile home owners and 
analyze the Code Enforcement Program. The City Council tabled the item for a later 
date, pending additional analysis. 

2. On March 18, 2014, the City Council was presented with an updated staff report 
containing new information following a previous request for analysis. City Council 
expressed concern regarding the Single Unit Housing Rehabilitation grant award system 
and recommended for a lottery process to be developed to ensure fairness to interested 
applicants. The City Council requested further analysis of the Code Enforcement 
Program. The City Council tabled the item for a later date, pending additional analysis.  

3. On April 1, 2014, City Council was presented an updated staff report containing the 
requested analysis from previous meetings. During this meeting, City Council provided 
final direction to the Interim City Manager on the “lottery” grant award process for the 
Single Unit Housing Rehabilitation Program grants. Additional analysis was requested for 
the possible elimination of the Code Enforcement Program to address new concerns 
raised during the meeting. City Council tabled the item for a later date, pending 
additional analysis. 

 

Item Number 

9E 



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
3/17/2015  Page 2 of 3 

    

4. On May 6, 2014, the City Council approved the designation of CDBG funding toward the 
proposed CDBG projects for FY 2014-15, including the Lugo Park Soccer Field and 
Restroom Rehabilitation Projects.  

5. On July 14, 2014, the City received notification that the deadline to be included in 
CDBG’s master one year action plan was missed. Missing the deadline required the City 
to undergo an additional 30 Day Public Noticing period for all FY 2014-15 CDBG Projects. 
Further delaying program start dates. 

6. On September 19, 2014, the City received clearance from the CDBG Grants 
Management Unit to commence drawing down funds for all on-going projects 

7. On November 17, 2014, the City received clearance from the CDBG Grants Management 
Unit to commence drawing down funds for the Lugo Park Soccer Field and Restroom 
Rehabilitation Projects (CDBG).  

8. On January 14, 2015, CDBG Program Manager, Karen Hamilton, made an inquiry 
regarding low submittals of CDBG Funding Requests for reimbursement of incurred 
costs. Concerns were communicated to City staff regarding the upcoming drawdown 
requirement deadline of March 31, 2015.  

9. On January 26, 2015, CDBG Management held a meeting with the City Manager and City 
staff to discuss concerns regarding the upcoming drawdown requirement and the City’s 
slow progress resulting from the late program start dates. 

10. On February 11, 2015, the City of Cudahy received a Notice of Excess Community 
Development Block Grant Funding (Attachment A) in the amount of $579,387. The focus 
of this correspondence was to memorialize the meeting, which took place on January 
26, 2015. As previously mentioned, the primary focus of the meeting was to address 
concerns with meeting the drawdown requirement by spending down the required 
amount of $579,387 by March 31, 2015. This notice expressed the need for the 
implementation of a reasonable action plan for all CDBG projects, adequate staffing, 
and the importance of meeting all CDBG deadlines. As a result of the City’s good 
standing with CDBG and the honest efforts put forth by management and staff, 
Community Development Division - CDBG Director, Scott Stevenson graciously allowed 
for the opportunity to spend down the drawdown prior to September 30, 2015, pending 
certain stipulations are met.  

 

ANALYSIS 

During the Fiscal Year (FY) 2015-16 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) budget 

approval process the City Council directed the City Manager to evaluate the City’s CDBG 

program and to make recommendations to the City Council during the upcoming FY 2015-16 

City Budget process with a goal of potentially amending the recent City Council approved FY 

2015-16 CDBG Budget.  Under the CDBG regulations cities are not supposed to have more 

than 1.5 times their annual allocation sitting unexpended by March 31st of each year.  In the 



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
3/17/2015  Page 3 of 3 

    

City’s case we didn’t meet that requirement because of the various delays in having the CDBG 

budget approved.  The City Manager and City staff met with the CDBG Management and they 

agreed to grant us a six month time extension for the City to develop an expenditure plan 

that allows the City to properly expend the $579,378 in excess CDBG funds in a timely 

manner.   

 

Although the City Council did direct the City Manager to possibly amend the FY 2015-16 CDBG 

budget during the FY 2015-16 City Budget process, such a CDBG amendment would ensure 

that the City won’t comply with the CDC’s Notice of Excess CDBG funds.    

 

CONCLUSION 

City staff requests that the City Council allow the City Manager and City staff to allocate the 

necessary time and resources to ensure that we don’t lose $579,378 if we don’t meet the 

September 30, 2015 time extension generously granted by the CDC to the City. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

The City of Cudahy currently faces the potential loss of $579,387 in CDBG monies.  

 

ATTACHMENTS  

A. Notice of Excess Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funding  

 









“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/17/2015  Page 1 of 4 
    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  March 17, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Didier Murillo, Planning Technician  

Subject: General Plan Annual Progress Report Required by the State of California, 
Reporting Period January 1, 2014 – Decemeber 31, 2014  

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to: 
1.  Adopt Resolution No. 15-08, approving the 2014 General Plan Annual Progress Report 

(APR). 
 

2. Authorize staff to file the annual report with the Governor’s Office of Planning and 
Research (OPR) and the California Department of Housing and Community Development 
(HCD). 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
California Government Code Section 65400 mandates that cities and all 58 counties submit an 
APR on the status of the General Plan and progress in its implementation to their legislative 
bodies, the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (OPR) and the Housing and 
Community Development (HCD) by April of each year. Only charter cities are exempt from the 
requirement to prepare APRs unless the charter stipulates otherwise (Government Code 
Section 65700).  

 
1. On May 26, 1992, Council adopted it’s General Plan that emphasized the maintenance 

and revitalization of the residential neighborhoods and the improvement of the City’s 
commercial areas. 
 

2. On September 15, 2010, Council adopted the General Plan which builds on the previous 
General Plan that was adopted in 1992. There are seven mandatory elements that 
comprise the Cudahy General Plan: (1) Land Use, (2) Housing, (3) Transportation, (4) Open 
Space, (5) Conservation, (6) Safety and (7) Noise. An optional eight element was included 

 

Item Number 

9F 



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/17/2015  Page 2 of 4 
    

in the General Plan (8) Air Quality Element.  
 

3. On April 1, 2014, Council approved Resolution No. 14-24 approving the 2013 General Plan 
(APR) for the reporting period of January 1, 2013 – December 31, 2013. The report was 
prepared by the Planning Department with input from other departments including the 
Departments of Building & Safety, Business License, Code Enforcement, Engineering, 
Housing, Parks & Recreation, and Public Works. Cudahy City Council authorized staff to 
file the report with the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (OPR) and the 
California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD).  

 
4. On March 6, 2014, the Planning Department prepared the General Plan APR for the 

reporting period of January 1 through December 31, 2014 with input from other 
departments including the Departments of Building & Safety, Business License, Code 
Enforcement, Engineering, Housing, Parks & Recreation, and Public Works.  

 
ANALYSIS 
 
The APR provides local legislative bodies with information regarding the implementation of 
the General Plan for their city. The APR should provide enough information for decision 
makers to assess how the General Plan was implemented during the 12-month reporting 
period. More specifically, APRs explain how land use decisions relate to adopted goals, 
policies, and implementation measures of the General Plan. The APRs should provide enough 
information to identify necessary "course adjustments" or modifications to the General Plan, 
and means to improve local implementation. 
 
Once accepted and submitted to both the OPR and HCD, the APR gives OPR the opportunity 
to identify statewide trends in land use decision making and how local planning and 
development activities relate to statewide planning goals and policies. APRs may identify 
needed modifications and improvements to OPR’s General Plan Guidelines. In addition, OPR is 
able to track progress on a local jurisdiction’s comprehensive General Plan update using 
information provided in the APR.  
 
There is no standardized form or format for the preparation of the General Plan APR. The APR 
is not required to incorporate all of the General Plan elements and need not be an elaborate 
and time-consuming endeavor. OPR does provide a list of recommendations in preparing 
APRs. The City of Cudahy’s 2014 APR was prepared consistent with the recommendations 
from OPR (Attachment A) for review (reporting period from January 1 through December 31, 
2014). The State of California has specific reporting rules for Housing Elements and requires a 
report format that consists of six excel spreadsheets (See Attachments B & C). Progress on 
the Housing Element is reported in attachment B, (appendix B). Progress on the other eight 
elements, contained in the Cudahy General Plan document, is reported in attachment C 
(appendix C). 
 
The scope of the report includes: 

 



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/17/2015  Page 3 of 4 
    

1. An overview of the City’s General Plan and major planning and development activities 
that contribute to the implementation of the General Plan; 
 

2. A overview of the status and progress in implementing the City’s General Plan; and 
 

3. A summary of the City’s progress in meeting its share of regional housing needs. 
 

The purpose of this report is to inform OPR and HCD about the status of implementating the 
General Plan, housing issues, and development in the City. The APR should be used to identify 
what necessary adjustments, if any, should be made to further implement the General Plan. 
The General Plan is mandated by California Government Code Section 65300, which requires 
each city and county to adopt a General Plan for the physical development of the jurisdiction. 
The General Plan establishes a vision for the City’s long-term growth and enhancement and 
provides strategies and implementing actions to achieve this vision. The General Plan also 
conveys to City departments, other agencies, and private developers the community’s goals 
and policies, and establishes a basis for determining if development proposals and public 
projects are consistent.  

 
CEQA (CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT) 
 
The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) is a statute that requires state and local 
agencies to identify the significant environmental impacts of their actions and to avoid or 
mitigate those impacts, if feasible. 
 
CEQA applies to certain activities that affect the environment of state and local public 
agencies. A public agency must comply with CEQA when it undertakes an activity defined by 
CEQA as a "project." A project is an activity undertaken by a public agency or a private activity 
which must receive some discretionary approval (meaning that the agency has the authority 
to deny the requested permit or approval) from a government agency which may cause either 
a direct physical change or a reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the environment. 
 
In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the State CEQA 
Guidelines, the adoption of the General Plan Annual Progress Report is exempt from CEQA 
review pursuant to California Code of Regulations section 15306 Information Collection. Class 
6 consists of basic data collection, research, experimental management, and resource 
evaluation activities which do not result in serious or major disturbance to an environmental 
resource. These may be strictly for information gathering purposes, or as part of a study 
leading to an action which a public agency has not yet approved, adopted, or funded.  
 
CONCLUSION 
 
If City Council approves the General Annual Progress Report it will allow the City to comply 
with California Government Code Section 65400 which mandates that the City submit an 
annual report on the status of the General Plan and progress in its implementation to their 
legislative bodies, the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (OPR) and the Housing and 



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/17/2015  Page 4 of 4 
    

Community Development (HCD) by April of each year. The APR will give OPR the opportunity 
to identify statewide trends in land use decision making and how local planning and 
development activities relate to statewide planning goals and policies. OPR will be able to 
track progress on a local jurisdiction’s comprehensive General Plan update using information 
provided in the APR.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact associated with approval of the General Plan Annual Progress 
Report. 

 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. City of Cudahy 2014 General Plan Annual Progress Report  
B. Appendix B: 2014 Annual Element Progress Report (Housing Element Implementation) 
C. Appendix C: 2014 General Plan Implementation Status Update 
D. Resolution No. 15-08 

 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 
GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF CUDAHY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
5220 SANTA ANA STREET 

CUDAHY, CA 90201 
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  
 

clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



 

Page | 2  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

Page | 3  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

Table of Contents 
                                       
Executive Summary…………………………….………………………………………………………………………..Page 7 
 
1. Introduction  

 Purpose of the Annual Progress Report……………………………………………………………….Page 13 

 

2. General Plan Background 

 Overview……………………………………………………………………….…………………………………....Page 14   

 Implementation of the General Plan……………………………………………………………………Page 15 

 

3. City Background     

 The City of Cudahy……………………………………………………………………………………………….Page 16 

Population Trends…………………………………………………………………………………………..……Page 18 

 

4. Community Development Activity   

Building Permits……………………………………………………………………………………………..……Page 21 

Planning Permits…………………………………………..…………….……………………………….………Page 22  

Projects Reviewed by Planning Commission during 2014…………………………………….Page 22 

Business License…………………………………………………………………………………………………..Page 29 

Code Compliance…………………………………………………………………………………………………Page 30 

Community Development Block Grant Residential Rehabilitation Program………….Page 31 

 

5. Land and Housing Inventory   

 Housing Inventory…………..……………………………………………………………………………….….Page 33 

 Sites Inventory and Analysis…………………………………………………………………………………Page 33 

 Realistic Capacity…………………………………………………………………………………………….…..Page 35 

 Key Sites for Housing………………………………………………………………………………….………..Page 35 

 Zoning Appropriate to Accommodate Housing for Lower-Income Households….…Page 36 

 Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA)………………………………………………….……..Page 36 



 

Page | 4  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

 Quantified Objectives…………………………………………………………………………………..……..Page 37 

 Housing Cost and Affordability………………………………….…………………………………..…….Page 37   

Housing Crisis…………….………………………………………………………………………………………..Page 37 

 Environmental and Infrastructure Constraints……………………………………………………..Page 38  

 Assessment of Sewer and Water………………………………………………………………………….Page 41 

   

6. Long Range Planning Activities 

 General Plan……………………………………………………………………………………..…………………Page 43  

Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan………………………………………………………..…………………Page 43  

Capital Improvement Program (CIP)…………..……………………………………..…………………Page 44  

Low Impact Development (LID)….……………………………………………………..…………………Page 46  

Green Streets Policy…………………………………..……………………………………..…………………Page 49  

 

7. General Plan Elements  

Land Use Element..…………………………………………….………………………...………………….…Page 52 

Housing Element……………..………………………………………….……………………………………….Page 54 

Transportation Element……………………………………………………………………………………....Page 55 

Open Space and Recreation Element…………………………………………………………………..Page 56 

Conservation Element…………………………………………………………………………………..……..Page 58  

Public Safety Element…………………..……………………………………………………………………..Page 59 

Noise Element…………………………………….………………………………………………..……………..Page 60 

Air Quality Element.………………………………………………………………………….…………………Page 62 

     

8. Goals, Priorities and Objectives……………………………….……………………………………..Page 64 

 

9. Conclusion……………………………………….………………………...……………………………………Page 65 

 

10. References………………………………………………………………………...…………………………..Page 66 

 

Appendix A: City Council Adoption of 2013 General Plan Annual Progress Report  



 

Page | 5  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

 

Appendix B: 2013 Annual Element Progress Report (Housing Element Implementation)  

 

Appendix C: 2013 General Plan Implementation Status Update  

 

List of Tables 

Table 3-1 Population Trends 1970-2010…………………………………………………..……………………..Page 18 
 
Table 4-1 Permits Issued in 2013…………………………………………………..………………………………..Page 21 
 
Table 4-2 Planning Permit by Type of Application………………………………………….………………..Page 22 
 
Table 4-3 Business License Breakdown………………………………………………………………………..….Page 29 
 
Table 4-4 Type of Violations: Prohibited Conditions………………………………..…………………..….Page 30 
 
Table 4-5 Type of Violations: Building Code…………..………………………………..…………………..….Page 31 
 
Table 5-1 Available Vacant Land Inventory (Addressing 4th/5th Cycle RHNA)……..…………….Page 34 
 
Table 5-2 Quantified Objectives………………………………………………………………………………………Page 37 
 
Table 5-3 Housing Units Paying an Excess of 30%................................................................Page 37 
 
Table 5-4 Sewer and Water; summary of findings………………………………………….………………..Page 41 
 
Table 5-5 Timeliness for Permit Procedures……….………………………………………….………………..Page 53 
 
Table 7-1 Summary of the Classes held by Park/Facility.…………………….………………...………..Page 58 
 
Table 23-1 (CMC) Maximum Exterior Noise Levels…………………………………………………………..Page 61 
 
Table 23-2 (CMC) Maximum Interior Noise Levels.……………………………..………………...………..Page 62 
 
Table 8-3 (General Plan) Construction-Related and Operational Emissions Thresholds……Page 63 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page | 6  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

List of Graphs  
 
Population Growth 1970-2010………………………………………………………………………………………..Page 19 
 
 
List of Exhibits  
 
Exhibit 3-1 The location of Cudahy in a regional context……………………………………………….…Page 16  
 
Exhibit 3-2 Cudahy map showing boundaries……………………………………………………………….….Page 17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page | 7  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

Executive Summary  
 
The City of Cudahy’s 2014 General Plan Annual Progress Report, was prepared by the Planning 
Department with input from other departments including the Departments of Building & 
Safety, Code Enforcement, Housing, Public Works and Community Development (HCD). The 
report summarizes the measurable outcomes and actions associated with the implementation 
of all of the General Plan elements. The City has made progress in the implementation of the 
General Plan since its adoption in September 2010. These achievements are discussed under 
the appropriate section of this report. This report also includes information on planning 
applications that were initiated in 2014. The slowdown of California’s housing market and 
economy since 2007 has affected the City. This has generally resulted in a decrease in the total 
number of major planning applications. Smaller projects, such as remodels, single family 
homes, exterior upgrades and other minor permits, have also been affected, but not as 
significantly. 
 
The City adopted the updated Housing Element on January 7, 2014. The Housing Element 
addresses the planning period 2013-2021. The fifth cycle of the Housing Element includes a 
Regional Housing Needs Assessment projection period of 2013 through 2021. The City’s 
progress in meeting the Housing Element goals is also provided in the separate Housing 
Element Report (Appendix B). The Housing Element Report includes a status of the Housing 
Element implementation program, along with details on the progress of meeting regional 
housing needs, and removes governmental constraints to the development of affordable 
housing. 
 
 
The following key efforts were also accomplished in 2014 to implement the General Plan: 
 
 

• Grants 
o HSIP  

 The City of Cudahy was awarded $619,800 through the Highway Safety 
Improvement Program (HSIP) Cycle 6. HSIP is a program through 
California Department of Transportation (Caltrans). These funds will be 
used for pedestrian and traffic safety improvements along Atlantic 
Avenue. The scope of work of this project includes the installation of 
designated left turn phasing at existing traffic lights along Atlantic Avenue 
as well as the replacement of existing pedestrian heads and new 
pedestrian countdown signal heads at street intersections along Atlantic 
Avenue.  From a total of 389 applications submitted to Caltrans, only 231 
were awarded.  
 

 The City has finalized the completion of Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprises (DBE) requirements and has completed Request for Funding 



 

Page | 8  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

Allocation (RFA) Documents as well. In December of 2014 the Engineering 
Department submitted Request for Funding Allocation (RFA) documents 
to Caltrans and is waiting for Caltrans approval to proceed with the 
Design Phase. After design phase is completed the project will go under 
construction. 

 
o ATP  

 The City of Cudahy was awarded $1,271,000 through the ATP (Active 
Transportation Program) Cycle 1. ATP Grant Project consists of Citywide 
Safe Routes to Schools (SRTS) Improvements (pedestrian crosswalks and 
other traffic safety improvements). The City officially adopted the City’s 
Safe to Schools Master Plan. 
 
The Engineering Department has completed the preparation of 
Environmental Documents for this project and has submitted Request for 
Funding Allocation (RFA) documents. After RFA documents are ready 
they will be submitted to Caltrans for approval to proceed with the 
design phase. After design phase is completed the project will go under 
construction.  

 
 

• City Programs 
 

o Food Distribution  
 The City of Cudahy continues to offer the hot meals and food distribution 

program. The food distribution program is ongoing; occurring on a monthly 
basis, and is monitored annually (coinciding with the fiscal year) and 
financed through the CDBG. 

 
• Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan  

 
o The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) requires all counties, cities, 

and tribes in the United States to complete a Local Hazards Mitigation Plan. 
These Plans are to identify the hazards that have occurred or may occur in the 
study area, and provide mitigation strategies, or action items, designed to save 
lives and reduce the destruction of property. The City of Cudahy is currently in 
the process of meeting this requirement by completing a Local Natural Hazards 
Mitigation Plan (the Mitigation Plan or “the Plan”) that describes and analyzes 
several issues of concern to the City, including earthquakes, floods, and severe 
weather. Furthermore, the Plan provides resources and information, in addition 
to action items and programs, that are meant to assist Cudahy in reducing risk 
and preventing loss from future natural hazard events. Per Federal 
requirements, this Plan is to be reviewed and updated every five years. 



 

Page | 9  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

 
o Adoption of the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan by the local jurisdiction’s governing 

body is one of the prime requirements for approval of the Plan. Once the Plan is 
completed, City Council is responsible for adopting the Local Hazards Mitigation 
Plan. The local agency governing body has the responsibility and authority to 
promote sound public policy regarding natural hazards. The City Council will 
periodically need to re-adopt the Plan as it is revised to meet changes in the 
natural hazard risks and exposures in the community. The approved Local 
Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan will be significant in the future growth and 
development and redevelopment of the community. 

 
• Capital Improvement Program (CIP)  

 
o The Capital Improvement Program (CIP) is a roadmap that provides direction and 

guidance for the City of Cudahy on carefully planning and managing its capital 
and infrastructure assets. Capital Improvement Programs assists in the planning 
and scheduling of finances for projects and the manpower needed to plan, 
design, and construct the projects. Capital Improvement Program is a short-
range plan, usually five to ten years, which identifies capital projects. The City of 
Cudahy is currently awaiting adoption of its full CIP; however, there are capital 
projects in the current CIP draft that will commence as soon as funding becomes 
available.  
 

o The City of Cudahy initiated the implementation of their FY14 Capital 
Improvement Projects. The following is a list of those projects initiated in 2014:  

 
 Bedwell Hall Roof Replacement Project (CDBG)  

 
 Citywide Prop 1B Street Improvement Project – 1) Ferndale Ave/ Fostoria 

St/ River Rd/ Cecelia St and Crafton Ave Loop 2) Alamo St and 3) Walker 
Ave 

    
 

• Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) 
 

o NPDES Permits are issued for five (5) year terms. The first National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit was issued for Cities and Counties 
in 1991; requiring Cities to implement 13 Best Management Practices. The 
Second County wide permit was issued in 1996 with enhanced permit 
requirements calling for Cities to develop a Storm Water Management Plan 
(SWMP). The Third Countywide NPDES permit was issued in 2001 and required 
implementation of the SWMP and established six Mandatory programs that each 
City must implement. They were (1) Public Information and Participation 



 

Page | 10  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

Program, (2) Development Planning Program, (3) Development Construction 
Program, (4) Industrial-Commercial Inspection program, (5) Illicit Connection–
Illicit Discharge Elimination program and (6) Public Agency Activities program.  
 

o Cities applied for the permit renewal as required in 2006 but the Regional Water 
Board continued the current permit until time allowed them to issue the fourth 
generation NPDES Permit. During the six years that the NPDES permit was 
allowed to continue unchanged the Regional Board adopted Total Maximum 
Daily Load (TMDL) orders that established numeric water quality limits for a large 
number of pollutants. These pollutants include Trash and Debris, Metals, 
Bacteria, Toxins and Sodium. Two of the TMDLs were added to the 2001 permit.  
The remaining 33 TMDL will be included in the next permit.  

 
o The Regional Water Quality Control Board Adopted the Fourth Generation 

NPDES permit covering 84 Cities, Los Angeles County and the Los Angeles County 
Flood Control District on November 8, 2012. The permit becomes effective on 
December 28, 2012, 50 days after adoption. Significant changes in this permit 
include: 

 
 There is no principal permittee as was the case in all previous permits. 
 Each City is responsible for full compliance with the permit. 
 Thirty-Three TMDLS were added as enforceable provisions of this permit. 
 Cities are required to perform monitoring of the storm water and Non-

storm water that is discharged from the City. 
 Many Regional Water Board Inspection functions have been transferred 

to the City. 
  

o Actions taken: 
 
 On June 28, 2014 as required by the state permit, the Watershed 

Management Plan (WMP) and Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Plan 
(CIMP) studies were prepared, with the help of CWE Consultants, and 
were submitted to the LARWQCB. 
 
LARWQCB has completed their review of the WMP and returned 
comments to the group for minor revisions before they will approve the 
WMP.  
 
The City has coordinated the 1st Amendment to the existing 
Memorandums of Understanding (MOU’s) with other agencies for the 
administration and cost sharing to prepare and implement a Watershed 
Management Program (WMP) and Coordinated Integrated Monitoring 
Program (CIMP). In 2015 the MOU 1st Amendment will be implemented. 



 

Page | 11  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

 National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) & Municipal 
Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Annual Report: 
 
The City prepared the City of Cudahy NPDES Annual Report (2013-14). 
The Annual Report summarizes the requirements in Orders No. 01-182 
and R4-2012-0175 for the period July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014. Every year 
each Principal permittee must prepare this report.  The Annual Reports 
list City activities that were performed during the previous fiscal year 
regarding Storm Water Management Plan.  The City’s Annual Report will 
be included in the unified Annual Storm Water Program Report.  

The goals of this Annual Report are to:  

1) Concisely document implementation of the Storm Water 
Quality Management Program (SQMP) during the past fiscal year;  

2) Evaluate program results for continuous improvement;  

3) Determine compliance with Order 01-182 and R4-2012-0175;  

4) Share this information with other permittees, municipal 
decision makers, and the public.  

 
• Low Impact Development (LID)  

 
o The new Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) permit requires that 

Cities update their Municipal Codes regarding Development and Redevelopment 
requirements. This information is currently titled Standard Urban Stormwater 
Mitigation Plan provisions. The new permit will title the provisions Low Impact 
Development (LID). The City of Cudahy adopted an LID Ordinance to comply with 
requirements of Clean Water Act and the MS4 Stormwater and Urban Runoff 
Permit (Order Number R4-2012-0175) effective December 28, 2012.    
 

o During the November 25, 2014 Special Cudahy City Council Meeting, Ordinance 
No. 640, an Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cudahy, California, 
adding Chapter 20.108 pertaining to Low Impact Development (LID) Strategies 
on Projects that require Building, Grading and Encroachment Permits, to Title 20 
(Zoning) of the City of Cudahy Municipal Code was introduced for Second 
Reading and passed unanimously. 

 
o The purpose of this Ordinance is to provide an outline of Low Impact 

Development (LID) policies for the City of Cudahy consistent with the 
requirements of the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Permit 
(Order No. R-2012-0175) that was adopted by the California Regional Water 
Quality Control Board, Los Angeles Region on November 8, 2012. Municipalities 
requires permittees electing to prepare a Watershed Management Program or 



 

Page | 12  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

an Enhanced Watershed Management Program under this Permit to 
demonstrate that there are LID ordinances in place meeting the requirements of 
the Order’s Planning and Land Development.  

 
 

• Green Streets Policy   
 

o The new MS4 permit requires that Cities consider implementing green streets 
policies when a street project of 10,000 square feet of new pavement is built. 
City staff will likely bring a policy recommendation forward to address the MS4 
permit requirement. This is just a Policy statement; if there are good reasons for 
not implementing Green Streets Best Management Practices (BMP) on a project, 
either private or public, it does not have to be done. 
 
 Reasons might include high ground water makes infiltration impractical. 
 Potential for flooding would be a consideration.  

 
o On June 4, 2013, the City Council approved and accepted membership into 

Gateway Management Authority (GWMA) in order to comply with MS4 
requirements. The GWMA is an Integrated Regional Water Management Group 
Joint Power Authority (IRWM JPA) established in 2007, and currently consisting 
of 24 members; on the same date Council approved a MOU between the GWMA, 
the LAR UR2 Subgroup Cities and LACFCD in order to comply with the new MS4 
Permit (Order No. R4-2012-0175); on June 4, 2013, Council also adopted 
Resolution No. 13-17 regarding Green Streets Policy adopting the City of Cudahy 
Green Streets Manual. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

Page | 13  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

 
1.0 Introduction  
 
Purpose of the Annual Progress Report 
 
This report has been prepared pursuant to Government Code Section 65400, which requires 
the City of Cudahy to submit an Annual Progress Report on the status and implementation of 
the General Plan to the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (OPR), and the California 
Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) by April of each year. Section 
65400 of the Government Code also requires the City submit an annual report on the status 
and progress of implementing the housing element of the General Plan. Housing information in 
compliance with this regulation is provided in this report using the forms and definitions 
adopted by HCD. This report summarizes the planning activities for the City of Cudahy from 
January 1st to December 31st 2014.  
 
The scope of the report includes: 
 

1. An overview of the City’s General Plan and major planning and development activities 
that contribute to the implementation of the General Plan; 
 

2. A overview of the status and progress in implementing the City’s General Plan; and 
 

3. A summary of the City’s progress in meeting its share of regional housing needs. 
 
The purpose of this report is to inform The Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (OPR) 
and California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) about the status of 
implementing the General Plan, housing issues, and development in the City. The report should 
be used to identify what necessary adjustments, if any, should be made to further implement 
the General Plan.  
 
 
Informational Document  
 
This document is a reporting document, and does not create or alter policy. The content is 
provided for informational purposes only, and is exempt from the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15306:  
 

Class 6 consists of basic data collection, research, experimental management, and 
resource evaluation activities which do not result in a serious or major disturbance to an 
environmental resource. These may be strictly for information gathering purposes, or as 
part of a study leading to an action which a public agency has not yet approved, 
adopted, or funded.    

 



 

Page | 14  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

2.0 General Plan Background 
 
Overview 
 
The General Plan is mandated by California Government Code Section 65300, which requires 
each city and county to adopt a general plan for the physical development of the jurisdiction. 
The Cudahy General Plan establishes a vision for the City’s long-term growth and enhancement 
and provides strategies and implementing actions to achieve this vision. The Plan also conveys 
to City departments, other agencies, and private developers the community’s goals and 
policies, and establishes a basis for determining if development proposals and public projects 
are consistent.  
 
The General Plan provides for establishing and prioritizing detailed plans and implementation 
programs. The Cudahy General Plan serves as the framework for future planning and 
development in the City. The Cudahy General Plan provides decision-makers, officials, 
residents, and developers the direction they need to achieve the long term planning goals of 
the City. The 2010 Cudahy General Plan builds on the previous General Plan that was adopted 
in 1992 that emphasized the maintenance and revitalization of the residential neighborhoods 
and the improvement of the City’s commercial areas. State law regulates the content of 
General Plans. Sections 65300-65403 of the California Government Code require that local 
jurisdictions prepare and adopt a general plan to guide the physical development of the City 
and its sphere of influence. There are seven mandatory elements that comprise the Cudahy 
General Plan: 
 

Land Use, Housing, Transportation, Open Space, Conservation, Safety and Noise.  
 
Other elements may be adopted to address specific concerns in the community. In the case of 
the City of Cudahy, an optional Air Quality Element has been included in the General Plan. The 
elements that comprise the Cudahy General Plan are summarized below. 
 

Land Use Element - The Land Use Element designates the general location, distribution, 
and extent of the various permitted land uses within the City. The element identifies standards 
for population density and development intensity for each type of land use. 

 
Transportation Element - The Transportation Element discusses the location and extent 

of the existing and proposed roadway and circulation improvements. In addition, the 
Transportation Element’s scope has been expanded to consider alternative means of 
transportation. 

 
Open Space and Recreation Element - The Open Space and Recreation Element details 

plans for the preservation of open space for recreation and the management of natural 
resources. As the name implies, this element has been expanded to consider recreational 
resources and facilities in the City.  



 

Page | 15  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

 
Conservation Element - The Conservation Element addresses the conservation, use, and 

the maintenance of key natural resources within the City.  
 
Public Safety Element - The Public Safety Element establishes standards and plans for 

the protection of the community from a variety of hazards including flood, fire, and geologic 
hazards. 
 

Noise Element - The Noise Element examines the existing and future noise environment 
in the City. The Noise Element establishes policies to encourage noise-compatible uses and 
provides the framework for noise control in Cudahy.  

 
Air Quality Element - The Air Quality Element addresses local and regional air quality, 

stationary and mobile emission sources in the community, and identifies programs that will be 
effective in reducing pollutant emissions generated within the City. 

 
Housing Element - The Housing Element evaluates the existing and projected housing 

needs of the City and establishes goals, policies, objectives, and programs for the preservation, 
improvement, and development of housing to meet local and regional housing needs. 

 
The above elements form an integrated and comprehensive plan that outlines the goals and 
policies of the City. Ordinances, programs, and other actions of the City must be weighed 
against the General Plan to ensure their consistency. 
 
 
Implementation of the General Plan  
 
Each policy in the General Plan includes one or more implementation programs or actions to 
assure that there is a mechanism for its implementation. The implementation of the General 
Plan establishes ongoing programs that must be developed by City staff and approved by City 
Council before being implemented. Implementation programs or actions are necessary to 
achieve the General Plan’s goals and policies. The Implementation programs are organized by 
corresponding General Plan Elements that further refine and group programs into related areas 
and topics.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page | 16  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

3.0 City Background  
 
The City of Cudahy  
 
This General Plan governs the land area located within the corporate boundaries of the City of 
Cudahy. The total land area for the City is 1.08-square-miles making it one of the smallest 
incorporated cities in California in terms of land area. The City is located eight miles southeast 
of downtown Los Angeles and immediately west of the Los Angeles River and the Long Beach 
Freeway (SR-710). Cudahy is bounded on the north by Bell, on the west by Huntington Park, on 
the east by Bell Gardens, and on the south by South Gate. The location of Cudahy in a regional 
and local context is indicated in Exhibits 3-1 and 3-2, respectively:  
 

 
                     Source: http://tims.berkeley.edu/tools/gismap/index.php 
 

http://tims.berkeley.edu/tools/gismap/index.php


 

Page | 17  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

 
                        Source: http://tims.berkeley.edu/tools/gismap/index.php 
 
Cudahy is located just south of an industrial district that includes the cities of southeast Los 
Angeles, Vernon, Huntington Park, Commerce, Montebello, and Santa Fe Springs. As industrial 
development occurred in the area, Cudahy along with the neighboring communities of Bell, Bell 
Gardens, Huntington Park, and Maywood, provided the homes and shopping areas for those 
working in the nearby industrial areas. The surrounding cities in the area incorporated during 
the 1920's and 1930's though Cudahy remained unincorporated until November 10, 1960. In 
1970, the City's population was 16,998 persons according to the U. S. Census conducted for that 
year. According to the 2000 U.S. Census, the City’s population was 24,208 persons. Since 1970, 
the City’s population has increased by 8,872 persons or 52%.4.  
 
Cudahy is one of the most densely populated communities in California. The most recent U.S. 
Census population estimates shows Cudahy’s with a population density of 24,103 persons per 
square mile. As indicated earlier, the City’s land area of just over one square mile makes 
Cudahy one of the smallest cities in the state in term of land area though it is one of the most 
densely populated. 
 
Early growth in the area that is now Cudahy paralleled the boom that most of Southern 
California experienced following the Second World War and continuing on into the 1950's. A 
second and even greater period of growth occurred in the 1980’s and 1990’s due to people 

http://tims.berkeley.edu/tools/gismap/index.php


 

Page | 18  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

migrating into the area, primarily from various Latin American nations. In fact, the 2000 U. S. 
Census indicated that over half the City’s residents were foreign born.  
 
The majority of the City is zoned for higher density residential development (HDR) that has 
resulted in a transition from lower density single-family neighborhoods to higher density 
residential uses. The resulting residential development now found in the City is characterized by 
single-family units interspersed with higher density development. 
 
 
Population Trends  
 
Population data sets are the most direct indicators of growth trends in Cudahy. Table 3-1 lists 
the City of Cudahy’s population by decade from 1970 to 2010 with the annual change rates for 
each decade. The information is also presented as a graph in Figure 3-1.  
 
 

Table 3-1 
Population Trends 1970-2010 

Year Population Change 
(#) 

Change 
(%) 

 
1970 

 
16,998 

 
n/a 

 
n/a 

 
1980 

 
17,984 

 
986 

 
5.8% 

 
1990 

 
22,817 

 
4,833 

 
26.9% 

 
2000 

 
24,208 

 
1,391 

 
6.1% 

 
2007 

 
25,870 

 
1,662 

 
6.9% 

 
2010 

 
23,805 

 
-2,065 

 
-8% 

Sources: U.S. Census & Department of Finance 
  
 
Population growth in Cudahy was the greatest in the 1990's when California and Los Angeles 
were both the popular migration destinations. The population growth of Cudahy in recent years 
may be attributed to the migration of younger families into the area as well as natural increases 
in population. 1992 reports assumed that growth in the coming decade would be similar to that 
observed from 1970 to 1980 (5.8%) and the resulting population projection, projected a 
population of 24,140 in the year-2000, which was quite close to the actual 2000 population 
figure of 24,208 persons identified in the U.S. Census for that year. A slight reduction in 
population in recent years may be due to the declining economy from 2000 to 2010. This can 
include declining real estate prices, declining job opportunities, reverse migration, and 
relocation to regions and states that have more affordable housing and job availability. 
 



 

Page | 19  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

Prior to 2010, much of the city’s population growth in recent years is shown in increases to the 
average household size (the number of persons that live in a single unit). The city’s increasing 
average household size is largely due to a number of trends including larger family sizes, cost 
reduction by shared living spaces, and overcrowding due to housing availability and cost. In 
1980, the U.S. Census reported the City’s average household size to be 3.42 persons.  
 
According to the 2010 Department of Finance data, the city’s average household size has 
decreased to 4.24 persons per unit since 2000 when the average was 4.46.  In comparison, the 
average household size in Cudahy is 32% higher than the State average persons per household. 
 
   

 
 
 
The following are some key findings concerning demographics and housing:  
 

• Cudahy experienced its greatest population growth in the 1990s; however from the 
years of 2007 through 2010 there was a slight reduction in population that may be 
attributed to the declining economy from 2000 to 2010.  
 

• Cudahy is a predominately Hispanic/Latino community representing 96% of the city’s 
residents.  

 
• Cudahy has a low educational attainment with the majority of its residents (39.8%) 

having less than a 9th grade education, followed by 24% who are High School graduates; 
with very few of the City’s residents having some college or higher.  

     
• The average household size has increased over the years largely due to a number of 

trends including larger family size, cost reduction by shared living spaces, and 

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

1970 1980 1990 2000 2007 2010

Population Growth 1970-2010 



 

Page | 20  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

overcrowding due to housing availability and cost. The current average household size is 
32% higher than the State average persons per household.  

 
• According to the 2010 California Department of Finance the housing make up is as 

follows; single detached units (37%), single attached units (22.8%), 2-4 units (5.6%), 5 or 
more units (27.3%), and (7.3%) are mobile home units.  

 
• The City’s housing stock is getting older, well over half (57.4%) of the City’s housing 

stock was built prior to 1960.  
 

• A household was considered to be overpaying for housing if more than 30% of their net 
“take-home” income was used for paying rent or mortgages.  According to census 
figures for the year 2010, 255 households (45.2% of the total owner-occupied units) 
living in owner-occupied units paid in excess of 30% of their monthly income towards 
the mortgage.  
 

• Over the next 10 years of the Housing Element, a total of 142 assisted units are ‘at-risk’ 
of conversion due to expiration of aid.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page | 21  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

4.0 Community Development Activity   
 
During 2014, the City of Cudahy reviewed numerous projects and participated in numerous 
planning efforts. The following summaries provide a general overview of the projects, programs 
and permits that were reviewed. These summaries are general and are not intended to be 
exhaustive. 
 
 
Building Permits  
 
The Building & Safety Department processed a variety of permits during 2014. The breakdown 
in permits issued in 2014 is summarized on Table 4-1 below:  
 
 

 
Permits Issued in 2014  

 
 
Building Permits 

 
41 

 
Reviewed by Planning Department 

 
80 

 
Permits Single Family Dwelling 

 
58 

 
Permit Multi Family Dwelling 

 
42 

 
Single Family Dwellings Replaced 

 
4 

 
Commercial Tenant Improvements 

 
10 

 
Single Family Dwelling Additions 

 
6 

 
Solar Photovoltaic 

 
8 

 
Certificate of Occupancy 

 
10 

 
PME (Electrical) 

 
71 

 
PME (Plumbing) 

 
54 

 
PME (Mechanical) 

 
82 

 
Total Permits  
 

 
348 

Building & Safety Records: 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page | 22  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

Planning Permits   
 
The Planning Department processed a variety of planning entitlements during 2014, including 
Conditional Use Permits, Modification of Conditional Use Permits, Development Review 
Permits, Temporary Use Permits and associated environmental review documents as needed. 
The breakdown in applications received in 2014 is summarized on Table 4-2 below:  
 

Application Types New Request Approved Denied/Withdrawn In Process 

 
Conditional Use Permit 

 

 
7 

 
4 

 
1 

 
2 

 
Modification of Conditional Use Permit 

 

 
1 

 
1 

 
0 

 
0 

 
Development Review Permit 

  

 
3 

 
2 

 
0 

 
1 

 
Zoning Ordinance  

 

 
2 

 
2 

 
0 

 
0 

 
Temporary Use Permit 

 
6 

 
6 

 
0 

 
0 
 

Community Development & Planning Department Records: 2014 

 
 
Projects Reviewed by Planning Commission in 2014 
 
The following applications were reviewed by the Planning Commission and/or City Council 
during the 2014 calendar year:  
 
Approved: Conditional Use Permit No. 38.347 Panda Bowl. Application proposing the 
legalization of an existing non-conforming restaurant; the establishment is known as “Panda 
Bowl” at 7276 Atlantic Avenue in the Community Commercial (CC) Zone. The Planning 
Commission found the necessary findings of approval and the CUP was granted by Resolution 
No. 14-01. 
 
Approved: Conditional Use Permit No. 38.348 Alex I Auto Repair. Application proposing the 
operation of a general auto repair shop; the establishment will be known as “Alex I Auto 
Repair” at 4901 Patata Street #207-208 in the Commercial Manufacturing (CM) Zone. The 
Planning Commission found the necessary findings of approval and the CUP was granted by 
Resolution No. 14-02. 
 
Approved: Conditional Use Permit No. 38.342 24 Hour Coin Laundry. Application proposing a 
coin operated laundry facility at one of the units located at 7248 Atlantic Avenue, which unit is 
part of the commercial shopping center located at 7200-7248 in the Community Commercial 
(CC) Zone. The Planning Commission found the necessary findings of approval and the CUP was 
granted by Resolution No. 14-03. 



 

Page | 23  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

 
Approved: Modification of Conditional Use Permit No. 38.342 24 Hour Coin Laundry. 
Application proposing to modify two existing Monument Sings to accommodate new 
illuminated sign for 24hr. coin laundry located at 7248 Atlantic Avenue, which unit is part of the 
commercial shopping center located at 7200-7248 in the Community Commercial (CC) Zone. 
The Planning Commission found the necessary findings of approval and the CUP was granted by 
Resolution No. 14-08. 
 
Approved: Conditional Use Permit No. 38.345 Ministerios Una Voz Profetica en las Naciones, 
Inc. Church. Application proposing to establish a church; the establishment will be known as 
“Ministerios Una Voz Profetica en las Naciones, Inc.,” at 8333 Atlantic Avenue in the 
Community Commercial (CC) Zone. The Planning Commission found the necessary findings of 
approval and the CUP was granted by Resolution No. 14-05. 
 
Approved: Development Review Permit No. 41.499 Circle K Center. Application proposing to 
improve the façade of two existing buildings & canopy, the remodel of existing convenience 
store and conversion of existing Auto Repair Shop into a retail type use at 5001 Clara Street in 
the Neighborhood Commercial (NC) Zone. The Planning Commission found the necessary 
findings of approval and the DRP received recommendation of approval to City Council by 
Resolution 14-06. On June 3, 2014 the City Council found all necessary findings of approval and 
the DRP No. 41.499 was approved by Resolution No. 14-37.  
 
Denied: Conditional Use Permit No. 38.349 Latinos Market #1. Application proposing to allow 
alcohol sales in an existing mini-market located at 7601 Otis Avenue in the Neighborhood 
Commercial (NC) Zone. The Planning Commission was unable to make the necessary findings of 
approval and the CUP was denied by Resolution No. 14-07. 
 
Pending: Conditional Use Permit No. 38.351 Broadway Auto Center. Application proposing to 
establish an auto-body and mechanic repair shop located at 4550 Cecelia Street in the 
Commercial Manufacturing (CM) Zone. The Project application is pending compliance with the 
Los Angeles County Fire Department: Land Development Unit before staff can schedule the 
CUP for a Public Hearing.  
 
Pending: Conditional Use Permit No. 38.352 Opportunities for Learning (OFL) Charter School. 
Application proposing to allow a Charter School in an existing/vacant retail space located at 
7955 Atlantic Avenue in the Community Commercial (CC) Zone. Application in process.  
 
Pending: Development Review Permit No. 41.500 Soil Vapor Extraction Remediation System. 
Application proposing an upgrade to an existing soil vapor extraction remediation system 
located at 7200 Atlantic Avenue in the Community Commercial (CC) Zone. Application is 
pending submittal of an Environmental Document in the form of a Mitigated Negative 
Declaration. The City issued a Request for Proposals on December 23, 2014. Application is in 
process. 
 



 

Page | 24  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

 
Other Projects/Grants/Changes:  
 
Approved: Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 14-01. On March 17, 2014 Planning Commission 
approved Resolution 14-04, recommending that the City Council approve Zone Ordinance 
Amendment No. 14-01.  
 
On November 4, 2014 City Council held a first reading of Ordinance No. 634. A public hearing 
was held before the City Council of the City of Cudahy on November 18, 2014 to consider the 
zone text amendment. All evidence, both written and oral, presented during November 4, 2014 
first reading, and public hearing was considered by the City Council in making its determination.    
 
City Council approved the proposed option "A" of Zoning Ordinance No. 634, amending Cudahy 
Municipal Code Section 20 (Zoning), to add new definitions to subsection 20.08.010 adding 
“Emergency Shelters,” “Target Population” and “Transitional and Supportive Housing,” modify 
CMC subsection 20.64.040 to add “Transitional and Supportive Housing,” and modify CMC 
subsection 20.68.080 to add “Emergency Shelters” per Planning Commission recommendation. 
 
Approved: Development Review Project: Clara Park Expansion Phase III and Associated 
Negative Declaration. Funded through the Los Angeles County Parks and Open Space District, 
Proposition A – Safe Neighborhood Parks Act has provided funding for the acquisition and 
development of the final phase of Clara Park Expansion Project. This includes the acquisition of 
approximately 0.45 acres, and development of passive open space with a walking path, BBQ 
and picnic areas, landscaping, and exercise stations.  
 
At the August 19, 2014 City Council meeting, a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) was 
awarded to Hirsch & Associates, Inc., for the project design and project management of the 
expansion project.  
 
Subsequently, at the September 2, 2014 City Council meeting, a PSA was awarded to Paragon 
Partners, Ltd. for relocation services. 
 
As of August 29, 2014, the project Negative Declaration and Environmental Study were 
published and noticed. The Negative Declaration and Environmental Study were available for 
public review and comments from August 29, 2014 to September 28, 2014.  
 
On October 6, 2014 the Planning Commission approved Resolution No. 14-09 recommending 
approval to the City Council of Development Review Project “Clara Park Expansion Project 
Phase III” and associated Negative Declaration. 
 
On October 7, 2015 the City Council of the City of Cudahy adopted the Negative Declaration 
prepared for the project and approved Development Review Project “Clara Park Expansion 
Project Phase III,” by Resolution No. 14-66. 
 



 

Page | 25  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

 
 
 
Approved: Ordinance No. 640 Pertaining to Low Impact Development (LID) Strategies that 
Require Building, Grading, and Encroachment Permits. On October 20, 2014 the Planning 
Commission approved Resolution No. 14-11 recommending that the City Council adopt 
Ordinance No. 640 pertaining to Low Impact Development (LID) strategies that require building, 
grading, and encroachment permits.  
 
On November 4, 2014 City Council held a first reading of Ordinance No. 640. A Special meeting 
was held before the City Council of the City of Cudahy on November 25, 2014 to consider the 
Ordinance. All evidence, both written and oral, presented during November 4, 2014 first 
reading, and public hearing was considered by the City Council in making its determination to 
approved Ordinance No. 640.    
 
Approved: Programs/Projects for Community Development Block Grant Funding During the 
2015-2016 Fiscal Year. On October 20, 2014 the Planning Commission approved Resolution No. 
14-12 recommending projects/programs for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
funding during the 2015-2016 fiscal year for adoption by the Cudahy City Council.  
 
The City Council of the City of Cudahy approved the recommended projects/programs funding 
for fiscal year 2015-2016 by Resolution No. 14-85.  
 
Safe Routes to School (SRTS) Plan and Program.  
The Safe Routes to School (SRTS) Plan and Program has been an ongoing effort by City Staff, the 
Los Angeles County Department of Public Health, and consultant Ryan Snyder which originated 
in 2013. The proceeding section provides an outline of all the efforts taking place towards 
achieving adoption of the SRTS Plan and Program during the 2014 calendar year: 
 

1. On January 29, 2014, LA County Department of Public Health had a meeting with Jaime 
Escalante Elementary School Principal/Teacher/Parent Leadership to discuss the Cudahy 
city-wide Safe Routes to School (SRTS) plan and program and set dates/times for 
upcoming workshops. 



 

Page | 26  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

 
2. On January 29, 2014, LA County Department of Public Health had a meeting with Park 

Avenue Elementary School Principal Ms. Cordova to discuss the Cudahy city-wide Safe 
Routes to School (SRTS) plan and program and set dates/times for upcoming workshops. 

 
3. On April 24, 2014, LA County Department of Public Health had a Civic Leaders Network 

Walking School Bus Training in preparation of an upcoming International Walk to School 
day to take place in October. This meeting was used to set up routes and rendezvous 
points for the walk to school day event.  

 
4. On April 30, 2014, LA County Department of Public Health had a meeting with Park 

Avenue Elementary School parents to discuss the Cudahy city-wide Safe Routes to School 
(SRTS) plan and program and set dates/times for upcoming workshops. 

 
5. On April 30, 2014, LA County Department of Public Health had a second meeting with 

Jaime Escalante Elementary School Principal/Teacher/Parent Leadership to discuss the 
progress of the Cudahy city-wide Safe Routes to School (SRTS) plan and program and set 
dates/times for upcoming workshops. 

 
6. On May 21, 2014, LA County Department of Public Health had a meeting with Ellen Ochoa 

Learning Center parents to discuss the Cudahy city-wide Safe Routes to School (SRTS) plan 
and program and set dates/times for upcoming workshops. 

 
7. On May 29, 2014, LA County Department of Public Health had a second meeting with 

Ellen Ochoa Learning Center parents to discuss the Cudahy city-wide Safe Routes to 
School (SRTS) plan and program and set dates/times for upcoming workshops. 

 
8. On May 31, 2014, the City hosted the inaugural Cudahy Book Fair where LA County 

Department of Public Health had a booth to interact with parents, students, and other 
community members and receive input regarding the Cudahy city-wide Safe Routes to 
School (SRTS) plan and program. 

 
9. On June 20, 2014, LA County Department of Public Health held a Walking School Bus 

Training session at Ellen Ochoa Learning Center in preparation of an upcoming 
International Walk to School day to take place in October.  

 
10. On July 21, 2014, Chanda Singh from LA County Department of Public Health gave an 

introductory presentation during a regularly scheduled Public Safety Commission meeting. 
 

11. On July 23, 2014, City staff held a partner meeting with LA County Department of Public 
Health to discuss the progress of the Cudahy city-wide Safe Routes to School (SRTS) plan 
and program. The meeting was also used to update the timeline of events to take place in 
preparation of the SRTS plan and program. 



 

Page | 27  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

 
12. On July 30, 2014, City staff held a Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) to receive technical 

input from the TAC members. The meeting was also used to provide an update of all 
events that took place prior to the meeting and events moving forward.   

 
13. On August 8, 2014, City staff hosted National Night Out (event) taking place at Clara 

Expansion Park. During this event LA County Department of Public Health had a booth to 
interact with parents, students, and other community members and receive input 
regarding the Cudahy city-wide Safe Routes to School (SRTS) plan and program. 

 
14. On August 20, 2014, LA County Department of Public Health, Consultant Ryan Snyder and 

City staff participated in a SRTS workshop held at Ellen Ochoa Learning Center. The SRTS 
workshop consisted of a presentation prepared by Ryan Snyder that engaged parents, 
school staff, and other stakeholders. The workshops had breakout sessions where parents 
were given maps to identify problem areas surrounding the school, a walk-around the 
school to point out problems areas, and finally a session to provide further comments to 
be implemented and be part of the Cudahy city-wide Safe Routes to School (SRTS) plan 
and program document. 

 
15. On August 21, 2014, LA County Department of Public Health, Consultant Ryan Snyder and 

City staff participated in a SRTS workshop held at Teresa Hughes Elementary School. The 
SRTS workshop consisted of a presentation prepared by Ryan Snyder and engaged 
parents, school staff, and other stakeholders. The workshops had breakout sessions 
where parents were given maps to identify problem areas surrounding the school, a walk-
around the school to point out problems areas, and finally a session to provide further 
comments to be implemented and be part of the Cudahy city-wide Safe Routes to School 
(SRTS) plan and program document. 

 
16. On August 22, 2014, LA County Department of Public Health, Consultant Ryan Snyder and 

City staff participated in a SRTS workshop held at Elizabeth Learning Center. The SRTS 
workshop consisted of a presentation prepared by Ryan Snyder and engaged parents, 
school staff, and other stakeholders. The workshops had breakout sessions where parents 
were given maps to identify problem areas surrounding the school, a walk-around the 
school to point out problems areas, and finally a session to provide further comments to 
be implemented and be part of the Cudahy city-wide Safe Routes to School (SRTS) plan 
and program document. 

 
17. On August 26, 2014, LA County Department of Public Health, Consultant Ryan Snyder and 

City staff participate in a SRTS workshop held at Park Avenue Elementary School. The SRTS 
workshop consisted of a presentation prepared by Ryan Snyder and engaged parents, 
school staff, and other stakeholders. The workshops had breakout sessions where parents 
were given maps to identify problem areas surrounding the school, a walk-around the 
school to point out problems areas, and finally a session to provide further comments to 



 

Page | 28  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

be implemented and be part of the Cudahy city-wide Safe Routes to School (SRTS) plan 
and program document. 

 
18. On August 27, 2014, LA County Department of Public Health held an International Walk to 

School Day committee meeting which took place at Ellen Ochoa Learning Center.  
 

19. On August 28, 2014, LA County Department of Public Health, Consultant Ryan Snyder and 
City staff participated in a SRTS workshop held at Jaime Escalante. The SRTS workshop 
consisted of a presentation prepared by Ryan Snyder and engaged parents, school staff, 
and other stakeholders. The workshops had breakout sessions where parents were given 
maps to identify problem areas surrounding the school, a walk-around the school to point 
out problems areas, and finally a session to provide further comments to be implemented 
and be part of the Cudahy city-wide Safe Routes to School (SRTS) plan and program 
document. 

 
20. On December 17, 2014, City staff held a Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) to receive 

technical input from the TAC members. The meeting was also used to provide an update 
of all events that took place prior to the meeting and events moving forward, as well as 
addressing necessary edits to the Cudahy city-wide Safe Routes to School (SRTS) plan and 
program.   

 
21. On December 1, 2014, City staff prepared and posted an environmental document in the 

form of a Negative Declaration. The document was posted for public comment and review 
from December 1, 2014 through January 1, 2015 on the Long Beach Press-Telegram. 

 
Once the community-informed Cudahy city-wide Safe Routes to School (SRTS) plan and 
program document was completed it was scheduled for Public Hearing and a notice of public 
hearing was published in the Long Beach Press-Telegram for the Planning and Public Safety 
Commission(s) as well as City Council meeting.  

 
Planning and Development Fee Increase 
On August 19, 2014 City Council adopted Resolution No. 14-54 which increased Planning and 
Development Fees. The fee schedule had not been updated in the past 27 years; the previous 
fee schedule was adopted on December 14, 1987. Due to changing times and economies, it 
was long overdue for the City of Cudahy to update their Planning and Development fees.  
 
Strategic Planning Grant 
In June of 2014, the City was awarded $105,913 from the California Strategic Growth Council to 
fund a team of researchers and planners, including a team from the University of California, Los 
Angeles, Lewis Center, who will create a new regulatory structure for land use development in 
the City. The study will identify needed projects in the areas of transportation, parks, open 
space, and a nexus study of future developments fair share contribution to such projects.  
 



 

Page | 29  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

Additionally a nexus study for water and sewer systems will be provided. The City has begun 
kick off meetings with project staff and will be entering into a contract agreement with the 
California Strategic Growth Council for the implementation of the grant, as well as the team 
from University of California, Los Angeles. 
 
On October 21, 2014 the City of Cudahy City Council awarded a Professional Services 
Agreement (PSA) for research and development of new regulatory structure for land use 
development in Cudahy including impact fees, parking, transportation, water, and sewer 
demands to University of California Los Angeles, Lewis Center for Regional Policy Studies 
(UCLA).  
 
Upon execution of the PSA a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) will be prepared and issued by 
the City of Cudahy for: (1) An Assessment of Public Infrastructure Needs: Water and Sewer 
System, (2) Facilitation Services. 
 
 
Business License 
 
Table 4-3 below includes the total number of business currently in the City with issued business 
license. Along with the number of new businesses that entered the city in; and the number of 
expired and closed out licenses in 2014.  
 
The totals include all categories from Inside City Business, Rental, Contractors, outside City 
Business Etc. All Business License expire on July 1st except for Contractors. Contractors business 
license are issued quarterly, semi-annual, and yearly the expiration date is based on issued 
date. Renewal Notices are mailed out yearly on or about the 3rd week of June. 
 
 

2014 Business License Breakdown 
 
(Current 2013) Total Businesses w/ 
Issued License’ 
 

 
690 

 
New businesses  
 

 
203 

 
Expired License 
 

 
350 

 
Closed License  
 

 
65 

Business License Records: 2014 
   
 
 
 
 



 

Page | 30  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

Code Compliance  
 
The City code enforcement efforts encourage property maintenance and upkeep. These efforts 
include the identification of nuisances that endanger public health and safety and the provision 
of technical support or other incentives to allow early correction of the problem. The City works 
towards the continued renovation of structures which do not meet current seismic safety 
standards and electrical code requirements. Code Enforcement site visits are typically 
complaint driven. The City of Cudahy also maintains a number of programs that property 
owners may take advantage of if their unit is found to be substandard. Code Enforcement 
officers have been very proactive in referring residential property owners to these programs. 
 
Table 4-4 & table 4-5 below summarize the type of violations found throughout the calendar 
year of 2014 by prohibited conditions and building code violations.  
 

Table 4-4 Type of Violations: Prohibited Conditions 
 
Window glass broken  

 
1 

 
Carports and Parking area unsightly with trash and debris  

 
0 

 
Abandoned vehicle on property creating nuisance and health hazard 

 
1 

 
Overgrown trees, shrubs grass and/or vegetation on the property 

 
6 

 
Junk trash and debris on property  

 
5 

 
Tenant or occupants are hanging clothes on stairways or fences 

 
0 

 
Trash containers are in public view  

 
0 

 
Home appliances being stored on property open areas (outside) 

 
4 

 
Tenants or occupants performing major auto repairs and illegal motor oil dumping  

 
0 

 
Tenant or occupants parking vehicles on lawn areas  

 
0 

 
Driveway and parking areas damaged or in disrepair   

 
4 

 
Past seasonal and holiday decorations are being displayed  

 
0 

 
Interior furniture being stored or placed on porch  

 
1 

 
Farm animal on property  

 
0 

 
Overgrown grass along the fence line property  

 
3 

 
Graffiti on property  

 
2 

 
Tenants or occupants storing miscellaneous items throughout property  

 
5 

 
Carports are damaged and in disrepair  

 
1 

                                                                                                                        
Total Violations  

 
33 

Code Enforcement Records: 2013  



 

Page | 31  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

 
 

Table 4-5 Type of Violations: Building Code 
 
Address numbers missing or in disrepair  

 
4 

 
Mail box missing or in disrepair  

 
1 

 
Paint on exterior of house and units chipped, faded or not compatible  

 
5 

 
Paint on trim of house and units is chipped, faded or not completed 

 
4 

 
Exterior plaster/wood siding is damaged, dry rot or termite infested 

 
4 

 
Exterior light fixtures damaged or missing 

 
4 

 
Roof leaking or in disrepair  

 
2 

 
Window screens, screen or security doors damaged, torn or missing  

 
4 

 
Garage or shed illegally converted into a dwelling unit or habitable living space 

 
3 

 
Gate or fence damaged or in disrepair  

 
3 

 
Vent and crawl hole covers missing or damaged 

 
0 

 
CMC& County Codes Sings not visible, faded, or missing  

 
4 

 
Garage or shed unsafe, damaged or in disrepair  

 
2 

 
Water heater earthquake straps missing  

 
2 

 
Plumbing in bathroom or kitchen leaking  

 
1 

 
Water heater leaking and/or non-operational  

 
2 

 
Total Violations  

 
45 

Code Enforcement Records: 2013 
 
 
Although many violations required formal citation, many other violations remain 
undocumented due to voluntary compliance efforts which were resolved without citation or 
formal compliance efforts. Such voluntary compliance efforts include advertising banners, 
parking concerns, weed abatement and other minor violations. 
 
 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Residential Rehabilitation Program  
 
The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Residential Rehabilitation Program develops 
a working relationship with the residents of the city in order to promote a better quality of life.  
The program ensures adherence with CDBG regulations, contractual requirements, federal 
record keeping/documentation requirements, and local policies; and provide technical 
assistance to ensure that rehabilitation on a property is completed within the fiscal year 



 

Page | 32  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

funded. The rehabilitation specialist conducts interviews, on-site visits, and pre-approves client 
files for Housing Improvement Program for Federal grants and/or loans.   
 
During 2014, the Residential Rehabilitation Program had five projects:  
  

1. 7911 Walker Avenue $6,950 
 

Rehabilitation Work 2-6-14: Interior Paint; Bathroom Faucets; Toilet; Vanity/Fixtures; 
Kitchen Faucet; Ground Fault Circuit Interrupter (GFCI); Smoke & Carbon Monoxide 
detectors; and Shower Valves/Fixtures.  
 

2. 4219 Live Oak Street $3,775 
 

Rehabilitation Work 2-18-14:  Ground Fault Circuit Interrupter (GFCI); Smoke & Carbon 
Monoxide Detectors; Termite and Roof Repair.  

 
3. 7638 Salt Lake Avenue $10,404 

 
Rehabilitation Work 2-20-14: Ground Fault Circuit Interrupter (GFCI); Smoke & Carbon 
Monoxide Detectors; Termite and Roof Repair.  

 
4. 7640 Salt Lake Avenue $12,841 

 
Rehabilitation Work 2-20-14: Ground Fault Circuit Interrupter (GFCI); Smoke & Carbon 
Monoxide Detectors; Termite and Roof Repair.  

 
5. 8119 Atlantic Avenue $12,255 

 
Rehabilitation Work 7-10-14: Ground Fault Circuit Interrupter (GFCI); Smoke & Carbon 
Monoxide Detectors; Water Heater; Ceiling/Walls; Interior Doors; Electrical Repairs; 
Repair Roof; Windows; Laminate Floor; and Repair Porch.  

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page | 33  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

5.0 Land and Housing Inventory   
 
This section assesses the housing development potential in Cudahy during the 2013-2021 
Housing Element planning period. The purpose is to determine the quantity of land available to 
accommodate the City’s RHNA. The RHNA is broken down by income group into four 
categories: Very Low (less than 50% of the Area Median income (AMI)), Low (50-80% of AMI), 
Moderate (80-120% of AMI), and High (over 120% of AMI). While a jurisdiction must show that 
it has adequate sites in total to meet its RHNA, it must also show that it can meet the allocation 
at each of these income categories.  
 
 
Housing Inventory  
 
The State requires that a Housing Element identify how much housing can be constructed to 
accommodate the community’s RHNA. Section 65583(a)(3) of the California Government Code 
states that this inventory must be site specific to help localities determine the appropriate 
zoning, development standards, and infrastructure capacity to accommodate the new 
construction needed. The Code also requires that all land identified must be available for 
residential use in the planning period. Sites that require rezoning may be included in the 
inventory provided that actions are taken to address the rezoning early in the planning period. 
 
The types of sites that are appropriate for residential development include: 
 

• Vacant residentially zoned sites;  
 

• Vacant non-residentially zoned sites that allow residential development 
 

• Underutilized residentially zoned sites capable of being developed at a higher density or 
with greater intensity; and  
 

• Non-residentially zoned sites that can be redeveloped for, and/or rezoned for, 
residential use (via program actions, such as rezoning).  

 
 
Sites Inventory and Analysis  
 
Sites Inventory and Analysis lists properties by parcel number or other unique reference, 
showing for each parcel: size, zone, existing use, allowable density, General Plan designation, 
street name, and number of units that can be accommodated in each site under current zoning 
regulations, along with any pertinent comments.  
 
 
 
 



 

Page | 34  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

 
Table 5-1 AVAILABLE VACANT LAND INVENTORY (ADDRESSING 4th / 5TH CYCLE RHNA)  

APN# Sq. Ft. Zone Existing 
Use  

Increased 
Allowable 

Density 

General Plan 
Designation 

Street Name Assumed 
Units 

Comment 

SITE #1 
6224-034-039 
6224-034-037 
6224-034-040 
6224-034-032 
6224-034-041 
6224-034-014 
6224-034-036 
6224-034-010 

256,512 Community 
Commercial 

Vacant 20 CC  Atlantic Ave / 
Patata St 

117  

SITE #2 
6224-022-004 
6224-022-003 
6224-022-002 
6224-022-012 

72,520 Community 
Commercial  

Vacant 20 CC Cecelia St 33  

SITE #3 
6224-019-014 

37,714 Community 
Commercial  

Vacant 20 CC Santa Ana St 17  

SITE #4 
6224-018-068 
6224-018-069 
6224-018-071 

34,845 Community 
Commercial 

25% 
Occupied 

20 CC Atlantic Ave  15  

SITE #5 
6226-022-022 
6226-022-008 

19,164 Community 
Commercial 

50% 
Occupied 

20 CC Atlantic Ave 8  

SITE #6 
6226-014-900 

19,688 High Density 
Residential –

Garden 
Overlay  

Vacant 20 HDR-G Live Oak St 9  

SITE #7 
6226-026-003 

8,775 High Density 
Residential – 

Garden 
Overlay 

Vacant 20 HDR-G Wilcox Ave 4  

SITE #8 
6224-001-003 

20,475 High Density 
Residential – 

Garden 
Overlay 

Vacant* 20 HDR-G Elizabeth St 9 *Currently 
growing crops 
on approx. ½ 

of the lot 
(total lot = 

40,950 sq. ft.) 
SITE #9 

6226-028-004 
20,475 High Density 

Residential – 
Garden 
Overlay  

Vacant* 20 HDR-G Elizabeth St 9 Approx. ½ of 
the lot is 

empty (total 
lot = 40,950 

sq. ft) 
SITE #10 

6224-015-002 
20,475 High Density 

Residential – 
Garden 
Overlay 

Vacant 20 HDR-G Santa Ana St 9  

SITE #11 
6224-036-002 
6224-036-004 
6224-036-005 
6224-036-006 

184,895 Community 
Commercial 

& Community 
Manufacturing 

Vacant 20 CC & CM Atlantic Ave 84  

Source: http://maps.assessor.lacounty.gov/mapping/viewer.asp; City Wide Survey.    
 
As shown in the table above the assumed total units = 314 units on approximately 695,538 
square feet (15.96 acres). Calculating the maximum density, per acre of available vacant land or 
infill development, derives this assumption (for each site).  
 

http://maps.assessor.lacounty.gov/mapping/viewer.asp


 

Page | 35  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

The table above also indicates that the City will increase the existing allowable density to 20 
dwelling units per acre in the HDR and CC Zones. The City will also increase densities through 
the remainder of the City to further facilitate meeting the demand for affordable housing.  
 
 
Realistic Capacity   
 
The City’s share of the regional housing need will be met through the implementation of a 
variety of strategies (e.g., available vacant land, and increasing allowable zoning densities 
throughout the entire City (e.g., HDR Zone will be increased from 14.52 to 20 dwelling units per 
acre; same will occur in the CC Zone. Increasing the existing allowable density to 20 dwelling 
units per acre will further facilitate meeting the demand for affordable housing). As shown in 
table 5-1 above the assumed total units = 314 units on approximately 695,538 square feet 
(15.96) acres. Calculating the maximum density, per acre of available vacant land or infill 
development, derives this assumption (per site).   
 
The City’s land inventory was developed by a combination of methods, among them, utilizing 
data available from the City and the LA County Assessor’s Parcel Maps, a review of aerial maps, 
and most importantly, through field work. Field surveys of housing sites were conducted on 
April 18-19, 2013 to document existing available vacant or underutilized land. The sites were 
identified as vacant by reviewing aerial maps, checking the status with the aid of the LA County 
Assessor’s Parcel Maps; and later confirmed the physical condition via driving field surveys. 
 
 
Key Sites for Housing 
 

1. Vacant Sites - There is a potential 314 units (20 dwelling units per acre) on the 11 sites 
identified on table 5-1 which are zoned for High Density Residential and Community 
Commercial (which can also allow for multi-family development).  

  
2. Non-Vacant Sites - On the 11 sites identified on table 5-1;  

 
a. Site #1 is owned by the Economic Development Corporation and 15% of the site 

is occupied with an unoccupied building. 
 

b. Site #2 is owned by the Economic Development Corporation and the site is fully 
occupied with unoccupied buildings.  

 
c. Site #4 is owned by the Economic Development Corporation and 25% of the site 

is occupied with a month-to-month lease and the remaining 75% is unoccupied. 
 

d. Site #5 is owned by the Economic Development Corporation and 50% of the site 
is occupied with a month-to-month lease.  

 



 

Page | 36  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

e. Site #11 is privately owned and is 100% occupied.   
 

3. Increased Density in Cudahy – The city will be increasing allowable zoning densities 
throughout the entire City (e.g., HDR Zone will be increased from 14.52 to 20 dwelling 
units per acre; same will occur in the CC Zone). Increasing the existing allowable density 
to 20 dwelling units per acre will further facilitate meeting the demand for affordable 
housing. 

 
 
Zoning Appropriate to Accommodate Housing for Lower-Income Households 
 
The City recognizes that the higher density residential and community commercial zones (HDR 
and CC) provide the potential for lower construction cost because of economies of scale 
created and are therefore most suitable for development of housing affordable to very low-
income and low-income households. Those sites identified in the inventory as having the 
greatest potential to accommodate housing affordable to lower income households allow 
densities of at least 20 dwelling units per acre.  
 
 
Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) 
 
Quantified Objectives  
 
California Housing Element Law requires jurisdictions to estimate the number of affordable 
housing opportunities that will be created over the seven-year planning period. In 1980, the 
State of California amended the Government Code by adding Article 10.6 regarding Housing 
Elements. By enacting this statute, the legislature found that "the availability of housing is of 
vital statewide importance, and the early attainment of decent housing and a suitable living 
environment for every California family is a priority of the highest order. The early attainment 
of this goal requires the cooperative participation of government and the private sector in an 
effort to expand housing opportunities and accommodate the housing needs of Californians of 
all economic levels. Local and state governments have a responsibility to use the powers vested 
in them to facilitate the improvement and development of housing to make adequate provision 
for the housing needs of all economic segments of the community…" 
 
The quantified objectives of the City by income category are provided in table below. The City’s 
objective is to allow the construction of at least 318 new units; from very-low to above 
moderate income levels. And to rehabilitate 8 very-low and 8 low-income level properties, 
totaling in 56 rehab units over the seven year implementation phase.  
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page | 37  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

 
Table 5-2 Quantified Objectives: 
 

Income 
Category 

New Construction Rehabilitation Conservation/
Preservation 

Total 
Quantified 
Objectives 

Cumulative Need 
(Unaccommodated 
need from 1992 to 
2000 and new from 

2013-2021) 
 
Extremely-Low 

 
51 

 
10 

 
10 

 
0 

 
71 

 
Very-low 

 
52 

 
9 

 
9 

 
0 

 
70 

 
Low 

 
106 

 
9 

 
9 

 
0 

 
124 

 
Moderate 

 
10 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
10 

 
Above Moderate 

 
11 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
11 

 
TOTALS 

 
209 

 
28 

 
28 

 
0 

 
265 

 
Source: City of Cudahy Community Development Department   
 
 
Housing Cost and Affordability  
 
 

Tab le 5-3: Housing Units Paying an Excess of 30% of their Monthly Income towards Rent  
 
Owner-Occupied Units   

 
45.2% 

 
Renter-Occupied Units  
 

 
56.3%   

Source: Census.gov  
 
 
Census data indicated that for owner-occupied housing units, the majority of the monthly 
mortgage payments in the city ranged in 2010 was $2,000 or more with the median being 
$1,812 per month.  A household was considered to be overpaying for housing if more than 30% 
of their net “take-home” income was used for paying rent or mortgages.  According to census 
figures for the year 2010, 45.2% of the total owner-occupied units living in owner-occupied 
units paid in excess of 30% of their monthly income towards the mortgage. According to the 
same census figures, 56.3% of the total renter households paid in excess of 30% of their 
monthly income towards the rent.  
 
 
Housing Crisis  
 
Residential vacancy rates and the location of the city within the Los Angeles basin are two 
market constraints that affect the affordability of housing. As Los Angeles development areas 
continue to expand, Cudahy and the surrounding cities are becoming an increasingly 



 

Page | 38  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

convenient area in which to live.  Housing prices will continue to rise due to this demand.  As 
previously mentioned, just over 1.9% of the housing stock within the Cudahy is vacant. This 
translates into a demand for housing in the region exceeding the available supply, which 
inflates both the rental and ownership housing prices.  If land values, construction costs, and 
interest rates continue to increase in the long-term, the cost of all new housing will rise 
accordingly.    
 
As indicated above, the city has no control over the market fluctuations that may affect housing 
costs because market conditions result from a complex interplay of national economic policies 
and general economic conditions.  Inflation in the cost of goods and especially housing means 
that many families find themselves unable to afford suitable housing.  The lack of sufficient 
income causes more working people to share the cost of a home. As a result, overcrowding is 
common and the housing choice of many households is severely restricted. This situation is 
further aggravated in periods of high unemployment.    
 
Redlining practices have not been observed, as the city's housing market is not characterized by 
wide disparities in prices. The Long Beach Fair Housing Foundation monitors redlining practices 
in the Southern California region, including the city and has found that redlining practices do 
not appear to be a problem.  
 
 
Environmental and Infrastructure Constraints  
 
Environmental factors, such as topography, soils, landslides and seismic hazards, and noise, as 
well as the lack of infrastructure, such as roads, water, and sewer lines, are constraints to 
housing development in the City. However, most of the potential housing sites identified by the 
City are not constrained by environmental factors or by lack of adequate infrastructure, with 
the exceptions of earthquake, ground shaking which affects the entire region and poor water 
infrastructure provided by Tract 180 Water Company. The General Plan has taken these 
environmental factors into account. Where development is planned, any site that remains can 
be mitigated through appropriate design and environmental planning.       
 
 
Environmental Setting  
 
The City of Cudahy is a relatively new city having only incorporated in the 1960s.  At the time of 
incorporation, more than 80% of the city’s total land area was developed. In terms of land area, 
Cudahy is one of the smallest cities in Los Angeles County with only 1.07 square miles.  In spite 
of its relatively small land area, Cudahy is home to 24,103 residents according to the most 
recent U.S. Census estimates.  The city’s relatively large population given its small geographic 
area makes it one of the most densely populated communities in California. 
 
A great majority of the city is development in residential land uses with residential 
neighborhoods accounting for approximately 394-acres of land or 51.5% of the total land area 



 

Page | 39  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

of Cudahy. An industrial area is located in the southernmost portion of the city on both the 
west and east sides of Atlantic Avenue.  Industrial land uses account for approximately 79-acres 
of land or 12.3% of the city’s total land area.  Commercial land uses are located along the major 
roadways such as Atlantic Avenue and at key intersections and account for approximately 43-
acres of land or 6.7% of the total city’s total land area. 
 
 
Noise 
 
The city is located in an area where the ambient noise levels are relatively high.  A citywide 
noise inventory performed in May 2013, found that virtually all of the neighborhoods in Cudahy 
are located in areas where noise levels exceed 65 dBA. The city’s noise environment is not 
expected to significantly change over time since the primary factors contributing to noise, 
namely the arterial roadway and freeway traffic and nearby industrial, will have a continued 
presence in the city. State noise guidelines recommend that residential development be located 
in areas exposed to ambient outdoor noise levels no greater than 65 A-weighted decibels (dBA).   
 
 
Geologic and Seismic Hazards  
 
No known earthquake faults traverse Cudahy and the city is not exposed to natural 
environmental hazards such as flooding, slope erosion and landslides. However, the city is 
located within an area that is subject to liquefaction hazards. The city is located within the dam 
inundation area of the Garvey Reservoir in Monterey Park.  
 
The nearest major river is the Los Angeles River.  This River does have a potential impact on the 
City of Cudahy. Normally this river channel is dry and only carries a significant water flow during 
a major rainstorm.  The river channel is part of the County Flood Control District and the City is 
protected by a levee wall. 
 
City of Cudahy, like most of the Los Angeles Basin, lie over the area of one or more known 
earthquake faults, and potentially many more unknown faults, particularly so-called lateral or 
blind thrust faults. 
 
The major faults that have the potential to affect the greater Los Angeles Basin, and therefore 
the City of Cudahy are the: 

• Norwalk 
• Raymond Hill 
• Malibu Coast-Santa Monica-Hollywood 
• San Andreas 
• Newport-Inglewood 
• San Fernando 
• Sierra Madre 
• Whittier 



 

Page | 40  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

The Los Angeles Basin has a history of powerful and relatively frequent earthquakes, dating 
back to the powerful 8.0+ 1857 San Andreas Earthquake which did substantial damage to the 
relatively few buildings that existed at the time. Paleoseismological research indicates that 
large (8.0+) earthquakes occur on the San Andreas fault at intervals between 45 and 332 years 
with an average interval of 140 years.  Other lesser faults have also caused very damaging 
earthquakes since 1857.  Notable earthquakes include the 1933 Long Beach Earthquake, the 
1971 San Fernando Earthquake, the 1987 Whittier Earthquake and the 1994 Northridge 
Earthquake. In addition, many areas in the Los Angeles Basin have sandy soils that are subject 
to liquefaction, including in the City of Cudahy. 
 
 
Roads 
 
The transportation system in Cudahy consists of a roadway network dominated by Atlantic 
Avenue, collector streets, and local streets. The Long Beach Freeway (State Route-710) is 
located just east of Cudahy. Also, the City's central location in Los Angeles County provides 
Cudahy with easy access to most parts of the Southern California region. Local circulation 
within the City generally follows a grid pattern; except for Atlantic Avenue which extends in a 
north-south orientation at a slight angle and Salt Lake Avenue which follows the curve of the 
railroad tracks. Atlantic Avenue is a regional highway that extends north to Alhambra and south 
to Long Beach. Traffic volumes on most City streets are currently approaching or are at 
capacity. 
 
Regional access to the City is provided by the Long Beach Freeway (I-710) that extends along 
the City's eastern border. Access to this freeway is provided by Florence Avenue (north of 
Cudahy) and Firestone Boulevard (south of Cudahy), both being major arterials located just 
outside the City. Florence Avenue is a major roadway that provides a connection to the Long 
Beach Freeway for the neighboring communities of Downey, Bell and Bell Gardens. With local 
freeway access largely dependent on Florence Avenue, the traffic on this roadway during peak 
hours is congested. Local access to Florence Avenue is provided by Wilcox Avenue and Atlantic 
Avenue and access to Firestone Boulevard is provided by Atlantic Avenue. The transportation 
system framework within Cudahy is largely defined by Atlantic Avenue which is a major 
north/south arterial that extends through the City. Other north/south roadways include Salt 
Lake Avenue, Wilcox Avenue, and Otis Avenue which also provide access to neighboring cities. 
Clara Street and Santa Ana Street are two primary east/west roadways. Aside from Atlantic 
Avenue and Santa Ana Street (west of Atlantic Avenue), all of the streets in the City consist of 
two travel lanes.  
 
All the potential housing sites identified are infill sites located in existing built-out areas of the 
City. All of which have adequate road access (ingress and egress).   
 
 
 
 



 

Page | 41  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

Assessment of Sewer and Water  
 
Given future development and potential demands on water and sewer utilities, the following 
findings were made; see table 5-4 summary below:  
 
Table 5-4 Sewer and Water; summary of findings  
 

Service Provider Findings  
 

Los Angeles County Sewer 
 

• City owns sewer system. 
• LA County maintains it.  

 
Maintenance Report: Department of Public Works, May 
2013: 
 

• Approximately 95.2% of the system was free of 
blockages or restrictions.  

• The remaining 4.8% needed repair and was 
incorporated into an enhanced maintenance 
schedule with corrective action taken.  

• 99% of the system has adequate water capacity. 
• 88.4% of the inspected pipe segments are free of 

structural defects. 
• The remaining 11.6% has been placed on a quick 

priority list for needed action.  
 

 

 
Tract 349 Mutual Water Company  

 

• Currently operating at capacity. 
 

2 water wells on location: 
 

• Both water wells can deliver about 1,600 gallons 
per minute.  

• An average of 2.2 million gallons per day.  
• The two water wells pump an average of > 850 

acre feet per year. 
• A family of four use approximately 0.5 acre feet of 

water per year (threshold)  
 

If density were to increase Tract 349 will be required to: 
 

• Drill a new water Well, totaling an approximate 
cost of $1.5 million or,  

• Purchase water from surrounding utilities. 
 

 

 
Tract 180 Mutual Water Company 

 

• Currently operating at capacity. 
 

2 water wells on location: 
 

• Both water wells can deliver about 2,000 gallons 
per minute.  

• An average of 1.5 million gallons per day. 
• The two water wells pump an average of > 1,500 

acre feet per year. 
• A family of four use approximately 0.5 acre feet of 

water per year (threshold)  
 

About 75% of the distribution system needs to be upgraded; 
however, no improvements are planned at this moment.  
 

 
 
 

Source: Los Angeles County Sewer “Maintenance Report: Department of Public Works, May 2013; Tract 349 Manager 
Dante Arcia; & Tract 180 Manager Jessie Barreras.  
 



 

Page | 42  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

If the City builds the potential 314 new units on the vacant parcels indentified along with the 
increased density in the MDR Zone to 15 dwelling units per acre & HDR Zone to 20 dwelling 
units per acre: 
 

• Cudahy currently supports 5,770 housing units; the increases in density on both 
the MDR and HDR Zones will provide an increase of 860 new housing units to a 
total of 6,630 housing units in Cudahy.  

 
• Los Angeles County Sewer will continue to operate adequately due to having a 

system that is > 90% free of blockages/restrictions, > 90% in adequate water 
capacity, > 80% free of structural defects, along with their newly implemented 
improvements.  

 
• Tract 349 Water Mutual Company will have 2 new sites to accommodate a total 

of 50 new units. This will require an increase of 25 acre feet of water per year, an 
increase of 3% to the existing infrastructure. However since they are currently 
operating at capacity; the increases in density to both the MDR and HDR Zones 
will signify the need to drill new water wells or purchase water from surrounding 
cities.  

 
• Tract 180 Water Mutual Company will have 8 new sites to accommodate a total 

of 180 new units. This will require an increase of 90 acre feet of water per year, 
an increase of 6% to the existing infrastructure. However since they are currently 
operating at capacity; the increases in density to both the MDR and HDR Zones 
will signify the need to drill new water wells or purchase water from surrounding 
cities.   

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page | 43  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

6.0 Long Range Planning Activities  
 
While the pace of development has ebbed, the ongoing implementation of the City’s General 
Plan includes planning efforts that will position Cudahy to accommodate future growth in a 
more sustainable manner and ready the community for investment and economic 
development opportunities. Below are summaries of some of the larger planning efforts that 
were recently completed, or that are ongoing. 
 
 
General Plan  
 
The Cudahy General Plan serves as the framework for future planning and development in the 
City. The Cudahy General Plan provides decision-makers, officials, residents, and developers the 
direction they will need to achieve the long term planning goals of the City. The Cudahy General 
Plan builds on the previous General Plan that was adopted in the early 1990s that emphasized 
the maintenance and revitalization of the residential neighborhoods and the improvement of 
the City’s commercial areas. State law regulates the content of General Plans. Sections 65300-
65403 of the California Government Code require that local jurisdictions prepare and adopt a 
general plan to guide the physical development of the City and its sphere of influence. There 
are seven mandatory elements that comprise the Cudahy General Plan: Land Use, Housing, 
Transportation, Open Space, Conservation, Safety and Noise. Other elements may be adopted 
to address specific concerns in the community. In the case of the City of Cudahy; an optional Air 
Quality Element has been included in the General Plan.  
 
Preparation of a General Plan Update and associated Environmental Study is scheduled to take 
place during the 2015 calendar year.  
 
 
Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan  
 
The mission of the Cudahy Local Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan is to promote sound public 
policy designed to protect citizens, critical facilities, infrastructure, private property, and the 
environment from natural hazards. This can be achieved by increasing public awareness, 
documenting resources available for risk reduction and loss prevention, and identifying 
activities to guide the City towards building a safer, more sustainable community. The goals of 
the Mitigation Plan describe the overall direction that the City of Cudahy, through its 
departments, agencies, organizations, and citizens, can take toward reducing its risk to natural 
hazards. The goals of the Plan are stepping-stones between the broad direction of the mission 
statement and the specific recommendations outlined in the action items. The main goals of 
Cudahy’s Mitigation Plan are summarized below:   
 

Protect Life and Property  
 



 

Page | 44  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

• Implement activities that assist in protecting lives by making homes, businesses, 
infrastructure, critical facilities, and other property more resistant to losses from natural 
hazards.  

 
• Reduce losses and repetitive damages for chronic hazard events while promoting 

mitigation measures and insurance coverage for catastrophic hazards.  
 

• Improve the quality and availability of hazard assessment information to empower the 
City’s residents and property owners to make implement preventive measures that will 
help reduce or eliminate the City’s vulnerability to the natural hazards identified.  
 

Public Awareness  
 
• Develop and implement education and outreach programs to increase public awareness 

of the risks associated with natural hazards in Cudahy.  
 

• Provide information on tools, partnership opportunities, and funding resources to assist 
in implementing mitigation activities.  
 

Partnerships and Implementation  
 
• Strengthen communication and participation among and within public agencies, 

citizens, non-profit organizations, businesses, and industry to gain a vested interest in 
the implementation of mitigation measures to reduce the impact of natural hazards.  

 
• Encourage leadership within public and private sector organizations to prioritize and 

implement local and regional hazard mitigation activities.  
 

Emergency Services  
 
• Establish policy to ensure that mitigation projects for critical facilities, services, and 

infrastructure are given priority.  
 

• Strengthen emergency operations by increasing collaboration and coordination among 
public agencies, non-profit organizations, businesses, and industry.  

 
• Where appropriate, coordinate and integrate natural hazard mitigation activities with 

emergency operations plans and procedures.  
 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 
 
The Capital Improvement Program (CIP) is a roadmap that provides direction and guidance for 
the City of Cudahy on carefully planning and managing its capital and infrastructure assets. 



 

Page | 45  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

Capital Improvement Programs assists in the planning and scheduling of finances for projects 
and the manpower needed to plan, design, and construct the projects. Capital Improvement 
Program is a short-range plan, usually five to ten years, which identifies capital projects.  
 
The City of Cudahy is currently awaiting adoption of its full CIP; however, there are capital 
projects in the current CIP draft that will commence as soon as funding becomes available.  The 
projects proposed for the City of Cudahy are:  
  

• Street Improvement projects  
• Traffic Signal projects 
• Pedestrian & Bicycling projects  
• Parks & Recreation projects  
• Street Lighting projects  
• Transportation (Transit Projects)  
• Public Facilities projects 
• Water & Sewer projects  
• National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) projects 
• Total Daily Maximum Load (TDML) projects  
• Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) projects  
• Special Projects  

The City of Cudahy initiated the implementation of their FY14 Capital Improvement Projects. 
The following is an update of those projects initiated in 2014:  
 

• Bedwell Hall Roof Replacement Project (CDBG): 
 
During 2014 the City advertised to solicit bid proposals for this project. Upon completion 
of the advertisement period a mandatory pre-bid meeting took place on Thursday 
October 30 2014, at the job site. On Friday November 7 2014, the City received five (5) 
bid proposals from contractors for the proposed work.  Labor Compliance Consultant 
evaluated the proposals and recommended contract award to Commercial Roofing 
Systems, Inc who was the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. City staff made the 
contract award recommendation for City Council approval on the regular City Council 
Meeting to take place on January 2015. Upon approval, City Staff will proceed with 
executing the construction contract and scheduling a pre-construction meeting right 
after. Project is expected to be completed in 2015. 

 
• Citywide Prop 1B Street Improvement Project – 1) Ferndale Ave/ Fostoria St/ River Rd/ 

Cecelia St and Crafton Ave Loop 2) Alamo St and 3) Walker Ave: 
 
In the month of September 2014 the City completed the Engineering Design Request for 
Proposals phase of the project. As a result of this solicitation, APA Engineering, Inc was 
awarded with the Engineering Design Contract in the regular Council Meeting that took 



 

Page | 46  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

place on October 21, 2014. Engineering Department executed said contract and met 
with the consultant for a kick-off meeting to set up project objective, goals and 
schedule. Geotechnical Investigation has been completed and construction documents 
are currently being prepared. After project plans and specifications are completed, bid 
and construction phases will follow.  

 
Low Impact Development (LID)  
 
Low Impact Development (LID) consists of design strategies using softscape and hardscape 
surfaces to retain or filter stormwater and urban runoff.  Key to the success of LID is to put in 
practice the use of small-scale, natural drainage features and to maximize infiltration and 
capture on site in lieu of conventional end-of-line treatment facilities. This approach also 
improves a property’s aesthetic appearance that achieves multiple goals and benefits.   
 
The intent of a LID is to curb the transport of pollutants to downstream receiving waters caused 
by impervious surfaces like roadways, parking lots and buildings. Urban areas have less green 
space that can capture water resulting in increased water runoff. The City needs to take an LID 
approach to managing runoff while mitigating the impacts of development and urbanization. 
LID is widely recognized as a sensible approach to managing the quantity and quality of 
rainwater and urban runoff by setting standards and practices to maintain or restore the 
natural hydrologic character of a development site, reduce off-site runoff, improve water 
quality, and provide groundwater recharge. 

LID can incorporate a wide variety of design elements including landscaping, permeable 
pavements, bioretention, infiltration and swales.  Although the design and appearance of LIDs 
will vary, the goals remain the same; provide source control of runoff, limit its transport and 
pollutant conveyance to the collection system, restore pre-development hydrology to the 
maximum extent practicable, and provide environmentally enhanced communities. The intent 
of a LID is to curb the transport of pollutants to downstream receiving waters caused by 
impervious surfaces like roadways, parking lots and buildings. Urban areas have less green 
space that can capture water resulting in increased water runoff. The City needs to take an LID 
approach to managing runoff while mitigating the impacts of development and urbanization. 
LID is widely recognized as a sensible approach to managing the quantity and quality of 
rainwater and urban runoff by setting standards and practices to maintain or restore the 
natural hydrologic character of a development site, reduce off-site runoff, improve water 
quality, and provide groundwater recharge.   
 
LID can incorporate a wide variety of design elements including landscaping, permeable 
pavements, bioretention, infiltration and swales.  Although the design and appearance of LIDs 
will vary, the goals remain the same; provide source control of runoff, limit its transport and 
pollutant conveyance to the collection system, restore pre-development hydrology to the 
maximum extent practicable, and provide environmentally enhanced communities.   
 



 

Page | 47  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

The new Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) permit requires that Cities update their 
Municipal Codes regarding development and redevelopment requirements. This information is 
currently titled Standard Urban Stormwater Mitigation Plan provisions. The new permit will title 
the provisions Low Impact Development (LID). The city of Cudahy is currently in the process of 
updating its LID requirements. The City of Cudahy adopted an LID Ordinance to comply with 
requirements of Clean Water Act and the MS4 Stormwater and Urban Runoff Permit (Order 
Number R4-2012-0175) effective December 28, 2012.    
 
Commercial and Residential land use represent a significant percentage of the impervious area 
within the City. Altered flow from development increases runoff from storm events, are 
damaging to the environment and increase the risk to property downstream. Over time, water 
runoff has become more regulated to minimize negative impacts on the environment caused by 
transferring runoff to storm drains, channels, and water bodies.  Stormwater runoff can contain 
pollutants such as trash, metals, nutrients, and bacteria and are regulated by governmental 
agencies.  LID will help to transform the design of properties 
 
The MS4 Permit requires implementation of LID strategies in the following “Planning Priority 
Projects:” 
 

1. All development projects equal to 1 acre or greater of disturbed area that adds more 
than 10,000 square feet of impervious surface area. 

2. Industrial parks 10,000 square feet or more of surface area. 

3. Commercial malls 10,000 square feet or more of surface area. 

4. Retail gasoline outlets with 5,000 square feet or more of surface area. 

5. Restaurants (Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) of 5812) with 5,000 square feet or 
more of surface area. 

6. Parking lots with 5,000 square feet or more of impervious surface area or with 25 or 
more parking spaces. 

7. Streets and road construction of 10,000 square feet or more of impervious surface area. 

8. Automotive service facilities (SIC of 5013, 5014, 5511, 5541, 7532-7534 and 7536-7539) 
with 5,000 square feet or more of surface area. 

9. Projects in, near or discharging to Environmentally Sensitive Areas. 

10. Single-family hillside homes. 

11. Redevelopment projects: 



 

Page | 48  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

 Land disturbing activity that results in the creation or addition or replacement of 
5,000 square feet or more of impervious surface area on an already developed site 
on Planning Priority Project categories.  
 

 Where Redevelopment results in an alteration to more than fifty percent of 
impervious surfaces of a previously existing development, and the existing 
development was not subject to post-construction stormwater quality control 
requirements, the entire project must be mitigated.  

 
 Where Redevelopment results in an alteration of less than fifty percent of 

impervious surfaces of a previously existing development, and the existing 
development was not subject to post-construction stormwater quality control 
requirements, only the alteration must be mitigated, and not the entire 
development. 

 
 Redevelopment does not include routine maintenance activities that are conducted 

to maintain original line and grade, hydraulic capacity, original purpose of facility or 
emergency redevelopment activity required to protect public health and safety. 
Impervious surface replacement, such as the reconstruction of parking lots and 
roadways which does not disturb additional area and maintains the original grade 
and alignment, is considered a routine maintenance activity. Redevelopment does 
not include the repaving of existing roads to maintain original line and grade. 

 
 Existing single-family dwelling and accessory structures are exempt from the 

Redevelopment requirements unless such projects create, add, or replace 10,000 
square feet of impervious surface area. 

 
12. Any other project as deemed appropriate by the Director. 

 

The City of Cudahy has officially adopted an Ordinance pertaining to Low Impact Development 
(LID) Strategies on Projects that require Building, Grading and Encroachment Permits. 

During the November 25, 2014 Special Cudahy City Council Meeting, Ordinance No. 640, an 
Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cudahy, California, adding Chapter 20.108 
pertaining to Low Impact Development (LID) Strategies on Projects that require Building, 
Grading and Encroachment Permits, to Title 20 (Zoning) of the City of Cudahy Municipal Code 
was introduced for Second Reading and passed unanimously. 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to provide an outline of Low Impact Development (LID) policies 
for the City of Cudahy consistent with the requirements of the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer 



 

Page | 49  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

System (MS4) Permit (Order No. R-2012-0175) that was adopted by the California Regional 
Water Quality Control Board, Los Angeles Region on November 8, 2012. Municipalities requires 
permittees electing to prepare a Watershed Management Program or an Enhanced Watershed 
Management Program under this Permit to demonstrate that there are LID ordinances in place 
meeting the requirements of the Order’s Planning and Land Development.  

 

Green Streets Policy  

Roads present many opportunities for green infrastructure application.  One principle of green 
infrastructure involves reducing and treating stormwater close to its source.  Urban 
transportation right-of-ways integrated with green techniques are often called “green streets.”  
Green streets provide source controls for stormwater runoff and pollutant loads.  In addition, 
green infrastructure approaches complement street facility upgrades, street aesthetic 
improvements, and urban tree canopy efforts that also make use of the right-of-way and allow 
it to achieve multiple goals and benefits. Using the right-of-way for treatment of stormwater 
runoff, links green with grey infrastructures by making use of the engineered conveyance of 
roads and providing connections to conveyance systems when needed.  
 
Green streets are beneficial for new road construction and retrofits. They can provide 
substantial economic benefits when used in transportation applications. Coordinating green 
infrastructure installation with broader transportation improvements can reduce the cost of 
stormwater management by including it within larger infrastructure improvements.  A large 
municipal concern regarding green infrastructure use is maintenance access; using roads and 
right-of-ways as locations for green infrastructure not only addresses a significant pollutant 
source, but also alleviates access and maintenance concerns by using public space.  Also, right-
of-way installations allow for easy public maintenance.   
 
Green streets can incorporate a wide variety of design elements including street trees, 
permeable pavements, bioretention, and swales.  Although the design and appearance of green 
streets will vary, the functional goals are the same; provide source control of stormwater, limit 
its transport and pollutant conveyance to the collection system, restore pre-development 
hydrology to the maximum extent practicable, and provide environmentally enhanced roads.  
Successful application of green techniques will encourage soil and vegetation contact and 
infiltration and retention of stormwater.  
 
The Green Streets Policy will help achieve the goals of the MS4 Permit (Order Number R4-2012-
0175) which requires that jurisdictions in Los Angeles County reduce contaminants in runoff to 
improve water quality in waterways. These requirements stem from the National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) requirements of the Clean Water Act (CWA). 
 
The MS4 Permit requires Green Streets strategies to be implemented for transportation 
corridors. Transportation corridors represent a significant percentage of the impervious area 



 

Page | 50  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

within Los Angeles and therefore generate a substantial amount of runoff from storm events.  
The altered flow regime from traditional roadways, increased runoff volume, and high runoff 
peak flows, are damaging to the environment and a risk to property downstream.   
 
Traditionally, street design has focused on removing water from the street as quickly as 
possible and transferring it to storm drains, channels, and water bodies.  Stormwater runoff can 
contain bacteria and other pollutants, and is thereby regulated at the state and local level. 
Green Streets will help to transform the design of streets from the conventional method of 
moving water off-site as quickly as possible to a method of storing and treating water on-site 
for a cleaner discharge into the waters of the U.S. 
 
Street and road construction applies to major arterials, state routes, highways, or rail lines used 
for the movement of people or goods by means of bus services, trucks, and vehicles, and 
transportation corridors within larger projects.  Projects which are required under the MS4 
permit (Order Number R4-2012-0175) to follow this Green Streets Guidance Manual include the 
following: 
 

1. Public Street and road construction of 10,000 square feet or more of impervious surface 
area within a transportation corridor. (Private Street and road construction activities are 
subject to separate development planning provisions of the MS4 permit). 
 

2. Street and road redevelopment resulting in the creation or addition or replacement of 
5,000 square feet or more of impervious surface area on an already developed site.  
Redevelopment does not include routine maintenance activities that are conducted to 
maintain original line and grade, hydraulic capacity, original purpose of facility or 
emergency redevelopment activity required to protect public health and safety.  
Impervious surface replacement, such as the reconstruction of parking lots and 
roadways which does not disturb additional area and maintains the original grade and 
alignment, is considered a routine maintenance activity. Redevelopment does not 
include the repaving of existing roads to maintain original line and grade.  
 

3. For projects not listed above, as determined by the Director of Community 
Development or City Engineer. 

 
The new Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) permit requires that Cities consider 
implementing green streets policies when a street project of 10,000 square feet of new 
pavement is built. This is just a Policy statement; if there are good reasons for not 
implementing Green Streets Best Management Practices (BMP) on a project, either private or 
public, it does not have to be done. 
 
Some examples of Green Streets Policy Best Management Practices (BMP) include: 
 

• Bioretention   



 

Page | 51  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

• Infiltration Trench/Dry Well 
• Rain Gardens 
• Permeable Pavement  
• Flow-through Planters 
• Vegetated Swales  
• Vegetated Buffer Strips  
• Treatment BMP’s 
• Street Trees  

 
 
On June 4, 2013, the City Council approved and accepted membership into Gateway 
Management Authority (GWMA) in order to comply with MS4 requirements. The GWMA is an 
Integrated Regional Water Management Group Joint Power Authority (IRWM JPA) established 
in 2007, and currently consisting of 24 members; on the same date Council approved a MOU 
between the GWMA, the LAR UR2 Subgroup Cities and LACFCD in order to comply with the new 
MS4 Permit (Order No. R4-2012-0175); on June 4, 2013, Council also adopted Resolution No. 
13-17 regarding Green Streets Policy adopting the City of Cudahy Green Streets Manual. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page | 52  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

7.0 General Plan Elements  
 
State law regulates the content of General Plans. Sections 65300-65403 of the California 
Government Code require that local jurisdictions prepare and adopt a general plan to guide the 
physical development of the City and its sphere of influence. There are seven mandatory 
elements that comprise the Cudahy General Plan: Land Use, Housing, Transportation, Open 
Space and Recreation, Conservation, Public Safety and Noise. Other elements may be adopted 
to address specific concerns in the community. In the case of the City of Cudahy, an optional Air 
Quality Element has been included in the General Plan.  
 
 
Land Use Element  
 
This Land Use Element is a state-mandated element and fulfills the requirements of Section 
65302(a) of the California Government Code. This Element provides a framework for a 
comprehensive strategy to guide the continued physical development and redevelopment of 
the City. Policies included in this Element promote orderly growth while minimizing the 
potential for land use conflicts. The Land Use Element will serve as a guide for public and 
private decision-making as it relates to existing and future land uses. Finally, this element 
promotes opportunities for growth and development in the area.  
 
The Land Use Element is the single most important element of the Cudahy General Plan since it 
regulates land uses and development throughout the City. The element's scope is far greater 
than that of the other elements though it is directly related to each. For example, the capacity 
of the existing roadway network (discussed in the Transportation Element), parks and 
recreation areas (discussed in the Open Space and Recreation Element), areas with earthquake 
and geologic hazards (discussed in the Public Safety Element), and land uses affected by major 
noise sources (discussed in the Noise Element) are also issues that the Land Use Element 
considers. 
 
Land Use Element; highlights of the progress made in the calendar year 2013: 
 

• Land Uses are regulated by The Cudahy Municipal Code and other entitlement process 
to ensure a harmonious use among all land uses.  
 

• The zoning Code stipulates the residential types permitted, conditionally permitted, 
development review permit, or prohibited in each zone allowing residential uses. 
Permitted Uses are those uses allowed without discretionary review, in designated 
areas, as long as the project complies with all development standards. Conditional Use 
Permits (CUP) are approved by the Planning Commission unless appealed. Findings to 
approve a CUP include: 1) The site for a proposed conditional use should be adequate in 
size and shape to accommodate the yards, walls and fences, parking and loading, 
landscaping and other development features prescribed in the chapter, or required by 



 

Page | 53  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

the commission, city council or other authorized agent in order to integrate the 
conditional use with the land and uses in the neighborhood. 2) The commission shall 
consider the nature, condition and development of adjacent uses, buildings and 
structures and the effect the proposed conditional use may have on such adjacent uses, 
buildings and structures. And 3) the site for a proposed conditional use should relate to 
streets and highways adequate in width and pavement to carry the kind of quantity of 
traffic such use would generate. 
 

• The time required to process a project varies greatly from one project to another and is 
directly related to the size and complexity of the proposal and the number of actions or 
approvals needed to complete the process. Table 5-5 identifies the typical processing 
time most common in the entitlement process. It should be noted that each project 
does not necessarily have to complete each step in the process (i.e., small scale projects 
consistent with General Plan and Zoning designations do not generally require 
Environmental Impact Reports (EIR), General Plan Amendments, Rezones, or Variances). 
Also, certain review and approval procedures may run concurrently. For example, a 
ministerial review for a single-family home would be processed concurrently with the 
design review, typically taking 3-6 months. Similarly, entitlements for multiple family 
residential projects can be run concurrently, and typically takes 3-6 months to process. 
The City also encourages the joint processing of related applications for a single project. 
As an example, a rezone petition may be reviewed in conjunction with the required site 
plan, tentative tract map, and any necessary variances. Such procedures save time, 
money, and effort for both the public and private sector.  

 
Table 5-5 Timeliness for Permit Procedures  
 
Type of Approval or Permit Typical Processing 

Time 
Ministerial Review  2 weeks 

Conditional Use Permit 3 months 
Zone Change 3 – 6 months 

General Plan Amendment  3-6 months 
Site Plan Review 2 weeks 

Architectural/Design 
Review 

3 months 

Tract Maps 3 months 
Parcel Maps 3 months 

Initial Environmental Study 1 month 
Environmental Impact 

Report 
3-6 months 

Other  
Source: City of Cudahy Building & Planning Departments 

 
 
 
 
 



 

Page | 54  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

Housing Element  
 
The Housing Element of the Cudahy General Plan addresses the housing needs of the City. The 
primary focus of the Housing Element is to encourage the provision of suitable housing for City 
residents and to protect the vitality of existing residential neighborhoods. The goals and policies 
of the Cudahy Housing Element address two main issues: the promotion of new housing 
development and the maintenance and improvement of existing housing units. Through its 
housing program, the City will improve the quality of existing housing and encourage the 
production of new housing types to meet residents' needs.  
 
In order to identify the housing needs of the City, a Housing Element Profile Report has been 
developed. The Profile Report discusses the housing needs of Cudahy through the 
characteristics of the population, households, and housing in the City, population and 
employment growth trends, and an analysis of groups which may have special housing needs. 
The Profile Report also discusses the City's housing stock, land available for residential 
development, and facilities that support existing residential communities. By matching its 
resources with housing needs, the City will be able to identify households or groups which do 
not have adequate housing. The affordability of the housing stock in relation to household 
income, the capacity of the City to accommodate future residents, and other housing concerns 
are also recognized. The discussion of governmental, economic and physical constraints to the 
development of housing and opportunities for energy conservation further expand on the 
factors that affect housing costs and production. 
 
The goals and policies of the Housing Element have been developed to address the needs 
identified in the Profile Report. The City recognizes that it is responsible for the accommodation 
of future household growth in the region and the development of affordable housing. It also 
knows that there are many problems in Cudahy that have to be addressed. As such, 
substandard housing units need to be rehabilitated and improved along with the development 
of new housing. The City is continuously seeking to meet the housing needs of its residents and 
to accommodate its share of regional housing. This will accomplish both state and local housing 
goals. 
 
Housing Element; highlights of the progress made in the calendar year 2014: 
 

• As of January 7 2014, during the regularly scheduled City Council meeting the Housing 
Element was adopted by Council.   
 

• Ordinance No. 634 described below was a required amendment by the California 
Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) which will lead to full 
certification of the City of Cudahy Housing Element: 
 



 

Page | 55  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

o On March 17, 2014, Planning Commission approved Resolution 14-04, 
recommending that the City Council approve Zone Ordinance Amendment No. 
14-01.  
 

o On November 4, 2014, City Council held a first reading of Ordinance No. 634.  
 

o A public hearing was held before the City Council of the City of Cudahy on 
November 18, 2014 to consider the zone text amendment. All evidence, both 
written and oral, presented during November 4, 2014 first reading, and public 
hearing was considered by the City Council in making its determination. City 
Council approved the proposed option "A" of Zoning Ordinance No. 634, 
amending Cudahy Municipal Code Section 20 (Zoning), to add new definitions to 
subsection 20.08.010 adding “Emergency Shelters,” “Target Population” and 
“Transitional and Supportive Housing,” modify CMC subsection 20.64.040 to add 
“Transitional and Supportive Housing,” and modify CMC subsection 20.68.080 to 
add “Emergency Shelters” per Planning Commission recommendation. 

 
 
Transportation Element  
 
The transportation system in Cudahy consists of a roadway network dominated by Atlantic 
Avenue, collector streets, and local streets. The Long Beach Freeway (State Route-710) is 
located just east of Cudahy. Also, the City's central location in Los Angeles County provides 
Cudahy with easy access to most parts of the Southern California region. Local circulation 
within the City generally follows a grid pattern, except for Atlantic Avenue which extends in a 
north-south orientation at a slight angle and Salt Lake Avenue which follows the curve of the 
railroad tracks. Atlantic Avenue is a regional highway that extends north to Alhambra and south 
to Long Beach. Traffic volumes on most City streets are currently approaching or are at 
capacity. 
 
Public transit is available through the Metropolitan Transit Authority (MTA) and the Cudahy 
Area Rapid Transit (CART). The Union Pacific Electric Railroad right-of-way extends along the 
western edge of the City and the Southern Pacific Railroad right-of-way extends along the 
southern edge of the City. Neither railroad line provides freight service into the City. 
 
This Transportation Element of the Cudahy General Plan evaluates the existing roadway 
circulation system and identifies measures to accommodate existing and future traffic volumes. 
Other issues addressed in the Element address include public transit parking, and alternative 
forms of transportation. The Transportation Element complies with California Government Code 
Section 65302(b), which requires that the Transportation Element identify the general location 
and extent of existing and proposed major thoroughfares, transportation routes and other 
public utilities and facilities. The Element looks at existing transportation issues in the City 
through the Transportation Background Report. The goals, policies, plan and programs of the 



 

Page | 56  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

Transportation Element then respond to identified traffic concerns, as well as projected traffic 
conditions. The Transportation Plan identifies strategies that will address future traffic. 
 
Transportation Element; highlights of the progress made in the calendar year 2014: 
 

• The City of Cudahy was awarded $1,271,000 through the ATP (Active Transportation 
Program) Cycle 1. ATP Grant Project consists of Citywide Safe Routes to Schools (SRTS) 
Improvements (pedestrian crosswalks and other traffic safety improvements). The City 
officially adopted the City’s Safe to Schools Master Plan. 
 
The Engineering Department has completed the preparation of Environmental 
Documents for this project and has submitted Request for Funding Allocation (RFA) 
documents. After RFA documents are ready they will be submitted to Caltrans for 
approval to proceed with the design phase. After design phase is completed the project 
will go under construction.  
 

• Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) Cycle 6 is a program through California 
Department of Transportation (Caltrans). The scope of work of this project includes the 
installation of designated left turn phasing at existing traffic lights along Atlantic Avenue 
as well as the replacement of existing pedestrian heads and new pedestrian countdown 
signal heads at street intersections along Atlantic Avenue.   
 
The City has finalized the completion of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) 
requirements and has completed Request for Funding Allocation (RFA) Documents as 
well. In December of 2014 the Engineering Department submitted Request for Funding 
Allocation (RFA) documents to Caltrans and is waiting for Caltrans approval to proceed 
with the Design Phase. After design phase is completed the project will go under 
construction. 

 
 
Open Space and Recreation Element  
 
Open space refers to land that is unimproved and set aside for the preservation of natural 
resources or for outdoor recreation. Open space lands often include wildlife habitat, rivers, 
groundwater recharge areas, and areas containing mineral deposits. Trails, parks, outdoor 
recreation areas, utility easements, scenic highway corridors, and areas requiring regulation of 
hazardous conditions such as earthquake fault zones, unstable soils, flood plains, and 
watersheds are also often set-aside as open space. Recreation areas include public parks, golf 
courses, bicycle and hiking trails, community centers, game fields, gymnasiums, and other 
sports facilities. 
 
There are limited areas of open space in Cudahy. Public open space areas in the City include 
parks, public easements, and the Los Angeles River channel. Private open space areas consist of 



 

Page | 57  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

yards and privately-owned recreational open space in residential developments. The City parks 
are the main recreation areas in Cudahy. They provide residents with opportunities for 
recreation and other outdoor activities. Cudahy's population density has led to the full 
utilization of the available recreational facilities. The lack of vacant land has further constrained 
the development of additional facilities. 
 
This Open Space and Recreation Element fulfills the requirements of Section 65560 to 65570 of 
the California Government Code regarding the preparation of an open space plan for the City.33 
Open space and recreation issues are brought together because areas preserved as open space 
are valuable resources for both outdoor recreation and scenic enjoyment. The preservation and 
management of natural resources, historic resources and cultural resources are addressed in 
the Conservation Element. The Open Space and Recreation Element of the Cudahy General Plan 
establish a long-range program for the preservation of public parks in the City and the provision 
of facilities that will serve the needs of residents. The Element includes an inventory of both 
public and private open space and a plan for the continued protection of these areas. 
 
Open Space and Recreation Element; highlights of the progress made in the calendar year 2014: 
 

• The City of Cudahy provides its residents and surrounding neighbors with a variety of 
recreational programs. Cudahy residents get priority registration and lower fees than a 
non-Cudahy-resident. The recreational programs and classes include: 
  

o An eight week Boxing Course: 
 2 nightly sessions & 
 1 morning session. 

 
o The City of Cudahy sports department consists of various sports throughout the 

year for boys and girls ages 4-16. Participants register individually and are placed 
on teams organized by the Cudahy Parks & Recreation staff. All teams are 
coached by volunteer coaches. Team sports include: 
 Youth Baseball, Softball and T-ball; 
 Youth Basketball; &  
 Youth Soccer. 

 
o Cheerleading classes are held every Wednesday for a total of 12 classes. 

 
o Other recreational classes include:  

 Craft for kids;  
 Cake decorating; 
 Chocolate molding  
 Beginner Salsa dace class 
 Jewelry Making 

 



 

Page | 58  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

• Table 7-1 below shows a summary of the classes held by park/facility: 
 

City Park  Recreational Program / Class 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Lugo Park 

 
Boxing Class (Fitness Center) 

 
Crafts for Kids (Teen Center) 

 
Beginner Salsa Dance (Teen Center) 

 
Jewelry Making (Teen Center) 

 
Soccer  

 
Softball 

 
T-Ball 

 
 
 
 

Clara Park 

 
Cake Decoration (Turner Hall) 

 
Chocolate Molding (Turner Hall) 

 
Youth Basketball (Clara Gym) 

 
Volleyball (Clara Gym) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Cudahy Park 

 
Cheerleading (Bedwell Hall) 

 
Baseball 

 
T-ball 

 
Softball 

 
Soccer 

Source: City of Cudahy Parks & Recreation  

 
 
Conservation Element  
 
Natural resources that affect the City include water, energy and land. (Air quality is addressed 
in a separate element.) Cultural resources refer to potential historical sites and structures in the 
City. The Conservation Element of the Cudahy General Plan deals with the management of 
natural and cultural resources in the planning area. The Element identifies the significant 
resources within the City and establishes a plan for the conservation, management, or 
preservation of these resources. 
 
The City's conservation plan will consist of independent programs for the protection of 
groundwater resources, the reduction in demand for energy resources, the recycling of 
products to conserve regional resources, and the preservation of local cultural resources. The 
Conservation Element is a state-mandated element, as required by regulations in Section 
65302(d) of the California Government Code and the State Mining and Reclamation Act 
(SMARA).  
 
Conservation Element; highlights of the progress made in the calendar year 2014: 
 



 

Page | 59  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

• California's Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) brings 
together the state's recycling and waste management programs and continues a 
tradition of environmental stewardship. 
 
Through landmark initiatives like the Integrated Waste Management Act and Beverage 
Container Recycling and Litter Reduction Act, California works toward a society that uses 
less, recycles more, and takes resource conservation to higher and higher levels. Our 
state now leads the nation with a 65 percent recycling rate for all materials, and today 
recycling supports more than 140,000 green jobs in California. 
 
CalRecycle's vision is to inspire and challenge Californians to achieve the highest waste 
reduction, recycling and reuse goals in the nation. Through innovation and creativity, 
sound advancements in science and technology, and efficient programs that improve 
economic vitality and environmental sustainability.  

 
The City of Cudahy’s involvement with CalRecycle: 
 

• City/County Payment Program: This grant was awarded in 2013 to the City of Cudahy to 
implement an educational program geared towards providing education tools to 
business and property owners affected by AB341. The purpose of this educational tool is 
to better inform property/business owners of simple and efficient ways to establish a 
proper recycling program on their properties. 
 

• Sharps Program: This program was established to provide local jurisdictions with 
materials/equipment needed to establish an accessible sharps collection site for its local 
constituents. The City was awarded two (2) sharps kiosks which have been located at 
Turner Hall (4825 Clara Street) and Lugo Park Fitness Center (7810 Otis Avenue). 
Additionally, the City was awarded a large of small sharps containers to be distributed to 
residents upon request for proper disposal of sharps waste.  

 
 
Public Safety Element  
 
The Public Safety Element of the Cudahy General Plan presents a citywide approach for 
preventing the creation of hazards in the planning area and for minimizing the potential for 
injury, damage and disruption brought by natural events. The Element establishes safety 
standards and programs designed to protect life and property. Public safety standards include 
guidelines for activities involving risk to the public, as well as measures to follow when 
development occurs in areas susceptible to natural or manmade risks. 
 
As a state-mandated element, the Public Safety Element of the Cudahy General Plan fulfills the 
requirements of Section 65302(g) of the California Government Code. It sets goals and policies 
which address public safety issues in the City.56 The Element also serves as a public safety plan, 



 

Page | 60  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

identifies standards and programs to promote public safety, and outlines adequate facilities 
and services to serve the emergency needs of the City. The Public Safety Element maps the 
location of known hazard areas and available evacuation routes, indicates peak water supply 
requirements, minimum road widths, clearances around structures, and provides safety and 
emergency procedures.  
 
Public Safety Element; highlights of the progress made in the calendar year 2014: 
 
 

• The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) requires all counties, cities, and 
tribes in the United States to complete a Local Hazards Mitigation Plan. These Plans are 
to identify the hazards that have occurred or may occur in the study area, and provide 
mitigation strategies, or action items, designed to save lives and reduce the destruction 
of property. The City of Cudahy has addressed this requirement by completing a Local 
Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan (the Mitigation Plan or “the Plan”) that describes and 
analyzes several issues of concern to the City, including earthquakes, floods, and severe 
weather. Furthermore, the Plan provides resources and information, in addition to 
action items and programs, that are meant to assist Cudahy in reducing risk and 
preventing loss from future natural hazard events. Per Federal requirements, this Plan is 
to be reviewed and updated every five years. 

 
• The mission of the Cudahy Local Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan is to promote sound 

public policy designed to protect citizens, critical facilities, infrastructure, private 
property, and the environment from natural hazards. This can be achieved by increasing 
public awareness, documenting resources available for risk reduction and loss 
prevention, and identifying activities to guide the City towards building a safer, more 
sustainable community. The goals of the Mitigation Plan describe the overall direction 
that the City of Cudahy, through its departments, agencies, organizations, and citizens, 
can take toward reducing its risk to natural hazards. The goals of the Plan are stepping-
stones between the broad direction of the mission statement and the specific 
recommendations outlined in the action items. The main goals of Cudahy’s Mitigation 
Plan are:  
 

o Protect Life and Property; 
o Public Awareness; 
o Partnerships and Implementation; &  
o Emergency Services.  

 
 
Noise Element  
 
Excessive noise levels disturb and disrupt human activities and can affect the physical and 
psychological health of individuals. They depreciate the quality of the environment by affecting 
work, sleep, and recreation. The Noise Element of the Cudahy General Plan provides measures 



 

Page | 61  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

to minimize noise problems in the City. With the majority of the City devoted to residential 
uses, it is important that noise sources are controlled at the source, are located away from 
residential communities, or buffers are provided between the sources of noise and the 
residential development. The noise mitigation program in the Noise Element explores various 
noise control options and land use compatibility standard. 
 
As mandated by the California Government Code Section 65302(f), the Noise Element follows 
the guidelines established by the Office of Noise Control of the State Department of Health 
Services. Goals, policies, and guidelines for minimizing increases in ambient noise levels are 
outlined in the section that follows. 
 
Noise Element; highlights of the progress made in the calendar year 2014: 
 

• The City of Cudahy requires mitigation measures during entitlements and approvals 
subject to CEQA.  

 
• Cudahy “CMC” Article 23: Environmental Performance Standards, ensure that residential 

neighborhoods and the business community in Cudahy will be free from environmental 
hazards such as of noise, vibration, dust, glare, and other negative influences. 
 

• Noise standards for the various categories of land uses set forth in Table 23-1 shall, 
unless otherwise specified, apply to each property or portion of property in the 
community.  Where two or more dissimilar land uses occur on a single property, the 
more restrictive noise standard shall apply; 
 

o Maximum permissible exterior sound levels by receiving land uses are: 
 

Table 23-1 
Maximum Exterior Noise Levels  

Noise Level (dBA) 

Receiving Land Use Category 10 pm - 7 am 7 am to 10 pm 

Residential (except multi-family) 45 65 

Multi-Family Residential and Mobile Home Parks 50 65 

Commercial (all “C” zones) 60 65 

Light Industrial Zones  70 70 

Heavy Industrial Zones 70 70 
 

o Maximum permissible interior noise levels. 
 
 



 

Page | 62  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

Table 23-2 
Maximum Interior Noise Levels 

 
Land Use Type 

 
Time Interval 

Maximum Noise Level (dBA) 

Any time 1 min./1 hr. 5 min./1 hr. 

 
Residential 

10 p.m. to 7 a.m. 35 40 35 

7 a.m. to 10 p.m. 45 50 45 
 
 
 
Air Quality Element  
 
The City of Cudahy Air Quality Element is an optional element in that it is not specifically 
mandated by the State of California for inclusion into the Cudahy General Plan. However, once 
adopted, the element has the same status as the other seven mandatory elements. The Air 
Quality Element underscores the City’s continued commitment to improving air quality. The 
City was one of the first in the State to adopt an air quality element in the early 1990s. The 
current Element focuses on local initiatives that will be effective in improving air quality locally 
as well as for the surrounding region and identifies air quality standards that new development 
must meet. 
 
Air quality is impacted by land use, local circulation systems, and transportation services. 
Policies and programs included in the required elements mirror sustainable development 
concepts that are effective both in reducing dependence on the private automobile and 
reducing vehicle miles traveled and hence air pollution. The Land Use and Housing Elements 
encourage transit-oriented development while the Circulation Element provides for the 
maintenance of a comprehensive transit framework that will be effective in reducing air quality 
emissions from local private vehicles. 
 
Cudahy is located in the South Coast Air Basin (SCAB), a 6,600 square-mile area that includes 
Orange County and the non-desert urbanized portions of Los Angeles, Riverside, and San 
Bernardino counties. Air pollution in Cudahy is affected by local and regional impacts. An 
understanding of airborne pollutants, the sources of the emissions, and the corresponding 
health effects is critical in the development of policies and programs to remedy poor air quality. 
Airborne pollution is typically categorized according to the source, namely mobile emissions or 
stationary emissions. 
 
Mobile emissions refer to those pollutants that are generated from moving sources such as 
cars, trucks, trains, aircraft and ships. Among the most prevalent mobile emissions are vehicle 
emissions although the other mobile sources such as ships in the port may lead to severe 
localized air quality problems. Stationary emissions are generated from non-moving sources 
and may include emissions from power plants, factories, or other industrial processes. The 



 

Page | 63  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

focus of the Federal, State, and regional efforts is on air pollutants that present the greatest 
potential for health problems. 
 
 
Air Quality Element; highlights of the progress made in the calendar year 2014: 
 

• The City of Cudahy requires mitigation measures during entitlements and approvals 
subject to CEQA.  
 

• The City of Cudahy continues to be subject to regulations from various agencies. The 
primary agencies include the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), the 
California Air Resources Board (CARB), and the South Coast Air Quality Management 
District (SCAQMD).  
 

• The City of Cudahy uses SCAQMD-recommended thresholds in its local review of 
development projects over which the City has jurisdiction. A development that results in 
either construction-related emissions or operational emissions that exceed specified 
daily emissions thresholds are considered to have a significant and adverse 
environmental impact. The applicable emissions thresholds for both construction-
related and operational emissions are summarized in Table 8-3. 
 

Table 8-3 Construction-Related and Operational Emissions 
Thresholds for Cudahy 

Pollutant  
Construction 
Emissions 
Thresholds  

Operational 
Emissions 
Thresholds  

Reactive Organic 
Compounds   

•75 lbs/day •2.5 
tons/qtr  

•55 lbs/day •0.0275 
tons/day  

Nitrogen Dioxide 
(NO2)  

•100 lbs/day •2.5 
tons/qtr  

•55 lbs/day •0.0275 
tons/day  

Carbon 
Monoxide (CO)  

•550 lbs/day 
•24.75 tons/qtr  

•550 lbs/day •0.275 
tons/day •20.0 
ppm/1 hr.1. •9.0 
ppm/8 hrs1.  

Fine Particulate 
Matter (PM10)  

•150 lbs/day •6.75 
tons/qtr  

•150 lbs/day •0.075 
tons/day  

Sulfur Dioxide 
(S02)  

•150 lbs/day •6.75 
tons/qtr  

•150 lbs/day •0.075 
tons/day of SOX.  

Odors  
•A dilution to 
threshold factor 
greater than 102.  

•A dilution to 
threshold factor 
greater than 10 2.  

Source:  South Coast Air Quality Management District. 2004  

 
 



 

Page | 64  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

8.0 Goals, Priorities and Objectives 
  
The City of Cudahy aims to implement the priorities and objectives outlined in the General Plan 
throughout various activities and functions of local government. Many of the goals outlined for 
the future of the City are to be reviewed annually to direct the staff work effort for the 
upcoming calendar year. In this way, the implementation of the General Plan is an ongoing 
endeavor.  
 
Some of the primary goals brought by the recently adopted Housing Element to implement 
over the course of the next few years will include the following:  
 

• Housing Information Program   
• Second Unit Ordinance  
• Development Monitoring Program  
• Manufactured Housing  
• Housing Conversion Program  
• Tenant Minor Home Repair Program  
• Code Enforcement  
• Equal Access  
• Reasonable Accommodation Program  
• Public Participation Program  
• Food Distribution Program 
• Homeless Assistance Program  
• Bilingual Programs 
• Handicapped Access  
• Senior Shared Housing Program  
• Persons with Disabilities, including Developmental Disabilities Program 
• Preservation of At-Risk Units Program  
• Consistency with General Plan Program   

 
 
For a complete implementation update of the Cudahy General Plan, please reference the 2014 
General Plan Implementation Status Update Table which is attached as Appendix C. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page | 65  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

9.0 Conclusion  
 
The General Plan Annual Progress Report illustrates activities undertaken by the City of Cudahy 
in 2014 that worked towards implementing the City’s General Plan. The City has worked to 
progressively implement the policies outlined in each element of the City’s guiding planning 
document as outlined in the various sections of this Progress Report. The General Plan 
represents the community's collective vision for preserving and improving the quality of life in 
the City of Cudahy. Only minor revisions aside from the Housing Element Update have been 
implemented over the past several years since the General Plan Update was adopted on 
October 5th 2010. As noted in this document over the course of 2014, the City has implemented 
many of the collective goals and policies identified in the General Plan. The ideas, proposals and 
suggestions that have come to the City have all furthered the City's goal to preserve and 
improve the quality of life for the community. The City will continue its efforts in this regard. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page | 66  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

10.0 References   
 
 

1. City of Cudahy. Building & Safety Records. 2014. 
 

2. City of Cudahy. Capital Improvement Program (CIP) (Draft).  
 

3. City of Cudahy. Code Enforcement Records. 2014. 
 

4. City of Cudahy. Community Development Records. 2014.  
 

5. City of Cudahy. Cudahy Municipal Code.  
 
6. City of Cudahy. General Plan. Approved October 10, 2010.  

 
7. City of Cudahy. Green Streets Manual. June 4, 2013. 

 
8. City of Cudahy. Housing Element Update 5th Cycle. Adopted January 7, 2014.  

 
9. City of Cudahy. Low Impact Development (LID) Guidelines (Draft).  

 
10. City of Cudahy. Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan (Draft).  

 
11. City of Cudahy. Residential Rehabilitation Program Records. 2014. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page | 67  
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



page 1 of 9

-

Note below the number of units 
determined to be affordable without 
financial or deed restrictions and 
attach an explanation how the 
jurisdiction determined the units were 
affordable.   Refer to instructions.

Project Identifier
(may be APN No.,
 project name or 

address)

Unit 
Category

 

0

Assistance 
Programs 
for Each 

Development

Tenure

R=Renter
O=Owner

Affordability by Household Incomes

Very Low-
Income

Housing with Financial Assistance 
and/or 

Deed Restrictions

6 7 8

Housing without 
Financial Assistance
or Deed Restrictions

ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Housing Element Implementation

(CCR Title 25 §6202 )

Jurisdiction City of Cudahy, CA

Reporting Period 1/1/2014

1 2

Housing Development Information

5 5a3 4

12/31/2014

Table A

Low-
Income

Moderate-
Income See 

Instructions

Above
Moderate-

Income

Total Units
per 

Project

Deed 
Restricted

UnitsEst. # Infill 
Units*

 

See Instructions

 

 

 

 

* Note: These fields are voluntary

  (10)  Total by income Table A/A3     ►     ►      

   (9) Total  of Moderate and Above Moderate from Table A3     ►                         0 0

   

 

 

 

Annual Building Activity Report Summary - New Construction 
Very Low-, Low-, and Mixed-Income Multifamily Projects

 

 (11) Total Extremely Low-Income Units*

clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment B



Attachment 1
page 2 of 9

-

ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Housing Element Implementation

(CCR Title 25 §6202 )

Jurisdiction City of Cudahy, CA

Reporting Period 1/1/2014 12/31/2014

2 2

Table A3

Extremely 
Low-

Income*

Very Low-
Income

(2) Preservation of Units At-Risk

Activity Type (4) The Description should adequately document how each unit complies with                     
subsection (c )(7) of Government Code Section 65583.1

2

0

Interior paint; GFCI; Smoke/Carbon Detectors; Termite Inspection & Replacement; Windows; 
Exterior Paint; Foundation Vents

1.                         
Single Family

4.                                 
Second Unit

(3) Acquisition of Units

Affordability by Household Incomes

2.                   
2 - 4 Units

0

6.                          
Total

5.                              
Mobile Homes

0

0

3.                    
5+ Units

Annual building Activity Report Summary for Above Moderate-Income Units
(not including those units reported on Table A)

* Note: This field is voluntary

No. of Units Permitted for 
Above Moderate

Low-
Income

TOTAL 
UNITS

(1) Rehabilitation Activity 2

7.                  
Number of 
infill units*

Please note:  Units may only be credited to  the table below when a jurisdiction has included a program it its housing element to rehabilitate, preserve or acquire 
units to accommodate a portion of its RHNA whichmeet the specific criteria as outlined in GC Section 65583.1(c)(1) 

No. of Units Permitted for 
Moderate

* Note: This field is voluntary

(5) Total Units by Income 0

Table A2
Annual Building Activity Report Summary - Units Rehabilitated, Preserved and Acquired pursuant                                                                                        

to GC Section 65583.1(c)(1)

0



Attachment 1
page 3 of 9

-

ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Housing Element Implementation

(CCR Title 25 §6202 )

Jurisdiction City of Cudahy, CA

Reporting Period 1/1/2014 12/31/2014

Total 
Remaining 

RHNA
by Income Level

94

60

Deed 
Restricted 67

 

 

Enter Calendar Year starting with the first year of 
the RHNA allocation period.  See Example.

 

 

 

 

Income Level Year
9

Total Units 
to Date 

(all years)

Low

Deed 
Restricted

Very Low

Deed 
Restricted
Non-deed 
restricted

330
71

71

Remaining Need for RHNA Period    ►     ►     ►     ►     ►     

2

Year
8

Year
7

Year
4

Year
1

Year
5

1

1

2

2

26

Non-deed 
restricted

109

Moderate

14

Permitted Units Issued by Affordability

Table B

Regional Housing Needs Allocation Progress

67

180

94

0

 

Year
2

0

 

2

401
13

Above Moderate

60

13

Year
6

RHNA 
Allocation  by 
Income Level

Year
3

13

Total Units     ►     ►     ►
13

Total RHNA by COG.
Enter allocation number: 26

Note: units serving extremly low-income households are included in the very low-income permitted units totals.

14

Non-deed 
restricted



Attachment 1
page 4 of 9

-

ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Housing Element Implementation

(CCR Title 25 §6202 )

Jurisdiction City of Cudahy, CA

Reporting Period 1/1/2014 12/31/2014

Housing Programs Progress Report  -  Government Code Section 65583.
Describe progress of all programs including local efforts to remove governmental constraints to the maintenance, 

improvement, and development of housing as identified in the housing element.

Objective

The City will require all new 
development to undergo an 
assessment to ensure that 
adequate infrastructure is 
available to serve the 
development.
The City allows manufactured 
homes and modular units on 
single-family lots.  This permits 
the use of manufactured homes 
as affordable housing 
alternatives. 
The City shall provide developers 
with incentives and shorten the 
permit process for low-income 
and senior citizen housing 
projects.  By expediting the review 
process, developers also save 
money and housing costs can be 
reduced. 

Ongoing 
(monitored 
annually) 

Ongoing 
(monitored 
annually) 

The Planning Department will monitor the construction of second 
units annually (coinciding with the fiscal year). 

To encourage the development of 
high quality housing on vacant 
and underutilized lots

The City of Cudahy allows second 
units on single-family lots, as 
required by State law.  This has 
led to second units on most lots in 
the Low Density Residential (LDR) 
Zone and has added to the 
current housing stock. 

Affordable Housing Incentives

The City shall compile information on available financing 
mechanisms and federal, state and local programs and agencies 
that provide funding assistance for housing projects shall be made 
available to developers. 

Pending The City shall develop a system for assessing the potential impacts 
from new development.

Manufactured Housing This is an ongoing program, managed and monitored annually 
(coinciding with the fiscal year) by the Planning Department.

Pending 

Status of Program Implementation

Pending 

The City shall establish a promotional campaign to area 
developers. The campaign shall promote the City of Cudahy and 
existing investment opportunities. The City shall work with local 
business groups on promoting available incentives to new 
development.  

Timeframe
in H.E.

Program Implementation Status

Table C

Housing Information Program 

Second Unit Ordinance 

Development Monitoring Program

Program Description
(By Housing Element Program Names)

Name of Program



Attachment 1
page 5 of 9

-

ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Housing Element Implementation

(CCR Title 25 §6202 )

Jurisdiction City of Cudahy, CA

Reporting Period 1/1/2014 12/31/2014

CDBG Information Program 

Housing Conversion Program 

The City of Cudahy has an 
ongoing program for the 
maintenance and conservation of 
the existing housing stock. 

Pending The City shall refer person in need to these facilities. Development Standards to Allow Uses 

SRO Hotels

To be 
completed by 

2018
Housing Maintenance and Conversion 

Tenant Minor Home Repair Program 

Pending Inclusionary Housing Program

Pending 
The City shall prepare a brochure outlining available housing 
assistance and rehabilitation programs in the City. It shall distribute 
these to property owners and make them available at City Hall. 

The City shall continue housing 
programs on housing 
development, infrastructure, 
rehabilitation and job 
development, as allowed by the 
CDBG program.  

The City shall take the lead in 
coordinating efforts for the 
preservation of subsidized 
housing projects in Cudahy.  

Rehabilitation and property maintenance programs ensure that 
living conditions are safe and decent for all households.  

Ongoing 
(monitored 
annually) 

The City shall modify its Municipal 
Code to allow the development, 
maintenance, and improvement of 
Emergency Shelters, SRO’s, 
Transitional Housing, and 
Supportive Housing to address 
constraints throughout the City.  

The City shall initiate talks with the Los Angeles County Housing 
Authority, the Department of Housing and Urban Development, the 
California Housing Partnership Corporation, local non-profit 
agencies. On the issue of market rate conversion 

This may be promoted by density bonuses and other incentives, 
coupled with a use restriction on the affordable units.  The City may 
also require developers to provide a minimum percentage of 
affordable housing, pay fees, or dedicate land. 

These funds shall be used to offer technical assistance and loans 
under the Tenant Minor Home Repair program, as well as to 
implement housing rehabilitation programs which provide low 
interest loans, grants, and technical assistance to property owners. 

The City does not allow SRO hotels to be used as permanent 
housing but will encourage their use as emergency and transitional 
shelter for the homeless. The City regularly checks hotel records to 
ensure that this regulation is followed.  

Pending 

The City shall explore the 
feasibility of requiring affordable 
housing units within new housing 
developments. 

The City shall preserve single-
room occupancy (SRO) hotels 
and strictly enforce ordinances 
regarding property maintenance 
and fire and safety standards to 
safeguard the public health, 
safety and welfare of tenants. 

The City shall continue to apply 
for Community Development 
Block Grants for housing 
rehabilitation programs in the City. 

Ongoing 
(monitored 
annually) 



Attachment 1
page 6 of 9

-

ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Housing Element Implementation

(CCR Title 25 §6202 )

Jurisdiction City of Cudahy, CA

Reporting Period 1/1/2014 12/31/2014

Code Enforcement 

The City shall continue code 
enforcement of nuisances such 
as inoperable vehicles, property 
maintenance, substandard units, 
and illegal garage conversions. 

Ongoing 
(monitored 
annually) 

The City shall identify substandard dwelling units and encourage 
rehabilitation through the provision of technical support and 
incentives.

Transitional and Supportive Housing 

COMPLETE
DEmergency Shelters

The city will amend the Zoning 
Ordinance so emergency shelters 
shall be a permitted use without a 
conditional use permit or other 
discretionary action in the High 
Density Residential zone. 

The City will continue to monitor 
the inventory of sites appropriate 
to accommodate transitional 
housing and supportive housing 
and will work with the appropriate 
organizations to ensure the needs 
of homeless and extremely low-
income residents are met. 

Emergency shelters shall be subject to the same development and 
management standards as other permitted uses in the High Density 
Residential Zone; with exceptions the City may develop as 
prescribed in SB2.

In compliance with Senate Bill 2, the City will amended the Zoning 
Code to allow transitional and supportive housing in all residential 
zones, subject only to those regulations that apply to other 
residential uses of the same type in the same zone. 

COMPLETED



Attachment 1
page 7 of 9

-

ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Housing Element Implementation

(CCR Title 25 §6202 )

Jurisdiction City of Cudahy, CA

Reporting Period 1/1/2014 12/31/2014

Food Distribution Program
The City shall continue the hot 
meals and food distribution 
programs

Ongoing 
(monitored 
annually) 

The City shall assist public and non-profit agencies which provide 
support services to special needs populations (the homeless, the 
elderly, single-parent households, etc.).  

Homeless Assistance Program 

The City shall continue to provide 
funds for the Human Services 
Association to serve the 
homeless and other special needs 
groups in the community. 

Ongoing 
(monitored 
annually) 

The City shall also maintain a list of local social services to use as 
referral sources for residents in need. 

Reasonable Accommodation Program

The City shall develop a policy 
pursuant to the Fair Housing 
Amendments Act of 1988, to 
provide people with disabilities 
reasonable accommodation in 
rules, policies, practices and 
procedures that may be 
necessary to ensure equal access 
to housing.  

Pending 

The purpose of these provisions is to provide a process for making 
requests for reasonable accommodation to land use and zoning 
decisions and procedures regulating the citing, funding, 
development and use of housing for people with disabilities. 

Public Participation Program The City encourages community 
participation in all city programs.

Ongoing 
(monitored 
annually) 

Fair Housing Program 

The City promotes the use of the 
Fair Housing Council of Long 
Beach through the City newsletter 
and local papers, and informs all 
city employees of the available 
services for referral.  

Pending 

The City shall prepare a list of referral agencies to serve low-
income households, handicapped, elderly, homeless, and other 
special needs groups. The City shall make the list available at City 
Hall, the library and City parks for interested persons. 

Housing Cooperating Program 

The City shall work with Los 
Angeles County to identify and 
coordinate water and sewer 
infrastructure on the provision of 
adequate infrastructure and public 
services in Cudahy, including 
monitoring for grant funding 
sources, to meet the City’s RHNA.  

Pending 

The City shall coordinate County and City capital improvement 
projects (CIP).  This includes setting priorities for infrastructure and 
public service projects through the City's capital improvement 
program.  

Equal Access

The City intends to minimize 
difficulties of special needs 
households in finding adequate 
housing by providing programs to 
prevent discrimination or to 
encourage the production of 
housing specifically designed for 
these households.  

Ongoing 
(monitored 
annually) 

The City shall refer discrimination complaints to the Fair Housing 
Network and ensure complaints are resolved. The City will 
participate and distribute fair housing materials at a variety of 
community activities.



Attachment 1
page 8 of 9

-

ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Housing Element Implementation

(CCR Title 25 §6202 )

Jurisdiction City of Cudahy, CA

Reporting Period 1/1/2014 12/31/2014

Zoning Update Program 

To address a shortfall and un-
accommodated need of 280 units 
at appropriate densities, the City 
will increase allowable zoning 
densities of the HDR and CC 
Zone’s city wide from 14.52 to 
allowing a minimum of 20 dwelling 
units per acre.

Pending 
Increasing the density to 20 dwelling units per acre will further 
facilitate meeting the demand for affordable housing.  Pursuant to 
Government Code Section 65583(c)(1) and 65583.2(h) and (i).

Persons with Disabilities, including 
Development Disabilities Program

The city shall seek State and 
Federal monies, as funding 
becomes available, in support of 
housing construction and 
rehabilitation targeted for persons 
with disabilities. 

Pending 

The City shall provide regulatory incentives, such as expedited 
permit processing and fee waivers and deferrals, to projects 
targeted for persons with disabilities, including persons with 
developmental disabilities. 

Preservation of At-Risk Units Program

The City will monitor every three 
months, the status of any HUD 
receipt/approval Notices of Intent 
and Plans of Action filled by 
property owners to convert to 
market-rate units. 

Ongoing 
(monitored 
annually) 

The City will annually identify and meet and pursue funding with non-
profit organizations as potential purchasers/managers of at-risk 
housing units. As part of coordination with non-profit partners, the 
City will annually explore funding sources.

Consistency with General Plan 

The City shall conduct an integral 
review as part of its General Plan 
implementation to achieve 
consistency with other general 
plan elements, policies, programs, 
and community goals. 

Ongoing 
(monitored 
annually) 

As portions of the General plan are amended in the future, this 
Housing Element will be reviewed to ensure that internal 
consistency is maintained. 

Handicapped Access

The City currently requires new 
development to comply with State 
standards for handicapped 
access. 

Ongoing 
(monitored 
annually) 

The City shall also enforce the recently adopted American with 
Disabilities Act. The City adopted the Los Angeles County Building 
Code in March 2013, which includes standards for ADA 
complaince.  

Senior Shared Housing Program 

The senior’s Center on Clara Park 
serves as an information center 
for senior programs and 
resources. 

Ongoing 
(monitored 
annually) 

This is an ongoing program monitored annually (coinciding with the 
fiscal year) by the Community Services Department.

Housing for Extremely-Low Income 
Households Program

The City will encourage the 
development of housing units for 
households earning 30 percent or 
less of the median Family income 
for Los Angeles County. Specific 
emphasis shall be placed on the 
provision of family housing and 
non-traditional housing types. 

Pending 

The City will encourage development of housing for extremely-low 
income households through a variety of activities such as outreach 
to housing developers on at least an annual basis, providing 
financial or in-kind technical assistance.

Bilingual Program 
The production of documents and 
publications that are both in 
English and Spanish.

Ongoing 
(monitored 
annually) 

The City's will actively produce documents and publications that are 
in both English and Spanish.  



Attachment 1
page 9 of 9

-

ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Housing Element Implementation

(CCR Title 25 §6202 )

Jurisdiction City of Cudahy, CA

Reporting Period 1/1/2014 12/31/2014

General Comments:



Attachment C 
 

1 
 

APPENDIX C 
CITY OF CUDAHY  

2014 GENERAL PLAN IMPLEMENTATION STATUS UPDATE   
 

GOALS AND POLICIES STATUS IMPLEMENTATION 
 
 
LAND USE ELEMENT  
 
 
Goal 1. The City of Cudahy will ensure that future development 
enhance the quality of life in the City. 
 

 

 
Policy 1.1. The City of Cudahy will continue to improve the quality of 
housing throughout the City. 
 

 
Ongoing  

 
Rehabilitation programs help to preserve existing developments and prevent building 
determination. The City's has ongoing rehabilitation programs for residential projects through 
the Federal Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program. Information regarding 
these programs may be found in the Housing Element. 
 

 
Policy 1.2. The City of Cudahy will encourage development that 
complements and enhance the community. 
 

 
Ongoing  

 
The City shall develop design guidelines for new development and make copies readily 
available to developers. The guidelines shall outline the general principles of design and 
planning that the City would like to see in projects. This may include architectural treatments 
and styles, building facades, public spaces, parking lot layouts, landscaping concepts, grading 
techniques, buffers, exterior lighting, signs, utility areas, setbacks, compatibility with adjacent 
structures, and other design characteristics. Because of overcrowding problems in the City, the 
creation of larger dwelling units through various incentives shall be explored. The guidelines 
shall be used in the design review process of proposed developments. 
 

 
Policy 1.3. The City of Cudahy will enhance the quality of the 
environment through the enforcement of land use controls as a 
means to preserve the environment and to reduce pollution, traffic 
congestion, and overcrowding. 
 

 
Ongoing  

 
The City shall continue to review development projects for compliance with existing City 
ordinances before the projects are implemented. During the application process, the City shall 
analyze the potential environmental impacts of a project, as required by the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Mitigation measures shall be identified as a means to 
mitigate potential adverse impacts and made as conditions of approval. This is an ongoing 
program by the Community Development Department. 
 

 
Policy 1.4. The City of Cudahy will provide for improved vehicular 
circulation within the City by evaluating traffic and parking impacts 
prior to approving new development. 
 

 
Ongoing   

 
The City shall continue to review development projects for compliance with existing City 
ordinances before the projects are implemented. During the application process, the City shall 
analyze the potential environmental impacts of a project, as required by the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Mitigation measures shall be identified as a means to 
mitigate potential adverse impacts and made as conditions of approval. This is an ongoing 
program by the Community Development Department. 
 

 
Policy 1.5. The City of Cudahy will establish a community identity 
and pride through the emphasis on high quality development. 

 
Ongoing  

 
The City shall develop design guidelines for new development and make copies readily 
available to developers. The guidelines shall outline the general principles of design and 



Attachment C 
 

2 
 

 planning that the City would like to see in projects. This may include architectural treatments 
and styles, building facades, public spaces, parking lot layouts, landscaping concepts, grading 
techniques, buffers, exterior lighting, signs, utility areas, setbacks, compatibility with adjacent 
structures, and other design characteristics. Because of overcrowding problems in the City, the 
creation of larger dwelling units through various incentives shall be explored. The guidelines 
shall be used in the design review process of proposed developments. 
 

 
Policy 1.6. The City of Cudahy will continue to revitalize the 
residential, commercial and industrial land uses in the City. 
 

 
Ongoing  

 
The Cudahy Redevelopment Project Area was established to remove blight in the project area 
and to promote economic revitalization. The goal of the Redevelopment Plan is to eliminate 
and prevent the spread of blight in the project area through the rehabilitation of commercial, 
industrial and residential areas in the City. Infrastructure and public services will continue to be 
improved and enhanced as a means to encourage private reinvestment. The City will also 
continue to assist area developers in land assembly.  
 

 
Policy 1.7. The City of Cudahy will work to reduce existing 
incompatible land uses in various areas in the City. 
 

 
Ongoing  

  

 
The City shall develop design guidelines for new development and make copies readily 
available to developers. The guidelines shall outline the general principles of design and 
planning that the City would like to see in projects. This may include architectural treatments 
and styles, building facades, public spaces, parking lot layouts, landscaping concepts, grading 
techniques, buffers, exterior lighting, signs, utility areas, setbacks, compatibility with adjacent 
structures, and other design characteristics. Because of overcrowding problems in the City, the 
creation of larger dwelling units through various incentives shall be explored. The guidelines 
shall be used in the design review process of proposed developments. 
 

 
Policy 1.8. The City of Cudahy will minimize the detrimental effects 
of the flood control channel and the existing Southern Pacific and 
Union Pacific Railroad right-of-ways located in the City. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
Public works and infrastructure improvements in the City are planned through a Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) that sets priorities and funding for needed for infrastructure 
projects. The City shall continue to prioritize infrastructure and public service projects in its CIP. 
This program is coordinated by the Department of Building and Public Services and financed 
by the General Fund, to the extent available. 

 
Policy 1.9. The City of Cudahy will promote the assembly of land 
into larger parcels that are more suitable for higher quality 
integrated development. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The primary tools for regulating changes in land uses in the City include both the General Plan 
and Zoning Ordinance. The City shall continue to implement the General Plan land use policies 
and the Zoning Ordinance. The City shall also continue to implement the Zoning Ordinance 
which provides development incentives, density bonuses, and incentive requirements for the 
assembly of residential lots. The assembly of lots will eliminate the development constraints 
posed by the existing long, narrow lots. 
 

 
Policy 1.10. The City of Cudahy will promote new, high quality 
residential development on vacant and underutilized lots. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall develop design guidelines for new development and make copies readily 
available to developers. The guidelines shall outline the general principles of design and 
planning that the City would like to see in projects. This may include architectural treatments 
and styles, building facades, public spaces, parking lot layouts, landscaping concepts, grading 
techniques, buffers, exterior lighting, signs, utility areas, setbacks, compatibility with adjacent 
structures, and other design characteristics. Because of overcrowding problems in the City, the 
creation of larger dwelling units through various incentives shall be explored. The guidelines 
shall be used in the design review process of proposed developments. 
 

   



Attachment C 
 

3 
 

Policy 1.11. The City of Cudahy will promote development that is 
sensitive of environmental and safety constraints. 
 

Ongoing The City shall continue to review development projects for compliance with existing City 
ordinances before the projects are implemented. During the application process, the City shall 
analyze the potential environmental impacts of a project, as required by the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Mitigation measures shall be identified as a means to 
mitigate potential adverse impacts and made as conditions of approval. This is an ongoing 
program by the Community Development Department. 
 

 
Policy 1.12. The City of Cudahy will develop requirements for uses 
that have the potential to disrupt neighborhood quality due to 
excessive traffic, unusual hours of operation, and other adverse 
impacts on residences and land uses. 
 

 
Ongoing  

 
The City shall continue to review development projects for compliance with existing City 
ordinances before the projects are implemented. During the application process, the City shall 
analyze the potential environmental impacts of a project, as required by the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Mitigation measures shall be identified as a means to 
mitigate potential adverse impacts and made as conditions of approval. This is an ongoing 
program by the Community Development Department. 
 

 
Goal 2. The City of Cudahy will continue with the revitalization of the 
existing residential neighborhoods. 
 

 

 
Policy 2.1. The City of Cudahy will encourage and promote the 
development of safe and attractive residential developments. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall develop design guidelines for new development and make copies readily 
available to developers. The guidelines shall outline the general principles of design and 
planning that the City would like to see in projects. This may include architectural treatments 
and styles, building facades, public spaces, parking lot layouts, landscaping concepts, grading 
techniques, buffers, exterior lighting, signs, utility areas, setbacks, compatibility with adjacent 
structures, and other design characteristics. Because of overcrowding problems in the City, the 
creation of larger dwelling units through various incentives shall be explored. The guidelines 
shall be used in the design review process of proposed developments. 
 

 
Policy 2.2. The City of Cudahy will enforce the maintenance of 
housing units to prevent the deterioration of neighborhoods. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue code enforcement efforts to encourage property maintenance. These 
efforts include the identification of nuisances that endanger public health and safety and the 
provision of technical support or other incentives to allow early correction of the problem. The 
City shall also work towards the continued renovation of structures which do not meet current 
seismic safety standards and electrical code requirements. Code enforcement is an ongoing 
activity and will continue to be financed through CDBG funds. The rehabilitation of substandard 
structures shall be the responsibility of individual property owners, with CDBG funds available 
for qualified homeowners and property owners to use to correct violations. 
 

 
Policy 2.3. The City of Cudahy will encourage programs and 
citizens' efforts directed toward neighborhood improvement and 
beautification. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
Rehabilitation programs help to preserve existing developments and prevent building 
determination. The City's has ongoing rehabilitation programs for residential projects through 
the Federal Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program. Information regarding 
these programs may be found in the Housing Element. 
 

 
Policy 2.4. The City of Cudahy will encourage the continuation of 
those programs that promote community preservation and 
rehabilitation. 
 

 
Ongoing  

 
Rehabilitation programs help to preserve existing developments and prevent building 
determination. The City's has ongoing rehabilitation programs for residential projects through 
the Federal Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program. Information regarding 
these programs may be found in the Housing Element. 



Attachment C 
 

4 
 

 
 
Policy 2.5. The City of Cudahy will encourage the planting of street 
trees and the maintenance of parkways along major roadways. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
In order to plan for the development of adequate parks and recreation areas for existing and 
future residents, the City shall continue to implement its Parks Master Plan. The Parks Master 
Plan’s implementation shall be the responsibility of the City’s Parks and Recreation 
Department. 
 

 
Policy 2.6. The City of Cudahy will encourage the development of 
quality housing in the City through incentives in order to create 
stability in the resident population and established neighborhoods. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The primary tools for regulating changes in land uses in the City include both the General Plan 
and Zoning Ordinance. The City shall continue to implement the General Plan land use policies 
and the Zoning Ordinance. The City shall also continue to implement the Zoning Ordinance 
which provides development incentives, density bonuses, and incentive requirements for the 
assembly of residential lots. The assembly of lots will eliminate the development constraints 
posed by the existing long, narrow lots. 
 

 
Policy 2.7. The City of Cudahy will discourage development that 
would strain the fiscal resources of the City (e.g. demands on law 
enforcement, recreation, and street maintenance). 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue to review development projects for compliance with existing City 
ordinances before the projects are implemented. During the application process, the City shall 
analyze the potential environmental impacts of a project, as required by the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Mitigation measures shall be identified as a means to 
mitigate potential adverse impacts and made as conditions of approval. This is an ongoing 
program by the Community Development Department. 
 

 
Policy 2.8. The City of Cudahy will provide adequate housing for 
various family sizes and income levels by allowing for different 
densities of development. 
 

 
Ongoing  

 
The primary tools for regulating changes in land uses in the City include both the General Plan 
and Zoning Ordinance. The City shall continue to implement the General Plan land use policies 
and the Zoning Ordinance. The City shall also continue to implement the Zoning Ordinance 
which provides development incentives, density bonuses, and incentive requirements for the 
assembly of residential lots. The assembly of lots will eliminate the development constraints 
posed by the existing long, narrow lots. 
 

 
Policy 2.9. The City of Cudahy will ensure that new residential areas 
are protected from heavy traffic through buffering and design. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue to review development projects for compliance with existing City 
ordinances before the projects are implemented. During the application process, the City shall 
analyze the potential environmental impacts of a project, as required by the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Mitigation measures shall be identified as a means to 
mitigate potential adverse impacts and made as conditions of approval. This is an ongoing 
program by the Community Development Department.  
 

 
Policy 2.10. The City of Cudahy will ensure that recreation and play 
areas are set-aside for children in multi-family developments. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall develop design guidelines for new development and make copies readily 
available to developers. The guidelines shall outline the general principles of design and 
planning that the City would like to see in projects. This may include architectural treatments 
and styles, building facades, public spaces, parking lot layouts, landscaping concepts, grading 
techniques, buffers, exterior lighting, signs, utility areas, setbacks, compatibility with adjacent 
structures, and other design characteristics. Because of overcrowding problems in the City, the 
creation of larger dwelling units through various incentives shall be explored. The guidelines 
shall be used in the design review process of proposed developments. 
 

  



Attachment C 
 

5 
 

Goal 3. The City of Cudahy will preserve the existing commercial 
areas and seek to expand commercial opportunities so as to serve 
the needs of area residents. 
 
Policy 3.1. The City of Cudahy will continue to promote attractive 
commercial areas with adequate off-street parking and loading 
facilities. 
 

 
Ongoing  

 
The City shall develop design guidelines for new development and make copies readily 
available to developers. The guidelines shall outline the general principles of design and 
planning that the City would like to see in projects. This may include architectural treatments 
and styles, building facades, public spaces, parking lot layouts, landscaping concepts, grading 
techniques, buffers, exterior lighting, signs, utility areas, setbacks, compatibility with adjacent 
structures, and other design characteristics. Because of overcrowding problems in the City, the 
creation of larger dwelling units through various incentives shall be explored. The guidelines 
shall be used in the design review process of proposed developments. 
 

 
Policy 3.2. The City of Cudahy will encourage commercial 
development that meets the local demand for products and services 
and encourage balanced commercial development along Atlantic 
Avenue to create a sound sales tax base. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The Cudahy Redevelopment Project Area was established to remove blight in the project area 
and to promote economic revitalization. The goal of the Redevelopment Plan is to eliminate 
and prevent the spread of blight in the project area through the rehabilitation of commercial, 
industrial and residential areas in the City. Infrastructure and public services will continue to be 
improved and enhanced as a means to encourage private reinvestment. The City will also 
continue to assist area developers in land assembly.  
 

 
Policy 3.3. The City of Cudahy will require commercial 
developments to be compatible with adjacent uses. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall develop design guidelines for new development and make copies readily 
available to developers. The guidelines shall outline the general principles of design and 
planning that the City would like to see in projects. This may include architectural treatments 
and styles, building facades, public spaces, parking lot layouts, landscaping concepts, grading 
techniques, buffers, exterior lighting, signs, utility areas, setbacks, compatibility with adjacent 
structures, and other design characteristics. Because of overcrowding problems in the City, the 
creation of larger dwelling units through various incentives shall be explored. The guidelines 
shall be used in the design review process of proposed developments. 
 

 
Policy 3.4. The City of Cudahy will strive to expand its economic and 
tax base through new commercial developments. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The Cudahy Redevelopment Project Area was established to remove blight in the project area 
and to promote economic revitalization. The goal of the Redevelopment Plan is to eliminate 
and prevent the spread of blight in the project area through the rehabilitation of commercial, 
industrial and residential areas in the City. Infrastructure and public services will continue to be 
improved and enhanced as a means to encourage private reinvestment. The City will also 
continue to assist area developers in land assembly.  
 

 
Policy 3.5. The City of Cudahy will continue to implement 
landscaping improvements along the length of Atlantic Avenue. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
Public works and infrastructure improvements in the City are planned through a Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) that sets priorities and funding for needed for infrastructure 
projects. The City shall continue to prioritize infrastructure and public service projects in its CIP. 
This program is coordinated by the Department of Building and Public Services and financed 
by the General Fund, to the extent available. 
 

 
Policy 3.6. The City of Cudahy will continue to encourage the 
improvement of existing store facades on Atlantic Avenue. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall develop design guidelines for new development and make copies readily 
available to developers. The guidelines shall outline the general principles of design and 
planning that the City would like to see in projects. This may include architectural treatments 



Attachment C 
 

6 
 

and styles, building facades, public spaces, parking lot layouts, landscaping concepts, grading 
techniques, buffers, exterior lighting, signs, utility areas, setbacks, compatibility with adjacent 
structures, and other design characteristics. Because of overcrowding problems in the City, the 
creation of larger dwelling units through various incentives shall be explored. The guidelines 
shall be used in the design review process of proposed developments. 
 

 
Policy 3.7. The City of Cudahy will actively require the construction 
of high quality commercial developments. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The Cudahy Redevelopment Project Area was established to remove blight in the project area 
and to promote economic revitalization. The goal of the Redevelopment Plan is to eliminate 
and prevent the spread of blight in the project area through the rehabilitation of commercial, 
industrial and residential areas in the City. Infrastructure and public services will continue to be 
improved and enhanced as a means to encourage private reinvestment. The City will also 
continue to assist area developers in land assembly.  
 

 
Goal 4. The City of Cudahy will improve the quality of Cudahy's 
industrial areas and take additional steps to provide opportunities for 
future industrial growth. 
 

 

 
Policy 4.1. The City of Cudahy will promote industrial growth in 
order to increase employment opportunities. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The Cudahy Redevelopment Project Area was established to remove blight in the project area 
and to promote economic revitalization. The goal of the Redevelopment Plan is to eliminate 
and prevent the spread of blight in the project area through the rehabilitation of commercial, 
industrial and residential areas in the City. Infrastructure and public services will continue to be 
improved and enhanced as a means to encourage private reinvestment. The City will also 
continue to assist area developers in land assembly.  
 

 
Policy 4.2. The City of Cudahy will promote the development of 
modern, attractive and safe industrial facilities that do not produce 
detrimental effects on surrounding properties and the city as a 
whole. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue to review development projects for compliance with existing City 
ordinances before the projects are implemented. During the application process, the City shall 
analyze the potential environmental impacts of a project, as required by the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Mitigation measures shall be identified as a means to 
mitigate potential adverse impacts and made as conditions of approval. This is an ongoing 
program by the Community Development Department. 
 

 
Policy 4.3. The City of Cudahy will encourage the development of 
the industries that will best meet the needs of the Cudahy work 
force. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The Cudahy Redevelopment Project Area was established to remove blight in the project area 
and to promote economic revitalization. The goal of the Redevelopment Plan is to eliminate 
and prevent the spread of blight in the project area through the rehabilitation of commercial, 
industrial and residential areas in the City. Infrastructure and public services will continue to be 
improved and enhanced as a means to encourage private reinvestment. The City will also 
continue to assist area developers in land assembly.  
 

 
Policy 4.4. The City of Cudahy will encourage the maintenance, 
rehabilitation, and beautification of the existing industrial properties. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The Cudahy Redevelopment Project Area was established to remove blight in the project area 
and to promote economic revitalization. The goal of the Redevelopment Plan is to eliminate 
and prevent the spread of blight in the project area through the rehabilitation of commercial, 
industrial and residential areas in the City. Infrastructure and public services will continue to be 
improved and enhanced as a means to encourage private reinvestment. The City will also 
continue to assist area developers in land assembly.  



Attachment C 
 

7 
 

 
 
Goal 5. The City of Cudahy will provide a sufficient range of 
recreational opportunities to meet the needs of individuals (of all 
ages), families, and groups who live in the City. 
 

 

 
Policy 5.1. The City of Cudahy will make an effort to provide parks 
and recreational areas at locations that are convenient to the 
greatest number of residents. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
In order to plan for the development of adequate parks and recreation areas for existing and 
future residents, the City shall continue to implement its Parks Master Plan. The Parks Master 
Plan’s implementation shall be the responsibility of the City’s Parks and Recreation 
Department. 
 

 
Policy 5.2. The City of Cudahy will continue to work to establish joint 
use agreements with the school district to provide for the 
development of new recreational facilities and opportunities. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
In order to plan for the development of adequate parks and recreation areas for existing and 
future residents, the City shall continue to implement its Parks Master Plan. The Parks Master 
Plan’s implementation shall be the responsibility of the City’s Parks and Recreation 
Department. 
 

 
Policy 5.3. The City of Cudahy will preserve existing parks and open 
space and provide for additional parkland in the future. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
In order to plan for the development of adequate parks and recreation areas for existing and 
future residents, the City shall continue to implement its Parks Master Plan. The Parks Master 
Plan’s implementation shall be the responsibility of the City’s Parks and Recreation 
Department. 
 

 
Goal 6. The City of Cudahy will provide adequate public services 
and infrastructure to serve existing and future developments. 
 

 

 
Policy 6.1. The City of Cudahy will cooperate with the Los Angeles 
Unified School District to make adequate school services to meet 
anticipated growth in the area available. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
Public works and infrastructure improvements in the City are planned through a Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) that sets priorities and funding for needed for infrastructure 
projects. The City shall continue to prioritize infrastructure and public service projects in its CIP. 
This program is coordinated by the Department of Building and Public Services and financed 
by the General Fund, to the extent available. 
 

 
Policy 6.2. The City of Cudahy will provide public active open space 
and quiet areas for community residents. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
In order to plan for the development of adequate parks and recreation areas for existing and 
future residents, the City shall continue to implement its Parks Master Plan. The Parks Master 
Plan’s implementation shall be the responsibility of the City’s Parks and Recreation 
Department. 
 

 
Policy 6.3. The City of Cudahy will maintain an attractive civic center 
in which citizens can take pride. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall develop design guidelines for new development and make copies readily 
available to developers. The guidelines shall outline the general principles of design and 
planning that the City would like to see in projects. This may include architectural treatments 
and styles, building facades, public spaces, parking lot layouts, landscaping concepts, grading 
techniques, buffers, exterior lighting, signs, utility areas, setbacks, compatibility with adjacent 
structures, and other design characteristics. Because of overcrowding problems in the City, the 
creation of larger dwelling units through various incentives shall be explored. The guidelines 
shall be used in the design review process of proposed developments. 



Attachment C 
 

8 
 

 
 
Policy 6.4. The City of Cudahy will discourage the recycling of 
surplus institutional uses to non-institutional uses. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The primary tools for regulating changes in land uses in the City include both the General Plan 
and Zoning Ordinance. The City shall continue to implement the General Plan land use policies 
and the Zoning Ordinance. The City shall also continue to implement the Zoning Ordinance 
which provides development incentives, density bonuses, and incentive requirements for the 
assembly of residential lots. The assembly of lots will eliminate the development constraints 
posed by the existing long, narrow lots. 
 

 
Policy 6.5. The City of Cudahy will monitor the availability and 
adequacy of public services (water distribution, water quality, fire, 
police, waste disposal, and library services) in the City to ensure 
services are not overburdened by future demand. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
Public works and infrastructure improvements in the City are planned through a Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) that sets priorities and funding for needed for infrastructure 
projects. The City shall continue to prioritize infrastructure and public service projects in its CIP. 
This program is coordinated by the Department of Building and Public Services and financed 
by the General Fund, to the extent available. 
 

 
Policy 6.6. The City of Cudahy will regularly conduct an analysis of 
existing infrastructure and public service capacities to assess the 
need for capital improvements and service improvements. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
Public works and infrastructure improvements in the City are planned through a Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) that sets priorities and funding for needed for infrastructure 
projects. The City shall continue to prioritize infrastructure and public service projects in its CIP. 
This program is coordinated by the Department of Building and Public Services and financed 
by the General Fund, to the extent available. 
 

 
Policy 6.7. The City of Cudahy will study the feasibility of relocating 
City Hall to an area that is closer to Atlantic Avenue and convert the 
existing present City Hall to a recreation building. 
 

 
N/A 

 
The City has determined that moving City Hall is not currently a feasible option.  

 
Policy 6.8. The City of Cudahy will cooperate with the Los Angeles 
County Library to provide library services to area residents. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
Public works and infrastructure improvements in the City are planned through a Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) that sets priorities and funding for needed for infrastructure 
projects. The City shall continue to prioritize infrastructure and public service projects in its CIP. 
This program is coordinated by the Department of Building and Public Services and financed 
by the General Fund, to the extent available. 
 

 
Goal 7. The City of Cudahy will develop an economic development 
strategy for the City. 
 

 

 
Policy 7.1. The City of Cudahy will work towards the expansion and 
diversification of the local economic base. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The Cudahy Redevelopment Project Area was established to remove blight in the project area 
and to promote economic revitalization. The goal of the Redevelopment Plan is to eliminate 
and prevent the spread of blight in the project area through the rehabilitation of commercial, 
industrial and residential areas in the City. Infrastructure and public services will continue to be 
improved and enhanced as a means to encourage private reinvestment. The City will also 
continue to assist area developers in land assembly.  
 

 
Policy 7.2. The City of Cudahy will encourage developments that will 
increase the City's tax base. 

 
Ongoing 

 
The Cudahy Redevelopment Project Area was established to remove blight in the project area 
and to promote economic revitalization. The goal of the Redevelopment Plan is to eliminate 



Attachment C 
 

9 
 

 and prevent the spread of blight in the project area through the rehabilitation of commercial, 
industrial and residential areas in the City. Infrastructure and public services will continue to be 
improved and enhanced as a means to encourage private reinvestment. The City will also 
continue to assist area developers in land assembly.  
 

 
Policy 7.3. The City of Cudahy will cooperate with local businesses, 
the Chamber of Commerce, and the Cudahy Business Association 
to create a stronger business community.  
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The Cudahy Redevelopment Project Area was established to remove blight in the project area 
and to promote economic revitalization. The goal of the Redevelopment Plan is to eliminate 
and prevent the spread of blight in the project area through the rehabilitation of commercial, 
industrial and residential areas in the City. Infrastructure and public services will continue to be 
improved and enhanced as a means to encourage private reinvestment. The City will also 
continue to assist area developers in land assembly.  
 

 
Policy 7.4. The City of Cudahy will increase employment 
opportunities to help raise the incomes of local residents. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The Cudahy Redevelopment Project Area was established to remove blight in the project area 
and to promote economic revitalization. The goal of the Redevelopment Plan is to eliminate 
and prevent the spread of blight in the project area through the rehabilitation of commercial, 
industrial and residential areas in the City. Infrastructure and public services will continue to be 
improved and enhanced as a means to encourage private reinvestment. The City will also 
continue to assist area developers in land assembly.  
 
 

 
Policy 7.5. The City of Cudahy will help establish a low interest loan 
pool with the help of local banks to aid in financing the start-up, 
expansion and/or retention of local businesses. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The Cudahy Redevelopment Project Area was established to remove blight in the project area 
and to promote economic revitalization. The goal of the Redevelopment Plan is to eliminate 
and prevent the spread of blight in the project area through the rehabilitation of commercial, 
industrial and residential areas in the City. Infrastructure and public services will continue to be 
improved and enhanced as a means to encourage private reinvestment. The City will also 
continue to assist area developers in land assembly.  
 

 
Policy 7.6. The City of Cudahy will develop programs to maximize 
the commercial potential of Atlantic Avenue and increase the 
economic base of the City. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The Cudahy Redevelopment Project Area was established to remove blight in the project area 
and to promote economic revitalization. The goal of the Redevelopment Plan is to eliminate 
and prevent the spread of blight in the project area through the rehabilitation of commercial, 
industrial and residential areas in the City. Infrastructure and public services will continue to be 
improved and enhanced as a means to encourage private reinvestment. The City will also 
continue to assist area developers in land assembly.  
 

 
TRANSPORTATION ELEMENT  
 
 
Goal 1. The City of Cudahy will maximize the efficiency, 
convenience and safety of the existing transportation system. 
 

 

 
Policy 1.1. The City of Cudahy will encourage motorists to use major 
streets and avoid short-cuts through local (residential) streets. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City has designate truck routes, post signs, and enforce the regulations to discourage the 
use of local streets. Designated truck routes include Atlantic Avenue, Salt Lake Avenue, Clara 
Street (east of Atlantic), Wilcox Avenue, and Santa Ana Street (west of Atlantic). The truck 
route designation will promote traffic safety and reduce roadway loads on local streets. 



Attachment C 
 

10 
 

 
 
Policy 1.2. The City of Cudahy will work towards a level of service of 
"D" along Atlantic Avenue. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City of Cudahy shall continue to maintain existing roadways, traffic signals and other traffic 
control devices. The City shall work towards the improvement to streets, where feasible, and 
the extension of Alamo Street to Elizabeth Street and the continuation of River Road from 
Clara Street to Live Oak Street. These other improvements may include speed bumps, no 
parking signs, speed limit signs, and other traffic signs. Roadway maintenance shall include 
pavement repair, lane restriping, roadway widening, landscape maintenance, street lights, and 
other roadway projects. They City will also explore ways to reduce traffic through a variety of 
traffic control measures. The City shall also consider synchronizing traffic signals along Atlantic 
Avenue for improved traffic flow. Finally, the City shall upgrade existing signals for left-turn and 
right-turn arrows and increase left-turn and right-turn pockets at congested intersections. The 
City shall also continue to evaluate the location of bus stops and turnouts and work towards 
the reduction in congestion due to the bus queuing. These projects shall be included in the 
City's Capital Improvement Plan as implemented by the Department of Building and Public 
Services. 
 

 
Policy 1.3. The City of Cudahy will designate truck routes for 
commercial and industrial truck traffic. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City has designate truck routes, post signs, and enforce the regulations to discourage the 
use of local streets. Designated truck routes include Atlantic Avenue, Salt Lake Avenue, Clara 
Street (east of Atlantic), Wilcox Avenue, and Santa Ana Street (west of Atlantic). The truck 
route designation will promote traffic safety and reduce roadway loads on local streets. 
 

 
Policy 1.4. The City of Cudahy will improve the local circulation 
system. This may be accomplished by increasing the number of 
surface streets, widening local streets, extending Alamo Street to 
Elizabeth Street, developing River Road from Live Oak Street to 
Clara Street, or other measures. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City of Cudahy shall continue to maintain existing roadways, traffic signals and other traffic 
control devices. The City shall work towards the improvement to streets, where feasible, and 
the extension of Alamo Street to Elizabeth Street and the continuation of River Road from 
Clara Street to Live Oak Street. These other improvements may include speed bumps, no 
parking signs, speed limit signs, and other traffic signs. Roadway maintenance shall include 
pavement repair, lane restriping, roadway widening, landscape maintenance, street lights, and 
other roadway projects. They City will also explore ways to reduce traffic through a variety of 
traffic control measures. The City shall also consider synchronizing traffic signals along Atlantic 
Avenue for improved traffic flow. Finally, the City shall upgrade existing signals for left-turn and 
right-turn arrows and increase left-turn and right-turn pockets at congested intersections. The 
City shall also continue to evaluate the location of bus stops and turnouts and work towards 
the reduction in congestion due to the bus queuing. These projects shall be included in the 
City's Capital Improvement Plan as implemented by the Department of Building and Public 
Services. 
 

 
Goal 2. The City of 
Cudahy will work to improve roadway conditions and promote safety 
in the community. 
 

 

 
Policy 2.1. The City of Cudahy will provide a comprehensive and 
ongoing evaluation of streets and intersections within the City and 
provide a program for future improvements. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue to monitor traffic volumes on local streets and determine the need for 
additional traffic signals or other traffic improvements. This shall be implemented by the 
Department of Building and Public Services with funding from the General Fund. 
 

   



Attachment C 
 

11 
 

Policy 2.2. The City of Cudahy will discourage large trucks and truck 
through-traffic on local residential streets. 
 

Ongoing The City has designate truck routes, post signs, and enforce the regulations to discourage the 
use of local streets. Designated truck routes include Atlantic Avenue, Salt Lake Avenue, Clara 
Street (east of Atlantic), Wilcox Avenue, and Santa Ana Street (west of Atlantic). The truck 
route designation will promote traffic safety and reduce roadway loads on local streets. 
 

 
Policy 2.3. The City of Cudahy will cooperate with Los Angeles 
County and adjacent cities in efforts to reduce unsafe driving 
conditions and to enforce speed limits and other traffic safety laws. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue to promote street safety through information brochures, local 
newspapers, the local newsletter, and other public information methods. Cudahy staff will work 
with transportation agencies, local enforcement officials, and other groups in promoting safe 
driving techniques to local drivers. The City will support street safety programs at local schools, 
including the "Don't Drink and Drive campaign by non-profit agencies in the region. This 
ongoing program is implemented by the Department of Community Services. 
 

 
Policy 2.4. The City of Cudahy will promote the use of crossing 
guards at appropriate school crossing locations for pedestrian safety 
and to facilitate efficient traffic flow, to the extent of available 
resources. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue to maintain and provide pedestrian crosswalks at major street 
intersections and near schools and City parks. It shall encourage walking by providing 
continuous sidewalks, street furniture, landscaping and other pedestrian amenities along city 
streets. It shall also continue to provide crossing guards at school locations to prevent hazards 
to students and motorists. 
 

 
Policy 2.5. The City of Cudahy will provide convenient, safe, and 
efficient pedestrian and vehicular access throughout the City. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City has designate truck routes, post signs, and enforce the regulations to discourage the 
use of local streets. Designated truck routes include Atlantic Avenue, Salt Lake Avenue, Clara 
Street (east of Atlantic), Wilcox Avenue, and Santa Ana Street (west of Atlantic). The truck 
route designation will promote traffic safety and reduce roadway loads on local streets. 
 

 
Goal 3. The City of Cudahy will encourage the expansion of existing 
public transportation routes and facilities. 
 

 

 
Policy 3.1. The City of Cudahy will continue to encourage, promote, 
and expand the use of public transportation including car pools, van 
pools, and bus services. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall support public transportation and transit projects which have the potential to 
serve Cudahy residents. Cudahy will continue to provide bus pass subsidies for students and 
senior citizens. Coordination with MTA on bus routes and schedules shall be continued. This 
program is implemented by the Departments of Community Development and Community 
Services. 
 

 
Policy 3.2. The City of Cudahy will participate in and encourage 
cooperation among adjacent cities to provide a more reliable public 
transportation system in the area. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City of Cudahy shall continue to work with adjacent cities and other agencies, the 
Southern California MTA, California Department of Transportation) for the planning of 
transportation needs of the area. This includes the coordination of public transit programs, 
congestion management, traffic improvements and other transportation programs. The City will 
continue to be involved in the development of state and regional transportation plans which 
may impact the City's circulation system. This includes the County Congestion Management 
Plan and plans of the Long Beach Freeway. 
 

 
Policy 3.3. The City of Cudahy will support the continued 
development of a regional transportation system that will serve area 
residents. 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City of Cudahy shall continue to work with adjacent cities and other agencies, the 
Southern California MTA, California Department of Transportation) for the planning of 
transportation needs of the area. This includes the coordination of public transit programs, 



Attachment C 
 

12 
 

 congestion management, traffic improvements and other transportation programs. The City will 
continue to be involved in the development of state and regional transportation plans which 
may impact the City's circulation system. This includes the County Congestion Management 
Plan and plans of the Long Beach Freeway. 
 

 
Policy 3.4. The City of Cudahy will re-evaluate public transportation 
needs in terms of fixed route buses, when ridership exceeds present 
services. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City of Cudahy shall continue to work with adjacent cities and other agencies, the 
Southern California MTA, California Department of Transportation) for the planning of 
transportation needs of the area. This includes the coordination of public transit programs, 
congestion management, traffic improvements and other transportation programs. The City will 
continue to be involved in the development of state and regional transportation plans which 
may impact the City's circulation system. This includes the County Congestion Management 
Plan and plans of the Long Beach Freeway. 
 

 
Policy 3.5. The City of Cudahy will continue to use Prop A funds for 
the operation of a public transit system in Cudahy. 
 

 
Ongoing  

 
The City of Cudahy will continue to use Prop A funds for the operation of public transit system 
in Cudahy.  

 
Goal 4. The City of Cudahy will promote efficient, safe and 
convenient parking facilities within the commercial areas of the City. 
 

 

 
Policy 4.1. The City of Cudahy will require that parking lots be 
designed to provide easy access to nearby retail areas. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
As part of the development review process (discussed in the Land Use Element), future 
developments shall be subject to site plan, design and environmental reviews. This review 
process will allow evaluation of a proposed project's compliance with the City's parking, 
landscaping, lighting and other standards. This review process will also identify the project's 
impacts on traffic, circulation, access, parking and public transit systems. 
 

 
Policy 4.2. The City of Cudahy will promote off-street parking in 
commercial areas to reduce the need for on-street parking along 
Atlantic Avenue. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
As part of the development review process (discussed in the Land Use Element), future 
developments shall be subject to site plan, design and environmental reviews. This review 
process will allow evaluation of a proposed project's compliance with the City's parking, 
landscaping, lighting and other standards. This review process will also identify the project's 
impacts on traffic, circulation, access, parking and public transit systems. 
 

  
Policy 4.3. The City of Cudahy will encourage existing retail and 
commercial sites with substandard circulation or parking conditions 
to upgrade their facilities to established design standards. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
As part of the development review process (discussed in the Land Use Element), future 
developments shall be subject to site plan, design and environmental reviews. This review 
process will allow evaluation of a proposed project's compliance with the City's parking, 
landscaping, lighting and other standards. This review process will also identify the project's 
impacts on traffic, circulation, access, parking and public transit systems. 
 

 
Policy 4.4. The City of Cudahy will require adequate off-street 
parking for all future residential and commercial developments. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
As part of the development review process (discussed in the Land Use Element), future 
developments shall be subject to site plan, design and environmental reviews. This review 
process will allow evaluation of a proposed project's compliance with the City's parking, 
landscaping, lighting and other standards. This review process will also identify the project's 
impacts on traffic, circulation, access, parking and public transit systems. 
 



Attachment C 
 

13 
 

 
Policy 4.5. The City of Cudahy will regulate overnight on-street 
parking and the parking of commercial and recreational vehicles and 
trucks in commercial areas. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
As part of the development review process (discussed in the Land Use Element), future 
developments shall be subject to site plan, design and environmental reviews. This review 
process will allow evaluation of a proposed project's compliance with the City's parking, 
landscaping, lighting and other standards. This review process will also identify the project's 
impacts on traffic, circulation, access, parking and public transit systems. 
 

 
OPEN SPACE AND RECREATION ELEMENT  
 
 
Goal 1. The City of Cudahy will secure a safe, healthful, and 
wholesome environment through the preservation of existing public 
open space resources and provision of private open space.  
 

 

 
Policy 1.1. The City of Cudahy will encourage the dedication of open 
space for public rest areas, parks, and other aesthetic 
improvements in new developments. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
As part of the development review process, the Department of Community Development shall 
encourage the provision of private on site recreational areas in multi-family residential projects, 
condominiums, and residential subdivisions. It shall continue to collect impact fees from new 
development for future park development, as allowed under the Quimby Act. Parkland 
exactions which are obtained from property owners who develop previously subdivided 
property shall be reviewed for adequacy to provide future park facilities. 
 

 
Policy 1.2. The City of Cudahy will consider the acquisition of 
surplus land owned by public agencies for future open space and 
recreational use. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
As identified in the Open Space and Recreation Background Report, few areas of the City are 
not within easy access to a park. The City shall explore the potential for developing a park on 
northwestern and northeastern sections of the City. Cudahy may also be able to establish an 
agreement to have school grounds available for public use after school hours within these 
underserved areas. The limited amount of parkland in contrast to the population of Cudahy has 
led to full use of existing facilities. The City shall identify potential sites for a future multi-use 
park sites that will add to recreational facilities in the City. These sites may include existing 
vacant lots, publicly-owned lots and other available for-sale parcels. Private and public funding 
sources for acquisition and development shall also be explored. The Department of 
Community Development is responsible for this program. 
 

 
Policy 1.3. The City of Cudahy will explore all possible funding 
sources for the acquisition of open space, including, but not limited 
to Federal, State, County, and private sources.  
 

 
Ongoing 

 
As identified in the Open Space and Recreation Background Report, few areas of the City are 
not within easy access to a park. The City shall explore the potential for developing a park on 
northwestern and northeastern sections of the City. Cudahy may also be able to establish an 
agreement to have school grounds available for public use after school hours within these 
underserved areas. The limited amount of parkland in contrast to the population of Cudahy has 
led to full use of existing facilities. The City shall identify potential sites for a future multi-use 
park sites that will add to recreational facilities in the City. These sites may include existing 
vacant lots, publicly-owned lots and other available for-sale parcels. Private and public funding 
sources for acquisition and development shall also be explored. The Department of 
Community Development is responsible for this program. 
 

 
Goal 2. The City of Cudahy will strive to provide a sufficient range of 
recreation opportunities to meet the needs of all ages and interests 

 



Attachment C 
 

14 
 

in the community. 
 
 
Policy 2.1. The City of Cudahy will preserve existing parks and 
encourage the development of new recreational facilities in the City. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
By designating City parks as public areas in the Land Use Plan, they will be preserved for 
future use. As new parks are developed in the City, they shall also be designated as public 
areas. This will make it more difficult to change their use when development pressures rise. 
 

 
Policy 2.2. The City of Cudahy will provide recreational 
improvements which complement existing regional and adjacent 
facilities. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
In order to continue to meet the demand for parks and recreational facilities, the City shall 
properly maintain public parks through landscaping, trash collection and graffiti removal, 
playground equipment repairs, and other services. The City will continue to offer a variety of 
recreational programs such as tournaments, sports competitions, classes, excursions, and 
special events. These programs shall be coordinated by the Department of Community 
Services. Other funding sources shall be explored and used for park development in the City. 
 

 
Policy 2.3. The City of Cudahy will cooperate with the County of Los 
Angeles in the planning of regional parks and recreation facilities to 
serve City residents. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall also continue to work with the Los Angeles County Department of Recreation for 
the development of new parks in or near the City. Signs will be posted along roadways to 
identify access points to the Los Angeles River trail. This shall be undertaken by the 
Department of Building and Public Services. The City shall also continue to establish joint use 
or maintenance agreements with the LAUSD for future school/recreational facilities, if 
appropriate. This will be initiated by the Department of Community Services. The City will also 
work with adjacent cities in providing parks for area residents and in developing facilities that 
complement, rather than duplicate, one another. Residents shall be informed of adjacent public 
and private facilities and programs which can accommodate their recreational pursuits. This 
may be done through various information media, such as the newsletter, local newspapers, 
boards in City parks, flyers, etc. These outreach efforts will provide information on the Los 
Angeles River trail and connecting trails throughout the County. These programs shall be the 
responsibility of the Department of Community Services. 
 

 
Policy 2.4. The City of Cudahy will encourage cooperation between 
all user groups and agencies involved with parks and recreation, 
with special emphasis on the coordination of parks and school 
programs and facilities. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall also continue to work with the Los Angeles County Department of Recreation for 
the development of new parks in or near the City. Signs will be posted along roadways to 
identify access points to the Los Angeles River trail. This shall be undertaken by the 
Department of Building and Public Services. The City shall also continue to establish joint use 
or maintenance agreements with the LAUSD for future school/recreational facilities, if 
appropriate. This will be initiated by the Department of Community Services. The City will also 
work with adjacent cities in providing parks for area residents and in developing facilities that 
complement, rather than duplicate, one another. Residents shall be informed of adjacent public 
and private facilities and programs which can accommodate their recreational pursuits. This 
may be done through various information media, such as the newsletter, local newspapers, 
boards in City parks, flyers, etc. These outreach efforts will provide information on the Los 
Angeles River trail and connecting trails throughout the County. These programs shall be the 
responsibility of the Department of Community Services. 
 

 
Policy 2.5. The City of Cudahy will coordinate recreational programs 
with public and private organizations to maximize services and 
opportunities. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
In order to continue to meet the demand for parks and recreational facilities, the City shall 
properly maintain public parks through landscaping, trash collection and graffiti removal, 
playground equipment repairs, and other services. The City will continue to offer a variety of 
recreational programs such as tournaments, sports competitions, classes, excursions, and 



Attachment C 
 

15 
 

special events. These programs shall be coordinated by the Department of Community 
Services. Other funding sources shall be explored and used for park development in the City. 
 

 
Policy 2.6. The City of Cudahy will promote the use of hiking, 
bicycles and other non-polluting means of transportation and access 
to open space areas. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall also continue to work with the Los Angeles County Department of Recreation for 
the development of new parks in or near the City. Signs will be posted along roadways to 
identify access points to the Los Angeles River trail. This shall be undertaken by the 
Department of Building and Public Services. The City shall also continue to establish joint use 
or maintenance agreements with the LAUSD for future school/recreational facilities, if 
appropriate. This will be initiated by the Department of Community Services. The City will also 
work with adjacent cities in providing parks for area residents and in developing facilities that 
complement, rather than duplicate, one another. Residents shall be informed of adjacent public 
and private facilities and programs which can accommodate their recreational pursuits. This 
may be done through various information media, such as the newsletter, local newspapers, 
boards in City parks, flyers, etc. These outreach efforts will provide information on the Los 
Angeles River trail and connecting trails throughout the County. These programs shall be the 
responsibility of the Department of Community Services. 
 

 
Policy 2.7. The City of Cudahy will continue to provide recreational 
programs for City residents. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
In order to continue to meet the demand for parks and recreational facilities, the City shall 
properly maintain public parks through landscaping, trash collection and graffiti removal, 
playground equipment repairs, and other services. The City will continue to offer a variety of 
recreational programs such as tournaments, sports competitions, classes, excursions, and 
special events. These programs shall be coordinated by the Department of Community 
Services. Other funding sources shall be explored and used for park development in the City 
 

 
Policy 2.8. The City of Cudahy will review the City's park fee 
requirements to determine if they are sufficient for the development 
of new parks in the City. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
During the development process the City collects Quimby fees. The Quimby Act requires that 
developers set aside land, donate conservation easements, or pay fees for park 
improvements. Revenues generated through the Quimby Act cannot be used for the operation 
and maintenance of park facilities 
 

 
Policy 2.9. The City of Cudahy will promote the use of hiking and 
bicycle trails along the Los Angeles River. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall also continue to work with the Los Angeles County Department of Recreation for 
the development of new parks in or near the City. Signs will be posted along roadways to 
identify access points to the Los Angeles River trail. This shall be undertaken by the 
Department of Building and Public Services. The City shall also continue to establish joint use 
or maintenance agreements with the LAUSD for future school/recreational facilities, if 
appropriate. This will be initiated by the Department of Community Services. The City will also 
work with adjacent cities in providing parks for area residents and in developing facilities that 
complement, rather than duplicate, one another. Residents shall be informed of adjacent public 
and private facilities and programs which can accommodate their recreational pursuits. This 
may be done through various information media, such as the newsletter, local newspapers, 
boards in City parks, flyers, etc. These outreach efforts will provide information on the Los 
Angeles River trail and connecting trails throughout the County. These programs shall be the 
responsibility of the Department of Community Services. 
 

 
CONSERVATION ELEMENT 
  



Attachment C 
 

16 
 

 
Goal 1. The City of Cudahy will preserve the environment through 
the conservation of resources. 
 

 

 
Policy 1.1. The City of Cudahy will continue to participate in 
management programs of the County of Los Angeles for water 
conservation, liquid and solid waste management, and flood control. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City of Cudahy shall cooperate with Los Angeles County departments on the 
implementation of programs for water conservation, storm water discharge, solid waste 
management, and flood control. This will include projects and programs for the maintenance 
and use of the Los Angeles River. The City shall also coordinate with the Central Basin 
Municipal Water District on the management and use of local groundwater resources. This is 
an ongoing activity by the Department of Building and Public Services. 
 

 
Policy 1.2. The City of Cudahy will solicit cooperation and support 
from the community in the implementation of local conservation 
programs. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall develop a public awareness program to encourage residents practice 
conservation measures and to discourage carelessness in activities that affect the 
environment. The program shall include articles on various environmental issues (air, water, 
hazardous materials, land, energy, etc.) and programs in the City newsletter; free water 
conservation tips, brochures and kits; advertisement of energy conservation alternatives and 
rebate programs; and the hazards of disposing household hazardous wastes with municipal 
wastes. 
 

 
Policy 1.3. The City of Cudahy will encourage the long-term 
protection of the environment as a primary consideration in 
approving development projects. 
 

 
Ongoing  

 
The City shall continue to evaluate the environmental impacts of new development and provide 
mitigation measures prior to development approval, as required by the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Adequate environmental review shall be provided for major 
projects and those that will have a potential to adversely impact the environment. In 
compliance with CEQA, the City shall also assign responsibilities for the verification of the 
implementation of mitigation measures. This is an ongoing program by the Community 
Development Department and is funded by the General Fund. 
 

 
Policy 1.4. The City of Cudahy will conduct environmental studies 
for future projects to the extent required by CEQA, in order to 
address the cumulative impacts of other projects on traffic, regional 
air quality, sewage generation and other environmental constraints 
of the area. 
 

 
Ongoing  

 
The City shall continue to evaluate the environmental impacts of new development and provide 
mitigation measures prior to development approval, as required by the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Adequate environmental review shall be provided for major 
projects and those that will have a potential to adversely impact the environment. In 
compliance with CEQA, the City shall also assign responsibilities for the verification of the 
implementation of mitigation measures. This is an ongoing program by the Community 
Development Department and is funded by the General Fund. 
 

 
Policy 1.5. The City of Cudahy will promote water conservation 
through programs and projects in cooperation with local utility 
companies. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall develop water conservation programs for City facilities (Civic Center, City parks, 
maintenance yards, etc.) This may include the retrofit of City facilities for water-efficient 
plumbing fixtures; the use of drought tolerant and/or xeriscape landscaping in City parks; and 
the posting of water conservation practices at all City facilities. 
 

 
Policy 1.6. The City of Cudahy will encourage the use of drought-
tolerant landscaping and/or xeriscape, particularly in open areas of 
the City. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall develop standards to promote the use of drought-tolerant and/or xeriscape 
landscaping in private developments. This will include measures to reduce irrigation 
requirements for yards (drip irrigation, tree wells, mulch, etc.) and recommended plant species 
which have low irrigation requirements. While this may have small and short term benefits, 



Attachment C 
 

17 
 

continued land recycling activities will create cumulative advantages in the long term. 
 

 
Policy 1.7. The City of Cudahy will strive to prevent toxic waste 
dumping within the City to avoid the contamination of the local 
groundwater by cooperating with the appropriate enforcement 
agencies. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue to develop deterrents to toxic waste dumping in the City and inform 
residents and businesses of fines and penalties associated with such acts. Waste incineration 
shall also be discouraged through regulations of the physical, operational and environmental 
characteristics of such uses. This will help prevent soil, air, and groundwater contamination in 
the planning area. The siting criteria in the County's Hazardous Waste Management Plan shall 
be used to review proposed hazardous waste facilities in the City. 
 

 
Policy 1.8. The City of Cudahy will actively discourage the 
placement of waste incineration uses and use the citing criteria in 
the County's Hazardous Waste Management Plan for the approval 
of hazardous waste facilities in the City. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue to develop deterrents to toxic waste dumping in the City and inform 
residents and businesses of fines and penalties associated with such acts. Waste incineration 
shall also be discouraged through regulations of the physical, operational and environmental 
characteristics of such uses. This will help prevent soil, air, and groundwater contamination in 
the planning area. The siting criteria in the County's Hazardous Waste Management Plan shall 
be used to review proposed hazardous waste facilities in the City. 
 

 
Goal 2. The City of Cudahy will promote the preservation of cultural, 
historical and natural resources within the City. 
 

 

 
Policy 2.1. The City of Cudahy will increase public awareness of the 
City's history and cultural resources in the area. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall cooperate with adjacent cities in the promotion of cultural awareness among 
area residents. It shall acquire additional books and documents on local historical and cultural 
topics. It shall also develop programs to inform local residents of cultural resources that have 
been preserved in the area. This program shall be coordinated by the Department of 
Community Services. Appendix K of the CEQA Guidelines shall be followed for excavation 
monitoring and salvage work that may be necessary. 
 

 
Policy 2.2. The City of Cudahy will establish guidelines for the 
protection of sites of historical or cultural significance. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The significance of the City's older structures has not been determined. In order to prevent 
demolition and damage to historical sites and structures, the City shall evaluate the historic 
significance of structures that are more than 60 years old, before they are demolished, 
renovated or removed. 
 

 
Goal 3. The City of Cudahy will reduce energy consumption in 
public and private developments. 
 

 

 
Policy 3.1. The City of Cudahy will reduce City facilities and 
equipment that utilize energy and shall incorporate the most 
economically feasible energy-efficient design standards. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall enforce the energy conservation standards in Title 24 of the California 
Administrative Code, the Uniform Building Code, and other state laws on energy conservation 
design, insulation and appliances. Energy needs shall be evaluated and conservation 
measures incorporated into new development in accordance with Appendix F of the State 
CEQA Guidelines and Appendix J of the City’s CEQA Guidelines. Also, the City shall allow the 
use of new technologies on energy conservation in new development, as may be appropriate 
for use in the City. Other measures that would reduce energy consumption during construction 
and operation of the structures shall be encouraged. 
 



Attachment C 
 

18 
 

 
Policy 3.2. The City of Cudahy will encourage the incorporation of 
energy conservation features in the design of all new development. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall enforce the energy conservation standards in Title 24 of the California 
Administrative Code, the Uniform Building Code, and other state laws on energy conservation 
design, insulation and appliances. Energy needs shall be evaluated and conservation 
measures incorporated into new development in accordance with Appendix F of the State 
CEQA Guidelines and Appendix J of the City’s CEQA Guidelines. Also, the City shall allow the 
use of new technologies on energy conservation in new development, as may be appropriate 
for use in the City. Other measures that would reduce energy consumption during construction 
and operation of the structures shall be encouraged. 
 

 
Policy 3.3. The City of Cudahy will promote the use of passive 
design concepts, such as building orientation and landscaping that 
make use of the natural climate. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall enforce the energy conservation standards in Title 24 of the California 
Administrative Code, the Uniform Building Code, and other state laws on energy conservation 
design, insulation and appliances. Energy needs shall be evaluated and conservation 
measures incorporated into new development in accordance with Appendix F of the State 
CEQA Guidelines and Appendix J of the City’s CEQA Guidelines. Also, the City shall allow the 
use of new technologies on energy conservation in new development, as may be appropriate 
for use in the City. Other measures that would reduce energy consumption during construction 
and operation of the structures shall be encouraged. 
 

 
Policy 3.4. The City of Cudahy will encourage the use of cost-
effective solar energy systems on new construction and consider 
enactment of a comprehensive solar access ordinance. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall enforce the energy conservation standards in Title 24 of the California 
Administrative Code, the Uniform Building Code, and other state laws on energy conservation 
design, insulation and appliances. Energy needs shall be evaluated and conservation 
measures incorporated into new development in accordance with Appendix F of the State 
CEQA Guidelines and Appendix J of the City’s CEQA Guidelines. Also, the City shall allow the 
use of new technologies on energy conservation in new development, as may be appropriate 
for use in the City. Other measures that would reduce energy consumption during construction 
and operation of the structures shall be encouraged. 
 

 
Policy 3.5. The City of Cudahy will encourage the efficient use of all 
energy resources through innovative, modern, and rational physical 
planning and architectural design. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall enforce the energy conservation standards in Title 24 of the California 
Administrative Code, the Uniform Building Code, and other state laws on energy conservation 
design, insulation and appliances. Energy needs shall be evaluated and conservation 
measures incorporated into new development in accordance with Appendix F of the State 
CEQA Guidelines and Appendix J of the City’s CEQA Guidelines. Also, the City shall allow the 
use of new technologies on energy conservation in new development, as may be appropriate 
for use in the City. Other measures that would reduce energy consumption during construction 
and operation of the structures shall be encouraged. 
 

 
Goal 4. The City of Cudahy will increase the recycling of solid waste 
and the use of recycled material by glass and paper manufacturers. 
 

 

 
Policy 4.1. The City of Cudahy will establish and implement solid 
waste management programs which reduce waste at the source, 
promote the reuse of all possible waste materials, and promote 
recycling and composting. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The primary program which will help the City in reducing solid waste generation is the Source 
Reduction and Recycling Element which has been developed in compliance with Assembly Bill 
939. The Element outlines ways to reduce waste generated within the City and disposed at 
county landfills. Programs in this element 
include: 



Attachment C 
 

19 
 

• Promotion of household, commercial and industrial recycling through the City 
newsletter, local papers and local haulers. 

• Information on recycling centers in the Cudahy area. 
• Monitoring adequacy and efficiency of garbage collection services through periodic 

inspections and review of franchise agreements. 
• Provision of technical assistance for commercial and industrial recycling programs 
• Encouraging local haulers to recycle or go to transfer stations instead of going 

directly to landfills. 
 

 
Policy 4.2. The City of Cudahy will promote programs for the 
recycling of waste products such as paper, aluminum, bottles and 
motor oil. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The primary program which will help the City in reducing solid waste generation is the Source 
Reduction and Recycling Element which has been developed in compliance with Assembly Bill 
939. The Element outlines ways to reduce waste generated within the City and disposed at 
county landfills. Programs in this element 
include: 

• Promotion of household, commercial and industrial recycling through the City 
newsletter, local papers and local haulers. 

• Information on recycling centers in the Cudahy area. 
• Monitoring adequacy and efficiency of garbage collection services through periodic 

inspections and review of franchise agreements. 
• Provision of technical assistance for commercial and industrial recycling programs 
• Encouraging local haulers to recycle or go to transfer stations instead of going 

directly to landfills. 
 

 
Policy 4.3. The City of Cudahy will maintain the efficiency of solid 
waste collection services in the City. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The primary program which will help the City in reducing solid waste generation is the Source 
Reduction and Recycling Element which has been developed in compliance with Assembly Bill 
939. The Element outlines ways to reduce waste generated within the City and disposed at 
county landfills. Programs in this element 
include: 

• Promotion of household, commercial and industrial recycling through the City 
newsletter, local papers and local haulers. 

• Information on recycling centers in the Cudahy area. 
• Monitoring adequacy and efficiency of garbage collection services through periodic 

inspections and review of franchise agreements. 
• Provision of technical assistance for commercial and industrial recycling programs 
• Encouraging local haulers to recycle or go to transfer stations instead of going 

directly to landfills. 
 

 
PUBLIC SAFETY ELEMENT 
 
 
Goal 1. The City of Cudahy will work to provide an environment that 
is reasonably safe from hazards. 
 

 

 
Policy 1.1. The City of Cudahy will require geologic studies prior to 
the construction of critical facilities (hospitals, schools, fire stations, 

 
Ongoing 

 
As part of the development review process, the City shall require the preparation of geologic 
studies prior to the approval of critical facilities, uses which involve the assembly of large 



Attachment C 
 

20 
 

etc.). 
 

numbers of people, large scale residential developments, and major commercial and industrial 
projects. The studies will help define the potential environmental impacts on earth and geology 
of new development, as required by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). This is 
an ongoing program by the Community Development Department, with funding from the 
General Fund. 
 

 
Policy 1.2. The City of Cudahy will support the enforcement of state 
and federal laws on the control of hazardous wastes, landfills, and 
other issues. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall encourage the implementation of the County's Hazardous Waste Management 
Plan. It shall maintain a current inventory of hazardous material users and generators and 
incorporate their emergency response programs into the City's Emergency Plan. The City will 
work with the County Fire Department in requiring hazardous materials users and generators 
to prepare safety procedures for responding to accidental spills and emergencies. The City 
shall coordinate the disposal of small quantities of hazardous wastes from residences and 
businesses in the City. This program shall be initiated by the Department of Community 
Services and the Department of Community Development and it shall be funded by the 
General Fund. 
 

 
Policy 1.3. The City of Cudahy will conduct an inventory of 
substandard structures and utilize the Uniform Building Code 
abatement process to eliminate or abate these hazards. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue code enforcement efforts to encourage property maintenance. This 
includes the identification of nuisances which endanger public health and safety and the 
provision of technical support or other incentive to allow early correction of the problem. The 
City shall also work towards the identification and renovation of structures which do not meet 
current seismic safety standards and electrical code requirements. In areas that are subject to 
annexation, the inventory and rehabilitation of substandard structures shall be made after 
these areas are annexed to the City. Code enforcement is an ongoing activity and will continue 
to be financed through CDBG funds. The rehabilitation of substandard structures shall be the 
responsibility of individual property owners, with CDBG funds available for qualified 
homeowners. 
 

 
Policy 1.4. The City of Cudahy will increase awareness of the 
hazards of fire and ways to prevent fire. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue to implement fire prevention programs to promote fire safety in the City. 
This shall include fire prevention and protection information and tips in the City newsletter and 
local newspapers. It shall also include Fire Department review of proposed buildings plans to 
solicit recommendations on fire protection, crime prevention, and other safety measures. The 
City shall also encourage periodic inspections by the Fire Department of existing structures, for 
compliance with fire safety standards and practices. This is an ongoing program by the 
Department of Building and Public Services that will be financed by the General Fund. As part 
of this program, the City shall explore ways to require existing single family homes to install 
smoke detectors prior to a transfer of ownership. 
 

 
Policy 1.5. The City of Cudahy will establish emergency procedures 
for evacuation and/or relief for identified hazards in the City. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall work with the LAUSD, the Fire Department, and local law enforcement officials in 
offering classes on earthquake preparedness, fire prevention, crime prevention, hazard 
protection and other safety issues to school-age children and interested parties. This program 
shall be coordinated by the Department of Community Services and financed by the General 
Fund. The City shall maintain a list of available emergency shelters in the area. This shall 
include schools, auditoriums, gymnasiums, hospitals, and other structures which have large 
open areas to accommodate cots and provide mass care and emergency assistance. 
Additional structures shall be explored and agreements sought with property owners for the 
potential use of the facilities in cases of a disaster or emergency. This program shall be 



Attachment C 
 

21 
 

initiated by the Emergency Services Coordinator with funding from the General Fund. 
 

 
Policy 1.6. The City of Cudahy will request that Fire Department and 
local law enforcement officials comment on proposed large 
developments during the environmental review process. 
 

 
Ongoing  

 
The City shall regularly review the adequacy of police/law enforcement services and fire 
protection and emergency services in the City. This program shall be part of the annual budget 
review of contracts with the County Fire Department and the local law enforcement officials. 
The City shall work with local law enforcement officials and the County Fire Department to 
correct any identified deficiencies. It shall also request that local law enforcement officials and 
the Fire Department to review proposed development plans. In this way, they can recommend 
measures that will decrease fire potential and crime and facilitate quicker response. This 
program is ongoing and performed by the Department of Community Services and Community 
Development and is financed by the General Fund, to the extent funding is available. 
 

 
Policy 1.7. The City of Cudahy will develop and implement programs 
to assist residents and businesses to dispose of household 
quantities of hazardous materials. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall encourage the implementation of the County's Hazardous Waste Management 
Plan. It shall maintain a current inventory of hazardous material users and generators and 
incorporate their emergency response programs into the City's Emergency Plan. The City will 
work with the County Fire Department in requiring hazardous materials users and generators 
to prepare safety procedures for responding to accidental spills and emergencies. The City 
shall coordinate the disposal of small quantities of hazardous wastes from residences and 
businesses in the City. This program shall be initiated by the Department of Community 
Services and the Department of Community Development and it shall be funded by the 
General Fund. 
 

 
Policy 1.8. The City of Cudahy will develop health and safety 
programs as part of recreational services of the City. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue to use the City newsletter and local newspapers to increase public 
awareness on safety, crime prevention, fire prevention, earthquake preparedness and other 
practical safety measures. Also, it shall offer earthquake preparedness, first aid and CPR 
classes as part of the recreational and library programs in the City. These and other public 
programs to increase emergency preparedness and promote public safety for residents and 
businesses shall be initiated by the Department of Community Services with funding from the 
General Fund. 
 

 
Policy 1.9. The City of Cudahy will encourage the remediation of 
historic dumpsites and other identified contaminated sites in the 
City. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
There are various federal, state and county regulations that deal with environmental protection 
and pollution control. The City shall keep abreast of all regulations and standards and shall 
cooperate with other agencies in the enforcement of these laws in Cudahy. The Department of 
Community Development is responsible for this program and is ongoing and funded by the 
General Fund. 
 

 
Goal 2. The City of Cudahy will promote emergency preparedness. 
 

 

 
Policy 2.1. The City of Cudahy will maintain the City's emergency 
response system. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City is developing an Emergency Plan which outlines responsibilities and procedures to 
follow in the event of an emergency or city-wide disaster. It discusses the potential emergency 
situations in the City and outlines responsibilities for emergency preparedness and emergency 
response. Specific emergency functions and operations, available resources (fire stations, 
emergency shelters, hospitals and clinics, resource persons, etc.), and mutual aid agreements 
are also provided. The City shall regularly update and implement its Multi-Hazard Functional 



Attachment C 
 

22 
 

Plan for Emergency Operations. This is an ongoing activity by the Emergency Services 
Coordinator, with funding from the General Fund. In order to keep city staff informed of their 
responsibilities, annual reviews and drills shall be performed. 
 

 
Policy 2.2. The City of Cudahy will provide for the highest quality of 
fire, police, and health protection possible, within reasonable 
economic limits, for all Cudahy residents. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall regularly review the adequacy of police/law enforcement services and fire 
protection and emergency services in the City. This program shall be part of the annual budget 
review of contracts with the County Fire Department and the local law enforcement officials. 
The City shall work with local law enforcement officials and the County Fire Department to 
correct any identified deficiencies. It shall also request that local law enforcement officials and 
the Fire Department to review proposed development plans. In this way, they can recommend 
measures that will decrease fire potential and crime and facilitate quicker response. This 
program is ongoing and performed by the Department of Community Services and Community 
Development and is financed by the General Fund, to the extent funding is available. 
 

 
Policy 2.3. The City of Cudahy will solicit volunteers to assist city 
operations during a disaster. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City is developing an Emergency Plan which outlines responsibilities and procedures to 
follow in the event of an emergency or city-wide disaster. It discusses the potential emergency 
situations in the City and outlines responsibilities for emergency preparedness and emergency 
response. Specific emergency functions and operations, available resources (fire stations, 
emergency shelters, hospitals and clinics, resource persons, etc.), and mutual aid agreements 
are also provided. The City shall regularly update and implement its Multi-Hazard Functional 
Plan for Emergency Operations. This is an ongoing activity by the Emergency Services 
Coordinator, with funding from the General Fund. In order to keep city staff informed of their 
responsibilities, annual reviews and drills shall be performed. 
 

 
Policy 2.4. The City of Cudahy will maintain contingency plans 
which will help Cudahy citizens respond to and recover from an 
earthquake as quickly and effectively as possible. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall work with the LAUSD, the Fire Department, and local law enforcement officials in 
offering classes on earthquake preparedness, fire prevention, crime prevention, hazard 
protection and other safety issues to school-age children and interested parties. This program 
shall be coordinated by the Department of Community Services and financed by the General 
Fund. The City shall maintain a list of available emergency shelters in the area. This shall 
include schools, auditoriums, gymnasiums, hospitals, and other structures which have large 
open areas to accommodate cots and provide mass care and emergency assistance. 
Additional structures shall be explored and agreements sought with property owners for the 
potential use of the facilities in cases of a disaster or emergency. This program shall be 
initiated by the Emergency Services Coordinator with funding from the General Fund. 
 

 
Policy 2.5. The City of Cudahy will disseminate educational 
information to residents and businesses on ways to prepare for and 
prevent a disaster. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue to use the City newsletter and local newspapers to increase public 
awareness on safety, crime prevention, fire prevention, earthquake preparedness and other 
practical safety measures. Also, it shall offer earthquake preparedness, first aid and CPR 
classes as part of the recreational and library programs in the City. These and other public 
programs to increase emergency preparedness and promote public safety for residents and 
businesses shall be initiated by the Department of Community Services with funding from the 
General Fund. 
 

 
Policy 2.6. The City of Cudahy will encourage the LAUSD to teach 
emergency preparedness to students. 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall work with the LAUSD, the Fire Department, and local law enforcement officials in 
offering classes on earthquake preparedness, fire prevention, crime prevention, hazard 



Attachment C 
 

23 
 

 protection and other safety issues to school-age children and interested parties. This program 
shall be coordinated by the Department of Community Services and financed by the General 
Fund. The City shall maintain a list of available emergency shelters in the area. This shall 
include schools, auditoriums, gymnasiums, hospitals, and other structures which have large 
open areas to accommodate cots and provide mass care and emergency assistance. 
Additional structures shall be explored and agreements sought with property owners for the 
potential use of the facilities in cases of a disaster or emergency. This program shall be 
initiated by the Emergency Services Coordinator with funding from the General Fund. 
 

 
Policy 2.7. The City of Cudahy will regularly monitor the water 
quality, distribution and supply facilities to determine if capacity is 
adequate to meet emergency fire flow needs. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall regularly review the adequacy of police/law enforcement services and fire 
protection and emergency services in the City. This program shall be part of the annual budget 
review of contracts with the County Fire Department and the local law enforcement officials. 
The City shall work with local law enforcement officials and the County Fire Department to 
correct any identified deficiencies. It shall also request that local law enforcement officials and 
the Fire Department to review proposed development plans. In this way, they can recommend 
measures that will decrease fire potential and crime and facilitate quicker response. This 
program is ongoing and performed by the Department of Community Services and Community 
Development and is financed by the General Fund, to the extent funding is available. 
 

 
Policy 2.8 The City of Cudahy will explore the feasibility of requiring 
smoke detectors in private homes upon their sale or transfer of 
ownership. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue to implement fire prevention programs to promote fire safety in the City. 
This shall include fire prevention and protection information and tips in the City newsletter and 
local newspapers. It shall also include Fire Department review of proposed buildings plans to 
solicit recommendations on fire protection, crime prevention, and other safety measures. The 
City shall also encourage periodic inspections by the Fire Department of existing structures, for 
compliance with fire safety standards and practices. This is an ongoing program by the 
Department of Building and Public Services that will be financed by the General Fund. As part 
of this program, the City shall explore ways to require existing single family homes to install 
smoke detectors prior to a transfer of ownership. 
 

 
Goal 3. The City of Cudahy will minimize crime incidence in the City. 
 

 

 
Policy 3.1. The City of Cudahy will work with local law enforcement 
officials and neighboring police departments to eliminate gang 
violence. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall work with local law enforcement officials on anti-drug and anti-gang programs. 
This will help reduce crimes in the City that are due to gang activity and drug abuse. The 
program also allows the use of confiscated property for increase anti-drug and anti-gang 
efforts. This program is ongoing and coordinated by the City Manager. 
 

 
Policy 3.2. The City of Cudahy will develop programs to reduce 
and/or prevent graffiti and drug abuse. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall develop guidelines for the landscaping of large areas of blank walls to hide and 
prevent vandalism and graffiti. It shall also establish a volunteer program for graffiti removal in 
public places and other areas throughout the City. This program shall be initiated by the 
Department of Community Development and financed by the General Fund. 
 

 
Policy 3.3. The City of Cudahy will encourage the development of 
neighborhood watch programs and inform residents and businesses 
of ways to prevent crime. 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall work with local law enforcement officials and residents in the formation of 
neighborhood watch groups and crime prevention and awareness programs. This will increase 
private efforts to protect individuals and property through practical measures such as locking 



Attachment C 
 

24 
 

 doors, security lighting, concealing valuables, etc. This is an ongoing program through the City 
Manager and funded by the General Fund. 
 

 
Policy 3.4. The City of Cudahy will promote crime prevention 
through public information and awareness programs. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall work with local law enforcement officials and residents in the formation of 
neighborhood watch groups and crime prevention and awareness programs. This will increase 
private efforts to protect individuals and property through practical measures such as locking 
doors, security lighting, concealing valuables, etc. This is an ongoing program through the City 
Manager and funded by the General Fund. 
 

 
NOISE ELEMENT 
 
 
Goal 1. The City of Cudahy will prevent any increase in the 
established acceptable ambient levels of sound in the residential 
areas of the community. 
 

 

 
Policy 1.1. The City of Cudahy will consider the inclusion of noise-
impacted areas in redevelopment or other programs which would 
permit assistance for the residents with relocation, rehabilitation, or 
insulation of their structures and properties. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
With most of the City developed, noise abatement can be implemented during rehabilitation or 
redevelopment activities, or as part of the code enforcement process. Redevelopment projects 
shall comply with City noise standards. 
 

 
Policy 1.2. The City of Cudahy will consider steps to correct existing 
noise problem areas through the establishment of buffers and 
barriers or through abatement procedures. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The noise mitigation program for Cudahy shall expand existing regulations relating to noise 
and establish standards for controlling noise sources and their impacts. This may include the 
provision of noise barriers (berms, walls, etc.), buffer areas or setbacks, increased insulation, 
blank exterior walls, double-paned windows, noise-masking sounds, mufflers, and other noise 
control devices and building features. Vibration that affects adjacent properties shall also be 
regulated. The City shall require an acoustical analysis for projects that have the potential for 
generating excessive noise levels or those uses which would be developed adjacent to a noise 
source. The study shall include existing ambient noise levels from mobile and stationary 
sources. It shall estimate cumulative noise levels at implementation of the project. The 
estimates shall be provided for both interior and exterior areas on site. Specific measures to 
reduce projected noise levels to acceptable standards shall be identified. 
 

 
Policy 1.3. The City of Cudahy will discourage the location of un-
buffered noise sources near residential areas and schools. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue to review development projects for compliance with existing City 
ordinances before the projects are implemented. During the application process, the City shall 
analyze the potential environmental impacts of a project, as required by the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Mitigation measures shall be identified as a means to 
mitigate potential adverse impacts and made as conditions of approval. This is an ongoing 
program by the Community Development Department. 
 

 
Goal 2. The City of Cudahy will prohibit unnecessary noise which is 
detrimental to the public health and welfare and contrary to the 
public interest. 
 

 



Attachment C 
 

25 
 

 
Policy 2.1. The City of Cudahy will evaluate the noise impacts of all 
land use decisions which are subject to environmental review under 
CEQA. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue to review development projects for compliance with existing City 
ordinances before the projects are implemented. During the application process, the City shall 
analyze the potential environmental impacts of a project, as required by the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Mitigation measures shall be identified as a means to 
mitigate potential adverse impacts and made as conditions of approval. This is an ongoing 
program by the Community Development Department. 
 

 
Policy 2.2. The City of Cudahy will control at their sources, any 
sounds which exceed accepted community noise levels. 
 

 
Ongoing  

 
The City shall continue to review development projects for compliance with existing City 
ordinances before the projects are implemented. During the application process, the City shall 
analyze the potential environmental impacts of a project, as required by the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Mitigation measures shall be identified as a means to 
mitigate potential adverse impacts and made as conditions of approval. This is an ongoing 
program by the Community Development Department. 
 

 
Policy 2.3. The City of Cudahy will limit construction activities to 
daytime hours to reduce construction noise impacts. 
 

 
Ongoing  

 
The noise mitigation program shall also identify noisy activities and operations and provide 
guidelines to reduce disturbance on adjacent uses. Noise-generating activities will include 
construction equipment and activity noise, sports events, use of play areas, power mowers and 
leaf blowers, garbage collection and truck traffic and deliveries, false car or security alarms, 
large gatherings and other outdoor activities. Limitations in the hours of operation and the 
length of operation will contribute in large part to the reduction of noise from these uses. Noise 
during the nighttime and the early morning hours are more disruptive and the regulation of 
activities during these times will prevent adverse noise impacts. 
 

 
Policy 2.4. The City of Cudahy will discourage truck traffic on local 
streets during nighttime hours. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The noise mitigation program shall also identify noisy activities and operations and provide 
guidelines to reduce disturbance on adjacent uses. Noise-generating activities will include 
construction equipment and activity noise, sports events, use of play areas, power mowers and 
leaf blowers, garbage collection and truck traffic and deliveries, false car or security alarms, 
large gatherings and other outdoor activities. Limitations in the hours of operation and the 
length of operation will contribute in large part to the reduction of noise from these uses. Noise 
during the nighttime and the early morning hours are more disruptive and the regulation of 
activities during these times will prevent adverse noise impacts. 
 

 
Policy 2.5. The City of Cudahy will establish acceptable limits of 
noise for various land uses throughout the community. 
 

 
Ongoing  

 
The noise mitigation program for Cudahy shall expand existing regulations relating to noise 
and establish standards for controlling noise sources and their impacts. This may include the 
provision of noise barriers (berms, walls, etc.), buffer areas or setbacks, increased insulation, 
blank exterior walls, double-paned windows, noise-masking sounds, mufflers, and other noise 
control devices and building features. Vibration that affects adjacent properties shall also be 
regulated. The City shall require an acoustical analysis for projects that have the potential for 
generating excessive noise levels or those uses which would be developed adjacent to a noise 
source. The study shall include existing ambient noise levels from mobile and stationary 
sources. It shall estimate cumulative noise levels at implementation of the project. The 
estimates shall be provided for both interior and exterior areas on site. Specific measures to 
reduce projected noise levels to acceptable standards shall be identified. 
 

   



Attachment C 
 

26 
 

Policy 2.6. The City of Cudahy will encourage increased acoustical 
design in new construction when adjacent to known sources of 
noise. 
 

Ongoing The City shall continue to review development projects for compliance with existing City 
ordinances before the projects are implemented. During the application process, the City shall 
analyze the potential environmental impacts of a project, as required by the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Mitigation measures shall be identified as a means to 
mitigate potential adverse impacts and made as conditions of approval. This is an ongoing 
program by the Community Development Department. 
 

 
AIR QUALITY ELEMENT 
 
 
Goal 1. The City of Cudahy will reduce automobile use. 
 

 

 
Policy 1.1. The City of Cudahy will allow telecommuting by public 
employees on a Case by case basis, where analysis shows it is 
feasible. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall explore the use of telecommuting and teleconferencing for City employees to 
serve as a model for potential usage by City residents and businesses. Telecommuting can be 
through work at home by city employees one or more days a week, with communication 
through computer and telephone hookups to City Hall. The City will also explore acquisition of 
electronic communication equipment which facilitates telecommuting by employees and 
residents. For example, a teleconferencing center could be established in the City's Bedwell 
Community Center adjacent to City Hall. The City shall explore the feasibility of such a center 
in terms of potential community usage and seek funding from the SCAQMD's Motor Vehicle 
License Fund if it finds that there is a potential need which could be met through such a center. 
 

 
Policy 1.2. The City of Cudahy will support trip-reduction programs, 
such as longer day, shorter week work schedules on a case by case 
basis for public employees, where analysis show that it is feasible. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City Manager shall explore the feasibility of permitting modified work schedules for public 
employees on a case-by-case basis. Most of the City's employees are single positions and 
need to work a five day schedule in order to provide full service during the City's posted work 
week. The City Manager shall also explore the feasibility of modifying the present work week 
schedule to determine if alternative schedules could better meet the City's needs. The City 
shall support the formation of a Transportation Management Association for use by employers 
in the city who may be covered by future amendments to Regulation XV. 
 

 
Policy 1.3. The City of Cudahy will support policies that reduce or 
eliminate obstacles to telecommuting. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall explore the use of telecommuting and teleconferencing for City employees to 
serve as a model for potential usage by City residents and businesses. Telecommuting can be 
through work at home by city employees one or more days a week, with communication 
through computer and telephone hookups to City Hall. The City will also explore acquisition of 
electronic communication equipment which facilitates telecommuting by employees and 
residents. For example, a teleconferencing center could be established in the City's Bedwell 
Community Center adjacent to City Hall. The City shall explore the feasibility of such a center 
in terms of potential community usage and seek funding from the SCAQMD's Motor Vehicle 
License Fund if it finds that there is a potential need which could be met through such a center. 
 

 
Policy 1.4. The City of Cudahy will encourage employers in 
surrounding communities to support establishment of a 
telecommuting center in Cudahy. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall explore the use of telecommuting and teleconferencing for City employees to 
serve as a model for potential usage by City residents and businesses. Telecommuting can be 
through work at home by city employees one or more days a week, with communication 
through computer and telephone hookups to City Hall. The City will also explore acquisition of 
electronic communication equipment which facilitates telecommuting by employees and 



Attachment C 
 

27 
 

residents. For example, a teleconferencing center could be established in the City's Bedwell 
Community Center adjacent to City Hall. The City shall explore the feasibility of such a center 
in terms of potential community usage and seek funding from the SCAQMD's Motor Vehicle 
License Fund if it finds that there is a potential need which could be met through such a center. 
 

 
Policy 1.5. The City of Cudahy will encourage development of a 
Transportation Management Association in Cudahy to serve public 
and private employees. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City Manager shall explore the feasibility of permitting modified work schedules for public 
employees on a case-by-case basis. Most of the City's employees are single positions and 
need to work a five day schedule in order to provide full service during the City's posted work 
week. The City Manager shall also explore the feasibility of modifying the present work week 
schedule to determine if alternative schedules could better meet the City's needs. The City 
shall support the formation of a Transportation Management Association for use by employers 
in the city who may be covered by future amendments to Regulation XV. 
 

 
Policy 1.6. The City of Cudahy will support legislation favoring 
vanpools. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City Manager shall explore the feasibility of permitting modified work schedules for public 
employees on a case-by-case basis. Most of the City's employees are single positions and 
need to work a five day schedule in order to provide full service during the City's posted work 
week. The City Manager shall also explore the feasibility of modifying the present work week 
schedule to determine if alternative schedules could better meet the City's needs. The City 
shall support the formation of a Transportation Management Association for use by employers 
in the city who may be covered by future amendments to Regulation XV. 
 

 
Goal 2. The City of Cudahy will encourage use of non-motorized 
transportation. 
 

 

 
Policy 2.1. The City of Cudahy will encourage walking trips by 
residents and local employees in lieu of automobile trips. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall review access to schools, playgrounds, and community centers and take 
necessary steps, such as providing and timing traffic signals to allow adequate crossing time 
for safe passage across streets by bicyclists and pedestrians. 
 

 
Policy 2.2. The City of Cudahy will encourage bicycle trips by 
providing bicycle paths or safe bicycle access between residential 
areas and employment centers, schools and recreation areas, 
where feasible. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall review access to schools, playgrounds, and community centers and take 
necessary steps, such as providing and timing traffic signals to allow adequate crossing time 
for safe passage across streets by bicyclists and pedestrians. 
 

 
Policy 2.3. The City of Cudahy will require that any future large 
employment center provide bicycle lockers and storage, where 
bicycle access is feasible. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall consider the energy efficiency of new equipment when it purchases replacement 
equipment and shall purchase low energy replacements whenever feasible. Through the City's 
development review process, new construction shall be required to demonstrate that energy 
conservation measures beyond those required by Title 24 have been incorporated whenever 
feasible. To assist developers in knowing what options and special grants are available, the 
City shall work with the Southern California Edison Company and the Southern California Gas 
Company to identify new low cost construction, heating and appliance techniques and 
equipment that can result in substantial energy and cost savings for future tenants and owners. 
The City shall make information and utility company contacts available to all applicants for 
building permits. 
 



Attachment C 
 

28 
 

The City will utilize its Development Review Process to encourage the use of low-polluting 
building materials in new construction. It will also utilize the Development Review Process to 
assure that the exposure of sensitive receptors to toxic and hazardous pollutants, as well as 
dust and odors is minimized or, where feasible, eliminated. The City will revise its California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines to insure uniform assessment of air quality 
impacts of projects and will incorporate the SCAQMD significance thresholds in these 
Guidelines or into EIR's and negative declarations prepared pursuant to these Guidelines. 
 

 
Goal 3. The City of Cudahy will reduce vehicle emissions through 
greater use of public transportation. 
 

 

 
Policy 3.1. The City of Cudahy will enhance transit performance and 
availability, and make the local transit system user-friendly by 
providing safe, attractive places to wait.  
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City, which already provides free transit (CART) to all residents with access to all 
community facilities, shall explore ways to enhance usage. Information on CART and MTA 
transit schedules shall be readily available to Cudahy residents and employees at city facilities 
and at other centers, such as supermarkets, serving the community. The City will examine 
existing transit stops to insure that they are safe and there are no identified impediments, such 
as overhanging trees that interfere with their use. The City will work with CART operators and 
the MTA to insure that local access to regional transit is enhanced. 
 

 
Policy 3.2. The City of Cudahy will facilitate connections of CART to 
regional transit.  
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City, which already provides free transit (CART) to all residents with access to all 
community facilities, shall explore ways to enhance usage. Information on CART and MTA 
transit schedules shall be readily available to Cudahy residents and employees at city facilities 
and at other centers, such as supermarkets, serving the community. The City will examine 
existing transit stops to insure that they are safe and there are no identified impediments, such 
as overhanging trees that interfere with their use. The City will work with CART operators and 
the MTA to insure that local access to regional transit is enhanced. 
 

 
Policy 3.3. The City of Cudahy will insure that information on public 
transit is readily available to Cudahy residents and employees.  
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City, which already provides free transit (CART) to all residents with access to all 
community facilities, shall explore ways to enhance usage. Information on CART and MTA 
transit schedules shall be readily available to Cudahy residents and employees at city facilities 
and at other centers, such as supermarkets, serving the community. The City will examine 
existing transit stops to insure that they are safe and there are no identified impediments, such 
as overhanging trees that interfere with their use. The City will work with CART operators and 
the MTA to insure that local access to regional transit is enhanced. 
 

 
Policy 3.4. The City of Cudahy will insure that new development 
incorporates features that facilitate transit.  
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall consider the energy efficiency of new equipment when it purchases replacement 
equipment and shall purchase low energy replacements whenever feasible. Through the City's 
development review process, new construction shall be required to demonstrate that energy 
conservation measures beyond those required by Title 24 have been incorporated whenever 
feasible. To assist developers in knowing what options and special grants are available, the 
City shall work with the Southern California Edison Company and the Southern California Gas 
Company to identify new low cost construction, heating and appliance techniques and 
equipment that can result in substantial energy and cost savings for future tenants and owners. 
The City shall make information and utility company contacts available to all applicants for 
building permits. 



Attachment C 
 

29 
 

 
The City will utilize its Development Review Process to encourage the use of low-polluting 
building materials in new construction. It will also utilize the Development Review Process to 
assure that the exposure of sensitive receptors to toxic and hazardous pollutants, as well as 
dust and odors is minimized or, where feasible, eliminated. The City will revise its California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines to insure uniform assessment of air quality 
impacts of projects and will incorporate the SCAQMD significance thresholds in these 
Guidelines or into EIR's and negative declarations prepared pursuant to these Guidelines. 
 

 
Goal 4. The City of Cudahy will reduce Roadway Congestion.  
 

 

 
Policy 4.1. The City of Cudahy will encourage truck operations to 
divert peak hour travel, whenever feasible, to off peak periods to 
reduce roadway congestion and associated emissions.  
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City will review truck traffic on city streets. Where truck deliveries are causing congestion 
during peak vehicle travel hours, the City will work with local businesses to determine if 
delivery times can be adjusted to eliminate conflicts. The City will establish designated, posted 
truck routes and discourage truck traffic in residential neighborhoods. 
 

 
Policy 4.2. The City of Cudahy will encourage local facilities which 
receive trucks to adjust schedules, wherever feasible, to receive 
deliveries in off-peak hours.  
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City will review truck traffic on city streets. Where truck deliveries are causing congestion 
during peak vehicle travel hours, the City will work with local businesses to determine if 
delivery times can be adjusted to eliminate conflicts. The City will establish designated, posted 
truck routes and discourage truck traffic in residential neighborhoods. 
 

 
Goal 5. The City of Cudahy will reduce vehicle emissions through 
improved parking management and design.  
 

 

 
Policy 5.1. The City of Cudahy will consider reducing parking 
requirements for both new and existing structures and 
developments where analysis shows that parking can serve two or 
more non-competing uses.  
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall utilize the development review process to require that new parking lots serving 
commercial uses be designed to insure adequate access and egress to avoid queuing on 
adjacent streets. The City shall support adoption of ordinances to ease parking requirements 
on a case-by-case basis where facilities can share a common parking lot because of different 
time demands, e.g. a church and an office building. The City shall support and publicize 
community activities, such as a street fair, where parking is temporarily restricted and residents 
can walk to the site. Finally, the City shall continue to enforce its 3-6 AM ban on parking on 
residential streets to discourage automobile parking and encourage transit usage. 
 

 
Policy 5.2. The City of Cudahy will review parking requirements for 
new developments on a case by case basis and consider reducing 
parking requirements where present and future access to public 
transportation can be assured.  
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall utilize the development review process to require that new parking lots serving 
commercial uses be designed to insure adequate access and egress to avoid queuing on 
adjacent streets. The City shall support adoption of ordinances to ease parking requirements 
on a case-by-case basis where facilities can share a common parking lot because of different 
time demands, e.g. a church and an office building. The City shall support and publicize 
community activities, such as a street fair, where parking is temporarily restricted and residents 
can walk to the site. Finally, the City shall continue to enforce its 3-6 AM ban on parking on 
residential streets to discourage automobile parking and encourage transit usage. 
 

 
Policy 5.3. The City of Cudahy will support community activities 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall utilize the development review process to require that new parking lots serving 



Attachment C 
 

30 
 

where parking is temporarily restricted and walking or public transit 
is facilitated.  
 

commercial uses be designed to insure adequate access and egress to avoid queuing on 
adjacent streets. The City shall support adoption of ordinances to ease parking requirements 
on a case-by-case basis where facilities can share a common parking lot because of different 
time demands, e.g. a church and an office building. The City shall support and publicize 
community activities, such as a street fair, where parking is temporarily restricted and residents 
can walk to the site. Finally, the City shall continue to enforce its 2-4 AM ban on parking on 
residential streets to discourage automobile parking and encourage transit usage. 
 

 
Policy 5.4. The City of Cudahy will continue existing city policy of 
restricting parking on city streets between 2 AM and 4 AM to 
discourage excess automobile use per dwelling unit. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall utilize the development review process to require that new parking lots serving 
commercial uses be designed to insure adequate access and egress to avoid queuing on 
adjacent streets. The City shall support adoption of ordinances to ease parking requirements 
on a case-by-case basis where facilities can share a common parking lot because of different 
time demands, e.g. a church and an office building. The City shall support and publicize 
community activities, such as a street fair, where parking is temporarily restricted and residents 
can walk to the site. Finally, the City shall continue to enforce its 3-6 AM ban on parking on 
residential streets to discourage automobile parking and encourage transit usage. 
 

 
Policy 5.5. The City of Cudahy will consider limiting parking on 
congested arterial streets. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall utilize the development review process to require that new parking lots serving 
commercial uses be designed to insure adequate access and egress to avoid queuing on 
adjacent streets. The City shall support adoption of ordinances to ease parking requirements 
on a case-by-case basis where facilities can share a common parking lot because of different 
time demands, e.g. a church and an office building. The City shall support and publicize 
community activities, such as a street fair, where parking is temporarily restricted and residents 
can walk to the site. Finally, the City shall continue to enforce its 3-6 AM ban on parking on 
residential streets to discourage automobile parking and encourage transit usage. 
 

 
Policy 5.6. The City of Cudahy will promote parking facility designs 
which discourage queuing. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall utilize the development review process to require that new parking lots serving 
commercial uses be designed to insure adequate access and egress to avoid queuing on 
adjacent streets. The City shall support adoption of ordinances to ease parking requirements 
on a case-by-case basis where facilities can share a common parking lot because of different 
time demands, e.g. a church and an office building. The City shall support and publicize 
community activities, such as a street fair, where parking is temporarily restricted and residents 
can walk to the site. Finally, the City shall continue to enforce its 3-6 AM ban on parking on 
residential streets to discourage automobile parking and encourage transit usage. 
 

 
Goal 6. The City of Cudahy will reduce emissions associated with 
vehicle miles traveled by providing a balance of jobs and housing. 
 

 

 
Policy 6.1. The City of Cudahy will work cooperatively with adjacent 
job-rich communities to improve overall job/housing balance in the 
subarea. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall actively pursue increased job opportunities within the City to improve the City's 
overall job/housing balance. The City's Redevelopment Agency shall encourage revitalization 
of existing commercial areas along Atlantic Avenue to promote new jobs. The Redevelopment 
Agency shall also instigate programs to encourage rehabilitation of the industrial area and 
conversion of older or abandoned facilities to warehousing and other light industrial uses. 
 
The City shall work with other cities within the Southeast Los Angeles County subregion to 



Attachment C 
 

31 
 

coordinate strategies to improve subregional housing and employment balance so that workers 
in adjacent job-rich communities can take advantage of the City's housing opportunities. The 
City will participate in subregional planning councils and work with neighboring cities to 
address job/housing balance, regional transit access, and waste management issues which 
cut across city lines. 
 

 
Policy 6.2. The City of Cudahy will support economic development 
policies which promote opportunities for employment within the City. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall actively pursue increased job opportunities within the City to improve the City's 
overall job/housing balance. The City's Redevelopment Agency shall encourage revitalization 
of existing commercial areas along Atlantic Avenue to promote new jobs. The Redevelopment 
Agency shall also instigate programs to encourage rehabilitation of the industrial area and 
conversion of older or abandoned facilities to warehousing and other light industrial uses. 
 
The City shall work with other cities within the Southeast Los Angeles County subregion to 
coordinate strategies to improve subregional housing and employment balance so that workers 
in adjacent job-rich communities can take advantage of the City's housing opportunities. The 
City will participate in subregional planning councils and work with neighboring cities to 
address job/housing balance, regional transit access, and waste management issues which 
cut across city lines. 
 

 
Policy 6.3. The City of Cudahy will support economic development 
policies which promote a balance of shopping and services 
necessary for the City's residential sector. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall actively pursue increased job opportunities within the City to improve the City's 
overall job/housing balance. The City's Redevelopment Agency shall encourage revitalization 
of existing commercial areas along Atlantic Avenue to promote new jobs. The Redevelopment 
Agency shall also instigate programs to encourage rehabilitation of the industrial area and 
conversion of older or abandoned facilities to warehousing and other light industrial uses. 
 
The City shall work with other cities within the Southeast Los Angeles County subregion to 
coordinate strategies to improve subregional housing and employment balance so that workers 
in adjacent job-rich communities can take advantage of the City's housing opportunities. The 
City will participate in subregional planning councils and work with neighboring cities to 
address job/housing balance, regional transit access, and waste management issues which 
cut across city lines. 
 

 
Goal 7. The City of Cudahy will reduce emissions associated with 
energy consumption. 
 

 

 
Policy 7.1. The City of Cudahy will support the use of energy-
efficient equipment and design in City facilities and infrastructure. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall consider the energy efficiency of new equipment when it purchases replacement 
equipment and shall purchase low energy replacements whenever feasible. Through the City's 
development review process, new construction shall be required to demonstrate that energy 
conservation measures beyond those required by Title 24 have been incorporated whenever 
feasible. To assist developers in knowing what options and special grants are available, the 
City shall work with the Southern California Edison Company and the Southern California Gas 
Company to identify new low cost construction, heating and appliance techniques and 
equipment that can result in substantial energy and cost savings for future tenants and owners. 
The City shall make information and utility company contacts available to all applicants for 
building permits. 
 



Attachment C 
 

32 
 

The City will utilize its Development Review Process to encourage the use of low-polluting 
building materials in new construction. It will also utilize the Development Review Process to 
assure that the exposure of sensitive receptors to toxic and hazardous pollutants, as well as 
dust and odors is minimized or, where feasible, eliminated. The City will revise its California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines to insure uniform assessment of air quality 
impacts of projects and will incorporate the SCAQMD significance thresholds in these 
Guidelines or into EIR's and negative declarations prepared pursuant to these Guidelines. 
 

 
Policy 7.2. The City of Cudahy will encourage incorporation of 
energy conservation features, including passive solar, in new 
construction and rehabilitation of existing structures. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall consider the energy efficiency of new equipment when it purchases replacement 
equipment and shall purchase low energy replacements whenever feasible. Through the City's 
development review process, new construction shall be required to demonstrate that energy 
conservation measures beyond those required by Title 24 have been incorporated whenever 
feasible. To assist developers in knowing what options and special grants are available, the 
City shall work with the Southern California Edison Company and the Southern California Gas 
Company to identify new low cost construction, heating and appliance techniques and 
equipment that can result in substantial energy and cost savings for future tenants and owners. 
The City shall make information and utility company contacts available to all applicants for 
building permits. 
 
The City will utilize its Development Review Process to encourage the use of low-polluting 
building materials in new construction. It will also utilize the Development Review Process to 
assure that the exposure of sensitive receptors to toxic and hazardous pollutants, as well as 
dust and odors is minimized or, where feasible, eliminated. The City will revise its California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines to insure uniform assessment of air quality 
impacts of projects and will incorporate the SCAQMD significance thresholds in these 
Guidelines or into EIR's and negative declarations prepared pursuant to these Guidelines. 
 

 
Policy 7.3. The City of Cudahy will support recycling programs 
which reduce emissions associated with manufacture and waste 
disposal. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The primary program which will help the City in reducing solid waste generation is the Source 
Reduction and Recycling Element which has been developed in compliance with Assembly Bill 
939. The Element outlines ways to reduce waste generated within the City and disposed at 
county landfills. Programs in this element 
include: 

• Promotion of household, commercial and industrial recycling through the City 
newsletter, local papers and local haulers. 

• Information on recycling centers in the Cudahy area. 
• Monitoring adequacy and efficiency of garbage collection services through periodic 

inspections and review of franchise agreements. 
• Provision of technical assistance for commercial and industrial recycling programs 
• Encouraging local haulers to recycle or go to transfer stations instead of going 

directly to landfills. 
 

 
Policy 7.4. The City of Cudahy will utilize drought resistant 
vegetation in city landscaping to reduce energy needed to pump 
water. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall consider the energy efficiency of new equipment when it purchases replacement 
equipment and shall purchase low energy replacements whenever feasible. Through the City's 
development review process, new construction shall be required to demonstrate that energy 
conservation measures beyond those required by Title 24 have been incorporated whenever 
feasible. To assist developers in knowing what options and special grants are available, the 
City shall work with the Southern California Edison Company and the Southern California Gas 



Attachment C 
 

33 
 

Company to identify new low cost construction, heating and appliance techniques and 
equipment that can result in substantial energy and cost savings for future tenants and owners. 
The City shall make information and utility company contacts available to all applicants for 
building permits. 
 
The City will utilize its Development Review Process to encourage the use of low-polluting 
building materials in new construction. It will also utilize the Development Review Process to 
assure that the exposure of sensitive receptors to toxic and hazardous pollutants, as well as 
dust and odors is minimized or, where feasible, eliminated. The City will revise its California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines to insure uniform assessment of air quality 
impacts of projects and will incorporate the SCAQMD significance thresholds in these 
Guidelines or into EIR's and negative declarations prepared pursuant to these Guidelines. 
 

 
Goal 8. The City of Cudahy will reduce fugitive dust emissions. 
 

 

 
Policy 8.1. The City of Cudahy will require all feasible fugitive dust 
reduction techniques to be utilized during construction activities. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
Air Quality Management Plan. Both Federal and State Clean Air Acts require that every non-
attainment area prepare an air quality management plan (AQMP) to identify ways local air 
quality may be returned to healthful levels. The SCAQMD is the principal local agency 
responsible for comprehensive air pollution control in the region that includes air quality 
monitoring, the development of long range plans to improve air quality, and the enforcement of 
regulations designed to attain and maintain State and Federal ambient air quality standards. 
The SCAQMD is responsible for the implementation of the protocols of the Federal Clean Air 
Act. In addition, the SCAQMD is responsible for ensuring that the more stringent California 
Clean Air standards are met. The most recent AQMP was adopted in June 2007 and focuses 
on those criteria pollutants for which the region is in non-attainment (ozone and particulates) 
as well as incorporating new scientific data, modeling, and regulations into the plan. 
 

 
Policy 8.2. The City of Cudahy will support the use of efficient street 
cleaning equipment and practices. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
Regulation XI Source Specific Standards. The Regulation XI rules are control measures that 
are applicable to a wide range of existing stationary sources designed to regulate a single 
pollutant. Each Regulation XI rule applies to controlling emissions from a specific source or 
type of equipment. 
 

 
Policy 8.3. The City of Cudahy will require reseeding and 
maintenance of exposed soil that has been previously disturbed. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
Through the Development review process the City ensures that reseeding and maintenance of 
exposed soil that has been previously disturbed is properly taken care of and restored. 

 
Policy 8.4. The City of Cudahy will encourage landscaping and tree 
planting which trap pollutants and protect sensitive receptors. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
Air Quality Management Plan. Both Federal and State Clean Air Acts require that every non-
attainment area prepare an air quality management plan (AQMP) to identify ways local air 
quality may be returned to healthful levels. The SCAQMD is the principal local agency 
responsible for comprehensive air pollution control in the region that includes air quality 
monitoring, the development of long range plans to improve air quality, and the enforcement of 
regulations designed to attain and maintain State and Federal ambient air quality standards. 
The SCAQMD is responsible for the implementation of the protocols of the Federal Clean Air 
Act. In addition, the SCAQMD is responsible for ensuring that the more stringent California 
Clean Air standards are met. The most recent AQMP was adopted in June 2007 and focuses 
on those criteria pollutants for which the region is in non-attainment (ozone and particulates) 



Attachment C 
 

34 
 

as well as incorporating new scientific data, modeling, and regulations into the plan. 
 

 
Policy 8.5. The City of Cudahy will encourage alternatives to the use 
of leaf blowers. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
Regulation XI Source Specific Standards. The Regulation XI rules are control measures that 
are applicable to a wide range of existing stationary sources designed to regulate a single 
pollutant. Each Regulation XI rule applies to controlling emissions from a specific source or 
type of equipment. 
 

 
Goal 9. The City of Cudahy will reduce air pollution emissions and 
impacts through citing and building design. 
 

 

 
Policy 9.1. The City of Cudahy will support the use of low polluting 
construction materials and coatings. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
Regulation XIII New Source Review. Regulation XIII establishes pre-construction review 
requirements for new, modified, or relocated facilities in the SCAB. Affected facilities must 
install best available control technology (BACT) equipment, which must be as stringent as the 
Lowest Achievable Emission Rate as defined by the Federal Clean Air Act. 
 

 
Policy 9.2. The City of Cudahy will provide, to the maximum extent 
feasible, for the separation of sensitive receptors, such as schools 
and hospitals, from sources of toxic emissions. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
Regulation IV Prohibitions. Regulation IV measures are applicable to a wide range of 
emissions sources. This regulation does not regulate specific types of equipment or sources of 
emissions. Further, Regulation IV rules establish emission standards that cannot be exceeded. 

 
Policy 9.3. The City of Cudahy will encourage design of new 
commercial developments to allow convenient access to customers 
and employees using public transportation or bicycles. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City, which already provides free transit (CART) to all residents with access to all 
community facilities, shall explore ways to enhance usage. Information on CART and MTA 
transit schedules shall be readily available to Cudahy residents and employees at city facilities 
and at other centers, such as supermarkets, serving the community. The City will examine 
existing transit stops to insure that they are safe and there are no identified impediments, such 
as overhanging trees that interfere with their use. The City will work with CART operators and 
the MTA to insure that local access to regional transit is enhanced. 
 

 
Goal 10. The City of Cudahy will improve preconstruction 
environmental review to reduce emissions and exposure. 
 

 

 
Policy 10.1. The City of Cudahy will standardize air quality review 
procedures for all new developments. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall consider the energy efficiency of new equipment when it purchases replacement 
equipment and shall purchase low energy replacements whenever feasible. Through the City's 
development review process, new construction shall be required to demonstrate that energy 
conservation measures beyond those required by Title 24 have been incorporated whenever 
feasible. To assist developers in knowing what options and special grants are available, the 
City shall work with the Southern California Edison Company and the Southern California Gas 
Company to identify new low cost construction, heating and appliance techniques and 
equipment that can result in substantial energy and cost savings for future tenants and owners. 
The City shall make information and utility company contacts available to all applicants for 
building permits. 
 
The City will utilize its Development Review Process to encourage the use of low-polluting 
building materials in new construction. It will also utilize the Development Review Process to 



Attachment C 
 

35 
 

assure that the exposure of sensitive receptors to toxic and hazardous pollutants, as well as 
dust and odors is minimized or, where feasible, eliminated. The City will revise its California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines to insure uniform assessment of air quality 
impacts of projects and will incorporate the SCAQMD significance thresholds in these 
Guidelines or into EIR's and negative declarations prepared pursuant to these Guidelines. 
 

 
Policy 10.2. The City of Cudahy will facilitate project review and 
avoid project delays by adopting regional thresholds of significant air 
quality impact. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall consider the energy efficiency of new equipment when it purchases replacement 
equipment and shall purchase low energy replacements whenever feasible. Through the City's 
development review process, new construction shall be required to demonstrate that energy 
conservation measures beyond those required by Title 24 have been incorporated whenever 
feasible. To assist developers in knowing what options and special grants are available, the 
City shall work with the Southern California Edison Company and the Southern California Gas 
Company to identify new low cost construction, heating and appliance techniques and 
equipment that can result in substantial energy and cost savings for future tenants and owners. 
The City shall make information and utility company contacts available to all applicants for 
building permits. 
 
The City will utilize its Development Review Process to encourage the use of low-polluting 
building materials in new construction. It will also utilize the Development Review Process to 
assure that the exposure of sensitive receptors to toxic and hazardous pollutants, as well as 
dust and odors is minimized or, where feasible, eliminated. The City will revise its California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines to insure uniform assessment of air quality 
impacts of projects and will incorporate the SCAQMD significance thresholds in these 
Guidelines or into EIR's and negative declarations prepared pursuant to these Guidelines. 
 

 
Policy 10.3. The City of Cudahy will provide, to the maximum extent 
feasible, for the protection of receptors from significant health risks 
caused by exposure to toxic and hazardous pollutants. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall consider the energy efficiency of new equipment when it purchases replacement 
equipment and shall purchase low energy replacements whenever feasible. Through the City's 
development review process, new construction shall be required to demonstrate that energy 
conservation measures beyond those required by Title 24 have been incorporated whenever 
feasible. To assist developers in knowing what options and special grants are available, the 
City shall work with the Southern California Edison Company and the Southern California Gas 
Company to identify new low cost construction, heating and appliance techniques and 
equipment that can result in substantial energy and cost savings for future tenants and owners. 
The City shall make information and utility company contacts available to all applicants for 
building permits. 
 
The City will utilize its Development Review Process to encourage the use of low-polluting 
building materials in new construction. It will also utilize the Development Review Process to 
assure that the exposure of sensitive receptors to toxic and hazardous pollutants, as well as 
dust and odors is minimized or, where feasible, eliminated. The City will revise its California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines to insure uniform assessment of air quality 
impacts of projects and will incorporate the SCAQMD significance thresholds in these 
Guidelines or into EIR's and negative declarations prepared pursuant to these Guidelines. 
 

 
Policy 10.4. The City of Cudahy will reduce the exposure of 
sensitive receptors to dust and odors to the extent feasible. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall consider the energy efficiency of new equipment when it purchases replacement 
equipment and shall purchase low energy replacements whenever feasible. Through the City's 
development review process, new construction shall be required to demonstrate that energy 



Attachment C 
 

36 
 

conservation measures beyond those required by Title 24 have been incorporated whenever 
feasible. To assist developers in knowing what options and special grants are available, the 
City shall work with the Southern California Edison Company and the Southern California Gas 
Company to identify new low cost construction, heating and appliance techniques and 
equipment that can result in substantial energy and cost savings for future tenants and owners. 
The City shall make information and utility company contacts available to all applicants for 
building permits. 
 
The City will utilize its Development Review Process to encourage the use of low-polluting 
building materials in new construction. It will also utilize the Development Review Process to 
assure that the exposure of sensitive receptors to toxic and hazardous pollutants, as well as 
dust and odors is minimized or, where feasible, eliminated. The City will revise its California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines to insure uniform assessment of air quality 
impacts of projects and will incorporate the SCAQMD significance thresholds in these 
Guidelines or into EIR's and negative declarations prepared pursuant to these Guidelines. 
 

 
Goal 11. The City of Cudahy will maximize the effectiveness of air 
quality control programs through coordination with other 
governmental units. 
 

 

 
Policy 11.1. The City of Cudahy will participate in the SCAQMD rule 
development process on regulations which impact the City of 
Cudahy to insure that city concerns are resolved early in the 
process. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
Air Quality Management Plan. Both Federal and State Clean Air Acts require that every non-
attainment area prepare an air quality management plan (AQMP) to identify ways local air 
quality may be returned to healthful levels. The SCAQMD is the principal local agency 
responsible for comprehensive air pollution control in the region that includes air quality 
monitoring, the development of long range plans to improve air quality, and the enforcement of 
regulations designed to attain and maintain State and Federal ambient air quality standards. 
The SCAQMD is responsible for the implementation of the protocols of the Federal Clean Air 
Act. In addition, the SCAQMD is responsible for ensuring that the more stringent California 
Clean Air standards are met. The most recent AQMP was adopted in June 2007 and focuses 
on those criteria pollutants for which the region is in non-attainment (ozone and particulates) 
as well as incorporating new scientific data, modeling, and regulations into the plan. 
 

 
Policy 11.2. The City of Cudahy will participate in air quality plan 
development at the Southern California Association of Governments 
to insure that issues affecting Cudahy are considered in developing 
local government measures and that legislation that improves air 
regional quality and does not adversely impact Cudahy is 
supported. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
Air Quality Management Plan. Both Federal and State Clean Air Acts require that every non-
attainment area prepare an air quality management plan (AQMP) to identify ways local air 
quality may be returned to healthful levels. The SCAQMD is the principal local agency 
responsible for comprehensive air pollution control in the region that includes air quality 
monitoring, the development of long range plans to improve air quality, and the enforcement of 
regulations designed to attain and maintain State and Federal ambient air quality standards. 
The SCAQMD is responsible for the implementation of the protocols of the Federal Clean Air 
Act. In addition, the SCAQMD is responsible for ensuring that the more stringent California 
Clean Air standards are met. The most recent AQMP was adopted in June 2007 and focuses 
on those criteria pollutants for which the region is in non-attainment (ozone and particulates) 
as well as incorporating new scientific data, modeling, and regulations into the plan. 
 

 
Policy 11.3. The City of Cudahy will participate with neighboring 
cities in efforts to improve regional and sub regional transit. 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City, which already provides free transit (CART) to all residents with access to all 
community facilities, shall explore ways to enhance usage. Information on CART and MTA 



Attachment C 
 

37 
 

 transit schedules shall be readily available to Cudahy residents and employees at city facilities 
and at other centers, such as supermarkets, serving the community. The City will examine 
existing transit stops to insure that they are safe and there are no identified impediments, such 
as overhanging trees that interfere with their use. The City will work with CART operators and 
the MTA to insure that local access to regional transit is enhanced. 
 

 
Policy 11.4. The City of Cudahy will require new local commercial 
and industrial establishments to demonstrate that SCAQMD permits 
have been obtained. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
Air Quality Management Plan. Both Federal and State Clean Air Acts require that every non-
attainment area prepare an air quality management plan (AQMP) to identify ways local air 
quality may be returned to healthful levels. The SCAQMD is the principal local agency 
responsible for comprehensive air pollution control in the region that includes air quality 
monitoring, the development of long range plans to improve air quality, and the enforcement of 
regulations designed to attain and maintain State and Federal ambient air quality standards. 
The SCAQMD is responsible for the implementation of the protocols of the Federal Clean Air 
Act. In addition, the SCAQMD is responsible for ensuring that the more stringent California 
Clean Air standards are met. The most recent AQMP was adopted in June 2007 and focuses 
on those criteria pollutants for which the region is in non-attainment (ozone and particulates) 
as well as incorporating new scientific data, modeling, and regulations into the plan. 
 

 
Policy 11.5. The City of Cudahy will cooperate with regional efforts 
to support air quality legislation that benefits the city and the region. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
Air Quality Management Plan. Both Federal and State Clean Air Acts require that every non-
attainment area prepare an air quality management plan (AQMP) to identify ways local air 
quality may be returned to healthful levels. The SCAQMD is the principal local agency 
responsible for comprehensive air pollution control in the region that includes air quality 
monitoring, the development of long range plans to improve air quality, and the enforcement of 
regulations designed to attain and maintain State and Federal ambient air quality standards. 
The SCAQMD is responsible for the implementation of the protocols of the Federal Clean Air 
Act. In addition, the SCAQMD is responsible for ensuring that the more stringent California 
Clean Air standards are met. The most recent AQMP was adopted in June 2007 and focuses 
on those criteria pollutants for which the region is in non-attainment (ozone and particulates) 
as well as incorporating new scientific data, modeling, and regulations into the plan. 
 

 
Goal 12. The City of Cudahy will improve the effectiveness of air 
quality programs through local education programs. 
 

 

 
Policy 12.1. The City of Cudahy will support innovative bilingual 
public education programs that can inform segments of the public 
on transit availability. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City, which already provides free transit (CART) to all residents with access to all 
community facilities, shall explore ways to enhance usage. Information on CART and MTA 
transit schedules shall be readily available to Cudahy residents and employees at city facilities 
and at other centers, such as supermarkets, serving the community. The City will examine 
existing transit stops to insure that they are safe and there are no identified impediments, such 
as overhanging trees that interfere with their use. The City will work with CART operators and 
the MTA to insure that local access to regional transit is enhanced. 
 

 
Policy 12.2. The City of Cudahy will provide bilingual assistance to 
local businesses in complying with SCAQMD rules and regulations. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City's will actively produce documents and publications that are in both English and 
Spanish.  This is an ongoing program monitored annually (coinciding with the fiscal year) by 
the Community Services Department.  It is funded by the General Fund, to the extent 
available, and staff time.  



Attachment C 
 

38 
 

 
 
Policy 12.3. The City of Cudahy will utilize the City Newsletter to 
disseminate bilingual information on air quality, transit and related 
issues. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City's will actively produce documents and publications that are in both English and 
Spanish.  This is an ongoing program monitored annually (coinciding with the fiscal year) by 
the Community Services Department.  It is funded by the General Fund, to the extent 
available, and staff time.  
 

 
Goal 13. The City of Cudahy will reduce directly emitted vehicle 
emissions through city government actions. 
 

 

 
Policy 13.1. The City of Cudahy will work with surrounding 
communities to reduce idling emissions by increasing traffic flow on 
major thoroughfares by synchronizing traffic signals. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City of Cudahy shall continue to maintain existing roadways, traffic signals and other traffic 
control devices. The City shall work towards the improvement to streets, where feasible, and 
the extension of Alamo Street to Elizabeth Street and the continuation of River Road from 
Clara Street to Live Oak Street. These other improvements may include speed bumps, no 
parking signs, speed limit signs, and other traffic signs. Roadway maintenance shall include 
pavement repair, lane restriping, roadway widening, landscape maintenance, street lights, and 
other roadway projects. They City will also explore ways to reduce traffic through a variety of 
traffic control measures. The City shall also consider synchronizing traffic signals along Atlantic 
Avenue for improved traffic flow. Finally, the City shall upgrade existing signals for left-turn and 
right-turn arrows and increase left-turn and right-turn pockets at congested intersections. The 
City shall also continue to evaluate the location of bus stops and turnouts and work towards 
the reduction in congestion due to the bus queuing. These projects shall be included in the 
City's Capital Improvement Plan as implemented by the Department of Building and Public 
Services. 
 

 
Policy 13.2. The City of Cudahy will encourage the use of alternate 
fuels in city owned vehicles. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall explore the feasibility of replacing vehicles and other gasoline and diesel-
powered equipment with clean-fueled substitutes as equipment is replaced. The City shall 
explore the possibility of obtaining grants from the California Energy Commission to assist in 
purchasing clean fuel vehicles. 
 

 
HOUSING ELEMENT 
 
 
Goal 1. The City of Cudahy will improve the housing supply and the 
choice of housing opportunities through private investment and, 
where necessary, through public action and financing. 
 

 

 
Policy 1.1. The City of Cudahy will encourage future investment in 
the City's housing stock. 
 

 
Ongoing  

 
To encourage the development of high quality housing on vacant and underutilized lots, the 
City shall establish a promotional campaign to area developers.  The campaign shall promote 
the City of Cudahy and existing investment opportunities. The City shall work with local 
business groups (such as the Chamber of Commerce and Building Industry Association) on 
promoting available incentives to new development. This may be accomplished through 
networking, formal presentations, brochures, ads, and other promotional materials and 
activities. Staff will also keep informed of state and federal housing programs and provide 
information to interested residents and groups. The City will work with local early care and 



Attachment C 
 

39 
 

education advocates to create an information handout to inform developers, business groups, 
and households about the available early care and education services. The program will be 
managed by the Community Development Director and begin in 2013, promotional materials 
will be developed by December 2014 for distribution, and will be updated on an ongoing basis. 
The program will be funded through the General Fund.  
 

 
Policy 1.2. The City of Cudahy will evaluate the factors affecting 
housing costs and examine ways to reduce housing costs where 
governmental action is appropriate. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
In order to encourage the development of affordable housing units, the City shall provide 
developers with incentives and shorten the permit process for low-income and senior citizen 
housing projects.  These incentives may be similar to those awarded for high quality housing 
projects or developments on larger lots. Or they may involve a different set of parking, open 
space and density standards which lower the cost of development. By expediting the review 
process, developers also save money and housing costs can be reduced.  
 
By removing constraints to housing production, the City will encourage development and help 
reduce housing rents and prices. Aside from these, the City shall compile information on 
available financing mechanisms and federal, state and local programs and agencies that 
provide funding assistance for housing projects shall be made available to developers. 
Cooperative ventures with developers on housing projects may also be initiated by the City. 
The program will begin in 2013 under the Community Development Department and will be 
financed through the General Fund. An affordable housing ordinance to encourage 
development of affordable units and remove constraints will be completed by December 2015, 
along with materials available for developers.  
 

 
Policy 1.3. The City of Cudahy will support the development and use 
of new techniques in housing design, construction and 
development. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall develop a system for assessing the potential impacts from new development.  
The City will require all new development to undergo an assessment to ensure that adequate 
infrastructure is available to serve the development. The feasability of a Mello Roos fee for the 
upgrade of existing infrastructure (including roads, water lines, etc.) will be explored for future 
implementation.  The program is ongoing and will be monitored annually (coinciding with the 
fiscal year) by the Public Works Department, and is financed through the General Fund. The 
study will be completed by June 2014, and will be included in the housing information program 
materials.  
 

 
Policy 1.4. The City of Cudahy will promote the development of 
attractive and safe housing to meet the community's needs. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
In order to encourage the development of affordable housing units, the City shall provide 
developers with incentives and shorten the permit process for low-income and senior citizen 
housing projects.  These incentives may be similar to those awarded for high quality housing 
projects or developments on larger lots. Or they may involve a different set of parking, open 
space and density standards which lower the cost of development. By expediting the review 
process, developers also save money and housing costs can be reduced.  
 
By removing constraints to housing production, the City will encourage development and help 
reduce housing rents and prices. Aside from these, the City shall compile information on 
available financing mechanisms and federal, state and local programs and agencies that 
provide funding assistance for housing projects shall be made available to developers. 
Cooperative ventures with developers on housing projects may also be initiated by the City. 
The program will begin in 2013 under the Community Development Department and will be 
financed through the General Fund. An affordable housing ordinance to encourage 
development of affordable units and remove constraints will be completed by December 2015, 



Attachment C 
 

40 
 

along with materials available for developers.  
 

 
Policy 1.5. The City of Cudahy will provide prompt processing of 
housing construction applications through standardized 
development requirements and centralized processing. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
In order to encourage the development of affordable housing units, the City shall provide 
developers with incentives and shorten the permit process for low-income and senior citizen 
housing projects.  These incentives may be similar to those awarded for high quality housing 
projects or developments on larger lots. Or they may involve a different set of parking, open 
space and density standards which lower the cost of development. By expediting the review 
process, developers also save money and housing costs can be reduced.  
 
By removing constraints to housing production, the City will encourage development and help 
reduce housing rents and prices. Aside from these, the City shall compile information on 
available financing mechanisms and federal, state and local programs and agencies that 
provide funding assistance for housing projects shall be made available to developers. 
Cooperative ventures with developers on housing projects may also be initiated by the City. 
The program will begin in 2013 under the Community Development Department and will be 
financed through the General Fund. An affordable housing ordinance to encourage 
development of affordable units and remove constraints will be completed by December 2015, 
along with materials available for developers.  
 

 
Policy 1.6. The City of Cudahy will encourage the assemblage and 
consolidation of existing small parcels in areas which permit higher 
density development. Larger parcels can better accommodate 
increased density housing, through a more efficient use of space 
resulting in more on-site amenities and greater use of open space. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
To encourage the development of high quality housing on vacant and underutilized lots, the 
City shall establish a promotional campaign to area developers.  The campaign shall promote 
the City of Cudahy and existing investment opportunities. The City shall work with local 
business groups (such as the Chamber of Commerce and Building Industry Association) on 
promoting available incentives to new development. This may be accomplished through 
networking, formal presentations, brochures, ads, and other promotional materials and 
activities. Staff will also keep informed of state and federal housing programs and provide 
information to interested residents and groups. The City will work with local early care and 
education advocates to create an information handout to inform developers, business groups, 
and households about the available early care and education services. The program will be 
managed by the Community Development Director and begin in 2013, promotional materials 
will be developed by December 2014 for distribution, and will be updated on an ongoing basis. 
The program will be funded through the General Fund.  
 

 
Policy 1.7. The City of Cudahy will recognize the changing trends 
and patterns in the community and encourage a broad range of 
housing types to meet these needs. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall explore the feasibility of requiring affordable housing units within new housing 
developments. This may be promoted by density bonuses and other incentives, coupled with a 
use restriction on the affordable units.  The City may also require developers to provide a 
minimum percentage of affordable housing or pay fees, dedicate land or establish agreements 
with other agencies for the construction of affordable units off site. To address Cudahy's 
overcrowding problems, the City shall include in this study, the available options to requiring or 
encouraging large dwelling units (2 bedrooms or more) within new development.  This may 
likewise be promoted by incentives to the allowable density and less stringent development 
standards.  The inclusionary housing study shall be initiated by the Department of Community 
Development, with funding from the General Fund to the extent of available resources. The 
study and associated ordinance or program will be completed by December 2015.  
 

 
Policy 1.8. The City of Cudahy will work with the appropriate service 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall take the lead in coordinating efforts for the preservation of subsidized housing 



Attachment C 
 

41 
 

providers to develop and coordinate programs to assist in the 
conservation of affordable housing and to serve the homeless 
population. 
 

projects in Cudahy.  Detailed discussion of these projects is provided in the Housing Element 
Profile Report.  To help conserve the low income units at risk of conversion, the City may 
provide technical assistance to non-profit groups interested in buying the projects. It may 
aggressively look for an agency to buy the property or help the residents establish an 
association to buy the project. The City shall initiate talks with the Los Angeles County Housing 
Authority, the Department of Housing and Urban Development, the California Housing 
Partnership Corporation, local non-profit agencies, and tenants of subsidized housing projects 
on discouraging future conversion of low-income housing projects to market rate housing. HUD 
has stated that they generally evaluate projects that apply for conversion and offer incentives 
to property owners, in order to preserve these units.  The California Housing Partnership 
Corporation (CHPC) has indicated that it will assist Cudahy in looking for a suitable 
organization who would take over the subsidized projects in the City, subject to a nominal fee.  
Recently proposed legislation will allow CHPC to act as a buyer of at-risk projects, as a last 
resort. Homeaid has expressed interest in buying projects in Cudahy and negotiations with this 
agency will be continued.  Keystone Housing Enterprises has likewise expressed interest in 
looking at the properties. Ralph Carrico and Associates said they would be interested in 
Cudahy Garden Apartments when it comes up for sale.  Other organizations contacted said 
they were not interested in either Cudahy Garden Apartments or Elizabeth Street Apartments. 
The current owner (Corp. for Better Housing) of the identified “at-risk” units, has expressed a 
desire to continue the affordable housing program and will be renewing their contracts. 
However, in the event the property owner choses to sell, the City will notify all organizations 
listed on Table 2-15 (page 41) of the availabity of property to ensure continued low-income 
housing. The program is ongoing, managed and monitored annually (coinciding with the fiscal 
year) through the Community Development Department.  The Community Development 
Director shall monitor the status of all subsidized housing projects and shall work with the City 
Manager in developing strategies to preserve these projects.  Specific projects shall be 
reviewed for consistency with the goals of the General Plan and other City policies, prior to 
implementation.  Public participation shall be encouraged throughout the process to reflect the 
needs and interests of Cudahy residents.  Financing will come from CDBG funds, and the 
General Fund, to the extent funds are available.  Other funding sources that may be available 
shall be explored, as well.  
 

 
Goal 2. The City of Cudahy will promote affordable housing and 
shelter for all economic segments of the community. 
 

 

 
Policy 2.1. The City of Cudahy will promote all State, regional and 
local practices and plans that support housing availability for all 
economic segments of the population. 
  

 
Ongoing 

 
In order to encourage the development of affordable housing units, the City shall provide 
developers with incentives and shorten the permit process for low-income and senior citizen 
housing projects.  These incentives may be similar to those awarded for high quality housing 
projects or developments on larger lots. Or they may involve a different set of parking, open 
space and density standards which lower the cost of development. By expediting the review 
process, developers also save money and housing costs can be reduced.  
 
By removing constraints to housing production, the City will encourage development and help 
reduce housing rents and prices. Aside from these, the City shall compile information on 
available financing mechanisms and federal, state and local programs and agencies that 
provide funding assistance for housing projects shall be made available to developers. 
Cooperative ventures with developers on housing projects may also be initiated by the City. 
The program will begin in 2013 under the Community Development Department and will be 



Attachment C 
 

42 
 

financed through the General Fund. An affordable housing ordinance to encourage 
development of affordable units and remove constraints will be completed by December 2015, 
along with materials available for developers.  
 

 
Policy 2.2. The City of Cudahy will promote local housing services to 
ensure federal, state and local housing programs are available to 
assist the private sector in obtaining funds for housing development. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
In order to encourage the development of affordable housing units, the City shall provide 
developers with incentives and shorten the permit process for low-income and senior citizen 
housing projects.  These incentives may be similar to those awarded for high quality housing 
projects or developments on larger lots. Or they may involve a different set of parking, open 
space and density standards which lower the cost of development. By expediting the review 
process, developers also save money and housing costs can be reduced.  
 
By removing constraints to housing production, the City will encourage development and help 
reduce housing rents and prices. Aside from these, the City shall compile information on 
available financing mechanisms and federal, state and local programs and agencies that 
provide funding assistance for housing projects shall be made available to developers. 
Cooperative ventures with developers on housing projects may also be initiated by the City. 
The program will begin in 2013 under the Community Development Department and will be 
financed through the General Fund. An affordable housing ordinance to encourage 
development of affordable units and remove constraints will be completed by December 2015, 
along with materials available for developers.  
 

 
Policy 2.3. The City of Cudahy will utilize Community Development 
Block Grant funds to develop housing, expand economic 
opportunities through commercial development, improve community 
facilities and services, prevent deterioration of the housing stock, 
and redevelop residential areas. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue housing programs on housing development, infrastructure, 
rehabilitation and job development, as allowed by the CDBG program.  The City currently uses 
its CDBG moneys for the Home Improvement program, fair housing foundation services, code 
enforcement, senior nutrition program, food distribution program and the development of public 
facilities.  It shall coordinate with the County Housing Authority in implementing programs 
outlined in the Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy (CHAS) for Los Angeles County. 
The City shall prepare a brochure outlining available housing assistance and rehabilitation 
programs in the City. It shall distribute these to property owners and make them available at 
City Hall. The brochure shall encourage residents to participate in the Section 8 housing 
assistance payments program and the housing voucher program through the Los Angeles 
County Housing Authority. (The City is not applying for other federal programs, although it has 
evaluated potential participation in the HOME, HOPE and other housing loan programs of 
HUD). The program is ongoing and monitored annually (coinciding with the fiscal year) under 
the Community Development Department and is financed by the General Fund. Coordination 
with CHAS, marketing materials will be completed by December 2015.  
 

 
Policy 2.4. The City of Cudahy will inform residents of the availability 
of housing assistance programs and community services available 
in the area (such as Section 8 certificates and vouchers). 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City will monitor every three months, the status of any HUD receipt/approval Notices of 
Intent and Plans of Action filled by property owners to convert to market-rate units. The City 
will annually identify and meet and pursue funding with non-profit organizations as potential 
purchasers/managers of at-risk housing units. As part of coordination with non-profit partners, 
the City will annually explore funding sources available to purchase affordability covenants on 
at-risk projects, transfer ownership of at-risk projects to public agencies, purchase existing 
buildings to replace at-risk units, or construct replacement units. Where feasible the City will 
provide technical assistance and support to these organizations with respect to financing. The 
City will update this list annually. The City will provide tenant education within 30 days of notice 
and assist tenants to obtain special Section 8 vouchers reserved for tenants of converted 



Attachment C 
 

43 
 

properties. HUD has set aside special Section 8 vouchers for existing tenants in Section 8 
projects that are opting out of low-income use. Upon conversion, the units will stay affordable 
to the existing tenants as long as they stay. Once a unit is vacated and new tenants move in, 
the units will convert to market-rate housing. This is an ongoing program monitored (coinciding 
with the fiscal year) and managed by the Community Development Department with funding 
from CDBG funds. 
 

 
Policy 2.5. The City of Cudahy will encourage variety in the supply 
of housing at costs affordable to the various income levels of the 
population. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
In order to encourage the development of affordable housing units, the City shall provide 
developers with incentives and shorten the permit process for low-income and senior citizen 
housing projects.  These incentives may be similar to those awarded for high quality housing 
projects or developments on larger lots. Or they may involve a different set of parking, open 
space and density standards which lower the cost of development. By expediting the review 
process, developers also save money and housing costs can be reduced.  
 
By removing constraints to housing production, the City will encourage development and help 
reduce housing rents and prices. Aside from these, the City shall compile information on 
available financing mechanisms and federal, state and local programs and agencies that 
provide funding assistance for housing projects shall be made available to developers. 
Cooperative ventures with developers on housing projects may also be initiated by the City. 
The program will begin in 2013 under the Community Development Department and will be 
financed through the General Fund. An affordable housing ordinance to encourage 
development of affordable units and remove constraints will be completed by December 2015, 
along with materials available for developers.  
 

 
Policy 2.6. The City of Cudahy will solicit State and Federal funds 
for new housing development. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
In order to encourage the development of affordable housing units, the City shall provide 
developers with incentives and shorten the permit process for low-income and senior citizen 
housing projects.  These incentives may be similar to those awarded for high quality housing 
projects or developments on larger lots. Or they may involve a different set of parking, open 
space and density standards which lower the cost of development. By expediting the review 
process, developers also save money and housing costs can be reduced.  
 
By removing constraints to housing production, the City will encourage development and help 
reduce housing rents and prices. Aside from these, the City shall compile information on 
available financing mechanisms and federal, state and local programs and agencies that 
provide funding assistance for housing projects shall be made available to developers. 
Cooperative ventures with developers on housing projects may also be initiated by the City. 
The program will begin in 2013 under the Community Development Department and will be 
financed through the General Fund. An affordable housing ordinance to encourage 
development of affordable units and remove constraints will be completed by December 2015, 
along with materials available for developers.  
 

 
Policy 2.7. The City of Cudahy will work towards the conservation of 
existing subsidized housing for low and moderate income families. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall take the lead in coordinating efforts for the preservation of subsidized housing 
projects in Cudahy.  Detailed discussion of these projects is provided in the Housing Element 
Profile Report.  To help conserve the low income units at risk of conversion, the City may 
provide technical assistance to non-profit groups interested in buying the projects. It may 
aggressively look for an agency to buy the property or help the residents establish an 
association to buy the project. The City shall initiate talks with the Los Angeles County Housing 



Attachment C 
 

44 
 

Authority, the Department of Housing and Urban Development, the California Housing 
Partnership Corporation, local non-profit agencies, and tenants of subsidized housing projects 
on discouraging future conversion of low-income housing projects to market rate housing. HUD 
has stated that they generally evaluate projects that apply for conversion and offer incentives 
to property owners, in order to preserve these units.  The California Housing Partnership 
Corporation (CHPC) has indicated that it will assist Cudahy in looking for a suitable 
organization who would take over the subsidized projects in the City, subject to a nominal fee.  
Recently proposed legislation will allow CHPC to act as a buyer of at-risk projects, as a last 
resort. Homeaid has expressed interest in buying projects in Cudahy and negotiations with this 
agency will be continued.  Keystone Housing Enterprises has likewise expressed interest in 
looking at the properties. Ralph Carrico and Associates said they would be interested in 
Cudahy Garden Apartments when it comes up for sale.  Other organizations contacted said 
they were not interested in either Cudahy Garden Apartments or Elizabeth Street Apartments. 
The current owner (Corp. for Better Housing) of the identified “at-risk” units, has expressed a 
desire to continue the affordable housing program and will be renewing their contracts. 
However, in the event the property owner choses to sell, the City will notify all organizations 
listed on Table 2-15 (page 41) of the availabity of property to ensure continued low-income 
housing. The program is ongoing, managed and monitored annually (coinciding with the fiscal 
year) through the Community Development Department.  The Community Development 
Director shall monitor the status of all subsidized housing projects and shall work with the City 
Manager in developing strategies to preserve these projects.  Specific projects shall be 
reviewed for consistency with the goals of the General Plan and other City policies, prior to 
implementation.  Public participation shall be encouraged throughout the process to reflect the 
needs and interests of Cudahy residents.  Financing will come from CDBG funds, and the 
General Fund, to the extent funds are available.  Other funding sources that may be available 
shall be explored, as well.  
 

 
Policy 2.8. The City of Cudahy will seek funding opportunities and 
promote rental assistance for low and moderate income families.  
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue housing programs on housing development, infrastructure, 
rehabilitation and job development, as allowed by the CDBG program.  The City currently uses 
its CDBG moneys for the Home Improvement program, fair housing foundation services, code 
enforcement, senior nutrition program, food distribution program and the development of public 
facilities.  It shall coordinate with the County Housing Authority in implementing programs 
outlined in the Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy (CHAS) for Los Angeles County. 
The City shall prepare a brochure outlining available housing assistance and rehabilitation 
programs in the City. It shall distribute these to property owners and make them available at 
City Hall. The brochure shall encourage residents to participate in the Section 8 housing 
assistance payments program and the housing voucher program through the Los Angeles 
County Housing Authority. (The City is not applying for other federal programs, although it has 
evaluated potential participation in the HOME, HOPE and other housing loan programs of 
HUD). The program is ongoing and monitored annually (coinciding with the fiscal year) under 
the Community Development Department and is financed by the General Fund. Coordination 
with CHAS, marketing materials will be completed by December 2015.  
 

 
Goal 3. The City of Cudahy will support and provide incentives for 
the maintenance and rehabilitation of the existing housing stock. 
 

 

 
Policy 3.1. The City of Cudahy will encourage, support, and provide 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City of Cudahy has an ongoing program for the maintenance and conservation of the 



Attachment C 
 

45 
 

incentives for the maintenance, conservation and revitalization of 
existing residential units. 
 

existing housing stock. There are programs aimed at the conservation of older housing units 
which are in good condition to maintain the units as affordable housing options.  Rehabilitation 
and property maintenance programs ensure that living conditions are safe and decent for all 
households.  By maintaining the existing housing stock and preventing the creation of 
substandard housing, the City improves the living environment for present residents.  
Implementation measures for housing maintenance and conservation are discussed below. 
Approximately 25 housing units are anticipated to benefit from the City's rehabilitation 
programs by 2018. Also, approximately 400 mobilehomes will be conserved. This program is 
managed by the Community Development Director.   
 

 
Policy 3.2. The City of Cudahy will explore strategies and programs 
that will be effective in reducing the costs incurred by the 
homeowner for rehabilitation. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue to apply for Community Development Block Grants for housing 
rehabilitation programs in the City. These funds shall be used to offer technical assistance and 
loans under the Tenant Minor Home Repair program, as well as to implement housing 
rehabilitation programs which provide low interest loans, grants, and technical assistance to 
property owners. The program is ongoing and will continue to be managed and monitored 
annually (coinciding with the fiscal year) by the Community Development Department and 
financed through CDBG funds. The Tenant Minor Home Repair Program is complaint driven; 
complaints are filed with the City’s Code Enforcement department which then schedules follow 
up inspections and provides tenants with information to resources. Furthermore the tenants 
may be referenced to the City’s Housing Department to seek possible financial assistance.    
 

 
Policy 3.3. The City of Cudahy will encourage relocation assistance 
for displaced persons living in rentals undergoing rehabilitation 
and/or reconstruction. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue to apply for Community Development Block Grants for housing 
rehabilitation programs in the City. These funds shall be used to offer technical assistance and 
loans under the Tenant Minor Home Repair program, as well as to implement housing 
rehabilitation programs which provide low interest loans, grants, and technical assistance to 
property owners. The program is ongoing and will continue to be managed and monitored 
annually (coinciding with the fiscal year) by the Community Development Department and 
financed through CDBG funds. The Tenant Minor Home Repair Program is complaint driven; 
complaints are filed with the City’s Code Enforcement department which then schedules follow 
up inspections and provides tenants with information to resources. Furthermore the tenants 
may be referenced to the City’s Housing Department to seek possible financial assistance.    
 

 
Policy 3.4. The City of Cudahy will continue residential rehabilitation 
programs and provide technical assistance to property owners as 
needed. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue to apply for Community Development Block Grants for housing 
rehabilitation programs in the City. These funds shall be used to offer technical assistance and 
loans under the Tenant Minor Home Repair program, as well as to implement housing 
rehabilitation programs which provide low interest loans, grants, and technical assistance to 
property owners. The program is ongoing and will continue to be managed and monitored 
annually (coinciding with the fiscal year) by the Community Development Department and 
financed through CDBG funds. The Tenant Minor Home Repair Program is complaint driven; 
complaints are filed with the City’s Code Enforcement department which then schedules follow 
up inspections and provides tenants with information to resources. Furthermore the tenants 
may be referenced to the City’s Housing Department to seek possible financial assistance.    
 

 
Policy 3.5. The City of Cudahy will encourage prompt rehabilitation 
or demolition and replacement of vacant and abandoned properties. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue code enforcement of nuisances such as inoperable vehicles, property 
maintenance, substandard units, and illegal garage conversions. It shall identify substandard 
dwelling units and encourage rehabilitation through the provision of technical support and 



Attachment C 
 

46 
 

incentives such as streamlined permit processing, variances to development standards on a 
case by case basis, waiver of fees or fines if rehabilitation is undertaken within the next three 
months, etc. Also, it shall actively work towards the rehabilitation of structures which do not 
meet seismic safety standards and current electrical code requirements.  The City shall 
coordinate with homeowner's associations in the enforcement of CC&R's regarding property 
maintenance. This program is ongoing, to be monitored annually (coinciding with the fiscal 
year) and will continue to be financed through CDBG funds. The Code Enforcement Program 
is complaint driven; complains are filed with the City’s Code Enforcement department which 
then schedules follow up inspections and provides tenants with information to resources.  
 

 
Policy 3.6. The City of Cudahy will actively engage in identifying 
substandard and deteriorating housing in Cudahy and take 
appropriate actions to correct these deficiencies, such as initiating 
rehabilitation, maintenance, or replacement programs. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue code enforcement of nuisances such as inoperable vehicles, property 
maintenance, substandard units, and illegal garage conversions. It shall identify substandard 
dwelling units and encourage rehabilitation through the provision of technical support and 
incentives such as streamlined permit processing, variances to development standards on a 
case by case basis, waiver of fees or fines if rehabilitation is undertaken within the next three 
months, etc. Also, it shall actively work towards the rehabilitation of structures which do not 
meet seismic safety standards and current electrical code requirements.  The City shall 
coordinate with homeowner's associations in the enforcement of CC&R's regarding property 
maintenance. This program is ongoing, to be monitored annually (coinciding with the fiscal 
year) and will continue to be financed through CDBG funds. The Code Enforcement Program 
is complaint driven; complains are filed with the City’s Code Enforcement department which 
then schedules follow up inspections and provides tenants with information to resources.  
 

 
Policy 3.7. The City of Cudahy will promote housing rehabilitation 
and conservation through public education and awareness 
programs. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue housing programs on housing development, infrastructure, 
rehabilitation and job development, as allowed by the CDBG program.  The City currently uses 
its CDBG moneys for the Home Improvement program, fair housing foundation services, code 
enforcement, senior nutrition program, food distribution program and the development of public 
facilities.  It shall coordinate with the County Housing Authority in implementing programs 
outlined in the Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy (CHAS) for Los Angeles County. 
The City shall prepare a brochure outlining available housing assistance and rehabilitation 
programs in the City. It shall distribute these to property owners and make them available at 
City Hall. The brochure shall encourage residents to participate in the Section 8 housing 
assistance payments program and the housing voucher program through the Los Angeles 
County Housing Authority. (The City is not applying for other federal programs, although it has 
evaluated potential participation in the HOME, HOPE and other housing loan programs of 
HUD). The program is ongoing and monitored annually (coinciding with the fiscal year) under 
the Community Development Department and is financed by the General Fund. Coordination 
with CHAS, marketing materials will be completed by December 2015.  
 

 
Policy 3.8. The City of Cudahy will encourage property maintenance 
to promote quality design, public safety, and to promote energy 
conservation. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City of Cudahy has an ongoing program for the maintenance and conservation of the 
existing housing stock. There are programs aimed at the conservation of older housing units 
which are in good condition to maintain the units as affordable housing options.  Rehabilitation 
and property maintenance programs ensure that living conditions are safe and decent for all 
households.  By maintaining the existing housing stock and preventing the creation of 
substandard housing, the City improves the living environment for present residents.  
Implementation measures for housing maintenance and conservation are discussed below. 
Approximately 25 housing units are anticipated to benefit from the City's rehabilitation 



Attachment C 
 

47 
 

programs by 2018. Also, approximately 400 mobilehomes will be conserved. This program is 
managed by the Community Development Director.   
 

 
Policy 3.9. The City of Cudahy will work with the County or non-
profit agencies in conserving existing low-income housing units and 
subsidized housing projects. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall take the lead in coordinating efforts for the preservation of subsidized housing 
projects in Cudahy.  Detailed discussion of these projects is provided in the Housing Element 
Profile Report.  To help conserve the low income units at risk of conversion, the City may 
provide technical assistance to non-profit groups interested in buying the projects. It may 
aggressively look for an agency to buy the property or help the residents establish an 
association to buy the project. The City shall initiate talks with the Los Angeles County Housing 
Authority, the Department of Housing and Urban Development, the California Housing 
Partnership Corporation, local non-profit agencies, and tenants of subsidized housing projects 
on discouraging future conversion of low-income housing projects to market rate housing. HUD 
has stated that they generally evaluate projects that apply for conversion and offer incentives 
to property owners, in order to preserve these units.  The California Housing Partnership 
Corporation (CHPC) has indicated that it will assist Cudahy in looking for a suitable 
organization who would take over the subsidized projects in the City, subject to a nominal fee.  
Recently proposed legislation will allow CHPC to act as a buyer of at-risk projects, as a last 
resort. Homeaid has expressed interest in buying projects in Cudahy and negotiations with this 
agency will be continued.  Keystone Housing Enterprises has likewise expressed interest in 
looking at the properties. Ralph Carrico and Associates said they would be interested in 
Cudahy Garden Apartments when it comes up for sale.  Other organizations contacted said 
they were not interested in either Cudahy Garden Apartments or Elizabeth Street Apartments. 
The current owner (Corp. for Better Housing) of the identified “at-risk” units, has expressed a 
desire to continue the affordable housing program and will be renewing their contracts. 
However, in the event the property owner choses to sell, the City will notify all organizations 
listed on Table 2-15 (page 41) of the availabity of property to ensure continued low-income 
housing. The program is ongoing, managed and monitored annually (coinciding with the fiscal 
year) through the Community Development Department.  The Community Development 
Director shall monitor the status of all subsidized housing projects and shall work with the City 
Manager in developing strategies to preserve these projects.  Specific projects shall be 
reviewed for consistency with the goals of the General Plan and other City policies, prior to 
implementation.  Public participation shall be encouraged throughout the process to reflect the 
needs and interests of Cudahy residents.  Financing will come from CDBG funds, and the 
General Fund, to the extent funds are available.  Other funding sources that may be available 
shall be explored, as well.  
 

 
Policy 3.10. The City of Cudahy will preserve existing single-family, 
lower density residential neighborhoods. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City of Cudahy allows second units on single-family lots, as required by State law.  This 
has led to second units on most lots in the Low Density Residential (LDR) Zone and has added 
to the current housing stock. This is an ongoing program by the Planning Department. Its 
implementation is funded by the General Fund. October 7, 2003 Ordinance No. 587. The 
Planning Department will monitor the construction of second units annually (coinciding with the 
fiscal year).   
 

 
Goal 4. The City of Cudahy will encourage development of a viable 
urban community consistent with orderly growth and environmental 
conservation to provide suitable living environments, with access to 
employment, community facilities, and services. 

 



Attachment C 
 

48 
 

 
 
Policy 4.1. The City of Cudahy will reserve the existing residential 
neighborhoods and provide areas to accommodate new residential 
development. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
To encourage the development of high quality housing on vacant and underutilized lots, the 
City shall establish a promotional campaign to area developers.  The campaign shall promote 
the City of Cudahy and existing investment opportunities. The City shall work with local 
business groups (such as the Chamber of Commerce and Building Industry Association) on 
promoting available incentives to new development. This may be accomplished through 
networking, formal presentations, brochures, ads, and other promotional materials and 
activities. Staff will also keep informed of state and federal housing programs and provide 
information to interested residents and groups. The City will work with local early care and 
education advocates to create an information handout to inform developers, business groups, 
and households about the available early care and education services. The program will be 
managed by the Community Development Director and begin in 2013, promotional materials 
will be developed by December 2014 for distribution, and will be updated on an ongoing basis. 
The program will be funded through the General Fund.  
 

 
Policy 4.2. The City of Cudahy will coordinate regional and local 
public works and capital improvement programs in declining 
neighborhoods and in neighborhoods experiencing increased 
population due to redevelopment or land conversion activities. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall work with Los Angeles County to identify and coordinate water and sewer 
infrastructure on the provision of adequate infrastructure and public services in Cudahy, 
including monitoring for grant funding sources, to meet the City’s RHNA.  It shall coordinate 
County and City capital improvement projects (CIP).  This includes setting priorities for 
infrastructure and public service projects through the City's capital improvement program.  The 
City shall coordinate with state and regional agencies on addressing planning and 
environmental issues that affect Cudahy.  It shall initiate talks with adjacent cities on potential 
area-wide strategies to promote jobs/housing balance.  The program will be financed through 
the General Fund. The CIP program will be completed by December 2015 by the Public Works 
Department.  
 

 
Policy 4.3. The City of Cudahy will provide the necessary public 
services and infrastructure to residential areas and locate new 
housing developments where availability of public facilities and 
services is assured. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall work with Los Angeles County to identify and coordinate water and sewer 
infrastructure on the provision of adequate infrastructure and public services in Cudahy, 
including monitoring for grant funding sources, to meet the City’s RHNA.  It shall coordinate 
County and City capital improvement projects (CIP).  This includes setting priorities for 
infrastructure and public service projects through the City's capital improvement program.  The 
City shall coordinate with state and regional agencies on addressing planning and 
environmental issues that affect Cudahy.  It shall initiate talks with adjacent cities on potential 
area-wide strategies to promote jobs/housing balance.  The program will be financed through 
the General Fund. The CIP program will be completed by December 2015 by the Public Works 
Department.  
 

 
Policy 4.4. The City of Cudahy will encourage the application of high 
quality urban design standards to create safe, attractive, functional 
housing units and neighborhoods. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
To encourage the development of high quality housing on vacant and underutilized lots, the 
City shall establish a promotional campaign to area developers.  The campaign shall promote 
the City of Cudahy and existing investment opportunities. The City shall work with local 
business groups (such as the Chamber of Commerce and Building Industry Association) on 
promoting available incentives to new development. This may be accomplished through 
networking, formal presentations, brochures, ads, and other promotional materials and 
activities. Staff will also keep informed of state and federal housing programs and provide 
information to interested residents and groups. The City will work with local early care and 
education advocates to create an information handout to inform developers, business groups, 



Attachment C 
 

49 
 

and households about the available early care and education services. The program will be 
managed by the Community Development Director and begin in 2013, promotional materials 
will be developed by December 2014 for distribution, and will be updated on an ongoing basis. 
The program will be funded through the General Fund.  
 

 
Policy 4.5. The City of Cudahy will conserve existing residential 
areas and prevent the intrusion of incompatible uses into the 
neighborhoods. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall conduct an integral review as part of its General Plan implementation to achieve 
consistency with other general plan elements, policies, programs, and community goals to 
reflect the policy direction contained in other parts of the General Plan. As portions of the 
General plan are amended in the future, this Housing Element will be reviewed to ensure that 
internal consistency is maintained. This is an ongoing program monitored annually (coinciding 
with the fiscal year) and managed by the Community Development Director and Planning 
Department.  
 

 
Policy 4.6. The City of Cudahy will encourage continued and new 
investment in the established residential neighborhoods in Cudahy. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
To encourage the development of high quality housing on vacant and underutilized lots, the 
City shall establish a promotional campaign to area developers.  The campaign shall promote 
the City of Cudahy and existing investment opportunities. The City shall work with local 
business groups (such as the Chamber of Commerce and Building Industry Association) on 
promoting available incentives to new development. This may be accomplished through 
networking, formal presentations, brochures, ads, and other promotional materials and 
activities. Staff will also keep informed of state and federal housing programs and provide 
information to interested residents and groups. The City will work with local early care and 
education advocates to create an information handout to inform developers, business groups, 
and households about the available early care and education services. The program will be 
managed by the Community Development Director and begin in 2013, promotional materials 
will be developed by December 2014 for distribution, and will be updated on an ongoing basis. 
The program will be funded through the General Fund.  
 

 
Policy 4.7. The City of Cudahy will increase property maintenance 
efforts by code enforcement to improve the overall appearance of 
the residential neighborhoods, thus maintaining property values in 
the City. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue code enforcement of nuisances such as inoperable vehicles, property 
maintenance, substandard units, and illegal garage conversions. It shall identify substandard 
dwelling units and encourage rehabilitation through the provision of technical support and 
incentives such as streamlined permit processing, variances to development standards on a 
case by case basis, waiver of fees or fines if rehabilitation is undertaken within the next three 
months, etc. Also, it shall actively work towards the rehabilitation of structures which do not 
meet seismic safety standards and current electrical code requirements.  The City shall 
coordinate with homeowner's associations in the enforcement of CC&R's regarding property 
maintenance. This program is ongoing, to be monitored annually (coinciding with the fiscal 
year) and will continue to be financed through CDBG funds. The Code Enforcement Program 
is complaint driven; complains are filed with the City’s Code Enforcement department which 
then schedules follow up inspections and provides tenants with information to resources.  
 

 
Policy 4.8. The City of Cudahy will identify the best possible 
locations and development standards for residential development 
and encourage a high quality environment for family life. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall develop a system for assessing the potential impacts from new development.  
The City will require all new development to undergo an assessment to ensure that adequate 
infrastructure is available to serve the development. The feasability of a Mello Roos fee for the 
upgrade of existing infrastructure (including roads, water lines, etc.) will be explored for future 
implementation.  The program is ongoing and will be monitored annually (coinciding with the 
fiscal year) by the Public Works Department, and is financed through the General Fund. The 



Attachment C 
 

50 
 

study will be completed by June 2014, and will be included in the housing information program 
materials.  
 

 
Goal 5. The City of Cudahy will promote equal access and 
opportunity to housing regardless of race, religion, sex, marital 
status, ancestry, national origin, or color. 
 

 

 
Policy 5.1. The City of Cudahy will promote equal access and 
opportunities to housing through the provision of consumer 
information, assistance and protection and through citizen 
involvement in the design and implementation of housing programs. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
There are many special needs households in Cudahy that will benefit from programs designed 
to promote equal access and opportunity to housing.  The City intends to minimize difficulties 
of special needs households in finding adequate housing by providing programs to prevent 
discrimination or to encourage the production of housing specifically designed for these 
households.  The City will amend its definition of family by December 2014.  The definition will 
not distinguish between related and unrelated persons or impose limitations on the number of 
persons that may constitute a family.  The following is a sample definition for 
consideration: One or more persons living together in a dwelling unit, with common access to, 
and common use of all living, kitchen, and eating areas within the dwelling unit. The City of 
Cudahy will implement a number of measures to provide adequate housing to residents with 
special housing needs.  It anticipates that an average of 200 households per year will receive 
some form of assistance which promotes equal access and opportunity to housing in the City 
through these programs.  
 
The City shall refer discrimination complaints to the Fair Housing Network and ensure 
complaints are resolved. The City will participate and distribute fair housing materials at a 
variety of community activities such as food distribution, easter egg hunt, national night out, 
and local carnivals/fairs to reach out to all segments of the community. The City will annually 
conduct fair housing press releases, directly contanct interested groups for distributing fair 
housing materials, mail fair housing materials through utility billing and post fair housing 
information in a variety of community locations such as the library, bus stops, pulic counters 
and post office. The program will be managed by the Community Development Director and 
begin in 2013, promotional materials will be developed by December 2014 for distribution, and 
will be updated on an ongoing basis. The program will be funded through the General Fund 
and staff time.  
 

 
Policy 5.2. The City of Cudahy will explore procedures for fair and 
equitable treatment of the parties in housing contracts, such as 
buyer-seller and landlord-tenant agreements. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City promotes the use of the Fair Housing Council of Long Beach through the City 
newsletter and local papers, and informs all city employees of the available services for 
referral.  The City shall prepare a list of referral agencies to serve low-income households, 
handicapped, elderly, homeless, and other special needs groups. Information is given through 
Code Enforcement and City Housing Department. It shall make the list available at City Hall, 
the library and City parks for interested persons. Financing will be provided through the 
General Fund and CDBG funds. Referral information shall be completed by December 2015.  
 

 
Policy 5.3. The City of Cudahy will encourage citizen participation 
and community involvement in the development and implementation 
of housing assistance and housing programs in the City. Actively 
pursue participation on housing issues by the City's elderly and 
minority populations. 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City encourages community participation in all city programs.  Noticing practices in the City 
include posting information on scheduled public hearings at City Hall, the Cudahy Library, and the 
Council Chambers at least two weeks prior to the hearing dates.  The City also advertises these 
hearings, as well as other city programs, in the local newspaper (The Wave) and in the City 



Attachment C 
 

51 
 

 newsletter.  An interpreter is also available during public hearings to facilitate communication 
between individuals who only speak Spanish.  Brochures at City Hall are available in both English 
and Spanish versions.  Spanish-speaking employees also facilitate the dissemination of 
information regarding city programs.  It shall encourage residents to attend City Council and 
Planning Commission meetings by increased publicity practices.  This will allow the City to get 
more input into its programs and tailor them to meet the needs expressed by residents.  Public 
workshops have been conducted in the General Plan's revised goals and policies and Draft Land 
Use Plan to solicit resident concerns.  Public hearings will continue to be held prior to adoption of 
the General Plan, including this Element.  This will allow the City to better respond to the concerns 
and interests of Cudahy residents. This program is ongoing, to be monitored annually (coinciding 
with the fiscal year) and funded by the General Fund as services are contracted and staff time.  
 

 
Policy 5.4. The City of Cudahy will establish referral agencies to 
serve low-income households, the homeless, handicapped, elderly 
households and residents with special housing needs. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City promotes the use of the Fair Housing Council of Long Beach through the City 
newsletter and local papers, and informs all city employees of the available services for 
referral.  The City shall prepare a list of referral agencies to serve low-income households, 
handicapped, elderly, homeless, and other special needs groups. Information is given through 
Code Enforcement and City Housing Department. It shall make the list available at City Hall, 
the library and City parks for interested persons. Financing will be provided through the 
General Fund and CDBG funds. Referral information shall be completed by December 2015.  
 

 
Policy 5.5. The City of Cudahy will enforce fair housing laws and 
encourage the use of fair housing counsel services. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City promotes the use of the Fair Housing Council of Long Beach through the City 
newsletter and local papers, and informs all city employees of the available services for 
referral.  The City shall prepare a list of referral agencies to serve low-income households, 
handicapped, elderly, homeless, and other special needs groups. Information is given through 
Code Enforcement and City Housing Department. It shall make the list available at City Hall, 
the library and City parks for interested persons. Financing will be provided through the 
General Fund and CDBG funds. Referral information shall be completed by December 2015.  
 

 
Policy 5.6. The City of Cudahy will encourage and promote 
accessible housing for the handicapped. This includes the 
retrofitting of existing units and the enforcement of the 
State accessibility standards for new residential construction. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 

 
The City currently requires new development to comply with State standards for handicapped 
access. It shall also enforce the recently adopted American with Disabilities Act.  This program 
is implemented by the Department of Building and Public Services with funding from the 
General Fund. The City adopted the Los Angeles County Building Code in March 2013, which 
includes standards for ADA complaince.   
 

 
Policy 5.7. The City of Cudahy will provide continued cooperation 
between the City and adjacent cities in the development of regional 
housing programs and homeless services. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall continue to provide funds for the Human Services Association to serve the 
homeless and other special needs groups in the community. It shall also maintain a list of local 
social services to use as referral sources for residents in need. These services are discussed 
in the Housing Element Profile Report.  This program is ongoing, to be monitored annually 
(coinciding with the fiscal year) and will continue to be financed through the CDBG.  
 

 
Policy 5.8. The City of Cudahy will provide density bonuses for low-

 
Ongoing 

 
The City shall explore the feasibility of requiring affordable housing units within new housing 



Attachment C 
 

52 
 

income housing projects and senior citizen housing projects. 
 

developments. This may be promoted by density bonuses and other incentives, coupled with a 
use restriction on the affordable units.  The City may also require developers to provide a 
minimum percentage of affordable housing or pay fees, dedicate land or establish agreements 
with other agencies for the construction of affordable units off site. To address Cudahy's 
overcrowding problems, the City shall include in this study, the available options to requiring or 
encouraging large dwelling units (2 bedrooms or more) within new development.  This may 
likewise be promoted by incentives to the allowable density and less stringent development 
standards.  The inclusionary housing study shall be initiated by the Department of Community 
Development, with funding from the General Fund to the extent of available resources. The 
study and associated ordinance or program will be completed by December 2015.  
 

Source: 2010 City of Cudahy General Plan; 2013-2021 Housing Element Update 5th Cycle; Community Development Records.  
 



Attachment D 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-08 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CUDAHY APPROVING THE 2014 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL 
PROGRESS REPORT AND AUTHORIZE STAFF TO FILE THE 
REPORT WITH THE GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF PLANNING 
AND RESEARCH (OPR) AND THE CALIFORNIA 
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT (HCD).  
 

 
WHEREAS, The state of California requires non-charter cities and counties to 

have adopted General Plan to provide guidance and direction for development 
activities; and, 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Cudahy current General Plan was adopted in October 

2010; and, 
 
WHEREAS, The Housing is one of the seven mandatory elements of a General 

Plan required by the State of California; and, 
 

WHEREAS, The Housing Element must be updated every eight years and 
reviewed for consistency with the State Department of Housing and Community 
Development; and 

 
WHEREAS, The Housing Element was adopted on January 7, 2014; and, 
 
WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 65400 mandates that cities 

submit an Annual Progress Report on the status of the General Plan and its 
implementation to their legislative bodies, the Governor’s Office of Planning and 
Research (OPR) and the Housing and Community Development (HCD); and, 

 
WHEREAS, The Annual Progress Report is required to include: a) the state of 

the plan and the progress of its implementation; b) the progress in meeting its share 
of regional housing needs and local efforts to remove governmental constraints to the 
maintenance, improvement and development of housing; and c) the degree to which 
the General Plan complies with the Guidelines established by OPR; and, 

 
WHEREAS, The City has prepared its 2014 General Plan Annual Progress 

Report, attached hereto, in accordance with the Guidelines adopted by OPR 
 
WHEREAS, This matter was duly posted and set for public hearing for March 

17, 2014 at 6:30 P.M. by the City Council.  
 
 



Attachment D 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
BASED UPON THE ABOVE RECITALS, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CUDAHY, CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY FIND, DETERMINE AND RESOLVE 
AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. That the City of Cudahy has completed the 2014 General Plan 

Annual Progress Report as required by California Government Code Section 65400.   
 

SECTION 2. That the 2014 General Plan Annual Progress Report provided 
herein is found to be consistent with the suggested content by the State Guidelines 
and is hereby accepted.   

 
SECTION 3. That staff is hereby authorized and directed to submit the 2014 

General Plan Annual Progress Report to the Governor’s Office of Planning and 
Research (OPR) and the Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD). 

 
SECTION 4. In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act 

(CEQA) and the State CEQA Guidelines, the adoption of this General Plan Annual 
Progress Report is exempt from CEQA review pursuant to California Code of 
Regulations section 15306 Information Collection. Class 6 consists of basic data 
collection, research, experimental management, and resource evaluation activities 
which do not result in serious or major disturbance to an environmental resource. 
These may be strictly for information gathering purposes, or as part of a study leading 
to an action which a public agency has not yet approved, adopted, or funded.  

 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of 
Cudahy at its regular meeting on this 17th day of March, 2015. 
 

 
 
          

_____________________________ 
Chris Garcia  
Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       
 
 
 
___________________________   
Victor H. Ferrer      
Deputy City Clerk 
 



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/17/2015  Page 1 of 2 
    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  March 17, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Victor Ferrer, Deputy City Clerk 

Subject: Appointment to Fill the Unscheduled Vacancy with an Unexpired Term on the 
Parks and Recreation Commission 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to review the two applications received and make an 
appointment to the Parks and Recreation Commission to fill an unscheduled vacancy with 
an unexpired term ending April 30, 2017. 

  
BACKGROUND 
 
1. On January 30, 2015, former Commissioner Jose L. Cortes met with Deputy City Clerk 

Victor Ferrer to express his reasons for resigning as a Commissioner to the Parks and 
Recreation Commission. 

 
2. On February 3, 2015, the Office of the City Clerk, in compliance with Government Code 

Section 54970-54974, posted a Notice of Vacancy (Attachment A) at three locations and 
the City’s Website.  

 
3. On February 6, 2015, the Office of the City Clerk received an application from Kimberly 

Ortega. 
 
4. On February 12, 2015, the Office of the City Clerk received an application from Deepak 

Vig. 
 
5. On February 17, 2015, the Council began discussion on the appointment of a new 

Commissioner to the Parks and Recreation Commission, but due to a lack of quorum, 
the discussion was not finalized ultimately moved to the following meeting scheduled 
for March 10, 2015.  Due to an unforeseen lack of quorum the item was moved again to 
the March 17, 2015 City Council meeting. 

 

Item Number 

10A 



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/17/2015  Page 2 of 2 
    

 
ANALYSIS 
 
The purpose of this report is for the City Council to review this matter and to fill the 
unscheduled and unexpired term on the Parks and Recreation Commission. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
If the City Council appoints one of the applicants to the Parks and Recreation Commission, 
after filing out the necessary paper work, the applicant could participate in the Parks and 
Recreation Commission meeting scheduled for March 27, 2015.  If the Council decides not 
to approve the appointment, the City Clerk’s Office will continue to receive applications 
until the vacancy is filled.  Although it is important for any commission to have all five seats 
filled, the Parks and Recreation Commission currently has four out of five seats filled, 
sufficient to meet a quorum. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
None. 

 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. Notice of Vacancy – Dated February 3, 2015 
B. Commission Application – Deepak Vig 
C. Commission Application – Kimberly Ortega 
D. Commission Committee List 2015 (Maddy Act) 



 

NOTICE OF VACANCY 
 

COMMISSION APPLICANTS SOUGHT 
 
 
 

 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City of Cudahy invites interested persons of the City of Cudahy to 
submit applications to serve on the following City Commission (OPEN until filled).   
 

Parks and Recreation Commission: 1 Vacancy (2-year term). Current term expires on April 30, 
2017. This Commission serves in advisory capacity to the City Council on the acquisition, use, 
maintenance, and operation of parks, playgrounds and other public recreational facilities, and to 
the maintenance of a planned program of public recreation for the citizens of Cudahy. This 
Commission meets on the fourth Monday each month at 6:00 p.m. 
 
 

Applications are available at City Hall in the Office of the City Clerk, 5220 Santa Ana Street, California, 
Monday through Thursday, between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Friday, between the hours of 
7:00 p.m. and 4:00 p.m. except holidays. The application will be available online as well and can be 
downloaded from www.cityofcudahyca.gov . Completed application forms must be filed with the City Clerk 
in order to be considered for appointment to this position. The appointment for this position will be made 
during a Regular City Council Meeting.   
 
Note:  According to the Cudahy Municipal Code, Chapter 2.32.010 to be qualified as a City Commissioner 
one must be an owner of real property located within the city; reside within the city; or employed within 
the city. 
 
Office of the City Clerk 
City of Cudahy 
 
 
Posted on February 3, 2015 at the following locations: 
 
1. City Hall 
2. Clara Park  
3. Lugo Park  
4. City’s Website 

http://www.cityofcudahyca.gov/
Clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



Clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment B









Clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment C





CITY OF CUDAHY LOCAL APPOINTMENTS LIST 

In compliance with Government Code Section 54972 (Maddy Act), the following commissions, boards, and appointments list shall be posted on an annual basis by 
December 31.  
 
Note:  In accordance with the Cudahy Municipal Code, Chapter 2.32.010 (1) to be qualified as a City Commissioner one must reside within the city; or employed within the city. Additionally, membership 
on the Cudahy senior citizens club will qualify a person for membership on the aging and senior citizens commission. (2) Terms. (a) Except as otherwise provided in this subsection (2), all City 
commissioners shall have two year terms of office, which shall commence on May 1st. (d) A commissioner whose term has expired shall continue to hold office until a successor is appointed. 

(Updated 2/10/15) 

SENIOR & AGING 
COMMISSION 

PUBLIC SAFETY 
COMMISSION 

PLANNING COMMISSION PARKS & RECREATION 
COMMISSION 

This Commission meets on the 
second Monday of every month at 
2:00 p.m. at 4835 Clara Street 
Park 
 
Secretary: Victor Ferrer 

This Commission meets on the 
second Tuesday of every month 
at 5:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers 
 
Secretary: Raul Mazariegos 

This Commission meets on the 
third Monday of every month at 
6:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers 
 
Secretary: Didier Murillo 

This Commission meets on the 
fourth Friday of every month at 6:00 
p.m. in the Council Chambers 
 
 
Secretary: Victor Santiago 

Patricia Covarrubias, Chairperson 
 
Reappointed:5/1/2014 
Term Expires:4/30/2017 

Frank Parrish, Chairperson 
 
Reappointed:5/7/2013 
Term Expires:4/30/2015 

Gilbert Cuevas, Vice Chairman 
 
Appointed:4/2/2013 
Term Expires: 4/30/2015 

Vacancy 
 
 

Term Expires:4/30/2017 

Maura Pena, Chairperson Pro 
Tem 
 
Reappointed: 5/1/2014 
Term Expires: 4/30/2017 

Joaquin Carrera, Chairperson Pro 
Tem 
 
Reappointed:5/1/2014 
Term Expires:4/30/2016 

Elizabeth Alcantar, Commissioner 
 
 
Appointed:12/3/2013 
Term Expires:4/30/2015 

Brenda Rodriguez, Commissioner 
 
 
Appointed:5/1/2014 
Term Expires:4/30/2017 

Michelle Gessner, Commissioner 
 
Appointed:3/4/2014 
Term Expires:4/30/2015 

Emanuel Cruz, Commissioner 
 
Reappointed:1/6/2015 
Term Expires:4/30/2017 

Susie de Santiago, Commissioner 
 
Appointed: 5/7/2013 
Term Expires:4/30/2015 

Marcos Covarrubias, Commissioner 
 
Appointed:5/1/2014 
Term Expires:4/30/2017 

Isaias Cornejo, Commissioner 
 
Reappointed: 4/2/2013 
Term Expires: 4/30/2015 

Enrique Cardonne, Commissioner 
 
Reappointed:5/1/2014 
Term Expires:4/30/2016 

Martin Fuentes, Commissioner 
 
Appointed:11/19/2013 
Term Expires:4/30/2016 

Felix Reyes Perez, Commissioner 
 
Appointed:5/1/2014 
Term Expires:4/30/2017 

Concepcion Trujillo, 
Commissioner 
 
Appointed: 3/4/2014 
Term Expires:4/30/2015 

Walter Gelder, Commissioner 
 

 
Reappointed:4/2/2013 
Term Expires: 4/30/2015 

 
Vacancy 

 
 

Term Expires:4/30/2016 

Roberto S. Venegas, 
Commissioner 
 
Appointed:5/1/2014 
Term Expires:4/30/2017 

Clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment D



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/17/2015  Page 1 of 2 
    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  March 17, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Victor H. Ferrer, Deputy City Clerk 

Subject: Discussion on Resolutions Regarding Immigration Reform 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to give staff direction regarding Immigration Reform (e.g., 
Resolution, letter, other directive). 
  
BACKGROUND 
 
1. On January 21, 2014, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 14-07, a resolution 

endorsing comprehensive immigration reform in the United States House of 
Representatives. 
 

2. On January 6, 2015, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 15-01, a resolution 
declaring the City a Sanctuary City for immigrants. 
 

3. On February 3, 2015, during a City Council meeting, Council directed staff and the City 
Attorney to review Resolutions No. 15-01 and 14-07. 
 

ANALYSIS 
 
The Council expressed an interest to prepare a letter to the White House expressing their 
support for Immigration Reform.  After discussing, the Council believed that amending or 
creating a new resolution would send a stronger message in comparison to a letter. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
After the Council gives direction whether it would like staff to draft a letter or the City 
Attorney to draft a resolution, this item will be brought back as a Consent Calendar item on 

 

Item Number 

10B 



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/17/2015  Page 2 of 2 
    

the April 7, 2015 City Council meeting.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
Staff does not anticipate a financial impact. 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. Resolution No. 15-01 
B. Resolution No. 14-07 



Clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment A







RESOLUTION NO. 14-07 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CUDAHY TO ENDORSE COMPREHENSIVE 
IMMIGRATION REFORM IN THE UNITED STATES 
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES DURING THE 
CURRENT LEGISLATIVE SESSION, WITH THE 
FOLLOWING LEGISLATIVE PRINCIPLES: (I) SECURITY 
OF THE BORDER, (II) REFORM OF THE LEGAL 
IMMIGRATION SYSTEM, AND (III) PATHWAY TO 
LEGALIZATION AND/OR CITIZENSHIP FOR 
OTHERWISE LAW-ABIDING UNDOCUMENTED 
IMMIGRANTS 

WHEREAS, hard working immigrants from around the world strengthen our 
country, enrich our culture, and raise the standard of living for American citizens; and 

WHEREAS, we should celebrate our immigrant-friendly traditions as a country, 
and work to build a legal immigration system that reflects our values, respects our 
security interests, and serves our economic needs; and 

WHEREAS, the United States House of Representatives should follow the lead 
of the United States Senate in discussing immigration reform and taking up legislation in 
the current legislative session, with a view towards establishing a conference committee 
in the current year; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Cudahy is home to a large population of hard-working 
immigrants and their families, including a population 96% Latino in the heart of Los 
Angeles County, California - which together with our neighboring cities, accounts for the 
largest concentration of Latinos in the United States of America: 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cudahy is comprised of Republicans 
and Democrats (including active state delegates to both major political parties), united in 
pursuit of bipartisan and sensible immigration reform policies; and 

WHEREAS, all members of the City Council have advocated for immigration 
reform policies historically and publically, including Republican Mayor Jack Guerrero's 
recent Washington, D.C., visit with House Majority Whip Kevin McCarthy, on October 
29th 

, 2013; and Democratic Vice Mayor Chris Garcia's historical activism in this area; 

BASED UPON THE ABOVE RECITALS, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CUDAHY, CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY FIND, DETERMINE AND RESOLVE AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment B



Resolution No. 14-07 
Page 2 

SECTION 1. The City Council endorses comprehensive immigration reform in the 
United States House of Representatives during the current legislative year, with the 
following important principles incorporated into any contemplated legislation: 

(i)	 Secure the border: 
With the greatest respect for the dignity of human beings, we must secure the 
border once and for all by using efficient technology; facilitating collaboration 
between law enforcement agencies; and by shifting priorities away from 
border protection in foreign lands that have little relevance for U.S. interests. 
By redirecting resources from border protection on behalf of other countries, 
we can stem illegal immigration at home. 

(ii)	 Reform the legal system: 
We must revamp our legal immigration process to make it faster, orderly, and 
more secure; and we must enhance legal immigration levels to more closely 
match the human capital needs of our economy - whether in technology, 
agriculture, or commercial sectors in between. We must establish a 
streamlined process for admitting future workers to ensure that we continue to 
promote innovation and meet our workforce needs. 

(iii)	 Pathway to legalization and/or citizenship: 
We must address the undocumented population by offering a narrowly 
defined path to earned legalization for otherwise law-abiding undocumented 
immigrants. This process could consist of background checks, reasonable 
fines, evidence of financial responsibility, recommendation letters from 
sponsoring U.S. citizens, and conditional requirements such as military 
service or university education for young people who were brought to this 
country through no fault of their own. 

SECTION 2. A copy of this resolution shall be mailed by the City Clerk to the 
Offices of United States Congresswoman Lucille Roybal (D-California), United States 
House Speaker John A. Boehner (R-Ohio), House Majority Whip Kevin McCarthy (R-' 
California), State Assemblyman Anthony Rendon, and State Senator Ricardo Lara. 

SECTION 3. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption, 
except as otherwise provided herein. The Mayor shall sign this resolution and the City 
Clerk shall attest and certify to the passage and adoption thereof. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of 
Cudahy at its regular meeting on this 21 st day of January, 2014. 

J 



Resolution No. 14-07 
Page 3 

ATIEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM 

I ~J 
Risk Olivaroz, 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES ) SS: 
CITY OF CUDAHY ) 

I, Angela Bustamante, Deputy City Clerk of the City of Cudahy, hereby certify that the 
foregoing Resolution No. 14-07 was passed and adopted by the City Council of the City 
of Cudahy at a regular meeting held on the 21 st day of January, 2014 and that said 
Resolution was adopted by the following vote, to-wit: 

AYES: Councilmember Markovich, Oliva, Sanchez, Vice Mayor Garcia, Mayor Guerrero 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

(A~_ 
Ang~~ 
Deputy City Clerk 



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/17/2015  Page 1 of 6     

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  March 17, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Didier Murillo, Planning Technician  

Subject: Approval of Conditional Use Permit (CUP) No. 38.352; to Allow a 
Charter School in the Community Commercial Zone (CC) Zone 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

The City Council is requested to: 
A. Grant the appeal of Resolution PC 15-02 of Opportunities for Learning (OFL) 

(Applicant) and approve its request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) No. 38.352 
to allow a Charter School in the Community Commercial Zone based on the staff’s 
findings (see Attachment H); or 
 

B. Deny the CUP based on the Planning Commission’s action (see Attachment I). 
  
BACKGROUND 

1. On July 25, 1989, the Cudahy Development Review Board approved DRP No. 
41.199 to close down a cafeteria, automotive service area, enclosed garden shop 
and convert to conditional sales floor, remove storefront glass on front side 
elevation to match existing store from materials, and remove an existing water oil 
tank at an existing retail center (Kmart retail store).   
 

2. On April 21, 1993, the Cudahy Planning Commission recommended approval of 
DRP No. 41.254 and CUP No. 38.187 to City Council of a Negative Declaration, 
change of storefronts of the existing shopping center located at 7907-8017 
Atlantic Avenue, and to construct a 7,000 square foot pad building on the subject 
property.  

 
3. On June 7, 1993, a memorandum prepared by the Director of Community 

Development DRP No. 41.254 and CUP No. 38.187 required 373 parking spaces on 
site to accommodate a total of 11 retail spaces on site along with the proposed 
7,000 pad building addition.   

 

Item Number 

10C 



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/17/2015  Page 2 of 6     

 
4. On September 7, 1993, the City Council approved an Ordinance to change the land 

use designation of those portions of the Cudahy Plaza Shopping Center property 
that were zoned Residential to Commercial.  

 
5. On March 3, 1997, City Council approved Development Review Permit No. 41.277 

and a Negative Declaration regarding a proposal by Pep Boys-Parts USA to 
construct an 8,330 square foot retail center for automobile parts and accessories 
at 7901 Atlantic Avenue by Resolution No. 97-6.  

 
6. On March 27, 2003, a new application was submitted and subsequently approved 

for CUP No. 38.256 for a proposed 11,500 square foot pad building located on the 
subject site, the project required a total 516 parking spaces on site to 
accommodate the 11 existing retail spaces on site along with the proposed 11,500 
square foot retail pad building addition.  

 
7. On October 21, 2014, OFL submitted an application to the Community 

Development Department for a CUP No. 38.352 to allow a Charter School in the 
CC Zone in the Cudahy Plaza located at 7955 Atlantic Avenue. 

 
8. On January 15, 2015, the Planning Commission denied OFL’s request for CUP No. 

38.352 to allow a Charter School in the CC Zone in the Cudahy Plaza located at 
7955 Atlantic Avenue (see attachment D).  

 
9. On January 19, 2015, the Planning Department, Acting Community Development 

Director and City Manager had a meeting with Matthew B. Berger, Senior Vice 
President, Leasing West Region and Tyler Barry, Leasing Representative West, of 
Brixmor Property Group (property owners of Cudahy Plaza) to discuss next steps in 
appealing a decision made by Planning Commission to the City of Cudahy City 
Council in regards to CUP No. 38.352.  

 
10. On January 20, 2015, OFL submitted a letter of appeal and paid the necessary fees 

to appeal the Planning Commission’s decision before the City Council.  
 
ANALYSIS 

During the January 19th meeting, the property owners of the Cudahy Plaza stated that 
they had conducted marketing outreach to prospective tenants for over 18 months 
prior to reaching a potential agreement with OFL for a future lease agreement of the 
vacant retail space. During their outreach process, it was stated that no traditional 
retailer had expressed an interest in occupying the vacant retail space due to fear of 
competition from the newly developed Azalea Shopping Center in the neighboring City 
of South Gate. 
 
Furthermore, the current tenants in the Cudahy Plaza continuously asked the property 
owners when a new tenant would be occupying the space; as they expressed concerns 



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/17/2015  Page 3 of 6     

that having a vacancy for a prolonged time would affect their respective sales and 
business. The property owners expressed their desire to appeal the Planning 
Commission’s decision before City Council and receive approval of CUP No. 38.352. 
Granting the CUP would allow OFL to revitalize and provide the Cudahy Plaza with a 
sense of stability by immediately generating pedestrian and vehicular trips to this 
shopping center. This activity in turn would generate business for the other 
established businesses in the shopping center.   
 
Despite the Planning Commission’s January 15, 2015 decision to deny the approval of 
OFL’s CUP, staff continues to recommend approval of OFL’s Charter School in the CC 
Zone. The detailed report of staff’s findings recommending approval of CUP No. 
38.352 is found in Attachment A. Staff’s recommendation for approval is based on the 
findings of CMC Section 20.44.070; Basis for Approval or Denial of a (CUP). CMC 
Section 20.44.070 contains three findings that must be made in the affirmative in 
order to approve a project. 

1.  “The site for a proposed conditional use should be adequate in size and shape to 
accommodate the yards, walls and fences, parking and loading, landscaping and 
other development features prescribed in this chapter, or required by the 
commission, city council or other authorized agent in order to integrate the 
conditional use with the land and uses in the neighborhood.” 

 
The Cudahy Municipal Code requires one parking space for every five students. OFL 
will have a maximum of 35 students on site at the same time. Therefore, 35/5 = 7 
required parking spaces. Seven spaces amounts to only about 1.3 percent of the site’s 
522 spaces. Parking is more than adequate for the project and all other tenants at the 
site. The project also meets all of the development standards.  

2. “The commission shall consider the nature, condition and development of 
adjacent uses, buildings, and structures and the effect the proposed conditional 
use may have on such adjacent uses, buildings and structures.” 

 
The proposed use is compatible with the surrounding uses in the areas. The proposed 
use will provide a vital public service and infrastructure (education) to current and 
future area residents which currently have a low educational attainment based on 
recent U.S. Census statistics. Also, the addition of students to the site will add much 
needed patrons to the existing shopping center.  

 
3. “The site for a proposed conditional use should relate to streets and highways 

adequate in width and pavement to carry the kind and quantity of traffic such 
use would generate.” 

 
This specific CUP application to allow a Charter School is not expected to significantly 
increase daily traffic counts beyond existing trip generation rates of existing uses on 
site. Therefore, the proposed use is not an intensification of the previous uses.  

 



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/17/2015  Page 4 of 6     

Brief Description of Applicant 

The applicant, OFL, is requesting approval of CUP No. 38.352 to allow a Charter School 
in an existing/vacant retail space located at 7955 Atlantic Avenue in the CC Zone. The 
proposed project will include tenant improvements to facilitate the school. (Reference 
Attachment C). 

The OFL program is a publicly funded charter school. They serve students in grades 
7-12. They are compliant with state Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) regulations 
to serve non ambulatory students. As a registered active charter school with the 
California Department of Education (CDE), OFL is accredited by the Western 
Association of Schools and Colleges (WASC). Students who attend OFL earn course 
credits and are enrolled at OFL until they transfer back to a traditional school or 
graduate from OFL with a high school diploma. 
 
OFL students attend school for two 1.5 hour appointments per week. Due to the 
independent study model, OFL does not provide transportation, food service, 
gymnasiums, or playground facilities to students at each learning center. Additionally, 
a majority of the students utilize public transportation to commute to and from the 
center. This greatly reduces the parking load required for each center. Currently, many 
centers throughout Southern California operate with minimal parking without any 
adverse affects on attendance or the surrounding area. 
 
Each teacher serves a maximum of five students per 1.5 hour appointment. OFL 
estimates the current number of students per 1.5 hour session to be 35, and total of 
140 students per day. The proposed center will have seven teachers and three support 
staff, for a total of 10 staff members. Student appointments are at 9:00am, 10:30am, 
1:00pm and 2:30pm. 
 
The OFL center will be open Monday – Friday from 8:00am – 5:00pm, closed for lunch 
from 12:00pm-1:00pm, and closed most Saturdays and all Sundays. Saturday school 
will be offered four times a year for Scholastic Aptitude Test (SAT) and California High 
School Exit Examination (CAHSEE) prep testing from 9:00am – 12:00pm. 

 
Planning Commission’s Denial 

During the January 15, 2015, meeting, the Planning Commission denied CUP No. 
38.352 because it made one of the required findings in the negative. That finding is: 
 
“The commission shall consider the nature, condition and development of adjacent 
uses, buildings, and structures and the effect the proposed conditional use may have 
on such adjacent uses, buildings and structures.”  
 
In response to that finding, the Planning Commission found as follows: 
 
The CC Zone is established to provide for a community’s commercial needs. The 



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/17/2015  Page 5 of 6     

proposed project does not fit the original intent of the location which is to provide a 
commercial need and it also does not generate any sales tax or revenue for the City. 
Therefore the proposed conditional use is not compatible with the nature, conditions 
and development of adjacent uses, buildings, and structures. 

 
CEQA (CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT) 

The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) is a statute that requires state and 
local agencies to identify the significant environmental impacts of their actions and to 
avoid or mitigate those impacts, if feasible. 
 
CEQA applies to certain activities that affect the environment of state and local public 
agencies. A public agency must comply with CEQA when it undertakes an activity 
defined by CEQA as a "project." A project is an activity undertaken by a public agency 
or a private activity which must receive some discretionary approval (meaning that the 
agency has the authority to deny the requested permit or approval) from a 
government agency which may cause either a direct physical change or a reasonably 
foreseeable indirect change in the environment. 
 
The Project has been environmentally reviewed pursuant to the provisions of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code Sections 21000, et seq. 
(“CEQA)”), the State CEQA Guidelines (California Code of Regulations, Title 14, 
Sections 15000, et seq.), the requested entitlements have been noticed and posted 
according to CEQA project guidelines.  
 
An environmental review has been considered for the subject project. Staff finds that 
projects involving negligible or no expansion of an existing use are exempt from CEQA 
pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15301 as projects that have been categorically 
determined not to have a significant effect on the environment. This categorical 
exemption is applicable because the project involves an existing building. Only interior 
tenant improvements are proposed. The building foot print will remain unchanged. 
 
A second categorical exemption applies to this project. Categorical Exemption 15332, 
In-Fill Development Projects Class 32 which consists of projects characterized as in-fill 
development meeting the conditions described in this section. (See Attachment A).  

 
CONCLUSION 
 
OFL has followed the proper appeal process per CMC Section 20.20.090. This process 
allows City Council to make a determination to approve or deny the CUP.   
 
If City Council approves the request by OFL for CUP No. 38.352 (based on findings 
made by staff) to allow a Charter School at the subject site 7955 Atlantic Avenue; OFL 
will be able to move forward with the proposed tenant improvements, and commence 
operations of the School upon a final business license inspection. This will also enable 
the property owners to secure a business that will bring customers to the Cudahy 



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
03/17/2015  Page 6 of 6     

Plaza.  
 
If City Council denies the request by OFL for CUP No. 38.352 (based on findings made 
by the Planning Commission), that decision will be final based on CMC Section 
20.20.090(7) and will deny the property owners the opportunity to secure a business 
like OFL and will continue to have a prolonged vacancy at the former Forever 21 retail 
shop.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

There is no fiscal impact associated with approval of CUP No. 38.352. 

 
ATTACHMENTS  

A. General Plan Consistency, Zoning Consistency, Public Improvements, Parking    
         Analysis, and Findings of Fact 
B. Location Map  
C. Development Plans  
D. Resolution No. PC-15-02 Denying CUP  
E. Appeal Letter by OFL Charter School 
F. Letter in support of the project by Property Owner 
G. Testimonial/support letters by OFL Student(s)/Parents/Stakeholders 
H. Resolution No. 15-09 (approval) 
I. Resolution No. 15-10 (denial)  



Attachment A 
 

ATTACHMENT A: OFL General Plan Consistency, Zoning Consistency, Public Improvements 
(traffic analysis), Parking Analysis, and Findings of Fact. 

General Plan Consistency:  

Land Use Element 

L.U. Goal 1. The City of Cudahy will ensure that future development enhance the quality of 
life in the City.  

The proposed project is conditionally permitted in the Community Commercial Zone; 
and therefore the proposed Charter School will enhance the quality of life for area 
residents by providing a vital service to the community.  

L.U. Goal 6. The City of Cudahy will provide adequate public services and infrastructure to 
serve existing and future developments. 

The proposed Charter School project will provide a vital public service and infrastructure 
(education) to current and future area residents which currently have a low educational 
attainment based on recent U.S. Census statistics.  

Public Safety Element 

P.S. Goal 1. The City of Cudahy will work to provide an environment that is reasonably safe 
from hazards. 

As standard practice the project underwent Fire Department and local law enforcement 
review and provided comment during the environmental review process.   

Zoning Consistency:  

Per CMC Section 20.68.070, the CC Zone is established to provide for a community’s 
commercial needs. This zone permits a business center in areas where a wide range of retail 
and service establishments is needed to accommodate the surrounding community.    

Pursuant to Section 20.68.100(45) of the Cudahy Municipal Code (CMC), schools, colleges, 
and universities, accredited, including appurtenant facilities that offer instruction required to 
be taught by the Education Code of the state of California and in which no pupil is physically 
restrained, are permitted provided a CUP is obtained; additionally, pursuant to CMC Section 
20.44.010.  

Existing Zoning and Land Use: 



Attachment A 
 

The subject location is designated Community Commercial (CC) and is currently developed 
with one improvement. The zoning and land use of the surrounding properties are as follows: 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH CC Community Commercial   

EAST CC Community Commercial   

SOUTH CC Community Commercial   

WEST HDR High Density Residential   

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Uses: 

Immediately north, east, and south of the subject property site are Community Commercial 
zones and west is a High Density Residential zone. The proposed use is compatible with the 
surrounding uses in the areas. The Community Commercial zone is established to provide for 
a community’s commercial needs; the proposed use will provide a vital public service and 
infrastructure (education) to current and future area residents which currently have a low 
educational attainment based on recent U.S. Census statistics. 

Public Improvements: 

The site is bounded by Atlantic Avenue. Atlantic Avenue is a Major Highway that extends 
throughout the City in a north to south orientation and provides access through the City. This 
roadway has a pavement width of 90 feet with two travel lanes provided in each direction 
and left-turn pockets at major intersections. According to the 2007 Cudahy Traffic Counts, 
Atlantic Avenue currently experiences daily traffic of 23,711 vehicles per day, which is above 
the road’s design capacity of 22,000 vehicles per day. As it currently stands, Atlantic Avenue is 
exceeding its road’s capacity by 1,711 vehicles per day.  

The proposed CUP is for a Charter School, however the definition for Charter School is not 
found in the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) in Trip Generation (8th Edition). The 
most closely matched definition is “High School” since the proposed use is targeting children 
between 7 – 12 grade. According to vehicular trip rates as defined by the ITE in Trip 
Generation (8th Edition), High Schools are for students who have completed middle school or 
junior high school. The high schools analyzed were generally separated from other land uses 
and had exclusive access points and parking facilities. Acreage and floor space varied widely 
with populations served and the social and economic characteristics of the area. This specific 
CUP application to allow a Charter School is not expected to significantly increase daily traffic 



Attachment A 
 

counts beyond existing vehicular trip generation rates of existing uses on site. Therefore, the 
proposed use is not an intensification of previous uses.  

TABLE 1 – PARKING REQUIRED: Based on current uses  

REQUIRED PARKING   EXISTING PARKING 

Commercial Uses 

- K Mart 
- Salon de Beaute 
- Dentistry  
- Big Lots 
- Barber Shop 
- Payless Shoes 
- T-Shirt Land 
- KLS Threading 
- Metro PCS 
- Tasty Chinese Food 
- Jamba Juice 
- Little Caesars 
- Same Day Insurance 
- LA’sPharmacy Supply 
- Blue Hills Dental  

 
In addition to the above 
requirements, all commercial uses 
shall include one parking space on 
the same lot or parcel of land as 
the use for each individual 
commercial establishment   

Industrial Uses 

- Cudahy Auto Center 
 

 

Proposed Project 

OFL Charter School:  

 

 

 

20.80.080 Handicap Parking 

One handicapped parking space for 
each 50 parking spaces, or fraction 
thereof, in excess of the first 50 
spaces 

Per Section 20.80.110(2) 

Permitted by CUP No. 38.256 requiring 516 parking 
spaces 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Per Sections 20.80.110(3) 

Permitted by CUP No. 38.256 requiring 516 parking 
spaces 

 

 

Per Section 20.80.110(4)(h) 

One parking space for each 5 students  

35(students) / 5 = 7 parking spaces  

 

13 Required Handicapped Stalls  

Regular 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Existing Handicapped Stalls  

522 stalls 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10 stalls 

TOTAL APPROVED 516 spaces TOTAL EXISTING  534 spaces 

 



Attachment A 
 

Shown on the table above, a total of 534 parking spaces exist on the subject site. Per the 
most recent entitlement process of CUP No. 38.256 dated March 2003 required 516 parking 
spaces to fully accommodate the existing 11 uses on site along with the then proposed 
11,500 square foot pad building addition (CUP No. 38.256) for future retail use which 
increase the amount of uses on site to the total to 16.  

Furthermore, the proposed project applicant OFL will be occupying an existing/vacant space 
which was previously occupied by “Forever 21,” approval of this CUP No. 38.352 will allow 
OFL to operate at the subject site under the permitted 516 parking spaces. 

 

DEPARTMENT COMMENTS: 

Building & Safety – Submit complete sets of plans for all tenant improvements to the Building 
& Safety Department prior to construction.    

Code Enforcement – None  

Engineering – None  

Los Angeles County Fire Department – Submit two complete sets of architectural drawings to 
the Fire Prevention Engineering Section Building Plan Check Unit prior to building permit 
issuance.  

Los Angeles County Sheriff’s Department – None 

 

CEQA (CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT) 

The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) is a statute that requires state and local 
agencies to identify the significant environmental impacts of their actions and to avoid or 
mitigate those impacts, if feasible. 

CEQA applies to certain activities that affect the environment of state and local public 
agencies. A public agency must comply with CEQA when it undertakes an activity defined by 
CEQA as a "project." A project is an activity undertaken by a public agency or a private activity 
which must receive some discretionary approval (meaning that the agency has the authority 
to deny the requested permit or approval) from a government agency which may cause either 
a direct physical change or a reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the environment. 

 



Attachment A 
 

The Project has been environmentally reviewed pursuant to the provisions of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code Sections 21000, et seq. (“CEQA)”), the 
State CEQA Guidelines (California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Sections 15000, et seq.), the 
requested entitlements have been noticed and posted according to CEQA project guidelines.  

An environmental review has been considered for the subject project. Staff finds that 
projects involving negligible or no expansion of an existing use are exempt from CEQA 
pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15301 as projects that have been categorically 
determined not to have a significant effect on the environment. This categorical exemption is 
applicable because the project involves an existing building. Only interior tenant 
improvements are proposed. The building foot print will remain unchanged. 

A second categorical exemption applies to this project. Categorical Exemption 15332, In-Fill 
Development Projects Class 32 which consists of projects characterized as in-fill development 
meeting the conditions described in this section.  

(a) The project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable 
general plan policies as well as with applicable zoning designation and regulations.  

Pursuant to Section 20.68.100(45) of the Cudahy Municipal Code (CMC), schools, colleges, 
and universities, accredited, including appurtenant facilities that offer instruction required to 
be taught by the Education Code of the state of California and in which no pupil is physically 
restrained, are permitted provided a CUP is obtained. Furthermore, the CC Zone is 
established to provide for a community’s commercial needs; the proposed use will provide a 
vital public service and infrastructure (education) to current and future area residents which 
currently have a low educational attainment based on recent U.S. Census statistics. 

(b) The proposed development occurs within city limits on a project site of no more than five 
acres substantially surrounded by urban uses.  

The proposed project will occur entirely within city limits on a site of no more than five acres 
and is substantially surrounded by urban uses.   

(c) The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare or threatened species. 

The project site has been previously developed and there is no remaining value as habitat for 
endangered, rare or threatened species.  

(d) Approval of the project would not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, 
air quality, or water quality. 



Attachment A 
 

According to vehicular trip rates as defined by the ITE in Trip Generation (8th Edition), this 
specific CUP application to allow a Charter School is not expected to significantly increase 
daily traffic counts beyond existing vehicular trip generation rates of existing uses on site. 
Therefore, the proposed use is not an intensification of previous uses. 

(e) The site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services. 

The proposed site has been previously developed and has all required utilities and public 
services to serve the proposed project.  

 

  



clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment B



O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

L
ea

rn
in

g

T
.T

an

T
.T

an

D
es

ig
n

ed

D
ra

w
n

L
ea

d

Sheet

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
D

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n

3
2

0
 N

. H
al

st
ea

d
 S

t.
 P

as
ad

en
a,

 C
A

 9
1

1
0

7

1
0

/1
4

1
0

/1
4

R
eg

io
n

al
1

0
/1

4

D
ir

ec
to

r
1

0
/1

4

D
. H

er
tz

le
r

C
u

d
ah

y

T
it

le

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 U

se
 P

er
m

it

7
9

5
5

 S
. A

tl
an

ti
c 

A
v

e 
C

u
d

ah
y

, C
A

 9
0

2
0

1

T101

N
. V

ij
ei

la

1. Contractor shall perform demolition where necessary to complete full scope of
work.

2. Contractor shall build walls according to plan including framing, drywall,
insulation, mud, tape.

3. Contractor shall install door, frame, hardware per specifications.  Doors shall be
reused from existing demolished walls.

4. Contractor shall install window and frame per specification.  Windows shall be
reused from existing demolished walls.

5. Contractor shall install all conduit in wall and above ceiling line for low voltage
equipment in the specified locations.

6. Contractor shall install and or verify high voltage electrical outlets in locations
listed on plans.

7. Contractor shall install wall light switches in newly constructed rooms adjacent
to the door, opposite door swing direction.

8. Contractor shall replace exisiting exterior mounted wall light switches with in‐
wall conduit and switches.

9. Contractor shall install flooring and base per specifications.
10. Contractor shall relocate HVAC supply and return to balance space.
11. Contractor shall paint center according to plan specifications.
12. Contractor shall replace all damaged ceiling tiles and mend any damaged T‐bar.
13. All additions and changes  shall comply with ADA and Title 24 specifications.

Opportunites for Learning
7955 S. Atlantic Ave. Cudahy, CA 90201

Tenant
Lupine Construction & Development on behalf of
Opportunities for Learning
320 N. Halstead Suite 150
Pasadena, CA 91107

Lawrence Felton, Project Manager
Mobile: (626) 616‐2071
E‐Mail: LFelton@:LupineProperties.com

Thomas Tan, Assistant Project Manager
Mobile: (626) 710‐2679
E‐Mail: TJTan@LupineProperties.com

Project Description Project Data Building Information
Building Department: Cudahy

Building Unit:  131901

Zone: E

Lot Size: 75,529 sq. ft.

Area of Construction: 7,000 sq. ft.

Scope of Work

Vicinity Map

Architectural
T101 Title Page
A1.0.0 Existing Floor Plan
A102 Proposed Floor Plan
A103 Architectural Rendering
A0.1.5 Site Plan

Sheet Index

 1/16" = 1'-0"
1

Key Plan

Opportunities for Learning (OFL), a public charter school program, is hoping to lease a
7,000 square foot existing commercial space at 7955 S. Atlantic Ave. to be used as an
independent study learning center.  The proposed project would include a tenant
improvement build out.

The OFL program, are a publicly funded charter school. We serve students in grades
7‐12. We are compliant with state ADA regulations to serve non ambulatory
students.

As a registered active charter school with the California Department of Education
(CDE), Opportunities for Learning is accredited by the Western Association of Schools
and Colleges (WASC). Students who attend OFL earn course credits and are enrolled at
OFL until either they transfer back to a traditional school, or graduate from OFL
with a high school diploma.

OFL students attend school for two 1.5 hour appointments per week. During these
appointments, students receive their curriculum/packets  from their teachers to
begin working on (at the center) and/or small group instruction classes, take tests,
receive new curriculum, meet with a college advisor, and, if needed, receive
additional instruction from a tutor.  Students are required to study and complete
coursework independently for 4‐6 hours each day. Due to the independent study
model, OFL does not provide transportation, food service, gymnasiums, or
playground facilities to students at each learning center.  Additionally, a majority of the
students utilize public transportation to commute to and from the center.  This greatly
reduces the parking load required for each center.  Currently, many centers throughout
Southern California operate with minimal parking without any adverse affects to
attendance or the surrounding area.

Each teacher serves a maximum of 5 students per 1.5 hour appointment, with a
maximum of 20 students per day.  At the proposed Glendale center, 7 teachers and
3 support staff, for a total of 10 staff members, are expected to serve no more than 35
students per 1.5 hrs. Student appointments are at 9am, 10:30, 1 and 2:30.

OFL centers are open Monday – Friday from 8am – 5pm, closed for lunch from
12pm‐1pm, and closed most Saturdays and all Sundays. We do offer Saturday
school 4 times a year for SAT and CASHEE prep testing from 9am – 12pm.

OFL currently operates several learning centers in the San Bernardino, Los Angeles and
Sacramento counties of California, the vast majority of which are in Los Angeles
County. Graduating students will receive an accredited diploma, which would be
eligible for attendance at community colleges, technical school, and 4 year
universities. OFL schools have demonstrated high levels of success with its student
population; creating educated and respectful members of the greater community.

Key Plan



tjtan
Rectangle

tjtan
Rectangle

tjtan
Typewritten Text

TJTAN
Typewriter
EXISTING



SGI Lab

7

SGI Room

6

SGI Room

5

Conference/Office

4

Storage

3

SGI Room

2

Utility

11

Staff Restroom

13

IT Closet

12

Female Restroom

10

Male Restroom

9

Kitchen/Conference

8

Open Space

1

Level 1
0' - 0"

Ceiling
10' - 0"

Roof Line
15' - 0"

Standard Simpson Stain‐
Grade Door

Single Glaze Clear Glass
Simpson Stain‐Grade Door

Store Front Double Glass
Door with Panic Hardware

Store Front Single Glass
Door with Panic Hardware

Single Glaze Clear
Tempered Glass

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

L
ea

rn
in

g

T
.T

an

T
.T

an

D
es

ig
n

ed

D
ra

w
n

L
ea

d

Sheet

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
D

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n

3
2

0
 N

. H
al

st
ea

d
 S

t.
 P

as
ad

en
a,

 C
A

 9
1

1
0

7

1
0

/1
4

1
0

/1
4

R
eg

io
n

al
1

0
/1

4

D
ir

ec
to

r
1

0
/1

4

D
. H

er
tz

le
r

C
u

d
ah

y

F
lo

o
r 

P
la

n

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 U

se
 P

er
m

it

7
9

5
5

 S
. A

tl
an

ti
c 

A
v

e 
C

u
d

ah
y

, C
A

 9
0

2
0

1

A101

N
. V

ij
ei

la

 1/8" = 1'-0"
3

Partition Plan

 3/16" = 1'-0"
1

South Elevation

 1/8" = 1'-0"
2

Demolition Plan

Partition Plan Notes
1. Students and teachers shall utilize the Open Space for

instruction at appointed times with a maximum of 5
students per teacher.

2. Bathrooms shall be ADA compliant and meet
occupancy load

3. Kitchen/Conference will contain a small kitchenette
with refridgerator, sink and microwave.

Elevation Notes
1. Signage is not drawn to scale and will comply with

planning requirements.
2. Marquee sign shall be utilized pending availability
3. Tint, anti‐graphiti film, window wraps and blinds will be

installed on the exisiting storefront pending approval.

 1/4" = 1'-0"
Legend 1

Legend
Number Name Floor Finish Area Comments

1 Open Space Carpet 3255 SF

2 SGI Room VCT 546 SF

3 Storage VCT 400 SF

4 Conference/Office Carpet 292 SF

5 SGI Room VCT 391 SF

6 SGI Room VCT 397 SF

7 SGI Lab Vinyl 396 SF

8 Kitchen/Conference VCT 311 SF

9 Male Restroom Vinyl 192 SF

10 Female Restroom Vinyl 194 SF

11 Utility Vinyl 159 SF

12 IT Closet Vinyl 60 SF

13 Staff Restroom Vinyl 59 SF

Room Schedule



O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

L
ea

rn
in

g

T
.T

an

T
.T

an

D
es

ig
n

ed

D
ra

w
n

L
ea

d

Sheet

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
D

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n

3
2

0
 N

. H
al

st
ea

d
 S

t.
 P

as
ad

en
a,

 C
A

 9
1

1
0

7

1
0

/1
4

1
0

/1
4

R
eg

io
n

al
1

0
/1

4

D
ir

ec
to

r
1

0
/1

4

D
. H

er
tz

le
r

C
u

d
ah

y

R
en

d
er

in
g

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 U

se
 P

er
m

it

7
9

5
5

 S
. A

tl
an

ti
c 

A
v

e 
C

u
d

ah
y

, C
A

 9
0

2
0

1

A102

N
. V

ij
ei

la

2
Proposed Exterior SW

1
Proposed Interior SW



TJTAN
Rectangle

TJTAN
Rectangle

TJTAN
Textbox
OPPORTUNITIES FOR LEARNING

TJTAN
Textbox
NOT TO SCALE



Attachment D 
 

 Resolution No. PC 15-02  1 

RESOLUTION PC NO. 15-02 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF 
THE CITY OF CUDAHY DENYING CONDITIONAL USE 
PERMIT NO. 38.352 TO ALLOW A CHARTER SCHOOL 
LOCATED IN THE COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL ZONE 
AT 7955 ATLANTIC AVENUE. 

WHEREAS: The applicant requests approval of Conditional Use Permit No. 38.352 to 
allow a charter school in the community commercial zone; and 

WHEREAS: The subject property is located at 7955 Atlantic Avenue in an area that is 
designated by the Cudahy General Plan and by the Cudahy Zoning Map as Community 
Commercial (CC); and  

WHEREAS: This matter was duly posted and set for public hearing for January 15, 2015 
at 6:00 P.M. by the Planning Commission consistent with the City of Cudahy (“City”) 
Zoning Code (Title 20 of the Cudahy Municipal Code) procedures for Conditional Use 
Permits. 

NOW THEREFORE, the Planning Commission of the City of Cudahy hereby resolves: 

Section 1: Thomas J. Tan (Opportunities for Learning), 320 N. Halstead Street, 
Pasadena, California 91107, filed an application for a conditional use permit to allow a 
charter school at 7955 Atlantic Avenue. Per Cudahy Municipal Code Section 
20.68.100(45) schools, colleges, and universities, accredited, including appurtenant 
facilities that offer instruction required to be taught by the Education Code of the state 
of California and in which no pupil is physically restrained, are permitted provided a CUP 
is obtained.  
 

Section 2: After considering the proposal on the basis for approval or denial of 
Conditional Use Permit 38.352 stated in Section 20.44.070 of the Cudahy Municipal 
Code, and the Planning Commission finds as follows: 
 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 38.352 

 
 
A. “The site for a proposed conditional use should be adequate in size 

and shape to accommodate the yards, walls and fences, parking and 
loading, landscaping and other development features prescribed in 
this chapter, or required by the commission, city council or other 
authorized agent in order to integrate the conditional use with the 
land and uses in the neighborhood.” 



Attachment D 
 

 Resolution No. PC 15-02  2 

As demonstrated in the parking calculation, a total of 534 parking spaces 
exist on the subject site. Per the most recent entitlement process of CUP No. 
38.256 dated March 2003 required 516 parking spaces to fully accommodate 
the existing 11 uses on site along with the then proposed 11,500 square foot 
pad building addition (CUP No. 38.256) for future retail use which increase 
the amount of uses on site to the total to 16.  
 
Furthermore, the proposed project applicant (OFL Charter School) will be 
occupying an existing/vacant space which was previously occupied by 
“Forever 21,” approval of this CUP No. 38.352 will allow OFL Charter School 
to operate at the subject site under the permitted 516 parking spaces. 
Therefore, the site is adequate in size and shape to accommodate the 
yards, walls, and fences, parking and loading, landscaping and other 
development features prescribed in this chapter, or required by the 
commission, city council or other authorized agent in order to integrate the 
conditional use with the land uses in the neighborhood.  

 
 

B. “The commission shall consider the nature, condition and 
development of adjacent uses, buildings, and structures and the 
effect the proposed conditional use may have on such adjacent 
uses, buildings and structures.” 

 
The CC Zone is established to provide for a community’s commercial needs. 
The proposed project does not fit the original intent of the location which is 
to provide a commercial need and it also does not generate any sales tax or 
revenue for the City. Therefore the proposed conditional use is not 
compatible with the nature, conditions and development of adjacent uses, 
buildings, and structures. 

 
 

C. “The site for a proposed conditional use should relate to streets and 
highways adequate in width and pavement to carry the kind and 
quantity of traffic such use would generate.” 
 
The site is bounded by Atlantic Avenue. Atlantic Avenue is a Major Highway 
that extends throughout the City in a north to south orientation and provides 
access through the city. This roadway has a pavement width of 90 feet with 
two travel lanes provided in each direction and left-turn pockets at major 
intersections. According to the 2007 Cudahy Traffic Counts, Atlantic Avenue 
currently experiences daily traffic of 23,711 vehicles per day, which is above 
the road’s design capacity of 22,000 vehicles per day. As it currently stands, 
Atlantic Avenue is exceeding its road’s capacity by 1,711 vehicles per day.  
 



Attachment D 
 

 Resolution No. PC 15-02  3 

The proposed CUP is for a Charter School, however the  definition for Charter 
School is not found in the Institute of Transportation Engineers (“ITE”) in Trip 
Generation (8th Edition). The most closely matched definition is “High School” 
since the proposed use is targeting children between 7 – 12 grade. According 
to trip rates as defined by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (“ITE”) in 
Trip Generation (8th Edition), High Schools are for students who have 
completed middle school or junior high school. The high schools analyzed 
were generally separated from other land uses and had exclusive access 
points and parking facilities. Acreage and floor space varied widely with 
populations served and the social and economic characteristics of the area. 
This specific CUP application to allow a Charter School is not expected to 
significantly increase daily traffic counts beyond existing trip generation rates 
of existing uses on site. Therefore, the proposed use is not an intensification 
of previous uses. Therefore, the proposed conditional use will relate 
positively to streets and highways adequate in width and pavement to carry 
the kind and quantity of traffic such use would generate. 
 
 

Section 3:  Based upon the findings contained in this Resolution and on all 
other written and oral evidence in the record, the Planning Commission hereby DENIES 
Conditional Use Permit No. 38.352. 

 

Section 4: The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) is a statute that 
requires state and local agencies to identify the significant environmental impacts of 
their actions and to avoid or mitigate those impacts, if feasible. 
 
CEQA applies to certain activities that affect the environment of state and local public 
agencies. A public agency must comply with CEQA when it undertakes an activity 
defined by CEQA as a "project." A project is an activity undertaken by a public agency 
or a private activity which must receive some discretionary approval (meaning that the 
agency has the authority to deny the requested permit or approval) from a government 
agency which may cause either a direct physical change or a reasonably foreseeable 
indirect change in the environment. 
 
The Project has been environmentally reviewed pursuant to the provisions of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code Sections 21000, et seq. 
(“CEQA)”), the State CEQA Guidelines (California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Sections 
15000, et seq.), and the City’s Local CEQA Guidelines.  The requested entitlements have 
been noticed and posted according to CEQA project guidelines.  
 
An environmental review has been considered for the subject project. Staff finds that 
projects that are rejected or disapproved by the City are exempt from CEQA pursuant to 
Public Resources Code Section 21080(b)(5) and CEQA Guidelines section 15270.  CEQA 



Attachment D 
 

 Resolution No. PC 15-02  4 

Guidelines section 15720 provides that CEQA does not apply to projects which a public 
agency rejects or disapproves based on an initial screening of the project’s merits. 
 
 

Section 5:  Any interested party may appeal this decision to the City Council 
pursuant to Section 20.20.010 of the Cudahy Municipal Code.  In the event an appeal is 
duly filed, the time within which judicial review, if available, of the City Council's 
decision must be sought is governed by Section 1094.6 of the California Code of 
Procedure, unless a shorter time is provided by other applicable law.  











































Attachment G 
 

 

Page 1 of 9 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-09 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CUDAHY APPROVING CONDTIONAL USE PERMIT 
NO 38.352 TO ALLOW A CHARTER SCHOOL 
LOCATED IN THE COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL ZONE 
AT 7955 ATLANTIC AVENUE. 

 
WHEREAS, The applicant requests approval of Conditional Use Permit No. 

38.352 to allow a charter school in the community commercial zone; and 
 
WHEREAS, The subject property is located at 7955 Atlantic Avenue in an area 

that is designated by the Cudahy General Plan and by the Cudahy Zoning Map as 
Community Commercial (CC); and 

 
WHEREAS, This matter was duly posted and set for public hearing for January 

15, 2015 at 6:00 P.M. by the Planning Commission consistent with the City of Cudahy 
(“City”) Zoning Code (Title 20 of the Cudahy Municipal Code) procedures for 
Conditional Use Permits. 

 
WHEREAS, This matter was duly posted and set for public hearing for March 

17, 2015 at 6:30 P.M. by the City Council consistent with the City of Cudahy (“City”) 
Zoning Code (Title 20 of the Cudahy Municipal Code) Section 20.20.070 Appeals to 
City Council. 

 
BASED UPON THE ABOVE RECITALS, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CUDAHY, CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY FIND, DETERMINE AND RESOLVE 
AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. Thomas J. Tan (Opportunities for Learning), 320 N. Halstead 

Street, Pasadena, California 91107, filed an application for a conditional use permit to 
allow a charter school at 7955 Atlantic Avenue. Per Cudahy Municipal Code Section 
20.68.100(45) schools, colleges, and universities, accredited, including appurtenant 
facilities that offer instruction required to be taught by the Education Code of the 
state of California and in which no pupil is physically restrained, are permitted 
provided a CUP is obtained. 

 
SECTION 2. After considering the proposal on the basis for approval or denial 

of Conditional Use Permit 38.352 stated in Section 20.44.070 of the Cudahy Municipal 
Code, the City Council finds as follows: 

 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 38.352 

A. “The site for a proposed conditional use should be adequate in size and 



Attachment G 
 

 

Page 2 of 9 
 

shape to accommodate the yards, walls and fences, parking and loading, 
landscaping and other development features prescribed in this chapter, or 
required by the commission, city council or other authorized agent in 
order to integrate the conditional use with the land and uses in the 
neighborhood.” 
 
As demonstrated in the parking calculation, a total of 534 parking spaces 
exist on the subject site. Per the most recent entitlement process of CUP No. 
38.256 dated March 2003 required 516 parking spaces to fully accommodate 
the existing 11 uses on site along with the then proposed 11,500 square foot 
pad building addition (CUP No. 38.256) for future retail use which increase 
the amount of uses on site to the total to 16.  
 
The Cudahy Municipal Code requires one parking space for every five 
students. OFL will have a maximum of 35 students on site at the same time. 
Therefore, 35/5 = 7 required parking spaces. Seven spaces amounts to only 
about 1.3 percent of the site’s 522 spaces. Parking is therefore more than 
adequate for the project and all other tenants at the site.  
 
Furthermore, the proposed project applicant (OFL Charter School) will be 
occupying an existing/vacant space which was previously occupied by 
“Forever 21,” approval of this CUP No. 38.352 will allow OFL Charter School 
to operate at the subject site under the permitted 516 parking spaces. 
Therefore, the site is adequate in size and shape to accommodate the 
yards, walls, and fences, parking and loading, landscaping and other 
development features prescribed in this chapter, or required by the 
commission, city council or other authorized agent in order to integrate the 
conditional use with the land uses in the neighborhood.  

 

B. “The commission shall consider the nature, condition and 
development of adjacent uses, buildings, and structures and the 
effect the proposed conditional use may have on such adjacent 
uses, buildings and structures.” 
 
The CC Zone is established to provide for a community’s commercial needs. 
This zone permits a business center in areas where a wide range of retail and 
service establishments is needed to accommodate the surrounding 
community.    
 
Pursuant to Section 20.68.100(45) of the Cudahy Municipal Code (CMC), 
schools, colleges, and universities, accredited, including appurtenant facilities 
that offer instruction required to be taught by the Education Code of the state 
of California and in which no pupil is physically restrained, are permitted 
provided a CUP is obtained; additionally, pursuant to CMC Section 20.44.010. 



Attachment G 
 

 

Page 3 of 9 
 

Immediately north, east, and south of the subject property site are 
Community Commercial zones and west is a High Density Residential zone. 
The proposed use is compatible with the surrounding uses in the areas. The 
proposed use will provide a vital public service and infrastructure (education) 
to current and future area residents which currently have a low educational 
attainment based on recent U.S. Census statistics. Also, the addition of 
students to the site will add much needed patrons to the existing shopping 
center. Therefore the proposed conditional use is compatible with the 
nature, conditions and development of adjacent uses, buildings, and 
structures.  
 

C. “The site for a proposed conditional use should relate to streets and 
highways adequate in width and pavement to carry the kind and 
quantity of traffic such use would generate.” 
 
The site is bounded by Atlantic Avenue. Atlantic Avenue is a Major Highway 
that extends throughout the City in a north to south orientation and provides 
access through the city. This roadway has a pavement width of 90 feet with 
two travel lanes provided in each direction and left-turn pockets at major 
intersections. According to the 2007 Cudahy Traffic Counts, Atlantic Avenue 
currently experiences daily traffic of 23,711 vehicles per day, which is above 
the road’s design capacity of 22,000 vehicles per day. As it currently stands, 
Atlantic Avenue is exceeding its road’s capacity by 1,711 vehicles per day.  
 
The proposed CUP is for a Charter School, however the  definition for Charter 
School is not found in the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) in Trip 
Generation (8th Edition). The most closely matched definition is “High School” 
since the proposed use is targeting children between 7 – 12 grade. According 
to trip rates as defined by the ITE in Trip Generation (8th Edition), High 
Schools are for students who have completed middle school or junior high 
school. The high schools analyzed were generally separated from other land 
uses and had exclusive access points and parking facilities. Acreage and floor 
space varied widely with populations served and the social and economic 
characteristics of the area. This specific CUP application to allow a Charter 
School is not expected to significantly increase daily traffic counts beyond 
existing trip generation rates of existing uses on site. Therefore, the proposed 
use is not an intensification of previous uses. Therefore, the proposed 
conditional use will relate positively to streets and highways adequate in 
width and pavement to carry the kind and quantity of traffic such use would 
generate. 
 

 
SECTION 3. Based upon the findings contained in this Resolution and on all 



Attachment G 
 

 

Page 4 of 9 
 

other written and oral evidence in the record, the City Council hereby approves 
Conditional Use Permit No. 38.352, subject to the following conditions of approval: 

 
Standard Conditions of Approval: 

1. The applicant, its successors in interest, and assigns, shall indemnify, protect, 
defend (with legal counsel reasonably acceptable to the City), and hold harmless, 
the City, and any agency or instrumentality thereof, and its elected and 
appointed officials, officers, employees, and agents, from and against all 
liabilities, claims, actions, causes of action, proceedings, suits, damages, 
judgments, liens, levies, and disbursements arising out of or in any way relating 
to this project, any discretionary approval granted by the City related to the 
development of the project, or the environmental review conducted under the 
California Environmental Quality Act, Public Resources Code section 21000 et 
seq., for the project.  If the City Attorney is required to enforce any conditions of 
approval, the applicant shall pay for all costs of enforcement, including attorney’s 
fees; 

2. A business license to operate in the City shall be maintained current and 
renewed annually; 

3. Relevant State licenses and certifications must be maintained current and filed 
with the City’s Business License Department; 

4. The applicant shall not deviate from any of the approved business services 
without prior approval from the Director of Community Development or the 
Planning Commission; 

5. Store fronts shall have glass or transparent glazing in the windows. Window 
signs and temporary signs displayed behind a window or within a building can 
occupy no more than up to twenty-five (25%) percent of the window area of the 
building frontage on which they appear; 

6. Any changes in building textures, materials, and colors on the exterior walls are 
subject to planning approval. A developer is required to submit samples of all 
exterior materials for approval prior to the issuance of building permits; 

7. Anti-graffiti substances shall be used on the perimeter walls of the subject 
property; 

8. Applicant shall remove graffiti within twenty-four (24) hours of application.  In 
the event graffiti is not removed within twenty-four (24) hours, the applicant 
grants access to the City to enter the property to abate graffiti and shall 
indemnify the City according to Cudahy Municipal Code Sections 15.20.150 and 
15.20.120-130; 

9. No exterior telephones shall be permitted; 



Attachment G 
 

 

Page 5 of 9 
 

10. The doors to the premises shall remain closed except upon entering and exiting 
the premises; 

11. There shall be no loitering in the public right-of-way area, in the parking area, 
and/or in front of adjacent properties.  Loitering shall mean the act of an 
individual or group of individuals of remaining in a particular place within the 
vicinity of the business for a protracted time, without directly conducting any 
business activity, and causing the disruption of peace and enjoyment of the 
public at the site; 

12. The applicant must ensures that there is no deviation from the proposed number 
of approved parking spaces, including reserved parking for handicapped drivers; 

13. Litter and trash receptacles shall be located at convenient locations both inside 
and outside the premises.  Litter shall be removed at least two times daily or as 
needed from in front of the building and for twenty feet beyond the building 
along adjacent street(s); 

14. Adequate internal and external lighting, including lighting of walkways and the 
parking area, shall be provided for security purposes.  The lighting shall be 
energy efficient, stationary, deflected away from adjacent properties and public 
rights-of-way, and of intensity compatible with the commercial neighborhood and 
adjacent residential area; 

15. All on-site lighting fixtures shall be shielded or directed away from a residentially-
zoned district, and shall comply with all standards set forth in the 2011 Los 
Angeles County Building Code and Cudahy Municipal Code Section 20.88. 

16. A sign permit shall be obtained prior to the installation, construction, or alteration 
of any sign per Cudahy Municipal Code Section 20.84. 

17. Subcontractors hired to improve the physical structures of the building shall 
obtain a contractor's business license from the City Business License Department 
and submit proof of workers' compensation insurance to the City Building 
Department, before the issuance of any permits; 

18. All conditions shall be binding upon the applicants, their successors, and assigns; 
shall run with the land; shall limit and control the issuance and validity of any of 
occupancy; and shall restrict and limit the construction, location, use, and 
maintenance of all land and structures within the development; 

19. Per section 20.88.020, the applicant shall not allow creation of noise on property 
owned, leased, occupied, or otherwise controlled by such person as provided by 
Section 20.88.020 of the Cudahy Municipal Code, which sets the maximum 
exterior noise levels to be received by a multifamily residential use to 50 dBA 
between 10:00 p.m. –and 7:00 a.m., and to 65 dBA between 7:00 a.m. –and 



Attachment G 
 

 

Page 6 of 9 
 

10:00 p.m.  The Planning Commission retains its authority to revoke Conditional 
Use Permit No. 38.352 should the applicant not comply. 

 
20. Sufficient lighting to illuminate all entrances/access to the property shall be 

installed prior to issuance of the certificate of occupancy. Specifically, lighting at 
the front of the subject tenant space shall be sufficiently lighted according to 
CMC Section 20.80.070 (6). 

21. In order to ensure compliance with the Cudahy Municipal Code and Building 
Code, the Community Development Director or designee may conduct spot and 
quarterly inspections without notice. 

22. All tenant improvements shall be permitted through the Cudahy Building and 
Safety Department. 

23. No signs are approved as part of this approval. If signs are proposed for this 
business/use, a separate exhibit accompanied by the appropriate fees and 
application shall be submitted and approved by the Planning Department prior to 
any sign installation pursuant to the requirements of Chapter 20.84 of the 
“CMC.” 

24. The rights granted under Conditional Use Permit No. 38.352 may be modified or 
revoked by the Planning Commission should it be determined that the proposed 
use or conditions under which the property is being operated or maintained is 
detrimental to the public health and welfare or materially harmful to property or 
improvements in the vicinity; if the property is operated or maintained to 
constitute a public nuisance or contributor to blight; or if the uses on the 
property are changed from the uses expressly approved herein; 

25. The rights granted under Conditional Use Permit No. 38.352 shall expire within 
one (1) year of the date of approval by the Planning Commission unless 
operation has commenced or the applicant applies for and is granted an 
extension of time.  No extension of time will be considered unless the application 
for an extension is filed at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration.  An 
extension will not be granted if conditions have changed in that the requisite 
findings for approval can no longer be made.  

26. The applicant shall sign and notarize an Affidavit of Acceptance of Conditions, 
which acknowledges all of the conditions imposed herein and the applicant's 
acceptance of Conditional Use Permit No. 38.352 subject to those conditions, 
within thirty (30) days of approval. 

27. Violation of, or noncompliance with, any of the conditions of approval shall 
constitute grounds for revocation of Conditional Use Permit No. 38.352. 

 



Attachment G 
 

 

Page 7 of 9 
 

Project Specific Conditions of Approval:  

28. The OFL center will open: 

a.  Monday – Friday from 8am – 5pm,  

b. Closed for lunch from 12pm‐1pm,  

c. Closed and all Sundays, and  

d. Saturday school will be offered 4 times a year for Scholastic Aptitude Test 
(SAT) and California High School Exit Examination (CAHSEE) prep testing 
from 9am – 12pm. 

29. The proposed center will have 7 teachers and 3 support staff, for a total of 10 
staff members.  

30. Student appointments are at 9am, 10:30am, 1:00pm and 2:30pm. 

31. The applicant will need to submit two complete sets of architectural drawings to 
the Fire Prevention Engineering Section Building Plan Check Unit prior to building 
permit issuance. 

32. The applicant will need to submit a plan to Building & Safety to obtain all 
necessary building permits. 
 

33. The applicant will need to submit an application to the Planning Department to 
add signage for the charter school.  

 
 
SECTION 4. The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) is a statute that 

requires state and local agencies to identify the significant environmental impacts of 
their actions and to avoid or mitigate those impacts, if feasible. 

 
CEQA applies to certain activities that affect the environment of state and local public 
agencies. A public agency must comply with CEQA when it undertakes an activity 
defined by CEQA as a "project." A project is an activity undertaken by a public agency 
or a private activity which must receive some discretionary approval (meaning that the 
agency has the authority to deny the requested permit or approval) from a government 
agency which may cause either a direct physical change or a reasonably foreseeable 
indirect change in the environment. 

The Project has been environmentally reviewed pursuant to the provisions of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code Sections 21000, et seq. 
(“CEQA)”), the State CEQA Guidelines (California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Sections 



Attachment G 
 

 

Page 8 of 9 
 

15000, et seq.), the requested entitlements have been noticed and posted according to 
CEQA project guidelines.  

An environmental review has been considered for the subject project. Staff finds that 
projects involving negligible or no expansion of an existing use are exempt from CEQA 
pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15301 as projects that have been categorically 
determined not to have a significant effect on the environment. This categorical 
exemption is applicable because the project involves an existing building. Only interior 
tenant improvements are proposed. The building foot print will remain unchanged. 

A second categorical exemption applies to this project. Categorical Exemption 15332, 
In-Fill Development Projects Class 32 which consists of projects characterized as in-fill 
development meeting the conditions described in this section.  

(a) The project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all 
applicable general plan policies as well as with applicable zoning designation and 
regulations.  

Pursuant to Section 20.68.100(45) of the Cudahy Municipal Code (CMC), schools, 
colleges, and universities, accredited, including appurtenant facilities that offer 
instruction required to be taught by the Education Code of the state of California and 
in which no pupil is physically restrained, are permitted provided a CUP is obtained. 
Furthermore, the CC zone is established to provide for a community’s commercial 
needs; the proposed use will provide a vital public service and infrastructure 
(education) to current and future area residents which currently have a low 
educational attainment based on recent U.S. Census statistics. 

(b) The proposed development occurs within city limits on a project site of no more 
than five acres substantially surrounded by urban uses.  

The proposed project will occur entirely within city limits on a site of no more than 
five acre and is substantially surrounded by urban uses.   

(c) The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare or threatened 
species. 

The project site has been previously developed and there is no remaining value as 
habitat for endangered, rare or threatened species.  

(d) Approval of the project would not result in any significant effects relating to 
traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality. 



Attachment G 
 

 

Page 9 of 9 
 

According to trip rates as defined by the ITE in Trip Generation (8th Edition), this 
specific CUP application to allow a Charter School is not expected to significantly 
increase daily traffic counts beyond existing trip generation rates of existing uses on 
site. Therefore, the proposed use is not an intensification of previous uses. 

(e) The site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services. 

The proposed site has been previously developed and has all required utilities and 
public services to serve the proposed project.  

 
SECTION 6. A decision of the City Council sustaining overruling, or modifying 

any decision, determination, or requirement of the Planning Commission shall be final 
and conclusive when rendered unless otherwise provided by the City Council in rules 
of procedure or elsewhere.   

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of 

Cudahy at its regular meeting on this 17th day of March, 2015. 
 

 
 
          

_____________________________ 
Chris Garcia  
Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       
 
 
 
___________________________   
Victor H. Ferrer      
Deputy City Clerk      
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Attachment H 
 

Page 1 of 4 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-10 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CUDAHY DENYING CONDTIONAL USE PERMIT 
NO 38.352 TO ALLOW A CHARTER SCHOOL 
LOCATED IN THE COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL ZONE 
AT 7955 ATLANTIC AVENUE. 

 
WHEREAS, The applicant requests approval of Conditional Use Permit No. 

38.352 to allow a charter school in the community commercial zone; and 
 
WHEREAS, The subject property is located at 7955 Atlantic Avenue in an area 

that is designated by the Cudahy General Plan and by the Cudahy Zoning Map as 
Community Commercial (CC); and 

 
WHEREAS, This matter was duly posted and set for public hearing for January 

15, 2015 at 6:00 P.M. by the Planning Commission consistent with the City of Cudahy 
(“City”) Zoning Code (Title 20 of the Cudahy Municipal Code) procedures for 
Conditional Use Permits. 

 
WHEREAS, This matter was duly posted and set for public hearing for March 

17, 2015 at 6:30 P.M. by the City Council consistent with the City of Cudahy (“City”) 
Zoning Code (Title 20 of the Cudahy Municipal Code) Section 20.20.070 Appeals to 
City Council. 

 
BASED UPON THE ABOVE RECITALS, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CUDAHY, CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY FIND, DETERMINE AND RESOLVE 
AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. Thomas J. Tan (Opportunities for Learning), 320 N. Halstead 

Street, Pasadena, California 91107, filed an application for a conditional use permit to 
allow a charter school at 7955 Atlantic Avenue. Per Cudahy Municipal Code Section 
20.68.100(45) schools, colleges, and universities, accredited, including appurtenant 
facilities that offer instruction required to be taught by the Education Code of the 
state of California and in which no pupil is physically restrained, are permitted 
provided a CUP is obtained. 

 
SECTION 2. After considering the proposal on the basis for approval or denial 

of Conditional Use Permit 38.352 stated in Section 20.44.070 of the Cudahy Municipal 
Code, the City Council finds as follows: 

 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 38.352 

A. “The site for a proposed conditional use should be adequate in size and 



Attachment H 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

shape to accommodate the yards, walls and fences, parking and loading, 
landscaping and other development features prescribed in this chapter, or 
required by the commission, city council or other authorized agent in 
order to integrate the conditional use with the land and uses in the 
neighborhood.” 
 
As demonstrated in the parking calculation, a total of 534 parking spaces 
exist on the subject site. Per the most recent entitlement process of CUP No. 
38.256 dated March 2003 required 516 parking spaces to fully accommodate 
the existing 11 uses on site along with the then proposed 11,500 square foot 
pad building addition (CUP No. 38.256) for future retail use which increase 
the amount of uses on site to the total to 16.  
 
The Cudahy Municipal Code requires one parking space for every five 
students. OFL will have a maximum of 35 students on site at the same time. 
Therefore, 35/5 = 7 required parking spaces. Seven spaces amounts to only 
about 1.3 percent of the site’s 522 spaces. Parking is therefore more than 
adequate for the project and all other tenants at the site.  
 
Furthermore, the proposed project applicant (OFL Charter School) will be 
occupying an existing/vacant space which was previously occupied by 
“Forever 21,” approval of this CUP No. 38.352 will allow OFL Charter School 
to operate at the subject site under the permitted 516 parking spaces. 
Therefore, the site is adequate in size and shape to accommodate the 
yards, walls, and fences, parking and loading, landscaping and other 
development features prescribed in this chapter, or required by the 
commission, city council or other authorized agent in order to integrate the 
conditional use with the land uses in the neighborhood.  

 

B. “The commission shall consider the nature, condition and 
development of adjacent uses, buildings, and structures and the 
effect the proposed conditional use may have on such adjacent 
uses, buildings and structures.” 
 
The CC Zone is established to provide for a community’s commercial needs. 
The proposed project does not fit the original intent of the location which is 
to provide a commercial need and it also does not generate any sales tax or 
revenue for the City. Therefore the proposed conditional use is not 
compatible with the nature, conditions and development of adjacent uses, 
buildings, and structures. 

 



Attachment H 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

C. “The site for a proposed conditional use should relate to streets and 
highways adequate in width and pavement to carry the kind and 
quantity of traffic such use would generate.” 
 
The site is bounded by Atlantic Avenue. Atlantic Avenue is a Major Highway 
that extends throughout the City in a north to south orientation and provides 
access through the city. This roadway has a pavement width of 90 feet with 
two travel lanes provided in each direction and left-turn pockets at major 
intersections. According to the 2007 Cudahy Traffic Counts, Atlantic Avenue 
currently experiences daily traffic of 23,711 vehicles per day, which is above 
the road’s design capacity of 22,000 vehicles per day. As it currently stands, 
Atlantic Avenue is exceeding its road’s capacity by 1,711 vehicles per day.  
 
The proposed CUP is for a Charter School, however the  definition for Charter 
School is not found in the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) in Trip 
Generation (8th Edition). The most closely matched definition is “High School” 
since the proposed use is targeting children between 7 – 12 grade. According 
to trip rates as defined by the ITE in Trip Generation (8th Edition), High 
Schools are for students who have completed middle school or junior high 
school. The high schools analyzed were generally separated from other land 
uses and had exclusive access points and parking facilities. Acreage and floor 
space varied widely with populations served and the social and economic 
characteristics of the area. This specific CUP application to allow a Charter 
School is not expected to significantly increase daily traffic counts beyond 
existing trip generation rates of existing uses on site. Therefore, the proposed 
use is not an intensification of previous uses. Therefore, the proposed 
conditional use will relate positively to streets and highways adequate in 
width and pavement to carry the kind and quantity of traffic such use would 
generate. 

 
 
SECTION 3. Based upon the findings contained in this Resolution and on all 

other written and oral evidence in the record, the City Council hereby DENIES 
Conditional Use Permit No. 38.352.  

 
SECTION 4. The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) is a statute that 

requires state and local agencies to identify the significant environmental impacts of 
their actions and to avoid or mitigate those impacts, if feasible. 

 
CEQA applies to certain activities that affect the environment of state and local public 
agencies. A public agency must comply with CEQA when it undertakes an activity 
defined by CEQA as a "project." A project is an activity undertaken by a public agency 
or a private activity which must receive some discretionary approval (meaning that the 
agency has the authority to deny the requested permit or approval) from a government 



Attachment H 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

agency which may cause either a direct physical change or a reasonably foreseeable 
indirect change in the environment. 

The Project has been environmentally reviewed pursuant to the provisions of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code Sections 21000, et seq. 
(“CEQA)”), the State CEQA Guidelines (California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Sections 
15000, et seq.), and the City’s Local CEQA Guidelines.  The requested entitlements have 
been noticed and posted according to CEQA project guidelines.  

An environmental review has been considered for the subject project. Staff finds that 
projects that are rejected or disapproved by the City are exempt from CEQA pursuant to 
Public Resources Code Section 21080(b)(5) and CEQA Guidelines section 15270.  CEQA 
Guidelines section 15720 provides that CEQA does not apply to projects which a public 
agency rejects or disapproves based on an initial screening of the project’s merits. 

 
SECTION 6. A decision of the City Council sustaining overruling, or modifying 

any decision, determination, or requirement of the Planning Commission shall be final 
and conclusive when rendered unless otherwise provided by the City Council in rules 
of procedure or elsewhere.   

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of 

Cudahy at its regular meeting on this 17th day of March, 2015. 
 

 
 
          

_____________________________ 
Chris Garcia  
Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       
 
 
 
___________________________   
Victor H. Ferrer      
Deputy City Clerk      
    
 
 
 
 
 



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
3/17/2015  Page 1 of 3 
    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  March 17, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By: Isabel Birrueta, Assistant City Attorney 

Subject: Introduction and First Reading of an Ordinance of the City Council of the City 
of Cudahy Amending Title 2 (Administration and Personnel) of the Cudahy 
Municipal Code by the Addition of Chapter 2.58 (Economic Development 
Commission) regarding the Formation of the Economic Development 
Commission    

   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the City Council of the City of Cudahy (the “City Council” of the “City”) 
introduce and conduct a first reading of the proposed Ordinance establishing the Economic 
Development Commission under Chapter 2.58 (Economic Development Commission) of Title 
2 (Administration and Personnel) of the City of Cudahy Municipal Code. 
 
BACKGROUND 

1. On September 25, 1975, the City authorized the formation and operation of a community 
redevelopment agency within the territorial jurisdiction of the City pursuant to California 
state law.  The former Cudahy Community Development Commission/Cudahy 
Redevelopment Agency (“RDA”) undertook the redevelopment of certain areas of the City 
in reliance upon the provisions of state law.   

 
2. The State of California (the “State”) ordered the RDA to be dissolved, no later than 

February 1, 2012, under the provisions of ABX1 26 (Stats 2011-12, 1st Ex. Sess., Chapter 5), 
as amended by AB 1484 (Stats 2012, Chapter 26) and collectively the State legislation 
identified in this sentence is referred to herein as the “State Redevelopment Dissolution 
Law.”  The City as Successor Agency to the RDA (the “Successor Agency”) has initiated the 
implementation of the State Redevelopment Dissolution Law.   

 
3. On March 17, 2011, the City formed the Cudahy Economic Development Corporation, a 

non-profit public benefit corporation (hereinafter, the “Corporation”), to assist the City 
and RDA in undertaking certain community redevelopment activities in the City.   

 
4. On April 1, 2011, the RDA and Corporation agreed for the Corporation to undertake 

 

Item Number 

10D 



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
3/17/2015  Page 2 of 3 
    

development in the City and the RDA made a transfer of $20,978,178 in non-housing assets 
to the Corporation. 

 
5. On April 15, 2014, in a report entitled “Cudahy Redevelopment Agency Asset Transfer 

Review January 1, 2011, through January 31, 2012,” (the “Transfer Report”) the Office of 
the State Controller (the “State Controller”) found that the RDA transfer of $20,978,178 in 
non-housing assets to the Corporation was improper pursuant to Health and Safety Code 
Section 34167.5 and ordered the Successor Agency to recover the redevelopment assets 
previously transferred to the Corporation.   

 
6. On February 5, 2015 and February 3, 3015, in accordance with the Transfer Report and the 

State Controller’s mandate, the governing bodies of the Corporation and Successor Agency 
adopted resolutions approving an agreement providing for the transfer of redevelopment 
assets previously transferred to the Corporation (the “Asset Transfer Agreement”).   

 
ANALYSIS 
At the same joint City Council/Successor meeting in which the Successor Agency approved the 
Asset Transfer Agreement, the City Council directed the City Attorney to initiate the process 
of establishing an advisory body, in lieu of the Corporation, that would review and make 
recommendations to the City Council regarding economic development policies and 
programs. The City Council has found that, despite the State of California’s dissolution of 
redevelopment agencies, the City must still address its needs for community development 
initiatives and programs. 
 

The proposed Ordinance would establish the Economic Development Commission (the 
“Commission”) and set the parameters for the Commission’s purview and procedures.  Under 
the proposed Ordinance, the Commission would review and make written recommendations 
to the City Council regarding economic development policies and programs, including but not 
limited to the following: 

• Development of an economic development strategy, in light of constraints on local 
economic development; 

• Job creation; 

• Neighborhood revitalization; 

• Development of metrics to monitor the economic status within the City; 

• Attraction and retaining of commerce and businesses; 

• Improvement of tax and other revenues collected by the City; 

• Creation of improvement districts and other districts/zones that can be used to 
improve neighborhoods and or commerce conducted within the City; and 

• Such other matters as specifically referred to the Commission by the City Council. 

Each member of the City Council would appoint one member of the Commission, which 



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
3/17/2015  Page 3 of 3 
    

would be comprised of five members.  A Commissioner would serve concurrently with the 
term of the appointing member of the City Council.   
 
The proposed Ordinance would also require meetings at least once a month (as determined 
by Commission resolution) and establish a quorum of at least three Commissioners for the 
purpose of conducting meetings.  Commission meetings would be subject to the Ralph M. 
Brown Act and must be conducted in accordance with parliamentary procedure.     
 
CONCLUSION 
If the proposed Ordinance is introduced and approved for a first reading, a second reading of 
the Ordinance would be required for adoption. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
A discretionary stipend is allowed subject to subsequent approval of the City Council.  If the 
City Council establishes a stipend for Commission members, it may change the stipend 
amount or completely abolish the stipend at any time.  Staff recommends that no stipend be 
provided to the Commission at this time.  Additional expenses may be incurred with regard to 
Section 2.58.100 of the proposed Ordinance, which enables the City Manager to authorize 
City staff assistance with the operation of the Commission and conduct of Commission 
meetings.   
 
ATTACHMENTS  
A. Ordinance No. 644 



1 

ORDINANCE NO. 644 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CUDAHY AMENDING TITLE 2 (ADMINISTRATION 
AND PERSONNEL) OF THE CUDAHY MUNICIPAL CODE 
TO ADD CHAPTER 2.58 (ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
COMMISSION) AND ESTABLISH AN ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION AND SETTING FORTH 
REGULATIONS RELATING TO ACTIVITIES OF ALL 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION MEMBERS 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Cudahy (the “City”) authorized the formation and 

operation of a community redevelopment agency within the territorial jurisdiction of the 
City pursuant to California state law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the former Cudahy Community Development Commission/Cudahy 
Redevelopment Agency (“RDA”) undertook the redevelopment of certain areas of the 
City in reliance upon the provisions of state law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the State of California (the “State”) ordered the RDA to be dissolved 
under the provisions of ABX1 26 (Stats 2011-12, 1st Ex. Sess., Chapter 5), as amended 
by AB 1484 (Stats 2012, Chapter 26), and collectively the State legislation identified in 
this sentence is referred to herein as the “State Redevelopment Dissolution Law”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City as Successor Agency to the RDA (the “Successor Agency”) 
has initiated the implementation of the State Redevelopment Dissolution Law; and 

WHEREAS, despite the dissolution of redevelopment agencies by the State, the 
City Council believes that there continues to be a need community development 
initiatives and the City Council further believes that there is a special need for an 
advisory body to consult with the City Council from time to time with respect to the 
review economic development policies and programs and make recommendations to 
the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to amend the Cudahy Municipal Code to 
create such an advisory body. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CUDAHY DOES 
HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated by 
reference as if set forth herein.  

SECTION 2. The City Council hereby finds and determines that there is a need 
for the creation of an advisory body to the City Council which shall provide reports and 

 

clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



2 

recommendations to the City Council on community economic development matters and 
such special development project matters as may be referred to such advisory board by 
the City Council. 

SECTION 3. Title 2 (Administration and Personnel) of the Cudahy Municipal 
Code is hereby amended by adding thereto, and there is hereby enacted, the following: 

Title 2   Administration and Personnel 

Chapter 2.58   Cudahy Economic Development Commission 

Section 2.58.010 Purposes of Chapter. 
 
Section 2.58.020 Establishment of Cudahy Economic Development 

 Advisory Commission.  
 
Section 2.58.030 Membership.   
 
Section 2.58.040 Appointment/Terms of Office 

 
Section 2.58.050 Continuation in Office. 
 
Section 2.58.060 Discretionary Stipend. 
 
Section 2.58.070 Quorum. 
 
Section 2.58.080   Chair and Vice-Chair. 
 
Section 2.58.090 Meetings.    
 
Section 2.58.100 Staff Assistance.  

Section 2.58.110 Duties and Responsibilities.    

Section 2.58.010 Purposes of Chapter.  The City Council recognizes the 
importance of encouraging sustainable economic development and community 
programs to sustain and foster community economic development and 
neighborhood growth within the City of Cudahy.  The purpose of the Cudahy 
Economic Development Advisory Commission (the “Commission”) is to facilitate 
the goals of the Cudahy General Plan by serving as an advisory body to the City 
Council for the formulation and review of City economic development policies.  
The Commission shall review economic development policies and programs and 
make recommendations to the City Council. 
 
Section 2.58.020 Establishment.   The Commission is hereby established 
with members, organization, duties, and responsibilities as provided in this 
Chapter 2.58.   



3 

 
Section 2.58.030 Membership.  The membership of the Commission, as 
appointed by the City Council, shall consist of five (5) members.  All members of 
the Commission shall be residents of the City and at least eighteen (18) years of 
age.  City employees, members of the City Council, and members of the 
Planning Commission shall not be eligible for membership in the Commission.  
 
Section 2.58.040 Appointment/Terms of Office.  Each member of the City 
Council shall appoint one of the five (5) members of the Commission for a term 
concurrent with the term of the appointing member of the City Council. 
 
Section 2.58.050 Continuation in Office.  Each member of the Commission 
shall continue in office until his or her successor is appointed.   
 
Section 2.58.060 Discretionary Stipend.  The City Council, in its sole 
discretion, may permit the granting of a stipend to members of the Commission 
or compensation for Council-authorized costs and expenses incurred by a 
member of the Commission on behalf of the Commission. The City Council, in its 
sole discretion may set, increase, or decrease the amount of the stipend or 
abolish the stipend at any time with or without cause or notice to the members of 
the Commission. 
 
Section 2.58.070 Quorum.  For purposes of conducting meetings, three (3) 
members of the Commission shall constitute a quorum. 
 
Section 2.58.080 Chair and Vice-Chair.  In January of each year, the 
Commission shall elect one of its members as chair of the Commission and 
another of its members as Vice-Chair.  Both officers of the Commission shall hold 
office for a term of one-year or until a successor has been selected by the 
Commission.    
 
Section 2.58.090 Meetings.  The Commission shall meet regularly at least 
once each month at a time and place fixed by Commission resolution and shall 
hold such meetings as shall from time to time be called in the manner and form 
required under the Ralph M. Brown Act.  Meetings shall be conducted in 
accordance with recognized parliamentary procedure.        
 
Section 2.58.100 Staff Assistance.  As directed by the City Manager, City 
staff shall provide staff assistance that the Commission may require.  

Section 2.58.110 Duties and Responsibilities.  The Commission shall review 
and make written recommendations to the City Council regarding economic 
development policies and programs, including but not limited to the following: 

A. Development of an economic development strategy, in light of constraints 
on local economic development; 



4 

B. Job creation; 

C. Neighborhood revitalization; 

D. Development of metrics to monitor the economic status within the City; 

E. Attraction and retaining of commerce and businesses; 

F. Improvement of tax and other revenues collected by the City; 

G. Creation of improvement districts and other districts/zones that can be 
used to improve neighborhoods and or commerce conducted within the 
City; and 

H. Such other matters as specifically referred to the Commission by the City 
Council. 

SECTION 4. Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, 
or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the 
decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it 
would have adopted this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, subdivision, 
sentence, clause, phrase, or portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or 
more sections, subsections, subdivisions, sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions 
might subsequently be declared invalid or unconstitutional. 

SECTION 5. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days 
after its adoption.  Two readings of this Ordinance shall be required for adoption.  The 
City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Ordinance and shall cause this Ordinance 
or a summary thereof to be published in the manner required by law. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 
City of Cudahy on this _____ day of _______________, 2015. 
 
 
             
       Chris Garcia 

Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Victor Ferrer 
Acting Deputy City Clerk 

 



5 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Isabel Birrueta 
City Attorney 
 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES  )  SS: 
CITY OF CUDAHY    ) 
 
 
I, Victor Ferrer, Acting Deputy City Clerk of the City of Cudahy, hereby certify that the 
foregoing Ordinance No.644 was passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Cudahy, signed by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk at a regular meeting of said 
Council held on the ___ day of ______________, 2015, and that said Ordinance was 
adopted by the following vote, to-wit: 
 
 
AYES:    
 
NOES:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
ABSENT:  
   
 
 
   
Victor Ferrer 
Acting Deputy City Clerk 

 
 


	9A. Staff Report - Demands and Payroll Reports.pdf
	It is recommended that the City Council approve the Demands and Payroll for the month of January 2015 including Cash and Investment Report by Fund for the month of January 2015.
	UBACKGROUND
	1. On July 13, 1993, Ordinance 476 was adopted and codified as Cudahy Municipal Code Section 3.04.080 indicates, "Except as otherwise provided, no warrant shall be drawn or evidence of indebtedness issued unless there shall be at the time sufficient m...
	2. On January 2015, the following  demands and payroll have been audited by the Finance Department:

	9A. Attachment C - 2015 Mar (Jan) Investment Report.pdf
	sheet 1

	9A. Attachment C - 2015 Mar (Jan) Investment Report.pdf
	sheet 1

	9A. Staff Report - Demands and Payroll Reports.pdf
	It is recommended that the City Council approve the Demands and Payroll for the month of January 2015 including Cash and Investment Report by Fund for the month of January 2015.
	UBACKGROUND
	1. On July 13, 1993, Ordinance 476 was adopted and codified as Cudahy Municipal Code Section 3.04.080 indicates, "Except as otherwise provided, no warrant shall be drawn or evidence of indebtedness issued unless there shall be at the time sufficient m...
	2. On January 2015, the following  demands and payroll have been audited by the Finance Department:

	9A. Attachment C - 2015 Mar (Jan) Investment Report.pdf
	sheet 1

	9B. Staff Report - LAIF 2015 01 31.pdf
	URECOMMENDATIONU
	It is recommended that the City Council approve the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Report for the month of January 2015.

	9F. Attachment A - General Plan APR 2014.pdf
	UApproved: Conditional Use Permit No. 38.348 Alex I Auto RepairU. Application proposing the operation of a general auto repair shop; the establishment will be known as “Alex I Auto Repair” at 4901 Patata Street #207-208 in the Commercial Manufacturing...
	UApproved: Conditional Use Permit No. 38.342 24 Hour Coin LaundryU. Application proposing a coin operated laundry facility at one of the units located at 7248 Atlantic Avenue, which unit is part of the commercial shopping center located at 7200-7248 i...
	UApproved: Modification of Conditional Use Permit No. 38.342 24 Hour Coin LaundryU. Application proposing to modify two existing Monument Sings to accommodate new illuminated sign for 24hr. coin laundry located at 7248 Atlantic Avenue, which unit is p...
	UApproved: Conditional Use Permit No. 38.345 Ministerios Una Voz Profetica en las Naciones, Inc. ChurchU. Application proposing to establish a church; the establishment will be known as “Ministerios Una Voz Profetica en las Naciones, Inc.,” at 8333 At...
	UApproved: Development Review Permit No. 41.499 Circle K CenterU. Application proposing to improve the façade of two existing buildings & canopy, the remodel of existing convenience store and conversion of existing Auto Repair Shop into a retail type ...
	UDenied: Conditional Use Permit No. 38.349 Latinos Market #1U. Application proposing to allow alcohol sales in an existing mini-market located at 7601 Otis Avenue in the Neighborhood Commercial (NC) Zone. The Planning Commission was unable to make the...
	UPending: Conditional Use Permit No. 38.351 Broadway Auto CenterU. Application proposing to establish an auto-body and mechanic repair shop located at 4550 Cecelia Street in the Commercial Manufacturing (CM) Zone. The Project application is pending co...
	UPending: Conditional Use Permit No. 38.352 Opportunities for Learning (OFL) Charter SchoolU. Application proposing to allow a Charter School in an existing/vacant retail space located at 7955 Atlantic Avenue in the Community Commercial (CC) Zone. App...
	UPending: Development Review Permit No. 41.500 Soil Vapor Extraction Remediation SystemU. Application proposing an upgrade to an existing soil vapor extraction remediation system located at 7200 Atlantic Avenue in the Community Commercial (CC) Zone. A...
	Other Projects/Grants/Changes:
	USafe Routes to School (SRTS) Plan and Program.U
	Once the community-informed Cudahy city-wide Safe Routes to School (SRTS) plan and program document was completed it was scheduled for Public Hearing and a notice of public hearing was published in the Long Beach Press-Telegram for the Planning and Pu...
	UPlanning and Development Fee Increase
	On August 19, 2014 City Council adopted Resolution No. 14-54 which increased Planning and
	Development Fees. The fee schedule had not been updated in the past 27 years; the previous fee schedule was adopted on December 14, 1987. Due to changing times and economies, it was long overdue for the City of Cudahy to update their Planning and Deve...
	UStrategic Planning Grant
	6.0 Long Range Planning Activities
	While the pace of development has ebbed, the ongoing implementation of the City’s General Plan includes planning efforts that will position Cudahy to accommodate future growth in a more sustainable manner and ready the community for investment and eco...
	General Plan
	Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan
	The mission of the Cudahy Local Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan is to promote sound public policy designed to protect citizens, critical facilities, infrastructure, private property, and the environment from natural hazards. This can be achieved by in...
	Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
	Low Impact Development (LID)
	7.0 General Plan Elements
	8.0 Goals, Priorities and Objectives
	9.0 Conclusion
	10.0 References

	9F. Attachment B - Appendix B _ 2014 Annual Element Progress Report (Housing Element Implementation).pdf
	blank

	10C. Staff Report - CUP No. 38.352.pdf
	2. On April 21, 1993, the Cudahy Planning Commission recommended approval of DRP No. 41.254 and CUP No. 38.187 to City Council of a Negative Declaration, change of storefronts of the existing shopping center located at 7907-8017 Atlantic Avenue, and t...
	3. On June 7, 1993, a memorandum prepared by the Director of Community Development DRP No. 41.254 and CUP No. 38.187 required 373 parking spaces on site to accommodate a total of 11 retail spaces on site along with the proposed 7,000 pad building addi...
	4. On September 7, 1993, the City Council approved an Ordinance to change the land use designation of those portions of the Cudahy Plaza Shopping Center property that were zoned Residential to Commercial.
	5. On March 3, 1997, City Council approved Development Review Permit No. 41.277 and a Negative Declaration regarding a proposal by Pep Boys-Parts USA to construct an 8,330 square foot retail center for automobile parts and accessories at 7901 Atlantic...
	6. On March 27, 2003, a new application was submitted and subsequently approved for CUP No. 38.256 for a proposed 11,500 square foot pad building located on the subject site, the project required a total 516 parking spaces on site to accommodate the 1...
	7. On October 21, 2014, OFL submitted an application to the Community Development Department for a CUP No. 38.352 to allow a Charter School in the CC Zone in the Cudahy Plaza located at 7955 Atlantic Avenue.
	An environmental review has been considered for the subject project. Staff finds that projects involving negligible or no expansion of an existing use are exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15301 as projects that have been categorica...
	A second categorical exemption applies to this project. Categorical Exemption 15332, In-Fill Development Projects Class 32 which consists of projects characterized as in-fill development meeting the conditions described in this section. (See Attachmen...

	10C. Attachment A - Analysis.pdf
	UTABLE 1 – PARKING REQUIREDU: Based on current uses
	Shown on the table above, a total of 534 parking spaces exist on the subject site. Per the most recent entitlement process of CUP No. 38.256 dated March 2003 required 516 parking spaces to fully accommodate the existing 11 uses on site along with the ...
	Department Comments:
	Building & Safety – Submit complete sets of plans for all tenant improvements to the Building & Safety Department prior to construction.
	An environmental review has been considered for the subject project. Staff finds that projects involving negligible or no expansion of an existing use are exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15301 as projects that have been categorica...
	A second categorical exemption applies to this project. Categorical Exemption 15332, In-Fill Development Projects Class 32 which consists of projects characterized as in-fill development meeting the conditions described in this section.
	(a) The project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable general plan policies as well as with applicable zoning designation and regulations.

	10C. Attachment C - Development Plans.pdf
	A1-0-0.pdf
	A1-0-0.pdf

	A0-1-5.pdf
	A0-1-5.pdf


	10C. Attachment D - PC 15-02 Denial Reso.pdf
	A. “The site for a proposed conditional use should be adequate in size and shape to accommodate the yards, walls and fences, parking and loading, landscaping and other development features prescribed in this chapter, or required by the commission, cit...
	As demonstrated in the parking calculation, a total of 534 parking spaces exist on the subject site. Per the most recent entitlement process of CUP No. 38.256 dated March 2003 required 516 parking spaces to fully accommodate the existing 11 uses on si...
	Furthermore, the proposed project applicant (OFL Charter School) will be occupying an existing/vacant space which was previously occupied by “Forever 21,” approval of this CUP No. 38.352 will allow OFL Charter School to operate at the subject site und...

	10C. Attachment G - Resolution No. 15-09 Approval.pdf
	A. “The site for a proposed conditional use should be adequate in size and shape to accommodate the yards, walls and fences, parking and loading, landscaping and other development features prescribed in this chapter, or required by the commission, cit...
	As demonstrated in the parking calculation, a total of 534 parking spaces exist on the subject site. Per the most recent entitlement process of CUP No. 38.256 dated March 2003 required 516 parking spaces to fully accommodate the existing 11 uses on si...
	The Cudahy Municipal Code requires one parking space for every five students. OFL will have a maximum of 35 students on site at the same time. Therefore, 35/5 = 7 required parking spaces. Seven spaces amounts to only about 1.3 percent of the site’s 52...
	Furthermore, the proposed project applicant (OFL Charter School) will be occupying an existing/vacant space which was previously occupied by “Forever 21,” approval of this CUP No. 38.352 will allow OFL Charter School to operate at the subject site und...
	An environmental review has been considered for the subject project. Staff finds that projects involving negligible or no expansion of an existing use are exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15301 as projects that have been categorica...
	A second categorical exemption applies to this project. Categorical Exemption 15332, In-Fill Development Projects Class 32 which consists of projects characterized as in-fill development meeting the conditions described in this section.
	(a) The project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable general plan policies as well as with applicable zoning designation and regulations.

	10C. Attachment H - Resolution No. 15-10 Denial.pdf
	A. “The site for a proposed conditional use should be adequate in size and shape to accommodate the yards, walls and fences, parking and loading, landscaping and other development features prescribed in this chapter, or required by the commission, cit...
	As demonstrated in the parking calculation, a total of 534 parking spaces exist on the subject site. Per the most recent entitlement process of CUP No. 38.256 dated March 2003 required 516 parking spaces to fully accommodate the existing 11 uses on si...
	The Cudahy Municipal Code requires one parking space for every five students. OFL will have a maximum of 35 students on site at the same time. Therefore, 35/5 = 7 required parking spaces. Seven spaces amounts to only about 1.3 percent of the site’s 52...
	Furthermore, the proposed project applicant (OFL Charter School) will be occupying an existing/vacant space which was previously occupied by “Forever 21,” approval of this CUP No. 38.352 will allow OFL Charter School to operate at the subject site und...

	10D. Attachment A - 644, Ordinance Economic Development Commission Ordinance.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. 644
	Chris Garcia
	ATTEST:
	Victor Ferrer
	APPROVED AS TO FORM:
	Isabel Birrueta
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSTAIN:
	ABSENT:
	Victor Ferrer

	9D. Attachment C1_PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT - Project Management (DRAFT).pdf
	I.
	UENGAGEMENT TERMS
	APPENDIX A
	(INSERT PDF OF FEE SCHEDULE)
	APPENDIX B
	APPENDIX C
	APPENDIX D
	APPENDIX E




